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MEMBERS OF THE AUDIT & GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE -     
HARTLEPOOL  Councillors Marjorie James, Stephen Thomas  
MIDDLESBROUGH   Councillors Naweed Hussain, Ashley Waters 
REDCAR & CLEVELAND  Councillors Billy Ayre, Adam Brook, Norah Cooney 
STOCKTON ON TEES    Councillors Andrew Stephenson, William Woodhead  
INDEPENDENT PERSONS  Messrs Steve Harwood, Paul McGrath 
 
 


A   G   E   N   D   A 
 
 


1. APPOINTMENT OF CHAIR FOR THE ENSUING YEAR  
 
2. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 
 
3. DECLARATIONS OF MEMBERS INTEREST 
 


4. APPOINTMENT OF VICE CHAIR FOR THE ENSUING YEAR 
 


5. TO CONFIRM THE MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON 22 FEBRUARY 2019 
 


6. TO RECEIVE THE REPORT OF THE CLERK 
6.1 Audit & Governance Committee Forward Work Programme 2019/20 


 
7. TO RECEIVE THE REPORTS OF THE CHIEF FIRE OFFICER 


7.1 Annual Performance & Efficiency Report 2018/19 
7.2 Internal Audit Progress Report    
7.3 Review of the Corporate Risk Register 


 
8. JOINT REPORT OF THE CHIEF FIRE OFFICER AND TREASURER 


8.1 Outturn and Financial Report (including the 2018/19 Statement of Accounts) 
 


9. TO RECEIVE THE REPORTS OF THE TREASURER 
9.1 Internal Audit Outturn Report 2018/19 
9.2 Audit 2018/19 Request for Declarations  
9.3 Role of the Chief Finance Officer (CFO) in Public Service Organisations  
9.4 Role of the Head of Internal Audit in Local Government 


     
10. ANY OTHER BUSINESS WHICH, IN THE OPINION OF THE CHAIR, SHOULD BE  
 CONSIDERED AS A MATTER OF URGENCY  


 
 
C L E V E L A N D  F I R E  A U T H O R I T Y  


A U D I T  &  G O V E R N A N C E  C O M M I T T E E   
 
2 8  J U N E  2 0 1 9  –  1 1 . 0 0 A M  
 
TRAINING & ADMINISTRATION HUB, ENDEAVOUR HOUSE, QUEENS MEADOW 
BUSINESS PARK,  HARTLEPOOL,  TS25 5TH 
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PRESENT: 


 
CHAIR:- 
Councillor Norah Cooney – Redcar & Cleveland Borough Council 
HARTLEPOOL BOROUGH COUNCIL  
Councillor Marjorie James, Mike Young 
MIDDLESBROUGH COUNCIL  
Councillor Naweed Hussain 
REDCAR & CLEVELAND BOROUGH COUNCIL 
Councillor Neil Bendelow  
STOCKTON ON TEES BOROUGH COUNCIL  
Councillors Gillian Corr, Mick Stoker  
INDEPENDENT PERSONS 
Mr Mike Hill, Mr Steve Harwood 
AUTHORISED OFFICERS 
Director of Corporate Services, Treasurer, Legal Adviser & Monitoring 
Officer 
MAZARS 
Ross Woodley, Audit Manager  
Gavin Barker, Audit Director  


 
 
 
 
APOLOGIES 
FOR ABSENCE: 


IN ATTENDANCE 
Area Manager for Emergency Response   
Head of Risk and Performance, Head of Finance 
 
Chief Fire Officer 
Councillor Teresa Higgins – Middlesbrough Council  
Councillor Paul Kirton – Stockton Borough Council   
 


 
101. DECLARATION OF MEMBERS INTERESTS 
 It was noted no Declarations of Interest were submitted to the meeting. 
 
102. MINUTES 


RESOLVED – that the Minutes of the Audit & Governance Committee held on 9 
November 2018 be confirmed. 
 


103. REPORTS OF MAZARS 
103.1 Audit Progress Report – February 2019  


The Audit Manager (AM) outlined the progress on the external audit for 2018/19 and 
reported that the planning work was now complete. He referred Members to Appendix 
1 which covered Audit Progress, National Publications and other updates. Mr Mike Hill 
referred to the Home Office publication ‘Fire and Rescue Authority 2018 reserves as a 
share of core spending power, November 2018’ and asked if the Authority’s current 
level of reserves could be viewed as a risk.  


 


C L E V E L A N D   F I R E   A U T H O R I T Y 
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103.1 Audit Progress Report continued 
The Treasurer confirmed that the Authority had considered a Medium Term Financial 
Strategy report at its meeting on 15 February 2019 which covered the use of reserves 
and potential risks post 2020-21. 
 
The Audit Director (AD) reported that he did not have any issues with the Authority’s 
level of reserves and viewed the Authority as managing a considerably difficult 
financial position very well. 
 


 RESOLVED – That the report be noted 
 


103.2 Audit Strategy Memorandum   
The AD presented the Audit Strategy Memorandum for the year ending 31 March 2019 
which included : 


 


 Engagement and Responsibilities Summary 


 Audit Scope, Approach and Timeline 


 Significant risks and Key Judgement Areas 


 Value for Money at Work 


 Fees for Audit & other services 
 
Councillor James suggested it would be beneficial to Members and Independent 
Persons if Mazars could deliver a training session on scrutinising financial and audit 
reports. The AD confirmed this could be arranged and would incur a fee. The Director 
of Corporate Services (DoCS) agreed to liaise with Mazars and the Treasurer to 
arrange the training.  


 
 RESOLVED:-  


(i) that the report be noted. 
(ii) that Members and Independent Persons receive training from Mazars. 


 
 
104. REPORTS OF THE CHIEF FIRE OFFICER 
104.1 Organisational Performance & Efficiency Report April 2018 – December 2018 


The Head of Risk and Performance (HoRP) outlined the performance of the Brigade 
for the period 1 April 2018 to 31 January 2019. The report covered the following 
details:  


 Total incidents stand at 7,303 a reduction of 221 (- 3%) compared to the same 
period last year. These arose from 10,510 emergency calls to Fire Control.  


 Secondary fires (2961 incidents) account for 41% of all incidents and have 
increased by 11% (302 incidents) since last year.  


 False Alarms (2601) account for 36% of all incidents. These have decreased by 
69 incidents primarily due to the implementation of the Brigade’s Unwanted Fire 
Signals Strategy for Accidental Fire Alarms in non-residential buildings. 


 Special Services have decreased by 28% (425 incidents) to 1098 mainly due to 
the reduction in Co-responder incidents which have reduced by 95% (407) from 
430 to 23. 


 Deliberate Primary Fires have reduced by 33 (9%) but Deliberate Secondary fires 
have increased by 349 (15%). Main types of Deliberate Primary Fires are 
deliberate vehicle fires (50%). Most common types of Deliberate Secondary Fires 
are refuse (71%), and grassland (26%).  
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104.1 Organisational Performance & Efficiency Report April 2018 – Dec 2018 cont. 


 85% of all our primary and secondary fires are classed as deliberate. 


 Accidental Dwelling Fires (ADFs) have reduced by 20% since 2017/18 (from 120 
to 96 incidents) with increases in Hartlepool and decreased in Stockton, 
Middlesbrough and Redcar and Cleveland.  The main causes are electrical 
(21%), cooking related (21%), careless handling (19%) and radiated heat (17%). 


 70% of Accidental Dwelling Fires had a previous HFSV before the incident. 


 The Brigade’s main preventative services for ADF’s are Home Fire Safety Visits 
(HFSVs) and Safe and Well Visits.  In 2018-19 the Brigade has conducted 
15,268 Home Fire Safety Visits and 2,374 Safe and Well Visits as well as 1,273 
inspections of Industrial and Commercial buildings.  


 Deliberate Fire fatalities – 1 incidents (+50%)  


 Deliberate Fire injuries – 1 incident (-50%) 


 Response Standards: 
 Call Answering:         Target set at 7 seconds, Actual 7.7 seconds 
 Call Handing:        Target 100 seconds - Actual 86 Seconds 
 Building Fires 1st Appliance    Target 7 Minutes, Actual 4.50 Minutes 
 Building Fires 2nd Appliance  Target 10 Minutes, Actual 6.47 Minutes 
 RTC          Target 8 Minutes, Actual 5.18 Minutes  


 Compared to 2017-18, overall Sickness Absence for Quarter 3 in 2018-19 
increased from 1.18 shifts per person to 6.1. Green Book decreased by 8%, Fire 
Control increased by 49% and Wholetime and Retained have experienced 
increases of 24% and 3% respectively.  


 Violence to Staff Incidents – 33 incidents (-3% from 2017/18). 
 
The HoR&P confirmed that in January 2019, the Home Office published National 
Response Times to Fires for 2017/18 which ranked Cleveland fastest in the country for 
Primary/ Dwelling fires and road vehicle fires and 4th fastest for other building fires. 
The Brigade was also ranked 2nd fastest for secondary fires.  
 
The DoCS praised Brigade staff for their efforts in continuing to maintain Cleveland’s 
position as the safest place to live in the country in respect of Accidental Dwelling 
Fires (ADFs).   
 
The Area Manager for Emergency Response (AMER) provided Members with a brief 
account of the recent fatal fire in North Ormesby and confirmed that the Brigade would 
be highly visible in the community offering advice and support.  
 
Mr Mike Hill asked if HFSVs could be utilised more. The AMER confirmed that the 
purpose is primarily to prevent loss of life and fire and causational factors, such as 
electrical faults, are much harder to prevent.  
 
Councillor James highlighted the risks posed from houses in need of re-wiring and 
suggested the Brigade could explore options to provide assistance to people who 
need this work carrying out.  
 
Mr Steve Harwood asked what impact poor maintenance of buildings had on incidents 
of fires.  The AMER confirmed that it was a combination of the condition of the building 
and the behaviours of those living in it. He added that factors such as the use of 
smoke alarms and introduction of furniture regulations meant that dwelling fires tended 
to be less severe than in the past. 
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104.1 Organisational Performance & Efficiency Report April 2018 – Dec 2018 cont. 
Mr Hill asked the DoCS how she planned to address mental health issues affecting 
sickness absence. She confirmed this was a key focus of the Health & Wellbeing 
Strategy and initiatives included partnership work with MIND to train Blue Light 
Champions in the workplace as well as collaborative work with police.  She added that 
sickness would be monitored on an annual basis to provide a more detailed analysis. 
 
Councillor James referred to the cost associated with attending false alarms and 
suggested the Brigade considered running a campaign to highlight the costs to the 
public.  
 
RECOMMENDED - that the report be noted 


 
104.2 Internal Audit Progress Report 2018/19 


Members received details of the progress made on the Internal Audit Programme 
2018/19 and considered the recommendations / actions contained within the action 
plans from previous Internal Audits.   


 
 RESOLVED – That the report be noted. 
 
104.3 Corporate Risk Register – February 2019 


Members considered the Corporate Risk Register which had been reviewed in 
December 2018 by the Active Risk Team as part of the Brigade’s strategic planning 
process. The outcome of this review was detailed at Appendix 1.  
 
RECOMMENDED- that the report be noted. 


  
104.4 Progress Against Revenue and Capital Budgets 2018/19 


The Head of Finance (HoF) presented the current position as at 31 December 2018 
and informed Members of the forecasted outturn position which shows a net 
underspend of £0.924m.  He confirmed that this was higher than the forecast under 
spend of £0.749 identified when the Medium Term Financial Strategy was presented 
to the Executive Committee on 25 January 2019.   
 
The HoF reported that the forecast underspend included £711k from managing vacant 
posts, which achieved 77% of the planned 2019/20 savings.  


 
He informed Members that a detailed review of the Asset Management Plan (AMP) 
2018-2025/26 had been undertaken and approved in January 2019.   


  
 RESOLVED:-  


i) that the position at 31 December 2018 be noted. 
ii) that Members noted that a proposed strategy for using the forecast 


managed under-spend is detailed in the Medium Term Financial Strategy 
for 2019/20. 
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105. REPORTS OF THE TREASURER 
105.1 Treasury Management Strategy 2019/20  


Member scrutinised the Treasury Management strategy 2019/20 which covered: 


 Economic Background and Outlook for Interest Rates 


 Interest Rate Forecasts 


 Treasury Management Outturn Position 2017/18 and 2018/19 Mid Year Review 


 Treasury Management Strategy 2019/20 


 Borrowing Strategy 2019/20 


 Investment Strategy 2019/20 


 Minimum Revenue Provision and Interest Costs / Regulatory Information 
2019/20 
 


The Treasurer reported that owing to the timings of meetings it was not possible to 
refer this strategy to the Audit & Governance Committee prior to it being presented to 
the Authority on 15 February 2019 and any issues would be fed back to the Authority 
at its next meeting.  
 
RESOLVED – that Members reviewed the 2019/20 Treasury Management 
Strategy and had no issues to report back to the Authority.    
 


105.2 Internal Audit Plan 2019/20   
The Treasurer presented the Internal Audit Plan indicating the proposed coverage for 
2019/20.  


 
 RECOMMENDED 


(i) That the 2019/20 Internal Audit Plan be adopted 
(ii) That the Authority’s Annual Governance Statement is reviewed at its 


meeting on 28 May 2019. 
 
 
106. REPORT OF THE LEGAL ADVISER AND MONITORING OFFICER 
106.1 Business Report – Local Government Ethical Standards: A Review by the 
 Committee on Standards in Public Life (January 2019) 


The Legal Advisor and Monitoring Officer (LAMO) informed Members of the outcomes 
of the review by the Committee on Standards in Public Life of Local Government 
ethical standards following its earlier stakeholder consultation. He referred Members to 
the Committee’s report at Appendix 1 and outlined the key recommendations which 
had more direct application to Fire and Rescue Authorities as detailed at section 5 of 
the covering report.   
 
The LAMO reported that while it was open for authorities to adopt some of these 
recommendations as ‘best practice’ the majority were reliant on amendments to 
primary and secondary legislation as well as being contingent on action by a number 
of bodies and organisations.  He agreed to bring further reports before members when 
(and if) any statutory changes were enacted.  
 
RECOMMENDED:-  
(i) that the recommendations from the report of the Committee on Standards 


in Public Life, attached at Appendix 1, be noted. 
(ii) That Members receive a further report following the Government’s 


consideration of the Committee’s report and any legislative or best practice 
guidance that may follow. 
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107. ANY OTHER BUSINESS 
107.1 Resignation of Mr Mike Hill, Independent Person  


The Chair informed Members that Mr Hill was resigning from his role as Independent 
Person and passed on thanks and best wishes on behalf of the Authority. The LAMO 
added that Mr Hill had been an exceptional Independent Person and his valuable 
contribution would be missed.   
 
 
 


COUNCILLOR NORAH COONEY  
CHAIR 
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Audit & Governance Committee 
Forward Work Programme – 2019/20 


 
 


Subject 
 


Corporate Goals 
 


Status 
Lead  


Officer 
 


28 Jun 
2019 


 
23 Aug 
2019 


 
15 Nov 
2019 


 
21 Feb 
2019 


 
 


Notes 


Finance 
 
 
The 2018/19 Financial Report 
(including 2018/19 Statement of 
Accounts & Annual Governance 
Statement) – verbal audit 
progress update from Mazars 


Safer, Stronger Communities and 
Efficient Use of Resources 


 
Annual 


 
Treasurer 


     


 
Progress Against Revenue & 
Capital Budgets 2019/20 


Safer, Stronger Communities and 
Efficient Use of Resources  


 
Quarterly 


 
HoF 


     


 
Revenue & Capital Budgets 
Outturn 2018/19 


Safer, Stronger Communities and 
Efficient Use of Resources 


 
Annual 


 
HoF 


     


 
Treasury Management Strategy 
Review 


 Safer, Stronger Communities and 
Efficient Use of Resources 


 
Annual 


 
Treasurer 


     


Audit 
 
 


  
Internal Audit Report  
 


 Safer, Stronger Communities and 
Efficient Use of Resources 


 
Quarterly 


 
DCS 


 
  


 
 


 
 


   


Internal Audit Outturn Report 
2018/19 
 


Safer, Stronger Communities and 
Efficient Use of Resources  


 
Annual 


Treasurer 
HBC 


     


Internal Audit Plan Report 
2019/20 
 


 Safer, Stronger Communities and 
Efficient Use of Resources 


 
Annual 


Treasurer 
HBC 


     


Role of Chief Finance Officer 
and Head of Internal Audit 


 Safer, Stronger Communities and 
Efficient Use of Resources 


 
Annual 


 
Treasurer 


     
 


 
Request for Declarations  
 


Safer, Stronger Communities and 
Efficient Use of Resources  


 
Annual  


 
Treasurer 
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Subject 


 
Corporate Goals 


 
Status 


Lead  
Officer 


 
28 Jun 
2019 


 
23 Aug 
2019 


 
15 Nov 
2019 


 
21 Feb 
2019 


 
 


Notes 


 
Performance 
 
 
Organisational Performance & 
Efficiency Report 
 
 


Safer, Stronger Communities 
Efficient Use of Resources 


A Proud Passionate, Professional 
and Workforce   


 
Quarterly 


 
HoRP 


 
Annual 


    
 


 
Annual Statement of Assurance 
 
 


Safer, Stronger Communities and 
Efficient Use of Resources  


 
Annual 


 
DCS 


     


 
A & G Forward Work Plan 
 
 


 Safer, Stronger Communities and 
Efficient Use of Resources  


 
Annual 


 
DCS 


     


 
Risk 
 
 
Corporate Risk Register  
 
 
 


 Safer, Stronger Communities 
Efficient Use of Resources 


A Proud Passionate, Professional 
and Workforce 


 
Quarterly 


 
HoRP 


 
 


 
 
 


   


 
External Audit 
 
 
Audit Progress 
 
 


 Safer, Stronger Communities and 
Efficient Use of Resources 


 
Quarterly 


 
EA 


 
 Verbal            
Update      


    


 
Annual Audit Letter 
 
 


 Safer, Stronger Communities and 
Efficient Use of Resources 


 
Annual 


 


 
EA 


     


 
Audit Strategic Memorandum 
 
 


 Safer, Stronger Communities and 
Efficient Use of Resources 


 
Annual 


 
EA 
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Subject 


 
Corporate Goals 


 
Status 


Lead  
Officer 


 
28 Jun 
2019 


 
23 Aug 
2019 


 
15 Nov 
2019 


 
21 Feb 
2019 


 
 


Notes 


 
Standards 
 
 
Business Report 
 


Safer, Stronger Communities 
Efficient Use of Resources 


A Proud Passionate, Professional 
and Workforce   


 
Quarterly 


 
LAMO 


     
 


 
Review of Anti-Fraud and  
Anti-Corruption Strategy 


Safer, Stronger Communities 
Efficient Use of Resources 


A Proud Passionate, Professional 
and Workforce   


 
Annual 


 
LAMO 


     


 
 
 
DCS     - Director of Corporate Services   LAMO  - Legal Adviser/Monitoring Officer   EA  -  External Audit 
HoF     -  Head of Finance    HoRP  -  Head of Risk & Performance    
 








                                                                                                                        AGENDA ITEM 6.1 


AUDIT & GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE 28 JUNE 2019 


 


OFFICIAL 1 


 
FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME 2019/20 


 
REPORT OF THE CLERK 
 


 
 
 
 
 


   


 
 
1. PURPOSE OF REPORT 


 
1.1 To consider if the proposed Forward Work Programme 2019/20 outlined at 


Appendix 1 meets the remit and purpose of the Audit and Governance Committee in 
monitoring and scrutinising the performance of the Brigade against its agreed 
corporate priorities. 
 


1.2 To seek Members views regarding the draft 2019/20 Audit & Governance Forward 
Work Programme. 
 


 
2. RECOMMENDATION 
 
2.1 That the proposed Forward Work Programme 2019/20 outlined at Appendix 1 be 


approved. 
 


 
3. BACKGROUND 
 
3.1 The Fire Authority Standing Orders require that the Audit and Governance 


Committee sets its own work programme for the year.   
 


3.2 The Audit & Governance Committee Forward Work Programme will remain flexible 
to enable referrals from the Authority, its committee or individual Members of the 
Audit and Governance Committee. 
 


 
 
 
 


 
KAREN WINTER 
CLERK TO THE AUTHORITY 


For Approval 
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ANNUAL PERFORMANCE AND EFFICIENCY REPORT 
2018/19  
 


REPORT OF THE CHIEF FIRE OFFICER 


 
 
  
 
 


 
 


   


 
1. PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 
1.1 To appraise Members on the Brigade’s performance, efficiency, audit and 


inspection outcomes for the year ending 31st March 2019. 
 
 
2. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
2.1 That Members note the information contained in the Annual Performance and 


Efficiency Report 2018/19 at Appendix 1. 
 
 
3.  BACKGROUND 


 
3.1 A fundamental part of Performance Management is to demonstrate how well public 


 bodies are performing and whether the services provided represent value for 
money.  
 


3.2 The Authority has for a long time recognised and reaped the benefits of having a 
robust and effective performance management framework and as a result has built 
up robust and comprehensive performance management and assessment 
arrangements that drive continued improvement in all areas of the Brigade.  
 
 


4. PERFORMANCE  
 


4.1 The attached report at Appendix 1 is the Annual Performance and Efficiency Report 
2018/19 that provides Members with details of the Brigade’s performance, 
outcomes from audits and inspections that provide assurance on the Brigade’s 
operational, governance and finance arrangements for the year ending 31st March 
2019. 


  
4.2 The report provides a transparent, single view of information which allows Elected 


Members, Auditors and members of the public to see how the Brigade is 
performing. The report enables the Brigade’s senior managers and staff to be held 
to account in terms of the provision of effective prevention, protection and 
emergency response services that also represent value for money.   


 


For Information 
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4.3 The framework that this document is based upon has been independently assessed 
and evaluated by our external auditors Mazars to ensure that it provides an 
accurate and transparent view of the performance of the organisation.  


 


4.4 The appended report is structured in line with the areas detailed in the Performance 
Assessment Framework. Each section details the evidence that is available and 
used in assessing performance. This information is the consolidated, using the 
criteria detailed on Page 14 to 15, into an overall performance rating. The 
assessment areas included within the report are: 


 
4.5 Strategic Goals and Outcomes (Pages 16 to 38). This section provides details of 


the performance of the Corporate Suite of Indicators for 2018/19 compared with 
equivalent performance for the previous year.  


 
4.6 Annual Priorities (Pages 39 to 44). Details the progress made against those 


priorities and actions identified within the Service Plan for delivery within 2018/19. 
Throughout the year Members of the Executive Committee received detailed reports 
progress made against these priorities.  


 
4.7 Service Standards (Pages 45 to 50). Members will be aware that in 2018/19 the 


Brigade adopted a new suite of emergency response standards. This section 
provides detailed performance against these standards. As prescribed by Members, 
when approving the CIRMP 2018/22, details of performance against the former risk 
based emergency response standards are provided for comparison purposes.  


 
4.8 Operational Assurance (Pages 51 to 57). Assessment of the Operational 


arrangements, capabilities and effectiveness of the Brigade has been based on 
available information. As no formal NRAT and Operational Assurance inspections 
have been completed during 2018/19 the assessment is based on progress against 
the improvement plans arising from previous assessments and our detailed self-
assessment produced in preparation for the HMICFRS inspection (Effectiveness 
Pillar). 


 
4.9 Good Corporate Governance (Pages 58 to 64). This section is based on available 


audit information to demonstrate that the Brigade’s governance arrangements are 
effective and efficient. Key sources of information used for this judgement include 
reports received from Mazars and the Internal Audit Service that is provided by 
Hartlepool Council. 


 
4.10 Value for Money (Pages 65 to 69). This section is based on available financial and 


audit information to demonstrate that the Brigade is providing efficient and VFM 
services. Key sources of information are reports provided by Mazars plus 
comparator financial information published by CIPFA and the Home Office on the 
Brigade’s activities.  


 
4.11 Comparison with other Fire and Rescue Services (Pages 70 to 74). Much of the 


information previously detailed was inward facing. A key element of the 
Performance Assessment Framework is to provide details on how the Brigade’s 
performance compares with other Fire Services. The section also provides details 
on the Brigade’s average attendance time to fire incidents compared to other 
Brigades for 2017/18 that was published by the Home Office in January 2019. 


 







AUDIT & GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE  28 JUNE 2019 


 


OFFICIAL - ANNUAL PERFORMANCE AND EFFICIENCY REPORT 2018/19      3 


4.12 Customer Care (Page 75 to 77). The Brigade provides a service to the public of 
Teesside and during the year information is collected on how people view and rate 
the services provided. In addition the HMICFRS engaged BMG research to conduct 
a public perception survey of all Fire and Rescue Services in England that 
considered the perceptions and satisfaction of the public with the Service. This 
survey provides a vast amount of valuable information around customer satisfaction 
and key headline information arising from this survey has been included within this 
section. 


 
4.13 Using the performance criteria detailed in the report, individual performance ratings 


have been calculated for each assessment area. The following table details the 
assessed performance rating for each of the assessment areas for 2018/19 and 
provides a comparison to 2017/18.  
 


 2017/18 2018/19 


Strategic Goals and Aims Performing Well Performing Well 


Annual Priorities Performing Well Performing Well 


Key Service Standards Performing Well Performing Well 


Operational Assurance  Performing Strongly Performing Strongly 


Good Corporate Governance Performing Strongly Performing Strongly 


Value for Money (VFM) Performing Strongly Performing Strongly 


Comparison with Other Services Performing Well Performing Well 


Customer Care Performing Strongly Performing Strongly 


 


 
4.14 These ratings are then combined using the criteria detailed on Pages 14 to 15 to 


show an overall performance rating of ‘GOOD’. This is the same rating as achieved 
in 2017/18. 


 
4.15 This performance framework has been used to assess the Brigade’s performance 


for the last seven years and to provide information on how the Brigade’s 
performance has changed overtime. Analysis of previous assessments indicates 
that the Brigade has maintained an overall performance rating of GOOD each year.  


 
 


IAN HAYTON                                            KAREN WINTER 
CHIEF FIRE OFFICER      DIRECTOR OF CORPORATE SERVICES 








CFA Annual Performance and Efficiency Report 2018/19      1 


 


Performance & Efficiency 


Report 


2018 - 2019 







CFA Annual Performance and Efficiency Report 2018/19  2 


Contents 


Section   Page Number 


1 Data Quality Statement 3 


2 Performance Highlights 4 


3 Introduction 5 


4 Operating Environment 7 


5 Risk Profile 9 


6 Our Organisational Model 11 


7 Organisational Performance  14 


8 Strategic Goals and Outcomes 17 


9 Annual Priorities 40 


10 Key Service Standards 46 


11 Operational Assurance 52 


12 Good Corporate Governance 59 


13 Value for Money 66 


14 Comparison Against Other Fire & Rescue Services 71 


15 Customer Care 76 


16 Compliments and Complaints 78 


17 Equality and Diversity Profile 80 


18 Glossary of Terms 82 


   


   


 


 


 







CFA Annual Performance and Efficiency Report 2018/19      3 


 


1  Data Quality Statement 


 


We are satisfied that any information and assessments included in this report are in all 


respects accurate and complete. No significant data quality issues have been identified 


during the preparation of this report by the Risk and Performance Team nor have any been 


brought to the team’s attention. 


Whilst we have not validated every item of information within the report we are confident, 


from our knowledge of our staff, relevant systems and processes, that the information 


produced is done so in accordance with CFB approved guidance. No issues on data quality 


have been identified in any internal or external assessment conducted on the Brigade. In 


addition the internal audit annual assurance statement on the Brigade’s system of 


management controls has not identified any weaknesses with systems and processes. 


Our commitment to high quality data is driven by our Data Quality Policy supported by a 


robust procedure and delivery plan to ensure continued improvements in the data quality 


arrangements. This quality assurance framework underpins the Brigade’s Integrated 


Strategic, Business and Financial Planning Cycle. 


Our embedded approach to the principles of efficient and accurate data collection, 


collation, recording, analysis and reporting of information across the organisation, to 


partners and the public, enable increased levels of confidence in the quality of information 


produced. 


In all cases, whatever the source of the information, the most up to date information that is 


available is used within our reports. Information and data sharing agreements and protocols 


have been formally established where data is shared between partners.   


We continually work to further improve the quality of our data through internal reviews of 


management information systems, processes and procedures. Staff understanding and 


adherence to appropriate data quality standards will be continually monitored to ensure 


current high standards are maintained and are not the sole responsibility of the Risk and 


Performance Team. 
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2  Performance Highlights  
 


 


Safer Stronger Communities 
 
 Reduction in Accidental Dwelling Fires (ADF) -


20% (-29) 
 


 Reduction in ADF Injuries 
 


 Reduction in attendance to Non-domestic 
Automatic Fire Alarms  


 


 Reduction of Primary Fires  
 


 Average attendance time for first appliance to 
an incident under target at 4 minutes 48 
seconds. 


 


 Increase in Secondary Fires +23% (+666) 
 


 Increase in Deliberate Dwelling Fires +13% 
(+10) 


 


A Proud, Passionate, Professional and Inclusive Workforce 
 
 Reduction in staff receiving attendance 


improvement notices 
 


 Reduction in vehicle accidents 
 


 Increase in external compliments 
 


 Increase in percentage of operational 
personnel completed fitness assessments 


 


 Reduction in accidents resulting in injury 
 


 Increase in accidents resulting in damage to 
property 


 


 Increase in Brigade sickness levels 
 


 Increase in Wholetime staff not at prescribed 
staffing levels 


 


 Reduction in retained appliance availability 
 


 Reduction in percentage of staff receiving a 
Personal Development Review 


 
Efficient use of Resource 


 


 Zero internal Audit Reports classed as limited 
assurance 


 


 Zero interest paid for late invoices 
 


 Reduction in vacant FTE posts 
 


 Increase of HFSVs carried out by partners 
 


 Decrease in staff turnover 
 


 Increase in False Alarm Malicious calls 
 


 Increase in percentage of mobilisations to 
False Alarm Malicious calls 
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3  Introduction 


 


This report provides details of Cleveland Fire Brigade’s performance for 2018/19. It provides 


a transparent, single view of information which allows Elected Members, Auditors and 


members of the public to hold the Brigade’s senior managers and staff to account in terms 


of the performance of their Fire Brigade during 2018/19. 


 


Cleveland Fire Authority’s vision is suitably ambitious and yet underpinned by principles of 


reality and common sense; these being to understand the needs of its diverse communities 


and to respond with a wide range of excellent, value for money, integrated community 


services. 


 


Our vision is that we have built a sustainable future and  


 


 make a positive difference to the safety and quality of life of every local citizen; and the 


places where they live and work 


 


 deliver services by people who are professional, proud and passionate 


 


 are nationally recognised as being high performing and innovative; and internationally 


renowned for being able to reduce risk in business, industry and the home 


 


Our Vision is underpinned by 3 Strategic Goals that support the achievement of our vision by 


guiding  our priorities and work 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


Each goal is underpinned by strategic objectives which deliver a number of strategic 


outcomes 
 


 


 


 


Safer, Stronger 
Communities 


 


Our communities are safer and 
stronger through the delivery 
of our responsive, accessible 
prevention protection and 
emergency response services. 


 


A Professional and 
Inclusive Workforce 


 


Our staff are fully supported, 
competent and motivated to 
give their best in keeping 
Teesside safe. 


 


Efficient Use of Resources 
 


Our resource management 
arrangements and 
collaborative working will 
provide our communities with a 
value for money fire and rescue 
service. 
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Our Values 


In order to achieve our vision, our mission and our goals we strive to work towards our 


Organisational Values using the PRIDE acronym…… 


 


 


 


 


 


Protect - putting safety first. Protecting ourselves, the community, the organisation and the 
environment from all avoidable harm 
 
Respect – respect ourselves; our colleagues; our community; our heritage; our property; our 
organisation and our environment 
 
Innovation – Improving performance through learning from our own and others’ 
experiences and innovative business solutions 
 
Doing the right thing – Being Professional – making decisions and undertaking our work in 
the most efficient and effective way 
 
Engagement with Others – understanding and working with our colleagues, partners and 
communities to provide the best delivery of services 
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4  Operating Environment 


 


Cleveland Fire Brigade is located in the north 


east of England and provides services to a 


small area containing the four boroughs of 


Hartlepool, Middlesbrough, Redcar and 


Cleveland and Stockton. The area is 231 


square miles with a population of 566,150, 


occupying 249,221 dwellings. It is the seventh 


most densely populated fire authority area in 


England with only the Metropolitan FRSs being 


more densely populated. Teesside is home to 


15,719 industrial and commercial premises.  


We have 30 Top Tier COMAH sites located in the area which account for 9% of the national 


number of COMAH sites. Some of our dwellings are in extremely close proximity to these 


high hazard industries thereby making the risks they face more unique. 


Teesport handles over 5,000 vessels and 40 million tonnes of cargo a year, making it one of 


the largest UK ports in terms of tonnage. 


 


We have 5 power stations (1 nuclear fuelled and 4 bio-mass fuelled), 7 solar powered 


energy farms, 12 onshore and 1 offshore windfarms; and two bio-mass (wood pellets) 


power stations are being constructed at Port Clarence and Tees Port to produce electricity 


for the national grid. The demand to build renewable energy sources is expected to grow as 


Tees Valley has been awarded UK Government Care Status as a Centre for Offshore 


Renewable Engineering.  


 
Like the majority of UK FRSs we have an extensive network of road and rail but due to the 


nature of commerce in Teesside our transportation conveys many significant hazards. 


Where the A19 crosses the Tees it carries over 96,000 vehicles per day which is 123% more 


than the number of vehicles using the A1M at the equivalent point. 


 


Teesside shares many inner city type problems that are a key feature of the UK’s 


Metropolitan areas such as older nineteenth century low cost housing (terraced), derelict 


land, high unemployment, congestion, high density of buildings and narrow roadways – not 


fit for modern usage.  


 


Our 79 wards include the 2nd most deprived ward nationally (North Ormesby) with 38% (30) 


falling within the 10% most deprived wards nationally. 41% of the area’s population reside 


in the most (10%) deprived wards with more than half of the population (57%) living in 


wards that are in the 20% most deprived wards nationally. Over a third of our dwellings are 
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social housing with almost two thirds of 


households in council tax bands A or B 


compared to less than half nationally and all 


four boroughs have a higher proportion of 


children living in low income families than 


the average for England and Wales.   


 


The crime rate in the Cleveland Police area 


is 101 per 1,000 households compared to 


the national average of 78. The only two 


Police areas to experience higher rates of crime than Cleveland are Greater Manchester 


(122) and West Yorkshire (116).  There are high levels of antisocial behaviour and deliberate 


fires, with Cleveland suffering from the highest arson rates in the country. This is reflected in 


attacks that our firefighters have been subjected to whilst responding to operational 


incidents. Over the five years up to 2017/18 the Brigade’s personnel suffered more than 


double the national average of attacks (17/18 – 20.7 nationally compared to 46 for CFB).  


 


Risk factors such as, deprivation, poor health and life expectancy is significantly lower than 


the England average and 29.1% of the population in the area is classed as disabled or having 


long term health issues.  Low education attainment (lower than the England average), high 


unemployment (higher than the national average) and limited opportunity for social 


mobility, play a key part in the composition of our area with research demonstrating that 


higher deprived areas have higher risk from fire. 
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5 Risk Profile 


As detailed our area and its communities face a complex profile of risks and as we are in the 


business of keeping people safe we have for a long time recognised the need for, and 


reaped the benefits from having effective and robust Risk Management arrangements that 


ensure the safety of our workforce, residents and businesses within the Brigade’s area.   


The cornerstone of our risk management is detailed within our Risk Management 


Framework  that demonstrates our intentions and aim to be nationally recognised for being 


able to reduce risks in business, industry, society and in the home in Teesside.   


 


Based on our operating environment, historical 


incidents data and information from a multitude of 


other sources (internal and external to the Brigade) 


we develop a Community Risk Profile that 


identifies, assesses and evaluates  the risks facing 


the Brigade.  


There are six main types of risk Cleveland Fire 


Authority need to manage: 


 


National Risks 
The government monitors the most significant emergencies that the UK could face over the 


next five years through its National Risk Assessment.  The National Risk Register (NRR) is the 


public version of this assessment.  It provides advice on how people, business and the 


emergency services can better prepare for civil emergencies. 


Cleveland Area Risks 
We are key members of the Cleveland Local Resilience Forum and actively work to prepare 


for, respond to and recover from any major emergency in the Cleveland area.  The 


Communtiy Risk Register (CRR) currently sets out the risks facing our communities and how 


they are being dealt with and include for example flooding, animal disease, adverse weather 


and pandemic flu. 


Strategic (Corporate) Risks 
Our Strategic Risks, if not managed, may negatively impact our strategic direction.  We 


regularly scan the horizon to identify and address these risks and capture them in our 


Corporate Risk Register. 
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Tactical Risks 
These are risks in our operational environment that affect life, property, the environment 


and heritage, and include: 


o Built Environment  


o Transport Environment  


o Industrial Environment  


o Neighbourhoods and the Environment Risks  


o National Resilience  


o Community Health and Wellbeing  


 


Individual Risks 
Keeping the workforce safe in whatever role they play within the Brigade is of paramount 


importance.  This includes Health & Safety, Safe Systems of Work and Dynamic Risk 


Assessments. 


Emerging Risks 
Those that may impact our future service demand such as a change in population or new 


developments such as housing estates, commercial developments etc. 


Based on our operating environment, historical incident data and information from a multitude 


of other sources (internal and external to the Brigade) we develop a Community Risk Profile that 


identifies, assesses and evaluates the risks facing the Brigade.  


Each of the identified risk groups is assessed against the likelihood of the event occurring and the 


associated consequences/ impacts if it does occur. Our assessment looks to identify who/ what is 


at risk, when they are at risk and where they are at risk. This includes an assessment of risk in 


terms of: 


 People (Community) safety 


 Firefighter safety 


 Property 


 Heritage  


 Environment 


 Value for Money 


 


This information is provided at a detailed level within our publically available Community Risk 


Profile and is underpinned by a suite of detailed risk assessments that are refreshed on an annual 


basis.  
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6  Our Organisational Model 


Our Community Integrated Risk Management Plan (CIRMP) sets out the strategic direction, 


summarises assessment of risks faced by the Brigade, our financial position and the intended 


deployment of resources over the medium term to address the identified risks. 


 


The Chief Fire Officer has overall responsibility for the delivery of the CIRMP which are 


delivered by three directorates: 


Community Protection Directorate 


Our public facing and frontline service delivery Directorate that co-ordinates and delivers 


our Prevention, Protection, Emergency Response and National Resilience services and 


functions.  


 


Corporate Services Directorate 


The Directorate that delivers our corporate enabling services that support the CFA and other 


Directorates in delivering their services. Services include Democratic Services, Finance 


(including creditor payments and payroll), Procurement, Human Resources, Performance 


and Risk Management. 


 


Technical Services Directorate 


The Directorate that delivers our technical enabling services that support all Directorates in 


delivering their duties. Services include Health & Safety, Fleet, ICT, Workshops, Stores and 


Buildings including delivery of our Estates Rebuild and refurbishment program.  


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


On 1st April 2019 the Brigade's establishment was 563.15 (FTE).    
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Our frontline services are co-ordinated and delivered from Community Safety District Hubs and 


14 strategically placed Community Fire Stations. Delivery of services is through a balanced 


strategy of prevention, protection and emergency response. 


 


Prevention  
Our prevention services are designed to reduce the likelihood of emergency incidents 


occurring in the first place and as such are at the heart of our strategies to keep people safe. 


Our prevention work takes many forms, from marketing, advice and education through to 


involving the community in helping to design and deliver our services, to providing 


intervention and support to individuals at risk of recurring incidents. We have extensive 


programmes to help people understand, and consequently avoid, personal risk from fire and 


road collisions. We also run community programmes, such as health-promotion initiatives 


and self-development activities for young people.  


Protection  
Our protection services are at the heart of improving business safety and are centred on 


delivering the Authority’s duty to enforce the Regulatory Reform (Fire Safety) Order 2005.  


Enforcing the Order ensures that business owners comply, putting appropriate measures in 


place to contain the effects of fire and ensuring that people can escape safely. Key aspects 


of our protection work involve advising businesses about their risk management 


responsibilities and enforcing fire safety regulations, where necessary, so that buildings are 


safer. 


Response 


Our response services focus on dealing with various emergencies such as fires in buildings, 


vehicles and open spaces, road traffic collisions, water rescues, hazardous material releases, 


explosions, structural collapse, rescue from heights and supporting other Blue Light 


Services.  We protect the Critical National Infrastructure and provide national resilience 


through our use of specialist equipment.  When emergency incidents occur, we continue to 


respond to them with well trained staff using modern methods, state of the art appliances 


and equipment.   The Brigade operates one of the most stringent and challenging 


emergency response standards nationally. 


 


National Resilience 
The Government's aim is to reduce the risk from major emergencies so that people can go 


about their business freely and with the confidence that the UK is equipped to deal with 


major emergencies, like natural disasters or terrorist attacks.  The Brigade plays an integral 


part in ensuring this and is 100% compliant with the Governments National Resilience 


requirements. 
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Organisational Performance 2018/19 


Summary 
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7  Organisational Performance  


 


Each year we self-assess the achievement of outcomes to ensure that we are constantly 


aware of our organisational performance. This serves as our organisational health check. 


 


We collate evidence to show how we have performed when compared to previous years, 


the last five years, how we have performed against what we aimed to do and how we 


compare with other fire and rescue services. We use this evidence base to assess ourselves 


against the following 8 performance categories  


 


 Strategic Goals and Aims 


 Delivery of our Annual Priorities 


 Key Service Standards 


 Operational Assurance 


 Corporate Governance  


 Value for Money 


 Performance Compared with Other FRS 


 Customer Care 


 


 


For each category we use a transparent scoring mechanism when undertaking the self-


assessment. Using available evidence we assess a rating for each of the eight performance 


categories using the following ratings;  


 
 


 
 
 
 


 


 


To obtain an overall organisational performance rating we use the eight performance 


categories’ performance assessments and consolidate into an overall assessment using the 


following criteria; 


 


 


 


 


Any other 
combination 


Inadequate 
Requires 


Improvement Good Outstanding 


Requires 


Improvement 
Adequate 


Performance  
Performing Well 


Performing 
Strongly 


Below minimum 
requirements 


At least five 3’s, no 
more than three 1’s 


At only minimum 
requirements 


At least seven 3’s 
no 1’s 


Consistently above 
minimum 


requirements 


Well above 
minimum 


requirements 


At least 5 4’s no 2’s 
or 1’s 
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Organisational Performance 2018/19 


The Organisational Performance is measured against eight key areas.  The summary picture 


of our performance in 2018/19 against these key areas is set out below: 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


Operational Assurance Performing Strongly 


Good 


Strategic Goals and Aims Performing Well 


Annual Priorities Performing Well 
 


Key Service Standards Performing Well 
 


Good Corporate 


Governance 
Performing Strongly 


Value for Money (VFM) Performing Strongly 


 


Comparison against other Fire 


& Rescue Services 
Performing Well 


 


Customer Care Performing Strongly 


 


Performance in 2018/19 


assessed as  







CFA Annual Performance and Efficiency Report 2018/19      16 


 


 


 


STRATEGIC GOALS AND OUTCOMES 
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8  Strategic Goals and Outcomes  


 


Measuring Performance 


The Community Integrated Risk Management Plan (2018 - 2022) identifies three strategic 


goals supported by eight strategic objectives and seventeen strategic outcomes. The 


strategic goals are: 


 Safer Stronger Communities 


 A Proud, Passionate, Professional and Inclusive Workforce 


 Efficient Use of Resources 


 


To assist our measuring of progress against these strategic goals, objectives and outcomes a 


suite of corporate performance indicators have been developed. 


 


By measuring progress against the indicators detailed within this section it can tell us 


whether or not we are achieving our strategic goals. 


 


We will assess this performance against the following criteria: 


I. Performance compared to previous year 


II. Performance compared to five years ago 


III. Performance against target 


 


Our assessment methodology for the corporate suite of indicators follows a two stage 


process. 


 


Stage 1 Assessment of Each Indicator: 


 


Every indicator identified in each Strategic Outcome will be allocated a performance RAG 


rating using the following criteria: 


 


Value 4 Outstanding (More than 10% Improvement) 


Value 3 Good (Between 0% and 9.9% Improvement) 


Value 2 Requires Improvement (Between 0% and 9.9% Deterioration) 


Value 1 Inadequate (More than 10% Deterioration) 


NA Not Recorded /Reported 


Value 0 No Activity to Assess / No Comparator Info 
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Direction of Travel: 


A direction of travel assessment is provided through the use of arrow graphics which shows 


movement in absolute performance. 


 


Stage 2: Assessment of Each Strategic Outcome: 


Using the individual scores allocated to each indicator an average score for the indicators in 
each Strategic outcome is calculated.  The outcome is used and an overall assessment is 
evaluated using the following scoring: 
 


Performing 
Strongly 


Performing Strongly (More than 3.5) 


Performing 
Well 


Performing Well (Score 2.5 to 3.49) 


Adequate 
Performance 


Adequate Performance (Score 1.5 to 2.49) 


Requires 
Inprovement 


Requires Improvement (Less than 1.5) 


NR Not Recorded /Reported 


NA No Activity to Assess / No Comparator Info 


 


 


4:  
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Response 
During 2018/19 there have been 8,772 incidents, an 


increase of 205 (2%) compared to 2017/18. 


 


Secondary Fires (3,606) account for 41% of 


incidents, followed by False Alarms (3,089) 


accounting for 35% of all incidents. 


 


Special Services have reduced by 428 (25%) to 


1,317 incidents, Automatic False Alarms have 


reduced by 137 (11%) to 1,093 incidents and 


Primary Fires have reduced by 36 (5%) to 696 


incidents.  


 


Over the same period we have seen an increase of 


666 (23%) in Secondary Fires to 3,606 incidents and 


an increase of 30 (32%) in Malicious False Alarms to 


124 incidents. 


Prevention  


The Brigade (including the Volunteer Network) has 


conducted 18,108 Home Fire Safety Visits during the 


period. A minor reduction (1%) compared to 


2017/18.This is made up of  


HFSV Referrals from Other Agencies 1,337 


Exeter HFSV: 2,408 


Other targeted HFSV:  12,547 


HFSV by volunteers: 1,816 


 


As part of these HFSV there have been 2,927 Safe and 


Well Visits (SAW) completed. This is a 36% (1681) 


reduction from 4608 provided in 17/18. These visits 


resulted in 440 referrals to other agencies for support 


or items of equipment being provided. 


Protection 
 
1,456 audit inspections of industrial and commercial premises have been completed during the period. A 
Reduction of 350 (19%) compared to 2017/18. 
 


Fire Control 
 
Fire Control dealt with 12,598 emergency calls, a minor increase of 18 calls from the equivalent period in 
2017/18. 
 


2017/18 2018/19


732 696 


2,940 3,606 


1,745 
1,317 


3,102 3,089 


48 64 


Incident Profile 01/04/2018 to 31/03/2019 


Primary Fires (inc Chimney Fires) Secondary Fires Special Services False Alarms Out of Area


Total 8,567 Total 8,772 
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SAFER STRONGER COMMUNITIES 


 


Our communities are safer and stronger 


 through the delivery of our responsive,  


accessible, prevention, protection and  


emergency response services. 
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Below is a summary of our performance in 2018/19 against our Strategic Goal 1 Safer Stronger 


Communities. 


  


The subsequent pages illustrate how we performed against the corporate performance indicators 


for each of the strategic outcomes.  


 


Aim Outcome Compared to 2017/18 
Compared to 2013/14 
(Direction of Travel) 


1.1 


1.1.1 Safer Homes Performing Well Performing Well 


1.1.2 Safer Buildings Performing Well Performing Strongly 


1.1.3 Safer Roads Performing Well Performing Strongly 


1.1.4 Safer High Hazard    
Industries 


Performing Strongly Performing Strongly 


1.1.5 Safer Neighbourhoods 
and Environment 


Performing Well Performing Well 


1.1.6 Supported National 
Resilience 


No comparator 
information   


No comparator 
information   


1.2 
1.2.1 Improved Health 
Outcomes 


Adequate Performance Adequate Performance 


    


    


  
Performance in 2018/2019 


assessed as 
Our Direction of Travel 


Performance is assessed 


  Performing Well Performing Well 


  


 Performance Summary: Safer Stronger Communities
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2017/18 2018/19 


Variance RAG & 
DOT No % 


Number of Accidental Dwelling Fires 142 113 -29 -20% 


 


Number of Deliberate Dwelling Fires 77 87 10 13% 


 


Number of Accidental Dwelling Fire Fatalities  4 2 -2 -50% 


 


Number of Deliberate Dwelling Fire Fatalities 0 0 0 - 
 


Number of Accidental Dwelling Fire Injuries 9 8 -1 -11% 


 


Number of Deliberate Dwelling Fire Injuries 2 0 -2 -100% 


 


Number of False Alarm Good Intents in Dwellings 634 694 60 9% 


 


Percentage of ADFs which have received a HFSV prior to 
the ADF 


29% 35% - 6% 


 


Percentage of Dwellings which have received a HFSV 58.1% 59.5% - 1.4% 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


Performance in 2018/19 
compared to 2017/18 is 
assessed as 


Direction of Travel from 
2013/14 Performance is 
assessed as 


Performing Well Performing Well 


1.1.1 Safer Homes 
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Safer Homes District Summary 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


Hartlepool District 17/18 18/19 


Accidental Dwelling Fires 23 23 


Deliberate Dwelling Fires 17 17 


Number of False Alarm Good 
Intents in Dwellings 


131 123 


 


Stockton District 17/18 18/19 


Accidental Dwelling Fires 48 44 


Deliberate Dwelling Fires 18 19 


Number of False Alarm Good 
Intents in Dwellings 


167 183 


 


Middlesbrough District 17/18 18/19 


Accidental Dwelling Fires 37 25 


Deliberate Dwelling Fires 25 40 


Number of False Alarm Good 
Intents in Dwellings 


166 229 


 


Redcar & Cleveland District 17/18 18/19 


Accidental Dwelling Fires 34 21 


Deliberate Dwelling Fires 17 11 


Number of False Alarm Good 
Intents in Dwellings 


170 159 
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2017/18 2018/19 


Variance RAG & 
DOT No % 


Percentage of the annual risk based inspection program 
completed in approved frequency 


- 47% - - - 


Percentage of enforcement notices that are completed 
within prescribed timescales 


100% 
(3/3) 


100% 
(2/2) 


0 0% 


 


Number of Fatalities in Industrial and Commercial Fires 0 0 0 0% 


 


Number of Injuries in Industrial and Commercial Fires 1 0 -1 -100% 


 


Number of Industrial and Commercial Fires 52 57 5 10% 


 


Number of Unwanted Automated Fire Alarm calls received 2,140 2,244 104 5% 


 


Number of attendances at Non Domestic Unwanted 
Automated fire calls 


706 535 -171 -24% 


 


Percentage of eligible automated fire alarm calls where no 
fire is confirmed that the Brigade attends 


14.5% 7.1% - -7.4% 


 


Average time of first appliance attendance to a building fire 
(7 Minutes)  


- 00:04:48 - - - 


First appliance attendance to a building fire within 10 
minutes on 90% of occasions 


- 98% - - - 


Average time for second appliance to attend a building fire 
(10 minutes) 


- 00:06:44 - - - 


 


  
Performance in 2018/19 
compared to 2017/18 is 
assessed as 


Direction of Travel from 
2013/14 Performance is 
assessed as 


Performing Well Performing Strongly 


1.1.2 Safer Buildings 
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2017/18 2018/19 


Variance RAG & 
DOT No % 


Number of Road Traffic Collisions attended by the Brigade  314 321 7 2% 


 


Number of Fatalities in Road Traffic Collisions 9 6 -3 -33% 


 


Number of people seriously injured in Road Traffic Collisions 137 122 -15 -11% 


 


Number of people suffering slight injuries in Road Traffic 
Collisions 


726 705 -21 -3% 


 


Average time of first appliance attendance to an immediate 
life threatening / rescue RTC (8 minutes)  


- 00:05:46 - - - 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 
2017/18 2018/19 


Variance  


No %  


Number of Incidents within identified High Hazard sites 12 7 -5 -42% 


 


Average time of first appliance attendance to an incident at 
a High Hazard site (7 minutes) 


- 00:04:47 - 


 


Average time full mobilisation requirement to a Worse Case 
Planning Scenario incident at a High Hazard site  
(20 minutes) 


- - 
No Worse Case 
Planning Scenario 
Incidents 


 


 


  


Performance in 2018/19 
compared to 2017/18 is 
assessed as 


Direction of Travel from 
2013/14 Performance is 
assessed as 


Performing Well Performing Strongly 


Performance in 2018/19 
compared to 2017/18 is 
assessed as 


Direction of Travel from 
2013/14 Performance is 
assessed as 


Performing Strongly Performing Strongly 


1.1.3 Safer Roads 


1.1.4 Safer High Hazard Industry 
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 2017/18 2018/19 
Variance 


RAG & DOT 
No % 


Number of times a Fire Appliance assigned to an incident 
failed to respond 


26 41 15 58% 
 


Number of Primary Fire Fatalities 4 3 -1 -25% 
 


Number of Primary Fire Injuries 12 10 -2 -17% 


 


Percentage of all fires that are classed as Accidental Fires 19% 15% 
For information 


purposes 
 


Percentage of all fires that are classed as Deliberate Fires 81% 85% 
For information 


purposes 
 


Number of Primary Fires 720 684 -36 -5% 


 


Number of Secondary Fires 2,940 3,606 666 23% 


 


Average time taken to answer an emergency 999 call (7 
seconds) 


- 7.5 - - - 


Average time for Fire Control to mobilise a fire appliance 
to an incident (100 seconds) 


77 77 0 0% 
 


Percentage of occasions Fire Control mobilise a Fire 
Appliance within 2 Minutes of the call 


93% 93% - 0% 
 


Percentage of Wholetime appliances meeting Book 
mobile threshold of 2 minutes 


98% 98% - 0% 
 


Percentage of Retained appliances meeting Book mobile 
threshold of 5 minutes 


70% 69% - -1% 


 


 


 


 


 


Performance in 2018/19 
compared to 2017/18 is 
assessed as 


Direction of Travel from 
2013/14 Performance is 
assessed as 


Performing Well Performing Well 


1.1.5 Safer Neighbourhoods and Environment 
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Safer Neighbourhoods & Environment District Summary 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


Stockton District 17/18 18/19 


Number of Primary Fires 214 224 


Number of Secondary Fires 516 778 


Percentage of fires that are 
classed as accidental 


25% 20% 


 


Middlesbrough District 17/18 18/19 


Number of Primary Fires 194 194 


Number of Secondary Fires 1092 1121 


Percentage of fires that are 
classed as accidental 


14% 11% 


 


Hartlepool District 17/18 18/19 


Number of Primary Fires 
125 119 


Number of Secondary Fires 
435 646 


Percentage of fires that are 
classed as accidental 


26% 18% 


 


Redcar & Cleveland District 17/18 18/19 


Number of Primary Fires 187 147 


Number of Secondary Fires 897 1061 


Percentage of fires that are 
classed as accidental 


17% 13% 
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1.1.6 Supported National Resilience 


 
2017/18 2018/19 


Variance RAG & 
DOT No % 


Percentage of times the appropriate national resilience 
resource is mobilised within 60 minutes of request 


- - - - 


 


 


 


 


 


 
2017/18 2018/19 


Variance RAG & 
DOT No % 


Percentage of Safe and Well visits that led to a positive 
intervention (equipment and/or referral for additional 
support) 


14% 16% 2% - 


 


Number of Falls related emergency admission aged 65+ to 
hospital* 


1970 2129 159 8% 


 


Percentage of Co-responder incidents attended by the 
Brigade where medical treatment was provided by CFB 


99% 92% - -7% 


 


*to be reported quarterly in arrears due to delays in obtaining data from Health 


  


Performance in 2018/19 
compared to 2017/18 is 
assessed as 


Direction of Travel from 
2013/14 Performance is 
assessed as 


No Activity No Activity 


Performance in 2018/19 
compared to 2017/18 is 
assessed as 


Direction of Travel from 
2013/14 Performance is 
assessed as 


Adequate 
Performance 


Adequate 
Performance 


1.2.1 Improved Health Outcomes 
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A PROUD, PASSIONATE, 


PROFESSIONAL AND 


INCLUSIVE WORKFORCE 


 


Our staff are fully supported, competent 


and motivated to give their best in 


keeping Teesside safe. 
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Below is a summary of our performance in 2018/19 against our Strategic Goal 2: A Proud, 


Passionate, Professional and Inclusive Workforce. 


  


The subsequent pages illustrate how we performed against the corporate performance 


indicators for each of the strategic outcomes.  


 


Aim Outcome Compared to 2017/18 
Compared to 2013/14 


(Direction of Travel 


2.1 


2.1.1 A Healthy Workforce Adequate Performance Adequate Performance 


2.1.2 A Safe Workforce Performing Well Adequate Performance 


2.2 
2.2.1 Competent and Trained 


Workforce 
Performing Well Performing Well 


2.3 2.3.1 Outstanding Leaders No Measures No Measures 


2.4 
2.4.1 A Great Workforce 


Culture 
No Measures No Measures 


2.5 2.5.1 A Sustainable Workforce Adequate Performance No comparator information   


    


  
Performance in 2018/2019 


assessed as 
Our direction of Travel 


Performance is assessed 


  Performing Well Adequate Performance 


 


  


Performance Summary: A Proud, Passionate, Professional, and 


Inclusive Workforce 
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2.1.1 A Healthy Workforce 


 
2017/18 2018/19 


Variance RAG & 
DOT No % 


Percentage of operational staff who have completed 
fitness assessments during year 


98% 96% - -2%- 


 


Percentage of operational personnel who have completed 
fitness assessments that have achieved / exceeded the 
relevant V02 rates (based on initial pass rates) 


92% 96% - 4%- 


 


Number of staff who have had attendance improvement 
notices (formal sickness review) during the year 


63 37 -26 -41% 


 


Average number of duty days lost to sickness absence per 
employee - All Staff 


6.72 7.95 1.23 18% 


 


Average number of duty days lost to sickness absence per 
employee - Wholetime 


6.44 8.06 1.62 25% 


 


Average number of duty days lost to sickness absence per 
employee - Retained 


7.25 6.81 -0.44 -6% 


 


Average number of duty days lost to sickness absence per 
employee - Control 


4.83 10.52 5.69 118% 
 


Average number of duty days lost to sickness absence per 
employee - Green Book 


7.62 8.11 0.49 6% 
 


Percentage sickness duty days classed as Mental Health 
issues as a proportion of all duty days lost to sickness 


28% 20% - -8% 
 


 


 


 


Performance in 2018/19 
compared to 2017/18 is 
assessed as 


Direction of Travel from 
2013/14 Performance is 
assessed as 


Adequate Performance Adequate Performance 
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2.1.2 A Safe Workforce 


 
2017/18 2018/19 


Variance RAG & 
DOT No % 


Number of Violence to Staff Incidents (Verbal and / or 
Physical) 


45 42 -3 -7% 


 


Number of RIDDOR reportable incidents 6 5 -1 -17% 


 


Number of Accidents resulting in physical injury 8 2 -6 -75% 


 


Number of Accidents resulting in damage to property 2 5 3 150% 


 


Number of Near Misses 19 19 0 0% 
 


Number of Vehicle Accidents 41 32 -9 -22%  


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


Performance in 2018/19 
compared to 2017/18 is 
assessed as 


Direction of Travel from 
2013/14 Performance is 
assessed as 


Performing Well Adequate Performance 
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2.2.1 Competent and Trained Workforce 


 


 


 


 


2.3.1 Outstanding Leaders 


 
2017/18 2018/19 


Variance RAG 
& 


DOT 
No % 


Measures Under Development - - - - - 


 


 


 


 
 


     


 
2017/18 2018/19 


Variance RAG & 
DOT No % 


Maintaining Competence: 
Percentage of Operational & Fire Control Personnel (WT/ 
Retained/ Fire Control, FF-GM) who have been assessed as 
maintaining competency aligned to PDR core skills 


98% 98% - 0% 
 


Maintaining Competence:  
Percentage of Green Book Personnel (Grades A-J) who have 
been assessed as maintaining competence aligned to PDR 
Core Skills 


82.5% 84% - 1.5% 
 


Independent Assessment of Competence:  
Percentage of Operational & Fire Control* (WT/ Retained/ 
Fire Control, FF-GM) who have been independently 
assessed by training aligned to the Risk Critical Themes 
during the year and have been assessed as maintaining 
their competency 


87% 78% 
 


-9% 


 


Percentage of staff who have received a Personnel 
Development Review in the last the year 


88% 80.5% 
 


-7.5% 
 


*Fire Control to be implemented 2019 


     Performance in 2018/19 
compared to 2017/18 is 
assessed as 


Direction of Travel from 
2013/14 Performance is 
assessed as 


Performing Well Performing Well 


Performance in 2018/19 
compared to 2017/18 is 
assessed as 


Direction of Travel from 
2013/14 Performance is 
assessed as 


No Measures No Measures 
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2.4.1 A Great Workforce Culture 


 


 
2017/18 2018/19 


Variance RAG & 
DOT No % 


Measures Under Development - - - - - 


 


 


 


 


 


 


2.5.1 A Sustainable Workforce 


 
2017/18 2018/19 


Variance 
RAG 


&DOT 
No % 


Percentage of time 18 or more appliances are available to 
respond to Emergency Calls* 


- 77% - - - 


Percentage of time Retained Crewed Appliances are 
available for Operational Response 


80% 73% 
 


-7% 


 


Percentage of Shifts Wholetime staff not at prescribed 
staffing levels 


22% 32% 
 


10% 
 


*Data from June 2018 


  


Performance in 2018/19 
compared to 2017/18 is 
assessed as 


Direction of Travel from 
2013/14 Performance is 
assessed as 


No Measures No Measures 


Performance in 2018/19 
compared to 2017/18 is 
assessed as 


Direction of Travel from 
2013/14 Performance is 
assessed as 


Adequate Performance 
No Comparator 


Information 
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EFFICIENT USE OF RESOURCES 


 


Our resource management arrangements and collaborative working 
will provide our communities with a value for money fire and rescue 


service. 
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Below is a summary of our performance in 2018/19 against our Strategic Goal of Efficient 
use of Resources. 
  
The subsequent pages illustrate how we performed against the corporate performance 
indicators for each of the strategic outcomes.  


 


Aim Outcome Compared to 2017/18 
Compared to 2013/14 


(Direction of Travel 


3.1 


3.1.1 Sound Financial, 
Procurement and Corporate 


Governance 
Performing Well Performing Strongly 


3.1.2 Value for Money Assets No Measures No Measures 


3.1.3 Optimum Use of Human 
Resources 


Adequate Performance  Adequate Performance 


3.1.4 Efficiencies through 
Collaboration and Partnerships 


Performing Strongly Performing Strongly 


    


  
Performance in 


2018/2019 assessed as 
Our direction of Travel 


Performance is assessed as 


  Performing Well Performing Well 


 


  


 Performance Summary: Efficient use of Resources
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3.1.1 Sound Financial Procurement and Corporate Governance 


 


 


 


 


 


 


3.1.2 Value For Money Assets 


 


 
2017/18 2018/19 


Variance RAG & 
DOT No % 


Measures Under Development      


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 
2017/18 2018/19 


Variance RAG & 
DOT No % 


Number of Internal Audit reports classed as Limited Assurance 
or below 


0 0 0 - 


 


Number of Internal Audit recommendations' not completed 
and signed off by Internal Audit by the due deadline 


0 1 1 +100% 


 


Public Contracts Regulation 2015: Percentage of invoices paid 
within 30 days 


97.6% 97.3% 
 


-0.3% 


 


Public Contracts Regulation 2015: Interest Paid due to late 
payment of invoices 


£0  £0 0 0% 
 


Performance in 2018/19 
compared to 2017/18 is 
assessed as 


Direction of Travel from 
2013/14 Performance is 
assessed as 


Performing Well Performing Strongly 


Performance in 2018/19 
compared to 2017/18 is 
assessed as 


Direction of Travel from 
2013/14 Performance is 
assessed as 


No Measures No Measures 
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3.1.3 Optimum Use of Human Resources  


3.1.3 2017/18 2018/19 
Variance RAG & 


DOT No % 


Number of Malicious False Alarms 94 124 +30 +32%  


Percentage of incidents that turn out to be a Malicious 
False Alarm resulted in a mobilisation of a fire appliance 


55% 57% - +2%  


Staff Turnover: Percentage of staff leaving the Brigade as 
a proportion of the total workforce 


3.8% 2.3%  -1.4% 


 


No of FTE posts vacant at end of the reporting period 65.53 59.48 -6.05 -9% 


 


 


 


 


 


 


3.1.4 Efficiencies Through Collaboration and Partnerships 


 
2017/18 2018/19 


Variance RAG & 
DOT No % 


Number of HFSV conducted by Partners (Fire Support 
Network) 


1,459 2,024 565 +39% 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


Performance in 2018/19 
compared to 2017/18 is 
assessed as 


Direction of Travel from 
2013/14 Performance is 
assessed as 


Adequate Performance Adequate Performance 


Performance in 2018/19 
compared to 2017/18 is 
assessed as 


Direction of Travel from 
2013/14 Performance is 
assessed as 


Performing Strongly Performing Strongly 
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Annual Priorities  
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9   Annual Priorities 
 


Our priorities in 2018/19 stemmed from two main sources: 


 


1. CIRMP 2018-22 Year 1 proposals which reflect the Authority’s risk assessment outcomes, 


the outcomes from the CIRMP consultation and the medium term financial position 


including the use of the Authority’s reserves.  


 


2. Corporate proposals identified by the Brigade’s Executive Leadership Team as a result of 


a strategic risk assessment (the opportunities that will support, or the threats that will 


prevent, the achievement of the Authority’s strategic outcomes). 


 


 


Scoring Methodology 


 


Each of the priorities have been monitored throughout the year and a year-end status has 


been assigned to the priority, as follows 


 
Deferred: The priority is now no longer to be delivered in that 


year following in year review by ELT (Score 0) and 
priority is excluded from overall scoring. 


 
Incomplete / Significantly  The priority will not be completed by the due date 
Behind Schedule:   (Score 1). 
 
In progress and minor delay: The priority is in the progress of being delivered but 


there are some minor delays in its delivery (Score 2). 
 
In progress and on target: The priority is in the progress of being delivered and 


will be completed by the due date (Score 3). 
 
Complete: The priority has been completed (Score 4). 
 
 
An overall judgement is determined by calculating an average score for all priorities using 
the individual priority scores. The following criteria is used to ascertain an overall 
assessment. 
 


Inadequate 
Performance 


Adequate 
Performance 


Performing 
Well 


Performing 
Strongly 


Score  1 to 1.5 
Score 1.51 to 


2.50 
Score 2.51 to 


3.5 
Score 3.5+  
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2018/19 Annual Priorities Summary 


 


Complete 
In 


Progress 


In 
Progress 
delayed 


Incomplete 
– Major 
delays 


Deferred 


Safer Stronger Communities  2 2 1 0 0 


Proud, Passionate, Professional 
and Inclusive Workforce  


3 0 1 0 0 


Use of Resources  6 3 6 0 7 


 


 
 
 
 


 


 


 


  


In Delivering our Annual Priorities for 
2018/19 we assess ourselves as 


Performing Well 
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The following tables provide a summary of the progress made against each of the Annual 


Priorities assigned to our Strategic Goals. Full details of progress are reported throughout 


the year to Elected Members of the Executive Committee. 


Safer Stronger Communities Priorities  


SSC1: Aspire to the guiding principle that ‘everyone should have equal entitlement to 
the same attendance targets for fire engines, irrespective of whether they live in a 
geographic area in which there is a higher likelihood or a lower likelihood of a fire 
occurring’ and implement the outcomes of the review of the emergency response 
standards. 


4: Complete 


SSC2: Introduce a core emergency response resource of 18 fire appliances 3: In Progress 


SSC3: Establish a ‘strategic reserve’ to sustain the minimum operational configuration 
of 18 fire appliances 


3: In Progress 


SSC4: Continue to support the National Fire Sprinkler Network for the promotion of 
fire suppression systems in buildings 


4: Complete 


SSC5: Develop and implement our community engagement strategy 
2: In Progress - 
Delayed 


 


Proud, Passionate, Professional and Inclusive Workforce Priorities  


PIW1: Adopt the National Leadership Strategy aligned to the National Behavioural 
Framework 


4: Complete 


PIW2: Implement our new equality, diversity and inclusion strategy 4: Complete 


PIW3: Develop and implement our workforce strategy to support our CIRMP 2018-22 4: Complete 


PIW4: Develop and Implement our Cultural Reform Strategy 
2: In Progress - 
Delayed 
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Use of Resources Priorities  


UOR1: Review all current duty systems. This will include the crewing arrangements on 
fire engines; flexible ways of staffing our fire stations and control centre; and the 
provision of incident command 


2: In Progress - 
Delayed 


UOR3: Prepare for the implementation of outcomes of the Control Room review – 
removal of four Fire Control Operator posts 


4: Complete 


UOR4: Implement an alternative staffing model on the incident command unit 
removing 4 crew manager and 4 firefighter posts 


3: In Progress 


UOR5: Prepare to extend the implementation of four riders per appliance to all fire 
engines removing 12 firefighter posts on 1st April 2019 


3: In Progress 


UOR6: Implement incident command and principal officer cover with the intention of 
establishing a structure of a chief fire officer and two assistant chief fire officers 
(directors) removing one directors Post 


4: Complete 


UOR7: Explore collaborative arrangements for the provision of the incident command 
support 


4: Complete 


UOR8: Review the outcomes of the national and local emergency medical responder 
project evaluations and determine the future of this scheme in Teesside. 


0: Deferred 


UOR9: Emergency Services Mobile Communications Programme – Collaboration with 
North East Fire and Rescue Services 


2: In Progress - 
Delayed 


UOR10: Update policy and procedures to achieve and demonstrate compliance with 
the General Data Protection Regulations 


4: Complete 


UOR11: Conduct a review of the recruitment, pay and contracts; and availability of 
retained duty system firefighters 


3: In Progress 


UOR12: Develop a joint police and fire prevention strategy 0: Deferred 
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Use of Resources Priorities  


UOR14: Explore collaborative opportunities for training and developing our people 0: Deferred 


UOR15: Explore collaborate opportunities for sharing/integrating support services 0: Deferred 


UOR16: Explore collaborative opportunities for sharing estate 0: Deferred 


UOR17: Explore collaborative opportunities for ICT strategies and solutions 0: Deferred 


UOR 18 (a): Progress estates programme by completing our new external training 
facilities 


2: In Progress - 
Delayed 


UOR 18 (b): Progress estates programme by refurbishing Stockton Fire Station 
2: In Progress - 
Delayed 


UOR 18 (c): Progress estates programme by refurbishing Guisborough Fire Station 
2: In Progress - 
Delayed 


UOR 18 (d): Progress estates programme by refurbishing Loftus Fire Station 
2: In Progress - 
Delayed 


UOR19: Undertake annual revenue budget adjustments associated with the 
implementation of the CIRMP 2018-22 


4: Complete 


UOR20: Investigate the benefits and implications of 24 hour working within the 
Brigade. 


0: Deferred 


UOR21: Continue to develop our trading company to generate commercial revenues 
to support preventative services and apprenticeship schemes 


4: Complete 
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Service Standards 


Includes 


o Fire Control Call Handling Times 


o Crew Reaction Times 


o Emergency Response Standards Building Fires 


o Emergency Response RTC’s 


o Emergency Response High Hazard 
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10  Key Service Standards 
 


 
EMERGENCY RESPONSE BENCHMARKS 
 


We aim to respond  to any incident as quickly as possible. To assist in the planning of the 


deployment of our resources we have locally set response standards for dealing with 


emergency calls, how fast crews mobilise and how fast we get to fire related incidents 


within buildings and Road Traffic Collisions.  


  


In 2018/19 the approval of the Community Integrated Risk Management Plan 2018/22 saw 


the introduction of a new suite of emergency response benchmarks that moved away from 


the risk based benchmark for building fires to a standard benchmark for the entire Brigade 


area. 


 


For each individual service standard that has appropriate activity, the scoring mechanism used is: 


 


Standard Achieved   Standard Not Achieved 


 


To assess whether we have achieved our service standards the overall scoring mechanism 


used is:  


Performong 
Strongly 


Performing Well 
Adequate 


Performance 
Requires 


Improvement 


76%+ service 
standards 
achieved 


51-75% 
Standards 
Achieved 


26-50% 
Standards 
Achieved 


0-25% Standards 
Achieved 


 


  


In Delivering our Key Service 
Standards in 2017/18 we assess 
ourselves as 


Performing Well  
60% (6 Out of 10 Standards Achieved) 
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Response Benchmarks 2018/19 


 


Building Fires 


Indicator 2018/19 Target 
% Direction 


of travel 
from target 


Achieved 


1.1.2.10 
Average time of first appliance 
attendance to a building fire (7 
Minutes)  


00:04:48 
(88% within 7 


mins) 
00:07:00 -31%  


1.1.2.11 
First appliance attendance to 
building fires within 10 minutes on 
90% of occasions 


98% 
(2,372/2,421) 


90% 8%  


1.1.2.12 
Average time of second appliance 
to attend a building fire incident 
(10 minutes) 


00:06:44 
(88% within 10 


mins) 
00:10:00 -33%  


 


 


Road Traffic collisions 


Indicator 2018/19 Target 
% Direction 


of travel 
from target 


Achieved 


1.1.3.5 


Average time of first appliance 
attendance to an immediate life 
threatening / rescue RTC (8 
minutes)  


00:05:46 
(81% within 8 


mins) 
00:08:00 -30%  


 


 


High Hazard 


Indicator 2018/19 Target 
% Direction 


of travel 
from target 


Achieved 


1.1.4.2 
Average time of first appliance 
attendance to an incident at an 
industrial site (7 minutes) 


00:04:47 
(86% 


attendance 
within 7 
minutes) 


00:07:00 -32%  


1.1.4.3 
Average time full mobilisation 
requirement of appliances to an 
industrial fire (20 minutes) 


- 00:20:00 - NA 
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Fire Control Call Handling and Crew Reaction Time  


 


Indicator 2018/19 Target 
% Direction 


of travel 
from target 


Achieved 


1.1.5.9 
Average time taken to answer an 
emergency 999 call (7 seconds) 


7.5 7 10%  


1.1.5.10 
Average time for Fire Control to 
mobilise a fire appliance to an 
incident (seconds) 


77 100 -18%  


1.1.5.11 
Percentage of times a fire 
appliance is dispatched to an 
emergency in 2 minutes 


93% 98% -5%  


1.1.5.12 
Percentage of Wholetime 
appliances meeting Book Mobile 
threshold of 2 minutes 


98% 100% -2%  


1.1.5.13 
Percentage of Retained 
appliances meeting the Book 
Mobile threshold of 5 Minutes 


69% 100% -31%  
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Response Benchmarks – Pre April 2018 


 


Service standards for 2018/19 were introduced for the first time to enable comparison with 


the former standards.  Pre April 2018 benchmarks are detailed for information purposes 


only. 


 


Building Fires 


 


Indicator 2018/19 Target 
% Direction of 


travel from 
target 


High Risk Wards        


1st Pump in 5 minutes 
96% 


(23/24) 
75% 19% 


2nd pump in 8 minutes 
100% 
23/23 


75% 25% 


3rd pump in 10 minutes (persons reported) - 75% - 


Medium Risk Wards 


1st Pump in 8 minutes 
97% 


(861/886) 
75% 22% 


2nd pump in 11 minutes 
96% 


(730/764) 
75% 22% 


Low Risk Wards 


        


1st pump in 10 minutes 
97% 


(1,467/1,511) 
75% 22% 


2nd pump in 13 minutes 
94% 


(1,127/1,205) 
75% 19% 
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Road Traffic Collisions 


 


Indicator 2018/19 Target 
% Direction of 


travel from 
target 


Emergency Response to Road Traffic Collisions 1st Pump 
attendance 8 minutes 


81% 
162/200 


75% 6% 


 


 


Fire Control Call Handling and Crew Reaction Time  


 


Indicator 2018/19 Target 
% Direction of 


travel from 
target 


Percentage of times a fire appliance is dispatched to an 
emergency in 2 minutes 


93% 98% -5% 


Percentage of Wholetime appliances meeting Book Mobile 
threshold of 2 minutes 


98% 100% -2% 


Percentage of Retained appliances meeting the Book Mobile 
threshold of 5 Minutes 


69% 100% -31% 
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Operational Assurance  


Includes 


o Operational Assurance 


o National Resilience Assessment 


o JESIP 


o HMICFRS 


o SOPS/NOGS 


  







CFA Annual Performance and Efficiency Report 2018/19      52 


 


11  Operational Assurance 
 


This section provides information to the public to demonstrate that the local Fire and 


Rescue Service’s operational service delivery is efficient, effective and robust both at a local 


and national level.  We use data gathered from internal and external sources to make a 


judgement on how well we perform within this category. 


 


The following frameworks are included:  


 


 Operational Assessment Framework 


 National Resilience Assurance Framework 


 Joint Emergency Services Interoperability Principles Framework (JESIP) 


 HMIC Inspection of Fire and Rescue Services 


 
 
 


 
 
 
 
 
 
  


We currently assess our 


Operational Assurance as 


being  


Performing Strongly 
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Operational Assessment 
 
In 2013 The Executive Leadership Team approved the 


completion of the Operational Assessment, the 


purpose being to provide current indication of 


performance benchmarked against the LGA and CFOA 


Operational Assessment and Peer Challenge Toolkit. 


  


This process, which has a strong operational focus, 


comprises a self-assessment and external peer 


challenge and is designed to allow a “whole system” 


look at how a Fire & Rescue Authority (FRA) leads, 


prioritises and delivers the interrelated functions of 


prevention, protection and response.  


 


The following areas are covered in the review:  


  


 Community Risk Management; 


 Prevention; 


 Protection;  


 Response; 


 Health and Safety; 


 Training and Development; 


 Call Management and Incident Support. 


 
The last full operational assessment was conducted in 2014. No review or update of the 


Operational Assessment has been completed within 2018/19. 
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National Resilience 


The National Resilience Assurance Team (NRAT) visited the Brigade during August 2014 to 


undertake an audit and review. Seven key areas of assessment (KAA) were inspected and 


feedback from the review awarded compliance: 


 


Prior to call preparation:  Fire and Rescue Service ability to mobilise National Resilience 


assets to an incident. 


 


Mobilisation and support to the incident: FRS 


arrangements for managing the mobilisation of 


National Resilience assets and the provision of 


relevant information and support to responding 


crews. 


 


Command & Control: responsibilities and actions 


of attending personnel and the integration of National Resilience capability into planned or 


existing Command and Control arrangements. 


 


Operational Response: structures, policies and arrangements in place to allow attending 


crews to achieve the objectives of the incident. 


 


Monitoring and Review: evaluation and recording of National Resilience incidents and 


exercises.  


 


Integration of National Resilience 


capability: integration of National 


Resilience capability into planning 


assumptions for identified or emerging 


local risks. 


 


Multi agency integrated response: how 


the Fire and Rescue Service engages 


with other organisations and agencies to 


meet effective resolution to National 


Resilience incidents. 


 


In 2018/19 there has been no National Resilience Assessments of CFB. 
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JESIP Assurance Programme 


The Brigade was audited on 20th June 2017 by the JESIP (Joint Emergency Services 


Interoperability Principles) inspection team who undertook assurance visits of Police, Fire, 


and Ambulance services in England and Wales during 2017.  


The visits were specifically intended to measure the progress made by services in 


embedding JESIP into their business as usual arrangements in line with the HMIC Tri-Service 


recommendations of 2015 and to review how robust the services arrangements appeared in 


terms of the future delivery and maintenance of JESIP. An outcomes report on the findings 


was received by the Brigade in November 2017. 


As a result an improvement plan has been developed to address the identified gaps and 


areas for development in the service and associated actions have been developed to 


address these. This is being implemented during 2018/19. The following table summarises 


the progress made in implementing the improvement actions that address the identified 


gaps and the current status. 


 


Status Number  of Identified 
Gaps 


Number of 
Improvement Actions 


to Address Gaps 


 Complete 5 14 


 In Progress 5 8 


 Overdue 1 3 


Total 11 25 


Source JESIP Gap Analysis and Action Plan 10
th


 April 2019 
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Her Majesty’s Inspectorate of Constabulary and Fire and Rescue Services (HMICFRS) 


Responsibility for fire formally moved from DCLG to the Home Office in early 2016. In 


2017/18 Her Majesty’s Inspectorate of Constabulary and Fire & Rescue Services (HMICFRS) 


commenced inspections of England’s Fire & Rescue services that assesses each FRS interms 


of their effectiviness, efficiency, and how they treat their people. 


All Fire and Rescue Services in England will be inspected by the HMICFRS in three tranches 


commencing in the summer 2018.  Cleveland Fire Brigade has been assigned to be inspected 


in the third tranche with the inspection being carried out April to July 2019.  Work has 


commenced in preparation for the inspection. 


During 2018/19 Cleveland Fire Brigade have carried out the following actions in preparation 


for the HMICFRS inspection: 


 Service Liasion Lead engagement visits have been completed  covering all areas of the 


Brigade;  


 Cleveland Fire Brigade’s key documents have been submitted to the HMICFRS for 


review;  


 3 Data requests have been submitted to provide evidence for the inspection;  


 A  detailed self assessment has been compiled that has informed the self assessment 


submitted to the HMICFRS; 


 A staff survey from te HMICFRS has been issued to all CFB personnel;  


 The HMICFRS have conducted a Public Perception Survey of all FRS’s, over 400 


responses received from the Brigade area. 


 


The work completed to date , in particular our critical self assessment has identified no 


significant  areas for concern within our operational arrangements. Thus we can be assured 


that we have robust operational arrangement in place.  
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Standard Operating Procedures / National Operational Guidance  


In 2018/19 internal procedures were developed and embedded to enable the Brigade's 


Operational Assurance team ensure that the suite of Standard Operating Procedures (SOPs) 


used by the Brigade are reviewed and maintained and support the transition to the National 


Operational Guidance (NOGS).  


Prior to the review the Brigade had a suite of SOPs (A - I). The review has afforded the 


opportunity to realign a number of SOPs. Our remaining SOPs will be reviewed and 


maintained during the transition to the NOGS. The following table profiles the position at 


31st March 2019.  


  


SOP No 
Reviewed 
& Current 


Under 
Review 


Out of 
Date 


Status 


A SOP 38 38 0 0  


B SOP (Site Specific Pre Plans) 36 35 0 0  


C SOP 13 11 2 0  


D SOP Review will commence once the G SOPS are compete  


E SOP  (H&S Procedural Note 27 27 0 0  


F SOP(National Resilience 
Operational Notes) 


Risk based approach to determining priorities for 
review. Currently concentrating on the MTA. 


 


G SOP (Business Continuity Plans 37 34 3 0  


H SOP(Realigned) 
Documents realigned as part of the review 


 
 


I SOP(Logistics Procedural Notes) 16 16 0 0  
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Good Corporate Governance   


Includes 


o Internal Audit 


o External Audit 


o Other Audits and Assessments 
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12  Good Corporate Governance 
 


This section provides information to the public to demonstrate that the Fire and Rescue 


Services corporate governance arrangements are efficient, effective and promote value for 


money.  The judgement will be made from the following sources of information 


 


Internal Audit 


 


Internal Audit is prescribed by the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2003 in accordance with 


the CIPFA Code of Practice for Internal Audit in Local Government. A risk based internal 


audit plan is developed in conjunction with the Authority’s Treasurer with the purpose of 


providing assurance that the system of internal management controls are operating 


effectively within the Brigade. 
 


In 2018/19 the Brigade’s internal audit function has been commissioned from Hartlepool 


Borough Council. 
 


 


External Audit 


 


External Audit is governed by the Audit Commission Act 1998 and the Accounts and Audit 


(England) Regulations 2011. The Audit Commission appoints a body to act as the Brigade’s 


External Auditors and this body is governed by the commission’s code of audit practice 


which prescribes the way in which auditors carry out their functions. 


 


In 2018/19 the Brigade’s external Auditor was Mazars.   


 


 


Other External Assessment and Audits  


 


At various times during the year external bodies may conduct ad-hoc inspections and audits 


on the Brigade’s activities covering specific areas of service.  
 


 


 


We assess ourselves as 


Performing Strongly 
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Internal Audit 


 


Our commissioned Internal Audit function provides challenge and assurance over the 


effectiveness of our risk management, internal control and governance arrangements. The 


function supports, provides advice and challenge management to assist the development of 


robust systems of management control. Annually an opinion on the status of our systems of 


management control is provided by Internal Audit. 


On 10th June 2019 the Head of Audit and Governance at Hartlepool Council, our Internal 


Auditors, issued the following opinion on the Brigade’s system of Internal Control. 


 ‘From the work undertaken during the year 2018/19, Internal Audit has reached the opinion that key 


systems are operating soundly and that there is no fundamental breakdown in controls resulting in 


material discrepancy.   Satisfactory arrangements were implemented to ensure the effective, efficient 


and economic operation of Cleveland Fire Authority’s financial affairs.’ 


 


To inform this judgement a programme of internal audit reviews  have been undertaken 


during 2018/19. The table below details the completed internal audits and their associated 


outcomes for the audit inspections that have been undertaken in 2018/19. 


 


2018/19 Audits Audit Status 


Insurance  Satisfactory Assurance 


Creditors  Satisfactory Assurance 


Payroll  Satisfactory Assurance 


Pensions  Satisfactory Assurance 


Information Data Management  Satisfactory Assurance 


Attendance Management  Satisfactory Assurance 


Budgetary Control  Satisfactory Assurance 


Cash Bank Reconciliation  Satisfactory Assurance 


Debtors  Satisfactory Assurance 


Fleet Management  Satisfactory Assurance 


Contracts/Procurement  Satisfactory Assurance 


Retained Firefighter Claims  Satisfactory Assurance 


Stores  Satisfactory Assurance 


National Fraud Initiative  Satisfactory Assurance 


VAT  Satisfactory Assurance 
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External Audit 


 


To ensure transparency and accountability, an independent audit of The Financial Report is 


undertaken by our External Auditor (Mazars LLP) to provide assurance there are sound 


governance arrangements in place and our Financial Report shows a true reflection of our 


financial position and that we are 


providing value for money services.   


  


The Authority’s external auditors, Mazars 


LLP, have issued an unqualified opinion 


on the statement of accounts and 


reported to Members of the Audit and 


Governance Committee: 


 


 


 


 


Our auditors report issued on 27 July 2018 included our opinion that the financial statements: 


• gave a true and fair view of the Authority’s financial position as at 31 March 2018 and of it 


expenditure and income for the year ended; and 


• had been prepared properly in accordance with the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local 


Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 17/18 


Audit and Governance Committee 24
th


 August 2018 


‘Mazars Annual Audit Letter’. 


 


 
Performance Management Good Practice 
 


In 2019 the Brigade received a request from Mazars, our External Auditors to share the 


Brigade’s approach to performance reporting with Leicester Fire and Rescue Service as 


Mazars view the Brigade’s approach as good practice.  


 


 ‘Leicester FRS might benefit from consideration of your approach to reporting 


performance, as I have always been struck by how well you present your data and 


how it enables a good level of Member debate led by Tim Graham, particularly 


when you make your Power point presentations on the subject. I think there is a 


clear opportunity for them to learn from you’ 
Gavin Barker Director/Public Services Mazars 


‘Email to Director of Corporate Service 22
nd


 March 2019’.  
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Other External Assessment and Audits 


 


Annual Statement of Assurance  


  


The  National Framework for Fire and Rescue Services for England (2018) requires FRS’s to 


produce and publish an Annual Assurance Statement. The Framework specifically states: 


  


‘FRS must provide annual assurance on financial, governance and operational matters and 


show how they have had due regard to the expectations set out in their integrated risk 


management plan and the requirements included in the Framework. To provide assurance, 


fire and rescue authorities must publish an Annual Statement of Assurance’.   


  


The Annual Statement of Assurance was approved by the Executive Committee of the Fire 


Authority on the 23rd November 2018. No issues were identified during the production of 


this statement.  


  


The Annual Assurance Statement is available on our website at:  


www.clevelandfire.gov.uk/fire-authority/documents-publications/strategic-reports/ 


 
 


 


 


 


 


 


 


Trade Union Facility Time 


 


We are required by the Trade Union Facility Time Regulations 2017, to publish transparent 


information  on Trade Union facility time afforded by the Brigade in 2018/19.  The total 


number of employees who were relevant union officials during financial year 2018/19 is 


five, the full time equivalent number of employees who were relevant union officials is one. 


 


Five employees spend between 1% and 50% of their working hours on facility time.  


Payment made to employees who were relevant union officials is £28,400 which is 0.14% of 


the Brigades total wages bill.  See following link for further details: 


https://www.clevelandfire.gov.uk/about/what-we-spend-how/   


 


  


Achieved Compliance with National Framework?  



http://www.clevelandfire.gov.uk/fire-authority/documents-publications/strategic-reports/

https://www.clevelandfire.gov.uk/about/what-we-spend-how/
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Public Contracts Regulations Act 2015: Payment Performance Statistics 
 


Regulation 113 of the Public Contracts Regulations Act 2015 requires all contracting 


authorities to pay undisputed invoices within 30 days. When undisputed invoice payments 


are not paid within this 30 day period, interest becomes payable on the outstanding amount 


as set out in the late payment legislation. We are required to publicise the following 


information; 


(i) Percentage of invoices to first tier suppliers / prime contractors of invoices (not 


under dispute) paid within 30 days. 


 


(ii) The amount of interest paid to suppliers due to late payments. 


 


(iii) The total amount of interest that the contracting authority is liable to pay (whether 


or not paid) due to breach of regulation 113 (reportable from April 2017). 


 


The following table demonstrates the Brigade’s performance against this requirement for 


2018/19 in advance of the statutory deadline for publication of such information.  


 


 


Year 
Number of 


Invoices paid 


Percentage of Valid 
invoices paid within 30 


days (target 95%) 


Interest the Authority is 
liable to pay to Suppliers as 


a result of a breach of 
regulation 113 


The Amount of Interest 
actually paid to Suppliers 


due to breach of 
Regulation 13 


2017/18 5,720 97.61% £8,559.73 £0 


2018/19 5,279 97.31% £14,825.33 £0 


 


 


 


Compliance with Public Contract Regulation Act Section 113?......YES 
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Annual Governance Statement 2018/19 


As part of the development of the Authority’s Financial Statement there is a requirement for 


an Annual Governance Statement to be produced. This provides assurance that the 


governance arrangements in place are effective and operating effectively.  


In the interests of continually 


improving and developing our 


governance arrangements an 


improvement plan has been 


developed and implemented 


during 2018/19. Progress 


against the identified 


improvement actions is shown 


in the following chart. 


An Internal Audit review of the 


AGS did not identify any areas of 


significant weakness. 


 


 


 


CIPFA/ALARM Risk Management Benchmarking Assessment  


In 2018/19 we completed a self-assessment of our Risk Management Governance 


Framework. This assessment, co-ordinated by CIPFA/ALARM, is designed to assess and 


provide assurance on risk management arrangements over seven key areas : 


 


Assessment Area Assessment 


Leadership & Management Driving 


Policy & Strategy Driving 


People Embedded & Integrated 


Partnerships & Shared Resources Embedded &Integrated 


Processes Driving 


Risk Handling & Assurance Embedded &Integrated 


Outcomes & Delivery Driving 
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Value For Money 


Includes 


o External Audit opinion of the Brigade’s VFM; 


o Financial Outturn; 


o Efficiencies; 


o Cost per Head of Population; 


o Adequacy of Reserves. 
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13   Value For Money 


 
'Value for money' (VFM) is a term used to assess whether 


or not an organisation is providing the public and 


businesses of Teesside with the maximum benefit from 


the services it provides. VFM is also often described in 


terms of the 'three Es'.  
  
Economy – the careful use of resources to save expense 


or time; 


 


Efficiency - delivering the same level of service for less cost or time; 


 


Effectiveness - delivering better services and outcomes from the use of the same level of 


resources or time. 


  
We strive to be a high performing and continually improving organisation, whilst at the 


same time achieve value for money and thus maximise the use of the finite resources 


available to ourselves.  We can demonstrate that we are providing value for money services 


through analysis of the following areas; 
  


 External Audit opinion of the Brigade’s VFM; 


 Financial Outturn; 


 Efficiencies; 


 Cost per Head of Population; 


 Adequacy of Reserves. 


 


 


 


 


 


 


We assess ourselves as 


Performing Strongly 
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External Audit: Annual Audit Opinion on VFM and Financial Resilience 
 


In accordance with the Accounts and Audit (England) Regulations 2011, external audit is 


required to conclude whether the Authority has put in place proper arrangements for 


securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources. 


 


External Audit form this opinion by considering the evidence they extract from their, and 


others, work during the year against two criteria specified by the Audit Commission, 


notably; 


 


 Financial Resilience, that considers evidence across three main areas: 


 financial governance; 


 financial planning; 


 financial control. 


 


 Securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness, that considers evidence across 


two main areas: 


 prioritising resources; 


 improving efficiency and productivity 


 


Following the work by Mazars, in August 2018 they reported to Members of the Audit and 


Governance Committee their conclusion on the Authority’s arrangements for achieving 


Efficiency and Value for Money.  Their conclusion states; 


 


 Our Auditors concluded that we are satisfied that in all significant respects, the Authority had 


put in place proper arrangements to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of 


resources for the year ended 31 March 2018. 
Audit and Governance Committee 24


th
 August 2018 


‘Mazars Annual Audit Letter’ 


 


  
 


 


 


 


  


Achieved VfM and have Financial Resilience?           Yes 







CFA Annual Performance and Efficiency Report 2018/19      68 


 


Financial Outturn 


 


The Authority’s total net revenue budget for 2018/19 was £26.243m; which equates to 
£46.68 per person in the Teesside area. 
 


The following table provides a draft overview of the outturn of the Brigade in 2018/19, 
shown by the types of services provided. 
 


2018/19 
Budget 


£0 


Outturn 
£0 


Variance 
£0 


Community Fire Safety  3,627 3,123 -504 


Firefighting and Rescue Operations 16,869 16,972 +103 


Management and Support Services  7,678 7,447 -231 


Corporate Expenses 202 179 -23 


Gross expenditure 28,376 27,721 -655 


Income from Grants, Fees and charges 1,295 1,562 -267 


Net expenditure 27,081 26,159 -922 


Contributions from reserves 695 495 -200 


Section 31 Grants 143 222 +79 


Net expenditure 26,243 25,442 -801 


 


 


2018/19 Efficiencies 


 


The Authority’s Efficiency Policy and its Community Integrated Risk Management Plan drives 


a focused robust approach to the delivery of efficiencies through various service 


transformation programmes.  


The on-going programme of efficiencies around a number of themed work streams 


prevalent to 2018/19 have contributed to the current and future levels of efficiencies 


including: 


 Organisational Structure – vacancy management; 


 Reconfiguration of Front Line Service Delivery arrangements; 


 Strategic Asset Management : Estates Rebuild Program and Brigade Fleet. 
 


Met efficiency target of £0.752m ?   : Achieved £0.752m 
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Cost per Head of Population 
 


At face value cost per person appears high when compared to other Fire and Rescue 


Authorities. This comparison is however disingenuous as it does not take account of the 


local context and circumstances of individual Fire Authorities. 


 


The chart below illustrates that Cleveland Fire Brigade area, one the smallest in the country, 


has the second highest level of deprivation (IMD) and an extremely challenging and complex 


local risk profile in a concentrated area (as detailed in our Community Risk Profile) which 


results in the requirement for high level of expenditure to maintain the safety of residents, 


businesses and industry. 


 


 
 


Adequacy of Reserves 


 


It is good practice to ensure reserves are maintained, either earmarked (for intended 


purposes) or un-earmarked (no specific purpose) so that the Brigade can respond financially 


to unforeseen circumstances.   


 


The Local Government Act 2003 requires the CFA to consider the proposed level of reserves 


on the advice of the Treasurer. Every year, as part of our financial planning arrangements, 


we produce a risk assessment on the level of reserves likely to be required based on those 


things that may occur which will impact on our financial position, such as industrial action, 


pay increases, and fire-fighter pensions.  


 


In the report to CFA on 15th February 2019 the Treasurer advised the CFA that he believed 


that the level of reserves within our financial strategy was adequate for 2019/20. 
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Comparison Against Other Fire & 


Rescue Services 
 


Includes 


o Family Group Performance 


o Occupational Health 


o Home Office National Fire Attendance Times 
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14   Comparison against other FRS’ 
 


We use available data from the following sources to assess our performance  against other 


FRS’s  


o Family Group 
o Occupational Health Group 
o National Response Times 


 


Whilst aiming to continually improve we also want to be the best in all our benchmarked 


indicators.  So we can self-assess ourselves we have used the following parameters: 


  


• Improve quartile position or remain in top quartile against other FRS’s in our Family 


Group in all benchmarked indicators.  


• Improve quartile position or remain in top quartile against other FRS’s relating to 


sickness absence in all benchmarked indicators. 


  


The following criteria is used to assess the  performance 


 


 


4 3 2 1 


Over 76% Between 51-75% Between 26 – 50% Between 0 – 50% 


 


 


 


 
 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


We assess ourselves as 


Performing Well 
65% (13 out of  20) 
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Family Group 


 


Family Group 4 consists of 18 Fire Brigades that benchmark performance information on a 


quarterly basis against an approved set of performance indicators.   


 
This FG4 assessment has been based on data for the period 1st April – 30th September, 
however, it must be noted only 17 Fire Brigades provided data. 
 


Indicator 
Quartile Position 


Benchmark Group 
2017/18 


Quartile Position  
Benchmark Group 


2018/19 


Improved / 
Retained Top 


Quartile? 


All Incidents 
Bottom 


 (17th out of 17) 
Bottom  


(17th out of 17)   


All Fires 
Bottom 


 (17th out of 17) 
Bottom  


(17th out of 17)   


All Primary Fires 
3rd Quartile 


 (11th out of 17) 
Top 


 (4th out of 17)   


All Dwelling Fires 
3rd Quartile 


(10th out of 17) 
Top 


 (1stout of 17)  


Accidental Dwelling Fires 
Top 


 (1st out of 17) 
Top 


 (1stout of 17)   


Secondary Fires 
Bottom  


(17th out of 17) 
Bottom  


(17th out of 17)   


All Deliberate Fires 
Bottom  


(17th out of 17) 
Bottom  


(17th out of 17)   


Fatalities 
3rd Quartile  


(13th out of 17) 
Top 


(1st out of 17)   


Injuries 
Top 


 (1st out of 17) 
Top  


(1st out of 17)   


RTC 
3rd Quartile 


(13th out of 17) 
2nd Quartile 


(6th out of 17)  
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Occupational Health Group 


 


In addition to the benchmarking work provided by Family Group, Cleveland Fire Brigade 


leads the NFCC Occupational Health Group. As part of this work the Brigade produces a 


sickness absence benchmarking report on a quarterly basis which allows comparison on 


levels of sickness under key indicators to be undertaken. There is currently in excess of 30 


Brigades who participate within this benchmarking. 


 
This assessment has been based on data for the period 1st April – 31st December 2018. 
 
 


Indicator 
Quartile Position 


Benchmark Group 
2017/18 


Quartile Position  
Benchmark Group 


2018/19 


Improved / 
Retained Top 


Quartile? 


Wholetime Firefighter Sickness 
Top 


(8th out of 35) 
3rd Quartile  


(24th out of 38)  


Retained Staff Sickness 
Top  


(4th out of 20) 
Top 


(6th out of 23)  


Fire Control Staff Sickness 
Top 


(6th out of 28) 
3rd  Quartile 


(19th out of 32)  


Non Uniformed Staff Sickness 
2nd Quartile 


(16th out of 36) 
3rd Quartile  


(21st out of 38)  
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National Attendance Times – Comparator 2017/18  


 


On an annual basis the Home Office publish details of the average response times for all Fire 


and Rescue Services for fire related incidents. The following table shows the performance of 


Cleveland Fire Brigade compared to the national average for 2017/18 and how we rank 


when compared to all FRS’s in England.  


 


2017/18 Response 
times (minutes and 
seconds) 


England 
Average 
2017/18 


CFB  
2016/17 


CFB  
2017/18 


National 
Rank 


Position  


Improved / 
Retained 


Top 
Quartile? 


Primary Fires 8m 45s 6m 21s 6m 35s 1  


Dwelling Fires 7m 44s 5m 40s 5m 56s 1  


Other Building Fires 8m 30s 5m 56s 6m 54s 4 
 


Road Vehicle Fires 9m 35s 6m 55s 6m 42s 1  


Other Outdoor 
Primary Fires 


10m 46s 6m 41s 7m 25s 1  


Secondary Fires 9m 10s 7m 20s 7m 47s 2 
 


 
Home Office figures for 2017/18, released in January 2019, shows that the Brigade has 


maintained its position as being the fastest service in the country to respond to all 


categories of primary fire incidents apart from primary fires in other buildings (i.e. non-


residential buildings) where the Brigade is ranked as 4th fastest in the country. 
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Customer Care 


Includes 


o Satisfaction Survey – After the Fire Survey 


o Satisfaction Survey – Complaints Handling 


o HMICFRS Public Perception Survey of Fire and Rescue Services 
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15  Customer Care 


 


Through community engagement we are better able to target our services to what people 


want and need, improve the take up and delivery of our services, prioritise our services to 


make better use of limited resources and improve public confidence and satisfaction.  
  
We pride ourselves on the quality of services we provide and are a learning organisation to 


continually drive the quality of our services.  
  
We monitor customer satisfaction in the following ways: complaints/ compliments, 


satisfaction surveys such as percentage of people satisfied with our HFSV’s, Fire Safety 


Audits and the overall service provided by Cleveland Fire Brigade following a fire in the 


home. 
 


The scoring mechanism used is: 


 


  


 


Outcome 
Performance 


2017/18 


Customer 


Satisfaction 


Percentage of People satisfied with the service they received/the 


way the Brigade dealt with a complaint  
100% 


4: Performing 
Strongly 


People satisfied with the service they received 
28 out of 28 surveys indicate 


satisfaction 


Percentage of businesses satisfied with the service they received: 


Protection Services 
9 out of 9 surveys indicate  


satisfaction 


People satisfied with the way the Brigade dealt with a complaint  Zero surveys returned 
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Public Perception Survey 


 


During the summer of 2018 HMICFRS engaged BMG research to conduct a Public Perception 


Survey of all Fire and Rescue services in England.  The outcomes were published in 


December 2018.  Findings from Cleveland Fire Brigade were: 


 


 Third highest number of responses in the country 


 76% of respondents satisfied with CFB : Higher than national average (70%) 


 87% respondents said we have a good reputation: Higher than national average 


(85%) 


 77% believe the local fire and rescue service represents good value for money: 


Higher than national average (70%) 


 88% believe the Local Fire and Rescue Service provide an effective service : Higher 


than national average (86%) 


 Respondents are confident that they can access the Brigade in an emergency and 


that extinguishing fires and attending life threatening emergencies are our top 


activities. 


 


 


This full report is available using the following link: 


https://www.bmgresearch.co.uk/hmicfrs-public-perceptions-of-fire-and-rescue-services-in-


england-2018-report/  


  



https://www.bmgresearch.co.uk/hmicfrs-public-perceptions-of-fire-and-rescue-services-in-england-2018-report/

https://www.bmgresearch.co.uk/hmicfrs-public-perceptions-of-fire-and-rescue-services-in-england-2018-report/
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16  Compliments and Complaints 
 


Cleveland Fire Brigade is committed to providing a professional and efficient service that is 


valued by the community we serve. We welcome feedback whether it is congratulations, 


criticism or constructive suggestions.  


 


All comments received will be used in a positive way to contribute to the formulation of 


policy and service improvement. 


 


We deal with all compliments and complaints in a timely, consistent and confidential 


manner.  All comments received will be used to contribute to the improvement of our 


services. 


You can make a compliment or complaint in the following ways: 


 In person at any Cleveland Fire Brigade site 


 By telephone (01429) 872311, (01429) 874030 


 In writing to any Cleveland Fire Brigade establishment 


 By email to riskandperformance@clevelandfire.gov.uk 


 Or complete our online form using the link below: 


All compliments will be recorded and acknowledged within five working days.  Details will 


then be passed to the appropriate Senior Officer and the staff concerned. 


You can download the policy for Compliments and Complaints at: 


http://www.clevelandfire.gov.uk/about/our-policies-procedures/ 


 
 
Or click on ‘Our Performance’ on the Brigade Home Page: 
http://www.clevelandfire.gov.uk/  
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Compliments 


 


 


 


  


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


  


A Hartlepool Councillor came and spoke to the communications 


team when he was in HQ recently.  He complimented the team, in 


particular, on how well our Social Media is doing and to keep up 


the good work 


A gentleman rang in to thank the two 


Fire Brigade staff who attended his 


home to rectify a problem with his 


smoke alarms.  The gentleman  is elderly 


and in ill-health and wished to thank our 


staff for doing such a good job 
Telephone call received 


from a lady who wished to 


pass on her sincerest 


gratitude for the 


professionalism and 


kindness she received from 


our crews whilst they were 


carrying out a Home Fire 


Safety Visit. 


Many thanks to all of the fire crew from the 


Middlesbrough Community Fire station who 


attended a kitchen fire at my mother’s 


apartment.  We are all very grateful that you 


attended so quickly and stayed around 


afterwards to help and support my mother and 


the nearby residents. 


I just wanted to say a quick 


thank you to the officer who 


let my child onto their fire 


engine today.  My son has 


special needs and anxiety, so 


seeing him so confident and 


happy made both his and my 


day.  Thank you so much  


Hartlepool Community Safety Team has been awarded a Recognition of Outstanding 


Service and Excellence (ROSE) Gold Award for Continuous Improvement by Cleveland 


Police 
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17  Equality and Diversity Profile 


 


We are required by the Equality Act to publish a profile of the Brigade’s ‘customers’* in relation to 


the key characteristics detailed in the Equality Act. The following section provides details of the key 


characteristics that we collect from our surveys of users of our services and compares them to the 


averages for Teesside and England as derived from the National Census information. 
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*those people who have used CFB services (including incidents) and completed one of our surveys. 


  







CFA Annual Performance and Efficiency Report 2018/19      82 


 


18 Glossary of Terms 


Accidental Dwelling Fires (ADF): incidents that occurred in the home that were not deliberate;  


BVPI’s (Best Value Performance Indicators): defunct indicators that form the basis of the majority of 
our performance indicators; 


Call Challenge: an initiative where our Control Room Operators can challenge the caller if they 
believe the incident to be malicious; 


Call Questioning: an initiative where our Control Room Operators question an incident with an 
Automatic Fire Alarm to confirm there is a fire with someone on site at the time of the incident; 


CIPFA:  The Chartered Institute of Public Finance & Accountancy; 


CLG: Department of Communities and Local Government; 


COMAH sites: Control Of Major Accident Hazards; 


Complaint: anyone expressing dissatisfaction in relation to any action or service provided by 
Cleveland Fire Brigade; 


Compliment: an expression of satisfaction with the service provided by the Brigade or its employees 
in the course of their duties;  


CIRMP: Community Integrated Risk Management Plan; 


Control Operator:  members of staff that take calls relating to operational incidents etc; 


Co-Responder: a partnership with the NEAS (North East Ambulance Service) to attend Medical 
Emergencies in East Cleveland;  


CSR: Comprehensive Spending Review; 


Deliberate Fire: a fire that following our investigations has been deemed to have been started with 
malicious intent; 


Economic Cost of Fire:  produced by CLG to provide estimations for the cost of specific types of fire. 
Costs include human costs, property damage, lost business and response cost. Costs incurred by the 
Criminal Justice System are excluded in all but deliberate fires; 


ELT (Executive Leadership Team): Directors and Area Managers that have responsibility for the 
running of the Brigade;  
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EMR (Emergency Medical Response): Incidents the Brigade attends on behalf of the Ambulance 
Service to provide life savings treatment to individuals suffering life threatening medical  conditions; 


Fatalities: fatal casualties occurring at an incident; 


FAM (False Alarm Malicious):  incidents that are made with the intent of making the Fire Brigade 
attend a non-existent event; 


FG4: Family Group 4 – a group of 18 Fire Brigades that benchmark performance information on a 
quarterly basis against an approved set of performance indicators. 


FTE (Full Time Equivalent): a unit used to determine the percentage of time part time staff work;  


Green Book (Support) Staff: corporate staff contracted under NJC Conditions of Service;  


Heartstart: an initiative ran in partnership with the British Heart Foundation to provide lifesaving first 
aid skills; 


HFSV: Home Fire Safety Visit; 


HMICFRS: Her Majesty’s Inspectorate for Constabulary and Fire and Rescue Services 


Injuries: Non-Fatal Casualties that occurred at an incident; 


KSI (Killed and Seriously Injured): indicators used by Cleveland Police for people who have died or 
were seriously injured in Road Traffic Collisions; 


Learn and Live: a group of hard hitting presentations covering Road Safety, Home Safety, 
Drugs/Alcohol Safety and Workplace Safety; 


Mazars: organisation that audits Cleveland Fire Brigade on its financial, corporate governance 
arrangements, VfM, financial resilience improvements;  


NEAS: North East Ambulance Service;  


NI’s (National Indicators): these indicators were taken from the BVPI’s; 


OHG : Occupational Health Group this is the group that contributes to the national benchmarking 
report on sickness absence; 


ONS: Office of National Statistics; 


Primary Fires: fires that occur within a property; 


Response Standards: standards produced to determine how quickly we should aim to arrive at a 
certain type of incident; 


Retained: members of staff that respond to incidents on a part time basis; 
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Secondary fires: fires that do not occur in property e.g. grass/ refuse/ wheelie bins; 


Safe and Well: an initiative to ensure people remain safe within their own homes.  An extension of 
the Home Fire Safety Visits; 


Stay Safe and Warm:  an initiative that aims to raise awareness of the dangers faced by people who 
struggle to keep warm during the cold months and to provide advice and support to anyone 
identified; 


VfM (value for money): term used to prove an organisation is doing the right thing, in the right way, 
with the right people; 


Wholetime:  operational staff working full-time contracts that comprise of a regular rotating pattern 
of day shifts, night shifts or day duty. 
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INTERNAL AUDIT PROGRESS REPORT  
 


REPORT  OF  THE  CHIEF  FIRE  OFFICER 


 
 
 
   


 


   


 
 
 
1. PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 
1.1 To apprise Members of the progress made on the 2018/19 and 2019/20 Internal 


Audit Programme. 
 


 
 
2. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
2.1 That Members note the Audit position and completion of the 2018/19 audits.  


 
2.2 That Members note the progress made to date in the 2019/20 Internal Audit Plan. 


 
2.3 That Members consider whether it is necessary to report to the Fire Authority on 


any concerns raised. 
 
 
 
3.  BACKGROUND 


 
3.1  Under the Accounts and Audit Regulations (2006), the Fire Authority is responsible 
 for ensuring an adequate and effective internal audit.    
 
3.2 At the Audit and Governance meeting on 22 February 2019, Members adopted the 


Internal Audit Plan for 2019/20.  The audits are carried out by Hartlepool Borough 
Council and covered over 100 days. 


 
  


For 
Information 
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4.  AUDIT SUMMARY 
 


2018/19 AUDITS RESP 
OFFICER 


AUDIT 
STATUS 


ACTION  COMMENTS 


Insurance  C Cordiner Satisfactory 
Assurance 


Actions 
completed 


Audit Completed 


Creditors C Cordiner Satisfactory 
Assurance 


No Actions Audit Completed  


Payroll C Cordiner Satisfactory 
Assurance 


No Actions Audit Completed 


Pensions C Cordiner Satisfactory 
Assurance 


No actions Audit Completed  


Information/Data 
Management 


D Richards Satisfactory 
Assurance 


1 action 
outstanding 


Audit completed 


Attendance 
Management 


N Moore Satisfactory 
Assurance 


Actions 
completed 


Audit Completed 


Budgetary Control 
 


C Cordiner Satisfactory 
Assurance 


No Actions  Audit Completed 


Cash Bank 
Reconciliation 


C Cordiner Satisfactory 
Assurance 


No actions Audit Completed 


Debtors 
 


C Cordiner Satisfactory 
Assurance 


No Actions Audit Completed 


Fleet Management 
 


I Potts Satisfactory 
Assurance 


No Actions Audit Completed 


Procurement 
(purchasing cards) 


C Cordiner Satisfactory 
Assurance 


No Actions Audit Completed 


Retained Firefighter 
Claims 


C Cordiner Satisfactory 
Assurance 


No Actions Audit Completed 


Stores 
 


I Potts Satisfactory 
Assurance 


Actions 
completed 


Audit Completed 


VAT 
 


R Hurst 
(HBC)  


Satisfactory 
Assurance 


No CFA 
actions 


Audit Completed – 
1 HBC action 


 


2019/20 AUDITS RESP 
OFFICER 


AUDIT 
STATUS 


ACTION  COMMENTS 


Payroll  C Cordiner To commence   


Pensions D Snelling To commence   


Creditors C Cordiner To commence   


 


AUDIT STATUS       


In progress 


Completed 


Undertaken behind schedule 


To commence 
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5.  2018/19 COMPLETED AUDITS 
 


 


INFORMATION/DATA MANAGEMENT 


Audit Status: Completed 
                       Satisfactory Assurance 


Actions: 4 out of 5 completed      


 
The overall opinion is that Satisfactory Assurance can be provided that the risks 
identified are well controlled. 
 
Scope  
An internal audit review has been undertaken of the Information /Data Management 
arrangements for implementing the General Data Protection Regulation (GDPR).  
GDPR is EU legislation that came into force on 25th May 2018, alongside the Data 
Protection Act 2018 it legislates on data protection for all organisations within the UK.  
This audit provides assurance on the arrangements in place at the authority for 
ensuring compliance with the legislation, it is not intended to provide assurance that 
the authority is compliant or not. Reviews of policies and procedures related to GDPR 
and DPA 2018 have not been undertaken during this audit.  


 
The audit also evaluated the processes in place for ensuring that the requirements of 
GDPR were addressed within the authority, ie Procedures ensure legislation and best 
practice guidance are adhered to where applicable; Progress is managed and 
reported to various levels of management within the organisation. 
 
Opinion  
This opinion is based on the result of work done shown on:  
 


 GDPR Implementation Process  


 Data Protection Fee  


 Information Security Policy and Data Protection Policy  


 Processor Contracts  
 
5 risks were identified – 4 are now completed. 
 
Action Plan 
 
ISS.5 Processer Contracts 
Finding 
The contract review for compliance with GDPR is ongoing therefore no specific 
testing has been undertaken during the audit. It may be appropriate to risk assess 
contracts to focus resources on those with the higher risks. 
 
Recommendation 
Contracts are all reviewed and actions taken to ensure compliance with GDPR and 
Data Protection legislation and ICO Guidance. 
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ATTENDANCE MANAGEMENT 


Audit Status: Completed 
                       Satisfactory Assurance 


Actions:  Completed  


 
The overall opinion is that Satisfactory Assurance can be provided that the risks 
identified are well controlled. 
 
Scope  
The audit has focused on the arrangements in place for the monitoring and reporting 
of sickness data and also sickness management including the arrangements in place 
for annualised hours and the associated policies and schemes within the CFA Human 
Resource Division.  
 
The audit also covered a review of the findings which were identified for the audit 
work carried out and included in the previous Final Audit report’s Action Plan to 
ensure these have been actioned and implemented as agreed.  
 
The audit objectives were:  
 


 To ensure the Authority monitors & reports employee sickness levels  


 Compliance with relevant legislation and regulations relating to sickness 
absence.  


 Ensure that the annualised hours scheme is effectively monitored  


 Sickness absence is managed in line with relevant policies  


 Managers are provided with adequate training on sickness management  


 Adequate security controls are established to protect information and data 
from unauthorised access  


 
Opinion  
This opinion was based on the result of work completed in the following areas:  


 Policy and Procedures    


 Sickness Monitoring                                


 Annualised Hours – Green Book 


 Annualised Hours – Grey Book  


 System Security  


Risk of Non Implementation 
Processer Contracts may not be in place when personal data is processed outside of 
the authority resulting in data processors being unaware of their responsibilities and 
non-compliance with GDPR and Data Protection legislation and ICO guidance  
 
Action –  Contract register has been reviewed and those contracts which 
require GDPR compliance have been identified with suitable DPA agreements 
between CFA/Suppliers are being put in place.  Any suppliers identified that are 
off contract will be written to seeking confirmation of acceptance to CFA T&C’s. 
Estimated completion end Q2 2019. 
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Action Plan 
 
ISS.1 Security Access  
 


Finding  
A review of the personnel system access was undertaken and it was found that 9 
members of staff have full access to the all sickness data/information. This was 
discussed with the Head of HR who confirmed no known reason for the Head of 
Finance to have full access to sickness data/information.  
 
Recommendation  
Access to the personnel system should be reviewed regularly to confirm access is 
reasonable. Access should be restricted for the officer above.  
 
Risk of Non Implementation 
Unauthorised access to confidential information, data may be lost, damaged or 
stolen. 
 
Management Response  
Following the discussion with the auditor IT were consulted and have confirmed 
access has now been restricted to the identical access profile as other finance 
employees which removes access to absence related information.  
 
Action completed 
 
ISS.2 Sickness Records 
 


Finding 
The auditor selected a random sample of 15 sickness entries from the sickness report 
and noted that 2 self-certificates/fit notes and return to work interviews could not be 
located. 
 
Recommendation 
Relevant documentation is completed and obtained to support all elements of 
employee absence. 
 
Risk of Non Implementation 
No acceptable absence level is set with reasons for absence not fully established. 
Employees may feel isolated, vulnerable or out of touch and if early medical action is 
not sought, the problem cannot be resolved quickly. 
 
Management Response  
The Brigade sickness absence procedure requires the completion of a PLN7a (self 
certification) and PLN7b (return to work form) for every absence. This is tracked and 
chased by the HR Team. Failure to comply after several requests results in the issue 
being escalated to the next line manager in the hierarchy. Following discussion with 
the auditor the Head of HR will ensure any documentation relating to an absence is 
formally raised at the fortnightly case management meetings with senior managers 
who will be required to provide a response/course of action. 
 
Action completed  
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BUDGETARY CONTROL 


Audit Status: Completed 
                       Satisfactory Assurance 


Actions:      None  


 
The overall opinion is that Satisfactory Assurance can be provided that the risks 
identified are well controlled. 
 
Scope 
A review of budgetary control procedures was undertaken in accordance with the 
Internal Audit 2018/19 Plan. The Authority has a Medium Term Financial Strategy 
(MTFS) that integrates the Authority’s financial plans and the Integrated Risk 
Management Plan (IRMP).  The audit involved reviewing both revenue and capital 
budgets with the aim to provide assurance on:  
 


 Roles and responsibilities of officers and Members are clearly defined in 
relation to the budget setting and budget monitoring processes.  


 Budgets are prepared within the time frame set out in the budget timetable. 
The timetable is laid out in accordance with statutory requirements / 
deadlines.  


 An approved, medium /long term financial planning strategy is in place that 
has considered all potential issues.  


 The budget is promptly and accurately uploaded in to the financial ledger 
before the 31 March deadline. There is a mechanism for checking that the 
correct figures have been used. Unauthorised or invalid amendments cannot 
be made to the budget on the ledger.  


 Virements are authorised in accordance with Financial Procedure Rules.  


 Accurate and timely information is provided to budget holders, chief officers 
and members to enable them to make key decisions about services.  


 The level of reserves is determined by the authority's financial risk 
management process and adhered to.  


 
Opinion  
This opinion is based on the result of Work Done in the following areas:  
 


 Roles and Responsibilities                        Budget Timetable 
 Budget Setting Approval                           Contributions  
 FMS Upload CLG Return                          Virements  
 Budget Monitoring                                     Reserves 


 
Action -  No issues at this time and all objectives achieved. 
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 DEBTORS 


Audit Status: Completed 
                       Satisfactory Assurance 


Actions:      None  


 
The overall opinion is that Satisfactory Assurance can be provided that the risks 
identified are well controlled. 
 
Scope  
An audit was undertaken of the CFA Sundry Debtors system in accordance with the 
2018/19 Internal Audit Plan. The audit focused on the following areas:  
 


 System security 


 Debtor records (set up and use of) 


 Charging framework  


 Debt Collection  


 Debt Recovery 


 Performance Management  


 
Opinion  
This opinion is based on the result of work done completed in the following areas: 
 


 Policies & Procedures  


 System Security  


 Debtor Records 


 Charging 


 Payments 


 Recovery 


 Performance 
 


Action -  No issues at this time and all objectives achieved. 
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STORES 


Audit Status: Completed 
                       Satisfactory Assurance 


Actions:  Completed  


 
The overall opinion is that Satisfactory Assurance can be provided that the risks 
identified are well controlled. 
 
Scope 
The Fire Brigade Central Stores was relocated to CFA Headquarters in 2016. A 
storeman is employed to be responsible for the day-to-day stores administration.  
Year End Stock Certificates for the last four years show the value of physical stock 
held which were based on the basis of average cost (AVCO) as follows 2017/18 
 
 2017/18 2016/17 2015/16 2014/15 


Value of Stock held £461,621.08 £374,677.96 £332,552.18 £361,188.17 


 


Obsolete Stock Certificates record the value of stocks/stores for which the Fire 
Authority has no further use which has been identified and subsequently removed 
and is to be considered for disposal. The totals of which are set out below: 
 
 2017/18 2016/17 2015/16 2014/15 


Value of Stock to be 
removed/disposed 


£3,375.62 £17,810.73 £691.93 Nil 


 
The audit programme objectives were to evaluate the procedures in place relating 
to:  
 


 Compliance with Financial Procedure Rules including the ordering, receipt & 
issue of stock;  


 The reasonableness of store items held in relation to usage;  


 Arrangements relating to stocktaking, the reconciliation to book stock totals 
and that accurate stock records are maintained;  


 Security of stores; and  


 Identification & processes for dealing with slow moving stock including write 
offs and disposals of obsolete or damaged stock.  


 
Opinion  
This opinion is based on the result of Work Done in the following areas:  
 


 Policies and Procedures                        Issues, Transfers and Returns 
 Ordering and Receipting of Goods        Stock Value and Levels 
 Stock Reconciliations                            Write offs 
 Security 


 
Action Plan -  3 issues identified 
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Issue 1 – Control Objective 1 
Finding  
The Equipment Officer & Stores Manager maintains a training record for all technical 
hub staff. The record shows that refresher training is required in areas such as 
COSHH training, First Aid and manual handing. This has been identified and 
currently awaiting training dates from the LDC.  The Storekeeper currently has a 
valid forklift certificate.  
 
Recommendation  
Refresher training in areas such as manual handling and forklift training are 
undertaken on a regular basis.  
 
Management Response  
Technical Hub comply with the training and development of staff within Stores, a 
formal plan is in place that is submitted to the Training and Development 
Department annually detailing the training requests. The Training Department are 
progressing the training needs requirement through their annual Workforce Training 
Plan.   
 
Action completed 
 
Issue 2 – Control Objective 5 
Finding 
A random sample of five items recorded on the Store Catalogue report was checked 
against the physical quantities held.  Of the five selected, two physical quantities 
were less than the catalogue record.  An explanation could not be provided for the 
discrepancies. The total value of missing items equates to £160.71. 
 
A random sample of three physical stock items were then checked against the 
quantities recorded on the Store Catalogue report. Of these, one did not correctly 
match back to the system report. The total value of the missing items equated to 
£8.02. 
 
Recommendation 
Regular stock reconciliations are undertaken and accurate stock records maintained. 
 
Management Response 
Regular stock conciliations are undertaken however stock record accuracy is 
dependent on the speed at which pick notes are recorded onto the stock system. We 
will improve working practices to reduce this time lapse.   
 
Action completed 
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Issue 3 – Control Objective 6 
Finding 
An annual stock check at year end is no longer undertaken. The auditor was advised 
that an ongoing stock taking procedure is currently in place whereby stock is 
checked on a rolling basis throughout the year with any discrepancies/anomalies 
identified being investigated and corrected where applicable. The stock check is 
done by the storekeeper and checks/investigations carried out by the Equipment 
Officer & Stores Manager. 
At the end of the year a report is produced from the system of stock held. No checks 
are currently undertaken as to the accuracy of the data. The Auditor queried how 
they can put assurance on the accuracy of data produced as some items may not 
have been checked since the beginning of the financial year and any discrepancies 
that have since occurred will not have been picked up. 
 
Recommendation 
As a minimum, the following controls would be expected to be in place to help 
mitigate any associated risks with annual stock taking procedures: 


 an independent stocktake (i.e. undertaken by a non-stores employee) should 
be undertaken of all stores including sub-stores, imprests held on vans and 
any items delivered direct and held on site. A record should be maintained by 
the employee concerned showing when items were checked. 


 a stocktake of all items should be undertaken at least annually either at the 
year end or on a perpetual (i.e. continuous) basis. A record should be 
maintained by the employee concerned showing when items were checked. 


 a stocktake of high turnover and valuable/desirable items should be 
undertaken on a more frequent basis. 


 stock levels should be compared with those of previous years/periods; any 
significant variations should be independently investigated. 


 records of discrepancies in stock levels should be maintained and monitored 
over time to identify any patterns. Any major errors should be promptly 
investigated by an employee independent of the stores procedure. 


 
Management Response 
We are implementing a system that will identify stock that requires a more frequent 
check, this will be based on high value and/or high volume items. These items will 
undergo a more frequent stock check process. Stores have also implanted a direct 
ordering system for consumables.   
 
Action completed 
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RETAINED FIREFIGHTER CLAIMS 


Audit Status: Completed 
                       Satisfactory Assurance 


Actions:      None  


 
The overall opinion is that Satisfactory Assurance can be provided that the risks 
identified are well controlled. 
 
Scope  
An audit of Retained Fire Fighter payments has been undertaken in accordance with 
the 2018/19 Internal Audit Plan. Retained firefighters receive payment for the work 
they undertake.  How payment is structured can vary from brigade to brigade, the 
most common method is for a retaining fee to be paid based on the hours per week 
they are contracted to cover, plus extra payments based for responding to calls, 
carrying out maintenance of the equipment on the station, carrying out community fire 
safety work etc. These extra payments are based on the hourly rate for a firefighter.  
 
The audit focused on the claim forms submitted by Retained Firefighters (RFFs), the 
processing of these claims by the CFA Payroll Team and the payments made as a 
result of this processing.  The audit review also tested that adequate checks are 
being made on the manual processing elements and that appropriate budget 
monitoring and reconciliations of volume and value of transactions are being 
performed.  
 
The payments under review were any payments made to RFFs as a result of that 
individual being employed as a Retained Firefighter, which included:  


 Retaining fees;  


 Disturbance payments;  


 Leave/Holiday pay;  


 Turnout fees;  


 Attendance fees;  


 Training attendance/Course fees;  


 Drill payments;  


 Long Service Awards;  


 Temporary promotions;  


 Administrative duties;  


 CPD;  


 Casual promotions; and  


 Bank Holiday payments.  
 
The period reviewed covered the period January 2018 – December 2018 
 
Opinion  
This opinion is based on the result of work done completed in the following areas: 


 Policy & Procedures  


 Payments  


 Reconciliations  
 
Action -  No issues at this time and all objectives achieved. 
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INSURANCE 


Audit Status: Completed 
                       Satisfactory Assurance 


Actions:  Completed  


 
The overall opinion is that Satisfactory Assurance can be provided that the risks 
identified are well controlled. 
 
Scope  
The audit reviewed arrangements for ensuring that the Fire Authority has sufficient 
insurance cover to manage the financial risks associated with its activities. As the 
procurement of cover is arranged by Middlesbrough Council this was not reviewed as 
part of the audit.   Arrangements for processing claims from incident through to 
settlement was also undertaken.  The audit objectives were:  
 


 The scope / level of insurance cover sufficiently transfers the financial risks 
associated with all Authority’s activities.  


 Effective arrangements are in place for processing claims to ensure that all 
necessary evidence required to defend against fraudulent / malicious claims is 
obtained and ensure that legitimate claims are settled in the most economic, 
efficient and effective manner.  


 Effective monitoring of claims ensures that appropriate action is taken to 
reduce associated risks and similar future potential claims.  


 


Opinion  
This opinion is based on the result of work done completed in the following areas: 
 
The Brigade have an SLA with Middlesbrough Council for the provision of insurance.  
Insurance cover is in place with Zurich Municipal in respect of:  
 


 


 
A separate policy is held with Zurich Municipal in respect of 3rd party Motor i.e. 
insurance would cover 3rd party claims in the event of motor accidents.  
 
A fund is maintained by Middlesbrough Council on the Brigades behalf to self-fund 
unexpected claims that do not involve 3rd parties. The fund is topped up annually by 
paying a percentage above annual premium payments. The value of the Insurance 
Fund as at 31st March 2018 was £271k.  
 
Audit review of claims found that over the past three years the average value of self-
insurance claims is £21k per annum. Given that the Authority has also established an 
Insurance Fund Reserve, consideration should be given to assess the level of Self 
Insurance Fund required to be held by the Authority. .  
 
Estimates of the annual premium and fees to be charged for the year are provided to 
the Authority for budget purposes in line with the SLA and invoiced at year end. At the 
time of the audit, supporting information showing actual premium paid, admin costs 
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and contribution towards Self Insurance Fund had not been provided.  This 
information has subsequently been provided.  
 
Claims are processed by the Health and Safety Section in conjunction with Fleet 
Services.  
 
All incidents are subject to investigation and consideration is given whether liability 
can be contested. Consideration of defence is also undertaken by the MBC Risk 
Management Service who will advise the Health and Safety Service. 
 
All repairs carried out are authorised by the Workshops Manager in line with 
documented Accident / Insurance procedures, however, there does appear to be 
clear lines of responsibility for authorising payment from the self-insurance fund.  
The auditor obtained details of all claims for the past three years. A sample of 10 
claims was selected for review. Testing found that:  
 


 A unique claim number is assigned to each claim;  


 All claims are subject to investigation and relevant evidence obtained to enable 
the claim to be assessed, i.e. witness statements, photographs etc  


 For internal motor claims, quotations are obtained to enable claim costs to be 
estimated;  


 Claims are considered to determine whether there is a defence;  


 3rd party claims are submitted to the Insurance Company with all supporting 
documentation in a prompt manner 


 
Settlement letters are not received from Middlesbrough Council Risk Managements 
Service in respect of closed claims.  
 
The auditor requested evidence from Middlesbrough Risk Management Service that 
payment has been made in respect of settled claims, however, no assurance has 
been provided.  
 
It is not possible to calculate the average time taken to settle claims as settlement 
dates are not provided. Using the report of open cases, analysis was undertaken to 
identify the time cases have been settled. There are currently 26 cases open, time 
taken since the incident date is as follows:  


 < 1 year = 10;  


 1-2 years = 12;  


 2-3 years = 1;  


 3-4 years = 1;  


 4-5 years = 1;  


 > 5 years = 1.  
 
An excel document provided by Middlesbrough Council Risk Management Service 
details open and closed claims along with a breakdown of costs. It is received 
periodically and used by the Health and Safety team to assess progress of claims 
and report monthly data to the Director.  The data is used to identify actions to reduce 
further incidents by linking improvement actions identified in the CFA Integrated Risk 
Management Plan. 
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Action Plan – 2 issues identified – now completed 
ISS.2 Claims processing  
Finding  
Formal arrangements for authorising payments to be made from the self-insurance 
fund are not in place within CFA.  
 
Recommendation  
Arrangements should be established which ensure that formal authorisation is 
provided by the appropriate Authority Officer to make relevant payments from the Self 
Insurance Fund.  
 
Management Response 
While formal arrangements are already in place for authorising payments, which is 
currently carried out by the Director of Technical services, there is scope for further 
improvements to be made when the actual cost of repairs exceeds the amount 
authorised on the original estimate. Arrangements are to be put in place to refer back 
any variations from the original estimates for approval. 
 


Action completed March 2019 


 


ISS.3 Provision of relevant information 


Finding 


The authority is not provided with sufficient information as required under the Service 


Level Agreement. This includes: 


 An annual report of the performance of the Self Insurance Fund; 


 Notification of settlement of liability claims within 1 month 


 


Recommendation 


Sufficient information should be required to enable meaningful monitoring of claims 
by the Authority. This should include: 
 


 An annual report on the performance of the self-insurance fund; 


 Written notification of the completion of all liability claims, including the costs 


involved, within one month of settlement. 


Management Response  


An annual report is already provided showing the movement in the value of the self 
insured fund each year, which is required by 1st November each year under the 
terms of the contract. Additional arrangements have been put in place to strengthen 
the monitoring arrangements with a quarterly report from the insurers detailing the 
progress of claims. A detailed report on the self-insured fund has now been received, 
together with a separate report detailing claims to date. 
 


Action completed March 2019 
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FLEET MANAGEMENT 


Audit Status: Completed 
                       Satisfactory Assurance 


Actions:      None  


 
The overall opinion is that Satisfactory Assurance can be provided that the risks 
identified are well controlled. 
 
Scope  
Fleet Management are responsible for the scheduled and non-scheduled 
maintenance of the entire CFA fleet. A review was undertaken of the Fleet 
Management function in accordance with the Internal Audit 2018/19 Annual Plan. 
  
The aim of the audit was to provide assurance that the systems in place ensure that: 
  


 The needs of the organisation are effectively served and supported by it’s fleet 
assets; 


 Final accounts accurately reflect the value of fleet; 
 Fleet assets are maintained properly and checked regularly to ensure that they 


are in good condition and meet any legislative requirements; 
 Accurate and complete records are maintained in respect of fleet; 
 Data is secure from loss/harm; 
 Services to external bodies were also reviewed to ensure that they are cost 


effective and all costs incurred are recovered. 
 
Opinion  
This opinion is based on the result of work done completed in the following areas: 
 


Asset Recording                                              Resourcing Fleet 


Additions                                                         Disposals 


Maintenance                                                   Service Level Agreements 


Data Security                                                  Stores 


 
Action -  No issues at this time and all objectives achieved. 
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VAT 


Audit Status: Completed 
                       Satisfactory Assurance 


Actions:   No CFA actions  


 
The overall opinion is that Satisfactory Assurance can be provided that the risks 
identified are well controlled. 
 
Procedures  
Guidance is available to staff in the form of a VAT manual and Integra procedure 
notes. It was noted during the initial audit meeting that the VAT manual requires 
updating.  Responsibility for the administration of VAT is clearly defined and effective 
arrangements are in place for keeping up to date with changes in VAT legislation. 
 
Input/output Tax  
The Auditor reviewed and selected a sample of expense heads from the Master 
Code.  The auditor together with the Group Accountant (VAT) used the HMRC 
website to confirm the expense heads had the correct VAT rate attached, no issues 
found.   The Auditor was informed during the initial audit meeting that checks on 
amended sales invoices VAT rates has not been carried out during 18/19 due to low 
staff resources. The Auditor therefore completed testing on a selection of amended 
VAT invoices for both HBC & CFA. It was found that all 28 changes were reasonable 
and accurate.  
 
A sample of transactions where VAT was processed were selected for review, it was 
found that all had supporting VAT invoices on file.  The VAT element of debts written 
off or recovered after writing off are dealt with correctly and promptly. 
 
Non Business, exempt, partial exemption 
The Council do not actively monitor the partial exemption levels as there are no high 
value exempt capital schemes in place. This calculation can be produced by finance if 
needed by HMRC 
 
VAT Returns  
VAT returns are submitted monthly.  A reconciliation is undertaken to ensure that 
income is received as per amounts claimed.  The Auditor reviewed submissions for 
HBC & CFA for August, October and December, all submissions were promptly 
made.  Testing on submitted VAT returns for HBC and CFA for the above periods 
found that:  


ntegra;  


 


 


 


manner  
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Document Retention  
VAT returns and supporting documentation are primarily held on the share drive 
which is restricted to staff in finance. Printed documents are held on a file in the 
finance section which should only be accessible to finance staff. The financial ledger 
is where invoices and sales invoices are held, access is and amendments cannot be 
made to the scanned documents. There are also invoices held outside on Integra 
which are held on the shared drive in individual department’s i.e utilities 
 
Action Plan 
 
ISS1 – VAT Manual 
Finding 
The VAT manual requires reviewing and updating 
 
Risk 
Procedures may not promote efficient and effective operations and maximise cash 
flow for the organisation.  Responsibility for the administration of the VAT system may 
not be defined and ineffective arrangements may be in place for keeping up to date 
with changes in VAT legislation which may result in breach of legislation 
requirements.  
 
Management Response 
VAT manual to be updated by Hartlepool Borough Council by 31/10/2019.  No issues 
for Cleveland Fire Authority. 


 
 


PROCUREMENT (Cards) 


Audit Status: Completed 
                       Satisfactory Assurance 


Actions:      None  


 
We have been notified that the overall opinion is that Satisfactory Assurance can be 
provided that the risks identified are well controlled. 
 
Scope  
Currently awaiting report 
 
Opinion  
This opinion is based on the result of Work Done. 
 
Action -  No issues at this time and all objectives achieved. 
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CASH BANK RECONCILIATION 


Audit Status: Completed 
                       Satisfactory Assurance 


Actions:      None  


 
We have been notified that the overall opinion is that Satisfactory Assurance can be 
provided that the risks identified are well controlled. 
 
Scope  
Currently awaiting report 
 
Opinion  
This opinion is based on the result of Work Done. 
 
Action -  No issues at this time and all objectives achieved. 


 
 
6. INTERNAL AUDIT PLAN 2019/2020 


 
In order that a comprehensive opinion on the Fire Authorities control environment can 
be given, the following audits will be undertaken in 2019/20 as resolved at the Audit 
and Governance meeting on 22 February 2019. 
 


Audit Area – 2019/20 Days 


Advice & Support 5 


Budgetary Control 5 


Cash/Bank Reconciliations 5 


Creditors 10 


Debtors 5 


Fraud Awareness 5 


Full Time Fire stations 5 


Health and Safety   5 


Information/Data Management 5 


National Fraud Initiative 5 


Officers Expenses 5 


Payroll 10 


Pensions 10 


Procurement 10 


Retained Firefighter Claims 5 


VAT  5 


Total 100 


 
The planned days for each audit are a guide to the estimated days required to 
complete individual pieces of work, and may vary dependent upon audit findings and 
the testing required to give a meaningful opinion. Following discussions with HBC, the 
overall fee for delivering the audit plan at 100 days for 2019/20 is £29,668. 
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It is not possible to cover all auditable areas at the CFA in any one year. The table 
below details those areas that will not be covered in 2019/20, but will form part of the 
audit risk assessment in future years. 
 


Age Discrimination Act 


Asset Management 


Attendance Management 


Bribery Act 


Capital Grant 


Communication - Land Lines 


Communication - Mobile Phones 


Complaints Procedure 


Contract Audit 


Corporate Manslaughter Act 


Data Quality – DPA 


Data Quality – FoI  


Disclosure and Barring Scheme (Safer Recruitment) 


Disabled Discrimination Act 


Early Retirement/Voluntary Redundancy Procedures 


Employees Registers of Interest/Gifts and Hospitalities 


Energy Management 


Ethics Review 


Fleet Management 


Grant Administration 


HR/Payroll System 


Income 


Insurances 


Inventories 


IT Management 


Officers Expenses 


Part Time Fire Stations 


Partnerships  


Performance Management Systems/BVPI's 


Public Interest Disclosure Act 


Proceeds of Crime Act 


Recruitment, Selection and Retention 


Risk Management 


Scheme of Delegation 


Stores 


Sustainability 


Training School 


 


 
IAN HAYTON     KAREN WINTER 
CHIEF FIRE OFFICER    DIRECTOR OF CORPORATE SERVICES 
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Purpose 


 


The following document is the Corporate Risk Register for Cleveland Fire Authority.  This details the strategic risks facing the Authority in achieving its vision 


and strategic goals.  


 


In order to identify the all of the strategic risks facing Cleveland Fire Authority the contents of this document should be considered alongside the Cleveland 


Community Risk Register that is produces and maintained by the Local Resilience Forum in conjunction with partners agencies within the Cleveland Area and 


the National Risk Register.  


 


The Corporate Risk Register details contains the risks  and associated mitigating actions specific  to Cleveland Fire Authority.  


 


For further details contact: 


Cleveland Fire Brigade  


Risk and Performance Division 


Endeavour House 


Training & Administration Hub 


Queens Meadow Business Park 


Hartlepool, TS25 5TH    


Email tgraham@Clevelandfire.gov.uk 


 


 


 


 


 


 



mailto:tgraham@Clevelandfire.gov.uk
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Business Objectives Corporate Risk Register 
Completed By: 


 
Head of Risk and 
Performance 


Date : April  2019 


Risk No. Risk  


Assessment of Risk 


Risk Control Measures 


Assessment of Risk 


Im
p


a
c


t 


L
ik


e
li


h
o


o
d


 


L
e


a
d


 


Im
p


a
c


t 


L
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e
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h
o


o
d


 


 


Im
p


a
c


t 


L
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e
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h
o


o
d


 


  Original Risk   Current Risk 
 


Residual Risk 


Political Associated with the failure to deliver either local or central government policy 


2019/20 


CR-PO1 


Fire and Rescue Reform Program : Efficiency 


and Collaboration: 


 


Failure to address the Government’s efficiency 


and collaboration reform agenda may result in 


lost opportunities to deliver the most efficient, 


effective and sustainable services. 


3 3 


CFO 


 


 ESMCP: Collaboration with NEFRS (UOR 9) 


 Fleet Workshops : Collaboration with Police 


 Fleet Workshops : Collaboration with NEAS 


 Integrated Community Safety Teams with Police 


 UOR1: Review Operational Whole-time Duty System 


 UOR2: Review Flexi-Duty System 


 UOR3: Implement control room proposal 


 UOR4: Incident Command Unit Operational 


Arrangements 


 UOR7: Multi-Agency Incident Command Support 


 UOR8: Review the outcomes of the national and local 


emergency medical responder project evaluations and 


determine the future of the scheme in Teesside 


 UOR11: Conduct a review of the recruitment, pay and 


contracts; and availability of retained duty system 


firefighters 


 UOR 14: Explore Collaborative Opportunities for 


Enabling Services with Cleveland Police 


 UOR20: Investigate the benefits and implications of 24 


hour working within the Brigade 


 UOR 24: Review of Pension  Administration and Pension 


payroll Services 


 UOR 26: Review of Occupational Health Services 


 UOR 27:Review of Financial Services 


 


2 3 
 


2 1 


9 


High 


6  


Medium 


2 


Low 
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2019/20 


CR-PO2 


Fire and Rescue Reform Program : 


Accountability and Transparency: 


 


Failure to address the Government’s 


accountability and transparency reform 


programme may result in lost opportunities to 


deliver the most efficient, effective and 


sustainable services and reputational damage. 


 


3 3 


CFO 


 Performance framework including professional standards 


 Community engagement 


 Integrate Assurance and Performance Frameworks 


 Review content of External website 


 SSC1: Aspire to the guiding principle that ‘everyone 


should have equal entitlement to the same attendance 


targets for fire engines, irrespective of whether they live 


in a geographic area in which there is a higher likelihood 


or a lower likelihood of a fire occurring’ and implement 


the outcomes of the review of the emergency response 


standards 


 SSC2: Introduce an optimum emergency response 


resource of 18 fire appliances 


 SSC3: Introduce a ‘strategic reserve’ to sustain the 


optimum operational configuration of 18 fire appliances 


 SSC4: Consider the implications of the outcomes from 


Grenfell public enquiry 


 SSC5: Develop and Implement our Community 


Engagement Strategy 


3 3  2 1 


9 


High 


9 


High 


2 


Low 
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2019/20 


CR-PO3 


Fire and Rescue Reform Program : Workforce 


Reform: 


 


Failure to address the Government’s workforce 


reform programme may result in lost 


opportunities to deliver the most efficient, 


effective and sustainable services and 


reputational damage. 


3 3 


CFO 


 PIW1: Leadership and Management 


 PIW2: Implement the Authority’s Equality, Diversity and 


Inclusion (EDI) Strategy 


 PIW3: Workforce Planning 


 PIW4: Inclusive Culture 


 UOR1: Review Operational Whole-time Duty System 


 UOR2: Review Flexi-Duty System 


 UOR3: Implement control room proposal 


 UOR4: Incident Command Unit Operational 


Arrangements 


 UOR7: Multi-Agency Incident Command Support 


 UOR11: Conduct a review of the recruitment, pay and 


contracts; and availability of retained duty system 


firefighters 


 UOR 14: Explore Collaborative Opportunities for 


Enabling Services with Cleveland Police 


 UOR20: Investigate the benefits and implications of 24 


hour working within the Brigade 


3 3 


 


2 1 


9 


High 


9 


High 


2 


Low 


2019/20 


CR-PO4 


 


Reputational Damage: 


  


Outcomes and publicity from current and recent 


high profile official inquiries and reviews 


involving the fire sector may impact on the 


reputation and public confidence of Cleveland 


Fire Brigade thus preventing the Brigade in 


discharging its duties efficiently and effectively. 


4 3 


CFO 


 Impact review ‘Independent Review of Conditions of 


Service for Fire and Rescue Staff in England’ by Adrian 


Thomas 


 Impact review ‘Building a Safer Future – Independent 


Review of Building Regulations and Fire Safety’ – Dame 


Judith Hackitt DBE FREng 


 Impact review ‘The Kerslake Report: An Independent 


Review into the Preparedness for, and Emergency 


Response to, the Manchester Arena attack on 22nd May 


2017’ 


 Impact review ‘Statutory Inspection of Avon Fire and 


Rescue Authority’ 


 Review and monitor impact of HMICFRS Tranche1 


inspection outcome reports.  


 Review and monitor impact of HMICFRS Public 


Perception report. 


 SSC4: Consider the implications of the outcomes from 


Grenfell public enquiry  


 SSC6: Assess the Impact of the Potential Introduction of 


the ‘Broadening Role’ to the Fire and Rescue Sector 


 


4 2 
 


4 1 


12 


High 


 


8  


Medium 


4 


Low 
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2019/20 


CR-PO5 


 


Brexit:   


 
The outcomes of the Governments negotiations 


with the EU in relation to Brexit   may result in 


an adverse impact on the Brigade to deliver its 


duties effectively. 


3 3 


CFO 


 Review Government Briefing papers for a No Deal Brexit 


and complete high level impact assessments. 


 Liaison with  Local Resilience Forum, Local Authorities 


and NFCC on potential impacts 


 Maintain Brexit Impact Analysis  and associated action 


plan for the Brigade 


 Membership of Cleveland Local Resilience Forum Brexit 


Sub Group 


 


3 3 
 


1 3 


9 


High 


9 


High 


3 


Low 


 


 


 


Economic 
Affecting the ability of the organisation to meet its financial commitments including internal budgetary pressures and provision of adequate 


insurance cover 


2019/20 


CR-E01 


Capital Assets: 


 


Failure to implement the Authority’s asset 


management plan will result in a poor condition 


of assets and associated significant additional 


costs in relation to backlog and future repairs 


and maintenance, adding to the Brigade’s 


existing financial pressures. 


3 4 


DTS 


 ER3(iii) Build a New Fire Station at Thornaby 


 ER3(iv) Build a New Fire Station at Grangetown 


 ER3(v) Refurbish Stranton Fire Station 


 Complete Queen’s Meadow Complex (UOR18a) 


 Refurbish Stockton Fire Station (UOR18b) 


 Refurbish Guisborough Fire Station (UOR18c) 


 Refurbish Loftus Fire Station (UOR18d) 


 Review and refresh Asset Management Plan 


 


3 2 


 


2 2 


12 


High 


6  


Medium  


 


4 


Low 
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2019/20 


CR-E02 


Financial Pressures: 


 


Year on year significant reductions in 


Government grant, capping on council tax 


increases, the introduction of new business rate 


retention scheme, higher than expected pay 


increases and unforeseen expenditure 


increases may negatively impact the 


sustainability of future services. 


4 4 


 


DCS 


 


 Prepare for the implementation of the outcomes of the 


Control Room review (UOR3) 


 Implement alternative staffing model for the Incident 


command Unit (UOR4) 


 Prepare for the implementation  of 4 riders per 


appliance  to all fire appliances (UOR5) 


 Implement incident command and principal officer 


cover (UOR6) 


 UOR1: Review Operational Whole-time Duty System 


 UOR2: Review Flexi-Duty System 


 UOR3: Implement Control Room proposal 


 UOR4: Incident Command Unit Operational 


Arrangements 


 UOR 10: In light of Forecasted Medium Term Financial 


Strategy Undertake an Interim Review of CIRMP 


 UOR 14: Explore Collaborative Opportunities for 


Enabling Services with Cleveland Police 


 UOR19: Revenue Budget 2019/20 


 UOR21: Continue to develop our trading company to 


generate commercial revenues 


3 4  3 3 


16 


High 


12 


High 
 


9 


High 


 
 


Social 
Relating to the effects of changes in demographic, residential or socio-economic trends on the organisation’s ability to deliver its 


objectives 


2019/20 


CR-S01 


Vulnerability: 


 
Increases in the levels of vulnerabilities within 


our communities may result in increased service 


demand. 


4 3 


AMP 


 


 Produce annual Community Risk profile 


 Develop Information sharing protocols  for sharing VP 


Information 


 Review and update Safeguarding procedures (SSC15) 


 SSC5: Develop and Implement our Community 


Engagement Strategy 


 PIW2: Implement the Authority’s Equality, Diversity and 


Inclusion (EDI) Strategy 


 SSC10  Implement Community Safety Strategy   


 


 


3 2 
 


2  2 


12 


High 


6 


Medium 


 


4 


Low 
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2019/20 


CR-S02 


Community Engagement:  


 


Better understanding of community 


requirements may result in improved service 


provision. 


3 3 


AMP 


 Develop and Implement Community engagement 


strategy (SSC5) 


 Conduct stakeholder consultation on CIRMP 2018-22 


 Analyse outcomes and findings from HMICFRS Public 


Perception Report  


 PIW2: Implement the Authority’s Equality, Diversity and 


Inclusion (EDI) Strategy 


 


3 3  2 1 


9 


High 


9  


High 


2  


Low 


 


 


 


Technological 
Associated with the capacity of the organisation to deal with the pace and scale of technological change, or its ability to address changing 


demands.  Also includes the consequences of internal technological failures  


2019/20 


CR-T01 


Emergency Services Mobile Communication 


Program (ESMCP): 


 


Failure to meet the ESMCP national project 


milestones may result in delays to the Brigade’s 


switch over to the new ESN communication 


facility 


4 4 


DTS 


 Emergency Services Mobile Communications 


Programme Strategy 


 Preparation and implementation of clear local plans 


that are appropriately resourced. 


 Engagement with ESMCP Regional Implementation 


Managers. 


 ESMCP: Collaboration with North East Fire and 


Rescue Services (UOR 9) 


 


3 3 
 


2 1 


16 


High 


9  


High 


2 


Low 
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Legislative Associated with current or potential changes in national or European Law 


2019/20 


CR-L01 


The Policing and Crime Act: 


 


Failure to address the statutory requirements of 


the Policing and Crime Act may result in lost 


opportunities to deliver the most efficient, 


effective and sustainable services. 


4 3 


CFO 


 ESMCP: Collaboration with NEFRS 


 Community Safety Services: Collaboration with 


Cleveland Police 


 Tackling Vulnerability/Building Resilience: 


Collaboration with NHS 


 Fleet Workshops : Collaboration with Police 


 Procurement of ICT System using police framework 


 PCC Information Sharing 


 Integrated Community Safety Teams with Police  


 UOR4: Incident Command Unit Operational 


Arrangements 


 UOR7: Multi-Agency Incident Command Support 


 UOR 14: Explore Collaborative Opportunities for 


Enabling Services with Cleveland Police 


 


4 2  2 1 


12 


High 


8 


 Medium 


2 


Low 


 
 


Environmental Relating to the environmental consequences of progressing the organisation’s strategic objectives, e.g. Pollution and emissions 


  


  


  


  


 


  


   


 


Competitive Affecting the competitiveness of the service, in terms of cost and quality, including its ability to deliver best value 
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Customer Associated with failure to meet the current and changing needs and expectations of the community 


  


  


 


      


   


 
 


 


 
New and Emerging Risks  


  


  


  


     


   


 
 


 


 
Redundant and Deleted Risks  


2019/20 


CR-E03 


Pension Fund Shortfall:   


A pension fund shortfall arising from the public 


sector pension actuarial review may lead to an 


unfunded increase in employer contributions 


which may negatively impact the sustainability of 


future services 


 


  


 Risk Integrated into Risk E02 Financial Pressures 


     


    


2019/20 


CR-T02 


Cyber Security: 


 


Cyber-attacks on the Brigades IT infrastructure 


and network may prevent the Brigade  


discharging its duties effectively 


  


 Risk Deleted 


     


  


 


 


2019/20 


CR-L02 


General Data Protection Regulations: 


 


Failure to comply with GDPR legislation may 


lead to severe financial penalties 


  


 Risk Deleted 
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Definitions 
 
Original Risk: Original assessed level of risk when item was identified and included within the risk register 
 
Current Risk: Risk level at time of review taking into account the number and extent that the risk control measures have been implemented 
 
Target Risk: Anticipated risk level   when all identified risk control measures have been implemented successfully 
 
Key 
 
Grey Text:  Actions that have been completed and implemented successfully 
 
Black Text:  Actions that are in process of implementation or still to be implemented 
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OFFICIAL 1 
 


 
REVIEW OF THE CORPORATE RISK REGISTER 


 


REPORT OF THE CHIEF FIRE OFFICER  


 
 
  
 
 


 


   


 
 
1. PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 
1.1 To review the Cleveland Fire Authority’s Corporate Risk Register as attached at 


Appendix 1. 
 
 
2. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 


 2.1 That Members note Cleveland Fire Authority’s Corporate Risk Register, as attached 
at Appendix 1. 


 
 
3.  BACKGROUND 


 
3.1  Cleveland Fire Authority has a duty under the Local Government Act 1999 to make 


arrangements to secure continuous improvement in the way in which its functions 
are exercised, having regard to a combination of economy, efficiency and 
effectiveness, thereby implementing the principles and responsibilities of effective 
corporate governance arrangements. 
 


3.2 In discharging these responsibilities, the Authority is responsible for ensuring that 
there is a sound system of internal control including robust arrangements for the 
identification, assessment and management of risk. 
 


3.3  The system of internal control is designed to manage risk efficiently, effectively and 
economically to an acceptable and reasonable level and thus contribute in the 
achievement of the Authorities vision. The risk management process is designed to 
identify, assess and evaluate the risks and allow actions to be implemented that will 
minimise the likelihood of the risk occurring or if the risk does occur to minimise its 
impact. 


 
3.4  The Authority has approved a risk management framework consisting of a policy, a 


detailed procedure, a risk management toolkit, a suite of risk registers and a 
detailed Community Risk Profile underpinned by a suite of risk assessments. This 
framework was approved by Members in 2018 and then communicated to all 
managers and staff. 


 


For Information 
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3.5 The Corporate Risk Register (CRR) is the tool used to identify the strategic threats 
and risks to the achievement of the Authority’s vision. It evaluates the risk and 
summarises the control measures identified to reduce these risks. The CRR 
therefore informs the strategic and financial planning processes of the Brigade. 


 
3.6 The Authority’s current Corporate Risk Register is maintained dynamically, however 


on a regular basis there is a full review of the register which further strengthens the 
Authority’s governance arrangements. 


 
 
4 CORPORATE RISK REGISTER 
 
4.1  The approved Corporate Risk Register is regularly reviewed to ensure it reflects the 


current situation regarding existing and potential risks the Brigade could face.  
 
4.2 In April 2019 a full review of the Corporate Risk Register was undertaken by the 


Corporate Sounding Board, a forum that is made up of the Executive Leadership 
Team and all middle managers in the Brigade. 


 
4.3 The outcome of the review has resulted in a number of changes to the Corporate 


Risk Register.  
 
4.4 In summary the changes to the Corporate Risk Register are; 
 


o New and Emerging Risks: None 
 


o Changes to existing Risks:  
 


 Risk 2019/20 CR-E03 Pension Fund Shortfall: Integrated into Risk E02 
Financial Pressures 


  
o Risks to be Deleted from CRR:  


 
 2019/20 CR-T02 : Cyber Security – Transferred to Directorate Risk 


Register: 
 
 2019/20 CR-L02: General Data Protection Regulations- Transferred to 


Directorate Risk Register 
 


o Risk Mitigating Actions: 
 
A number of new actions to mitigate the likelihood and / or impact of the 
identified risks have been identified. These are aligned to the corporate and 
annual priorities for 2019/20 as detailed within the Service Plan 2019/20. 


 
4.5 These changes have been incorporated into the body of the Corporate Risk 


Register attached as Appendix 1. 
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4.6 The Director of Corporate Services will ensure that the Corporate Risk Register is 


monitored through the approved risk management arrangements. Specifically this 
involves submitting it for information to the Audit and Governance Committee on a 
regular basis and that the Committee will report to the Authority any matters it 
deems to be of a significant nature. 
 
  


 
 
 


IAN HAYTON                                            KAREN WINTER 
CHIEF FIRE OFFICER      DIRECTOR OF CORPORATE SERVICES 
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SECTION 2: Narrative Report 


INTRODUCTION 


The narrative report aims to provide information so that members of the public, Authority Members, partners, 
stakeholders and other interested parties are able to have: 


 A full and understandable explanation of the overarching financial position of the Authority and the outturn 
for 2018/19; 


 Confidence that the public money with which the Authority has been entrusted has been used and 
accounted for in an appropriate manner; 


 Assurance that the financial position of the Authority is sound and secure. 


This narrative report provides information about the Authority, including the key issues affecting the Authority and 
its accounts.  It also provides a summary of the financial position at 31 March 2019 and is structured as below: 


 Our Operating Context 
 Our Strategy and Objectives 


 Our Performance 
 Our Governance and Decision Making 
 Our Organisational Model 
 Our Risk Management Arrangements 


 Financial Performance 2018/19 
 Financial Outlook 2019/20 to 2020/21 
 Borrowing Facilities and Investment Strategy 
 Pensions  
 Statement of Accounts 


 


OUR OPERATING CONTEXT 


Cleveland Fire Brigade is located in north east England and provides services to a small area containing the four 
boroughs of Hartlepool, Middlesbrough, Redcar and Cleveland and Stockton. The area is 231 square miles with a 


population of 566,1501, occupying 249,2212 dwellings. It is the seventh most densely populated fire authority area 
in England with only the Metropolitan Fire & Rescue Services (FRSs) being more densely populated. Teesside is 


home to 15,7193 industrial and commercial premises. 
  
We have 30 Top Tier Control of Major Accident Hazard (COMAH) sites located in the area which account for 9% of 
the national number of COMAH sites. Some of our dwellings are in extremely close proximity to these high hazard 
industries thereby making the risks they face more unique. 
 
Teesport handles over 5,000 vessels and 40 million tonnes of cargo a year, making it one of the largest UK ports 
in terms of tonnage4. 


We have 5 power stations (1 nuclear fuelled and 4 bio-mass fuelled), 7 solar powered energy farms, 12 onshore 


and 1 offshore windfarm; and two bio-mass (wood pellets) power stations are being constructed at Port Clarence 
and Tees Port to produce electricity for the national grid. The demand to build renewable energy sources is 
expected to grow as Tees Valley has been awarded UK Government Care Status as a Centre for Offshore 


Renewable Engineering5.  
 
Like the majority of UK FRSs we have an extensive network of road and rail but due to the nature of commerce in 
Teesside our transportation conveys many significant hazards. Where the A19 crosses the Tees it carries over 


96,000 vehicles per day which is 123% more than the number of vehicles using the A1M at the equivalent point. 
 
Teesside shares many inner city type problems that are a key feature of the UK’s Metropolitan areas such as older 
nineteenth century low cost housing (terraced), derelict land, high unemployment, congestion, high density of 
buildings and narrow roadways – not fit for modern usage.  


Our 79 wards include the 2nd most deprived ward nationally (North Ormseby) with 38% (30) falling within the 
10% most deprived wards nationally. 41% of the area’s population reside in the most (10%) deprived wards with 
more than half of the population (57%) living in wards that are in the 20% most deprived wards nationally. Over a 


third of our dwellings are social housing with almost two thirds of households in council tax bands A or B compared 
to less than half nationally and all four boroughs have a higher proportion of children living in low income families 


than the average for England and Wales.   
 


                                                           
1
 ONS Mid-Term Estimates 2017 


2 https://www.gov.uk/government/statistics/council-taxbase-2016-in-England 
3 CFB, CFRMIS 
4 http://www.pdports.co.uk/en/our-locations/teesport/ 
5 Investment inTees Valley, 2016. https://teesvalley-ca.gov.uk 
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SECTION 2: Narrative Report 


The crime rate in the Cleveland Police area is 101 per 1,000 households compared to the national average of 78. 
The only two Police areas to experience higher rates of crime than Cleveland are Greater Manchester (122) and 


West Yorkshire (116)6.  There are high levels of antisocial behaviour and deliberate fires, with Cleveland suffering 
from the highest arson rates in the country. This is reflected in attacks that our firefighters have been subjected to 
whilst responding to operational incidents. Over the five years up to 2017/18 the Brigade’s personnel suffered 
more than double the national average of attacks (2017/18 – 20.7 nationally compared to 46 for Cleveland Fire 
Brigade).  


 
Risk factors such as, deprivation, poor health and life expectancy is significantly lower than the England average 
and 29.1% of the population in the area are classed as disabled or having long term health issues, low education 
attainment (lower than the England average); high unemployment (higher than the national average) and limited 


opportunity for social mobility, play a key part in the composition of our area with research demonstrating that 
higher deprived areas have higher risk from fire. 
 


Full details of our operating environment are set out in our Community Risk Profile document available from our 
website7.   


 


OUR STRATEGY AND OBJECTIVES  


Our vision is that we have built a sustainable future and: 


 
 made a positive difference to the safety and quality of life of every local citizen; and the places where they 


live and work; 


 
 delivered services by people who are professional, proud and passionate; 


 


 are nationally recognised as being high performing and innovative; and internationally renowned for being 


able to reduce risk in business, industry and the home. 


 
 


 
Our vision is underpinned by three strategic goals, 8 


strategic objectives and 17 strategic outcomes, as set out in 


our Community Integrated Risk Management Plan (CIRMP) 


2018-2022. 


 


The CIRMP sets out the strategic direction, the assessment 


of risks faced by the Brigade, our financial position and the 


intended deployment of resources over the medium term to 


address the identified risks.


                                                           
6
http://www.ons.gov.uk/peoplepolulationandcommunity/crimeandjustice/datasets/policeforceareadatatablesyearendingMarch2017 


7
https://www.clevelandfire.gov.uk/download/community-risk-profile/ 
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OUR GOVERNANCE AND DECISION MAKING 


Cleveland Fire Authority has a duty under the Local Government Act 1999 to conduct business in accordance with 
the law ensuring public money is safeguarded, properly accounted for and used economically, efficiently and 
effectively. We are committed to the highest standards of conduct and have robust controls over the use of 
resources, based on open decision making, accountability and transparency. 


The Brigade takes decisions every day that impacts businesses, our residents and visitors to our area.  Our 
Constitution details how decisions are made and the procedures which are followed to ensure that these are 
efficient, transparent and accountable to local people.   


The most significant decisions relating to our plans and strategies, such as setting and agreeing the CIRMP, setting 
the budget and Council Tax level, are taken by the Cleveland Fire Authority. Other decisions are delegated to the 


Executive Committee with operational management decisions, as well as decisions in respect of functions which 
require professional officer training and skills, delegated to Officers in accordance with our approved scheme of 
delegation 


In 2018/19 Cleveland Fire Authority was made up of 16 Elected Members from the four councils of Hartlepool, 
Middlesbrough, Redcar & Cleveland and Stockton in the Authority Area. The membership from each of the four 
Councils is based on their population and is politically balanced to reflect the make-up of the Councils. In 2018/19 
the membership was;  
 


Hartlepool 3 Members  2 Labour, 1 Conservative 


Middlesbrough 4 Members 3 Labour, 1 Independent  


Redcar & Cleveland  4 Members 
2 Labour, 1 Conservative,  
1 Liberal Democrat 


Stockton 5 Members 
3 Labour, 1 Conservative,  
1 Ingleby Barwick Independent Society 


 
 
Our governance framework comprises systems, processes, culture and values by which the Authority directs and 
controls its activities through which it is accountable for and engages with the community.  The Authority has 
approved and adopted a code of corporate governance which encompasses the guidance and best practice outlined in 
the “Delivering Good Governance in Local Government Framework’ (2016 edition) which is published by CIPFA and 
SOLACE.   


 
Corporate governance services are provided to the Fire Authority through the role of a Legal Adviser/Monitoring 
Officer and a SLA with Hartlepool Borough Council for the provision of a financial governance function that includes 
the role of the Treasurer and an internal audit function.  


 
Our commissioned Internal Audit function provides challenge and assurance over the effectiveness of our risk 
management, internal control and governance arrangements. The function supports, provides advice and 


challenge management to assist the development of robust systems of control, policies and procedures to ensure 
the best use of resources. They cannot eliminate all risk of failure to achieve policies, aims and objectives and can 
therefore only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance of effectiveness.  


Our External Auditors (Mazars) place reliance on the work of our Internal Audit function.  Internal Audit carries out 
its role in compliance with Public Sector Internal Audit Standards.  Our Annual Governance Statement reviews the 
extent to which the Authority has complied with its code of corporate governance and also meets the requirements 
of the Accounts and Audit (England) Regulations 2015, which requires the Authority to conduct a review at least 
once a year of the effectiveness of its system of internal control and include a statement reporting on the review 


within the statement of accounts. The outcome of the annual review is incorporated within our Performance 
Management arrangements and is reported to Elected Members of the Audit and Governance Committee. 


OUR ORGANISATIONAL MODEL 


The Chief Fire Officer is responsible for the achievement of the Authority's Strategic Goals through the delivery of 
strategies and plans by people within his three Directorates 


 
 
 
 
 


6







 
 


SECTION 2: Narrative Report 


Community Protection Directorate 


Our public facing and frontline service delivery Directorate that co-ordinates and delivers our Prevention, 
Protection, Emergency Response and National Resilience services and functions.  
 
Corporate Services Directorate 


The directorate that delivers our corporate enabling services that support the CFA and other Directorates in 
delivering their duties. Services include Democratic Services, Finance (including creditor payments and payroll), 
Procurement, Human Resources, Performance and Risk Management. 
 
Technical Services Directorate 
The directorate that delivers our technical enabling services that support all Directorates in delivering their duties. 
Services include Health & Safety, Fleet, ICT, Workshops, Stores and Buildings including delivery of our Estates 


Rebuild and refurbishment program.  
 
Our frontline services are co-ordinated and delivered from Community Safety District Hubs and 14 strategically placed 
Community Fire Stations. Delivery of services is through a balanced strategy of prevention, protection and emergency 


response. 
 
 Prevention work takes many forms, from home fire safety visits, safe and well visits, marketing, advice and 


education through to involving the community in helping to design and deliver our services. 
 


 Protection activities involve advising individuals and businesses on how to keep safe and their risk management 
responsibilities, so that buildings are safer. In addition fire safety regulations are enforced where necessary. 
 


 Where and when emergency incidents still occur, they are responded to using modern methods, appliances and 


equipment. The Brigade operates one of the most stringent emergency response standards nationally and the 
latest information indicates that the Brigade has the fastest average actual response times to primary fire incidents 
in the country.  
 


The Government's aim is to reduce the risk from major emergencies such as natural disasters or terrorist attacks 


so that people can go about their business freely and with the confidence that the UK is equipped to deal with such 
incidents. The Brigade plays an integral part in ensuring National Resilience and is 100% compliant with the 


Governments requirements in supporting national resilience. We are an active member and maintain strong links 
with other category 1 responders through the Cleveland Local Resilience Forum 


OUR RISK MANAGEMENT ARRANGEMENTS 


The National Framework for Fire and Rescue Services in England (2018) identifies and places a number of 
requirements on all Fire Rescue Authority’s to comply with, one of which being;  


‘Identify and assess the full range of foreseeable fire and rescue related risks their area face’ 


Our Community Integrated Risk Management Plan (CIRMP) sets out the strategic direction, summarises 
assessment of risks faced by the Brigade, our financial position and the intended deployment of resources over the 
medium term to address the identified risks. 


 


The Authority area and its communities face a complex profile of risks and thus we have for a long time recognised the 
need for, and reaped the benefits from having effective and robust Risk Management arrangements that ensure the 
safety of our workforce, residents and businesses within the Brigade’s area.   


Based on our operating environment, historical incidents data and information from a multitude of other sources 
(internal and external to the Brigade) we develop a Community Risk Profile that identifies and assesses the risks facing 
the Brigade and classifies them in the following groups;  


 The built environment  
 The transport infrastructure serving the area  
 The industry within our area  
 Neighbourhoods and the environment  


 National Resilience  
 Community Health and Well Being  
 


Each of the identified risk groups is assessed against the likelihood of the event occurring and the associated 
consequences/impacts if it does occur. Our assessment looks to identify who/what is at risk, when they are at risk 
and where they are at risk. The assessment includes an assessment of risk in terms of: 


 People (Community) safety 
 Firefighter safety 
 Property 


 Heritage  
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 Environment 


 Value for Money 
 
This information is provided at a detailed level within our available Community Risk Profile and is underpinned by a 
suite of detailed risk assessments that are refreshed on an annual basis.  


Our Corporate Risks are identified and addressed through our Corporate Risk Register (CRR) that articulates and 
quantifies each individual risk. Risks are scored in the context of the likelihood and impact of the risks. Control 


measures are identified to address the risks and the CRR is reviewed at regular points during the year. 
  
To ensure our risk management governance arrangements remain effective and efficient, the Brigade benchmarks 
and assesses arrangements on an annual basis through ALARM (The Public Risk Management Association) and 
CIPFA (The Chartered Institute of Public Finance Accountancy).  
 
We ensure that we regularly review all of our risks to provide assurance that our management of risk is effective. 


 


FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE 2018/19 


The Authority spends money on a wide range of services to promote fire safety, protect people and property from 
fire, rescue people from road traffic collisions, deal with other emergencies such as flooding or terrorist attack, 
work with other organisations to develop and implement emergency and business continuity plans. This spending 


can be Revenue on day to day running costs such as staffing, purchasing goods/services from third parties and 
utilities; or Capital on assets which are used for service delivery over a longer period, such as buildings and 
operational vehicles. 


The following sections provide more detail about the Authority’s financial position. 


 
2018/19 Approved Revenue Budget  


The Authority prepared a four year financial strategy covering 2016/17 to 2019/20, which provided the financial 


planning limits for our Community Integrated Risk Management Plan. This is the same period covered by the four 
year grant settlement provided by the Government.  In relation to 2018/19 the financial strategy reflected a 
further reduction in the amount of Government funding received by the Authority of £0.466m, a reduction of 
3.5%.  This was the eighth successive annual reduction in Government funding. 
 
The system operated up to 2010/11 by the Government for allocating funding to individual Fire and Rescue 


Authorities reflected the needs of each area and the ability to raise income locally from Council Tax.    However, 
over the last eight years these factors have not been recognised to the same extent.  As a result, the Authority 
has suffered disproportionate spending power cuts owing to Government funding reductions.  Further changes to 
the national funding system were made in 2013/14 and the Government funding received by the Authority in 
2018/19 is £5.7m less than in 2013/14; which is a reduction of 30%. 
 
In addition to the 2018/19 Government grant cut the Authority faced continuing inflation pressures and increased 


pay pressures arising from the unfunded national pay awards.  To address the resulting 2018/19 budget deficit of 


£1.504m, the Authority made budget cuts of £0.752m, built in additional Council Tax income from housing growth 
of £0.160m and allocated one off resources of £0.258m to provide a longer lead time to implement further budget 
reductions in 2019/20. 
 
To address the remaining deficit the Authority increased Council Tax by 2.9% in line with the Government’s 


Council Tax Referendum limit, which provided additional recurring funding of £0.334m.  
 
 
Revenue Budget 2018/19 – Actual Outturn  
 
In response to the Authority's ongoing financial challenges the Chief Fire Officer continued to carefully manage 
resources during 2018/19 and a year-end under spend of £0.801m was achieved.  This was slightly higher than 


the forecast underspend of £0.749m.   The underspend has been added to the Budget Support Fund reserves, 
which is earmarked to help manage the significant potential financial risks facing the Authority in 2020/21 and 
future years in relation to pay/non pay inflation and further potential Government grant cuts.    


 
Our Medium Term Financial Strategy, which was approved in February 2019, included a review of the Authority’s 
reserves and recognises that using one-off resources will not provide a permanent solution to address further 
recurring Government grant cuts and inflation pressures.  However, as funding for 2020/21 is uncertain, and will 


not be known until late 2019, our reserves strategy provides temporary financial flexibility to manage these 
potential financial risks.  
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The outturn position is summarised in the following table, which shows that in addition to the contribution to the 


Budget Support Fund we made the following contributions to specific reserves: 
 


 Levy Account Reserve contribution of £0.141m – this amount is the Authority’s share on one off Business 
Rates levy account funding distributed by the Government, which we have allocated to support the 


2019/20 budget; 
 


 Rephased Projects Reserve contribution of £0.335m – this is earmarked to fund projects delayed from 
2018/19 to 2019/20. 


 


 
 
 
Capital Expenditure 
 
Capital expenditure relates to spend on the purchase or improvement of assets that have a long-term value to the 
Authority and our residents, such as Community Fire Station and fire appliances.  
 
In 2018/19 total capital expenditure was £0.738m.  £0.251m of this was property expenditure, which included the 


completion of Queens Meadow Training Centre, Stranton Fire Station and Grangetown Fire Station.  £0.096m on 
the demolition of Grangetown Fire Station.  In-year expenditure also included the purchase of new vehicles at a 
cost of £0.022m, equipment of £0.141m and the construction of two water tenders at a cost of £0.228m.  These 


costs were funded from a combination of Capital Receipts £0.314m, Reserve contribution of £0.075m and use of 
£0.349m of the Capital Investment Programme Reserve. 
 


As at 31 March 2019, the Authority had rephased capital expenditure totalling £0.361m into 2019/20. This will be 
funded from the Capital Investment Programme £0.090m and the Capital Receipts Reserve £0.271m. 
 
 
 


Approved Actual Budget  
Budget Expenditure/ Variance 


(Income) Adverse /  
(Favourable) 


£'000 £'000 £'000 


22,371  21,270  (1,101) 
1,853  1,649  (204) 
2,211  2,550  339  


735  720  (15) 
369  412  43  
838  838  -   


(1,496) (1,615) (119) 
(143) (363) (220) 


(53) (53) -   
(442) (442) -   


-   141  141  
-   335  335  


Total 26,243 25,442 (801) 


The Authority's budget was funded from the following sources: 


  £'000 % 
Government Grant             5,718  21.8% 
Business Rates Top Up Grant             7,151  27.2% 
Total Government Grants           12,869  49.0% 


Income from Council Tax Precept           11,368  43.3% 
Income from Business Rates Baseline Funding             1,821  6.9% 
Collection Fund Surplus                185  0.7% 
Total Funding           26,243  100.0% 


Levy Account Reserve 
Rephased Projects Reserve 
 


 


Operational Costs 
Employee Costs 


Capital Financing Costs 


CIRMP Implementation Reserve 


Approved Budget 


Premises Costs 
Supplies & Services 
Transport Costs 
Support Services 


Income / Grants 
Section 31 Grant 
 
Contribution from Reserves 
Pension Reserve 


 
Contribution to Reserves 
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FINANCIAL OUTLOOK - REVENUE BUDGET 2019/20 to 2020/21   


 
The financial year 2019/20 is the final year of the current four year Government grant settlement and the 
Authority set a balanced budget for 2019/20.  However, this was only achieved through a combination of 
implementing further budget cuts of £0.671m and increasing Council Tax by 2.9%, which raised additional 


recurring income.  The Council Tax increase was slightly below the Government’s referendum limit of 3%. 
 
The financial outlook for 2020/21 is extremely uncertain and will be affected by:  
 


 decisions the Government makes in the next Spending Review, expected in 2019, which will determine the 
level of funding for individual Government departments, including the Home Office which allocates funding 
to Fire and Rescue Authorities; 


 
 proposed changes to the national funding formula used to distribute Government funding to Fire and 


Rescue Authorities. In 2019/20 the Authority will receive £12.552m of funding under these arrangements.  
This makes up 47% of the Authority’s resources, therefore the arrangements the Government implements 


in 2020/21 will be critical for the Authority;  
 


 the proposed increase in Business Rates income retained by Local Authorities and Fire and Rescue 


Authorities from 50% to 75%; 
 


 the level of future Council Tax referendum limits set by the Government; 
 


 the level of pay awards and the outcome of national negotiations regarding ‘broadening the role’ of 
firefighter and how the costs of any proposed changes are funded;  


 
 funding arrangements for the nationally determined increase in employers pension contributions for fire 


fighters implemented in April 2019, which increases the Authority’s recurring costs by £1.544m.  In 
2019/20 the Government has provided a one off grant to fund the majority of these costs and indicated 
that the position in relation to funding for 2020/21 will be considered as part of the next Spending Review.   


 
In response to the financial uncertainties and risks facing the Authority in 2020/21 a Budget Support Fund of 


£4.122m has been allocated to help manage these risks.  The Authority recognises that using one off funding is 
not a permanent solution to address recurring cuts in Government Funding or recurring expenditure pressures.  
However, as the position in relation to funding for 2020/21 may not be known until late in 2019, the Authority 
may need to use the Budget Support Fund to provide a slightly longer lead time to make further recurring budget 
reductions.    
 
The Authority has forecast a range of planning assumptions for 2020/21 to 2022/23 and instructed the Chief Fire 


Officer to develop a contingency savings plan to set out the impact of delivering further budget reductions of 
between £2.297m and £3.841m by the start of financial year 2022/23.  These reductions equate to between 8.5% 
and 14.3% of the 2019/20 budget. 
 
BORROWING FACILITIES AND INVESTMENT STRATEGY 
 


The Authority’s arrangements for borrowing accord with the approved Treasury Management Strategy, which was 
drawn up to comply with the Code of Practice for Treasury Management in Local Authorities published by the 
Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy. 
 
In accordance with this strategy the Authority has taken a proactive approach to managing cash investments and 
debt.  For a number of years the Authority has internalised borrowing by netting down borrowing against 
investments.  However interest rates have fallen to a historically low level, which the Authority has taken 


advantage of to secure financing in relation to business cases.  The Authority has also used these historically low 
rates to reduce interest rate risk in relation to some existing capital expenditure previously temporarily funded by 
internalising borrowing. 
 
The interest earned on Authority’s investments remained low during 2018/19, this has been mitigated by low 
interest costs on the Authority’s borrowings.  
 


PENSIONS  
 
The Authority has accounted for retirement benefits according to International Financial Reporting Standard (IFRS) 
IAS 19.  As at 31 March 2019 the Accounts showed that there was a deficit on the Pensions Reserve of £479.895m 
(£467.363m in 2017/18).  This was offset by a Pensions Liability of the same value. The Authority has separate 
pension arrangements for Fire Fighters and Other staff as outlined below.   
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Fire Fighter Pension Arrangements 


 
The Fire Fighters Pension Scheme is an unfunded scheme.  The Authority is required to maintain a separate Fire 
Fighters Pension Fund Account, details of which are provided in the Pension Fund Note. 
 


The Authority is required to make defined contributions to the Pension Account, currently 21.7% for Fire Fighters 
who are members of either the 1992 Pension Scheme or the Modified Pension Scheme, 11.9% for those who are 
members of the 2006 Pension Scheme and 14.3% for those who are members of the 2015 Pension Scheme.  The 
Authority must also make defined contributions in respect of Ill Health retirements. 
 
As these contributions, plus employee contributions, are less than payments made from the Authority’s Pensions 
Account the Government provides a specific grant to fund the resulting shortfall. 


 
Local Government Pension Scheme 
 
Pensions for other staff are provided through the Local Government Pension Scheme and the Authority is a 


member of the Teesside Pension Fund.  The statutory arrangements for this scheme mean that the IAS19 deficit 
does not need to be made good by increased pensions contributions from the Authority or employees.  A separate 
Pension Fund valuation is carried out every three years to determine the Authority’s contribution rate. The most 


recent Pension Fund Valuation set the employer’s contribution rate for the period 2017/18 to 2019/20 and resulted 
in a phased increase of 1.2%, plus annual lump sum payments over these three years totalling £0.160m. Provision 
for the additional cost has been made within the Authority’s budget plans. 
 
 
STATEMENTS OF ACCOUNTS 


 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement 
 
This statement shows the economic cost in the year of providing services in accordance with International 
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS), rather than the amount to be funded from taxation. Authorities raise 


taxation to cover expenditure in accordance with regulations; this may be different from the accounting cost.  The 
taxation position is shown in the Movement in Reserves Statement. 


 
Balance Sheet 
 
The Balance Sheet shows the value of the assets and liabilities at 31 March 2019. The net assets of the Authority 
(assets less liabilities) are matched by the reserves held by the Authority. Reserves are classified in two 
categories. The first category of reserves are usable reserves, i.e. those reserves that the Authority may use to 
provide services, subject to the need to maintain a prudent level of reserves and any statutory limitations on their 


use (for example the Capital Receipts Reserve that may only be used to fund capital expenditure or repay debt). 
The second category of reserves are those that the Authority is not able to use to provide services. This category 
of reserve includes reserves that hold unrealised gains and losses (for example the Revaluation Reserve), where 
amounts would only become available to provide services if the assets are sold; and reserves that hold timing 
differences shown in the Movement in Reserves Statement line 'Adjustments between accounting basis and 
funding basis under regulations.' 


 
The major movements on the Balance Sheet are as follows: 
 
Pension Reserve – the Authority’s unusable pension reserve has increased by £12.532m which is a result of 
revised actuarial revaluations. 
 
Short Term Investments – the Authority’s Short Term Investments have increased by £3.649m due to more of 


the Authority’s cash being invested at the end of 2018/19.  Consequently the Cash and Cash Equivalents has 
reduced by £1.336m. 
 
Short Term Debtors – the Authority’s Short Term Debtors have decreased by £1.302m.  The debtor for CLG 
Pension Top Up Grant Receivable was £1.108m less in 2018/19.  


 
 


Summary of the Authority’s Usable Reserves 
 


At the 31 March 2019 the Authority had reserves of £10.837m (£9.883m as at 31 March 2018), which consisted 
of the following amounts: 


- Earmarked Capital Reserves - £2.444m – these reserves are fully committed to supporting the approved 
Capital Investment Programme.   
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- Budget Support Fund - £4.122m – part of this reserve (£0.107m) will be used in 2019/20 to support the 


revenue budget.  The remaining £4.015m is earmarked to manage potential financial risks in 2020/21 and 
future years arising from a range of potential changes to future funding and the costs of providing services.  
There is also a risk that pay awards are higher than forecast, or an increase in employers pension 
contributions. 


 
- Earmarked Revenue Reserves - £2.719m – these reserves are fully committed to fund a range of one-off 


initiatives; 
 


- Unearmarked General Fund Reserve - £1.552m – the reserve is held to meet any unforeseen circumstances 
that may arise.  The value of this reserve reflects a risk assessment of potential financial risks facing the 
Authority and equates to approximately 6% of the Authority’s on-going revenue budget.  In view of the 


increasingly challenging financial position facing the Authority this level of uncommitted reserve is prudent. 
 


 


Analysis of Usable Reserves as at 31 March 2019 – Total £10.837m 


 


 
 
Unusable Reserves as at 31st March 2019 are £452.553m (£438.481m at 31st March 2018).  The movement 
in Unusable Reserves is shown in Note 23, with the increase in deficit largely attributable to the increase in 
the Pension Reserve.  This is owing to the revised actuarial valuation. 
  


Cash Flow Statement 
 


The Cash Flow Statement shows the changes in cash and cash equivalents of the Authority during the reporting 
period. The statement shows how the Authority generates and uses cash and cash equivalents by classifying cash 


flows as operating, investing and financing activities. The amount of net cash flows arising from operating 
activities is a key indicator of the extent to which the operations of the Authority are funded by way of taxation 


and grant income or from the recipients of services provided by the Authority. Investing activities represent the 
extent to which cash outflows have been made for resources which are intended to contribute to the Authority's 
future service delivery. Cash flows arising from financing activities are useful in predicting claims on future cash 
flows by providers of capital (i.e. borrowing) to the Authority. 
 


 


Unearmarked 
General Fund 


Balance £1.552m


Earmarked 
Capital Reserves 


£2.444m


Earmarked 
Revenue 
Reserves 


£2.719m


Budget Support 
Fund £4.122m
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Group Statement of Accounts 


The Group Financial Statements consolidate the performance and balances that relate to the Authority’s 
subsidiary, Cleveland Fire Brigade Risk Management Services Community Interest Company (CIC), into the 
Authority’s statements.  This allows the full picture of Group activities to be presented. 


Cleveland Fire Authority established Cleveland Fire Brigade Risk Management Services CIC in March 2011 under 
the Local Government Authorities (Power to Trade) Order (2009) to commercially trade. 


The Company commenced operating in 2011/12 and has increased turnover on an annual basis by securing 
additional contracts.  Details are shown in Section 5, Group Accounts. 


CHANGES IN AUTHORITY RESPONSIBILITIES 


There were no changes in the Authority’s statutory responsibilities during 2018/19. 


ACCOUNTING POLICIES 


The accounting policies adopted by the Authority comply, except where specific reference is made, with relevant 
recommended accounting practice. 


The Authority’s policies are explained fully on pages 19 to 29.  For the purpose of the Statement of Accounts the 
Authority’s expenditure follows the standard classification recommended by the Chartered Institute of Public 
Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) and the comparative figures for 2017/18 have been shown where appropriate. 


INSPECTION OF ACCOUNTS 


Members of the public have a statutory right to inspect the accounts before the audit is completed, question the 
auditor and make objections at audit.  The availability of the accounts for inspection was advertised on Cleveland 
Fire Authority website and in relation to the 2018/19 financial year the inspection period is 3 June 2019 to 12 July 
2019. 


 


 


 


Chris Little CPFA 
Treasurer to the Cleveland Fire Authority 
Date: 31 May 2019 
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SECTION 3: Statement of Responsibilities for the Statement of Accounts


The Fire Authority's Responsibilities


The Authority is required to:


•


•


•


Chair of Cleveland Fire Authority


Date:  


The Treasurer's Responsibilities


In preparing this Statement of Accounts, the Treasurer has:


• selected suitable accounting policies and then applied them consistently;


• made judgements and estimates that were reasonable and prudent; and


• complied with the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting.


The Treasurer has also:


• kept proper accounting records which were up-to-date; and


• taken reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.


Certification of the Accounts by the Treasurer


Chris Little CPFA


Treasurer to Cleveland Fire Authority


Date:


The Treasurer is responsible for the preparation of the Authority's Statement of Accounts in accordance with proper 


practices as set out in the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom ('the 


Code').


In accordance with the requirements of the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2016, I certify that the Statement of 


Accounts shows a true and fair view of the financial position of Cleveland Fire Authority at the accounting date and its 


income and expenditure for the year ended 31 March 2019.


make arrangements for the proper administration of its financial affairs and to secure that one of its officers has 


the responsibility for the administration of those affairs; in this Authority, that officer is the Treasurer;


manage its affairs to secure economic, efficient and effective use of resources and safeguard its assets; and


approve the Statement of Accounts.


I confirm that the Statement of Accounts were approved by the Cleveland Fire Authority at the meeting held on 26 July 


2019.


31 May 2019
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Movement in Reserves Statement for the year ended 31 March 2019


General 


Fund 


Balance


Earmarked 


General 


Fund 


Reserves


Earmarked 


Reserves 


Revenue and 


Capital


Capital 


Receipts 


Reserve


Total 


Usable 


Reserves


Unusable 


Reserves


Total 


Authority 


Reserves


£000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s


Balance at 31 March 2017 carried forward 1,552 3,535 7,677 -  12,764 (430,767) (418,003)


Movement in reserves during 2017/18


Surplus or (deficit) on provision of services (18,295) -  -  -  (18,295) -  (18,295)


Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
-  -  -  -  -  7,700 7,700 


Total Comprehensive Income and Expenditure


(18,295) -  -  -  (18,295) 7,700 (10,595)


Adjustments between accounting basis & funding 


basis under regulations


18,769 -  (3,619) 264 15,414 (15,414) -  


Net Increase/(Decrease) before Transfers to 


Earmarked Reserves


474 -  (3,619) 264 (2,881) (7,714) (10,595)


Transfers to/(from) Earmarked Reserves (474) 228 246 -  -  -  


Increase/(Decrease) in Year -  228 (3,373) 264 (2,881) (7,714) (10,595)


Balance at 31 March 2018 carried forward 1,552 3,763 4,304 264 9,883 (438,481) (428,598)


Movement in reserves during 2018/19


Surplus or (deficit) on provision of services (13,118) -  -  -  (13,118) -  (13,118)


Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure (7,863) -  -  -  (7,863) 7,863 -  


Total Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
(20,981) -  -  -  (20,981) 7,863 (13,118)


Adjustments between accounting basis & funding 


basis under regulations


22,353 -  (425) 7 21,935 (21,935) -  


Net Increase/(Decrease) before Transfers to 


Earmarked Reserves


1,372 -  (425) 7 954 (14,072) (13,118)


Transfers to/(from) Earmarked Reserves (1,372) 359 1,013 -  -  -  -  


Increase/(Decrease) in Year -  359 588 7 954 (14,072) (13,118)


Balance at 31 March 2018 carried forward 1,552 4,122 4,892 271 10,837 (452,553) (441,716)


For detail on Usable and Unusable Reserves see Notes 22 and 23.


For detail on Transfers to and from Earmarked Reserves see Note 5.
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2017/18 2018/19


Gross Gross Gross Gross


Expenditure Income Net Expenditure Income Net


£000s £000s £000s Continuing operations: £000s £000s £000s Note


25,155 -  25,155 Employee Costs 28,540 -  28,540 6


5,864 -  5,864 Premises Costs 4,483 -  4,483 6


2,142 -  2,142 Supplies & Services 2,476 -  2,476 6


1,314 -  1,314 Transport Costs 1,273 -  1,273 6


428 -  428 Support Services 412 -  412 6


-  (1,817) (1,817) Income -  (2,328) (2,328) 6


34,903 (1,817) 33,086 Cost Of Services - continuing 


operations


37,184 (2,328) 34,856 


(71) -  (71) Other Operating Expenditure 66 -  66 7


12,380 (762) 11,618 Financing and Investment Income and 


Expenditure


12,975 (810) 12,165 8


-  (26,338) (26,338) Taxation and Non-Specific Grant Income -  (26,106) (26,106) 9


47,212 (28,917) 18,295 (Surplus) or Deficit on Provision of 


Services


50,225 (29,244) 20,981 


695 (Surplus)/Deficit on revaluation of non-


current assets


(1,179) 23


Table 1


(8,395) Remeasurement of net defined benefit 


liability /(asset)


(6,684) 23


Table 3


(7,700) Other Comprehensive Income and 


Expenditure


(7,863)


10,595 Total Comprehensive Income and 


Expenditure


13,118 


Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement


for the year ended 31 March 2019
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31 March 2018 31 March 2019


£000s £000s Note
 


37,794 Property, Plant and Equipment 35,938 12


22 Intangible Assets 5 13


114 Long Term Debtors 64 14


100 Long Term Investment 30 29


38,030 Long Term Assets 36,037 


 


2,256 Short term investments 5,905 29


493 Inventories 489 15


6,110 Short Term Debtors 4,808 16


5,209 Cash and Cash Equivalents 3,873 17


14,068 Current Assets 15,075 


 


(184) Bank Overdraft -  17


(2,339) Short Term Creditors (2,275) 18


(214) Provisions (287) 19


(188) Short Term Borrowing (191) 29


(1,014) Revenue Grants Receipts in Advance (925) 9


(3,939) Current Liabilities (3,678)


 


(9,394) Long Term Borrowing (9,255) 20


(467,363) Other Long Term Liabilities (479,895) 21


(476,757) Long Term Liabilities (489,150)


(428,598) Net Assets: (441,716)


9,883 Usable Reserves 10,837 22


(438,481) Unusable Reserves (452,553) 23


(428,598) Total Reserves: (441,716)


Balance Sheet for the year ended 31 March 2019
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Statement Of Cash Flows for the year ended 31 March 2019


2017/18 2018/19


£000s £000s


(18,295) Net surplus or (deficit) on the provision of services (20,981)


19,196 
Adjustments to net surplus or (deficit) on the provision of services for non-


cash movements
24,368 31


7,852 
Adjustments for items included in the net surplus or (deficit) on the 


provision of services that are investing and financing activities
(321) 31


8,753 Net cash (outflow)/inflow from operating activities 3,066 


(7,181) Investing activities (4,082) 32


2,395 Financing activities (136) 33


3,967 Net increase or (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (1,152)


1,058 Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the reporting period 5,025 


5,025 Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the reporting period 3,873 17


Note


The Cash Flow Statement shows the changes in cash and cash equivalents of the Authority during the reporting period.


The statement shows how the Authority generates and uses cash and cash equivalents by classifying cash flows as


operating, investing and financing activities. The amount of net cash flows arising from operating activities is a key


indicator of the extent to which the operations of the Authority are funded by way of taxation and grant income or from


the recipients of services provided by the Authority. Investing activities represent the extent to which cash outflows have


been made for resources which are intended to contribute to the Authority’s future service delivery. Cash flows arising


from financing activities are useful in predicting claims on future cash flows by providers of capital (i.e. borrowing) to the


Authority.


An analysis of the components of cash and cash equivalents at the end of the reporting period are disclosed in note 17.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES


1. General Principles


2. Accruals of Income and Expenditure


•


•


Legality - where the accounting principles and specific legislation requirements are in conflict, the financial statements


have been prepared to reflect legislative requirements.


Faithful Representation - the financial statements faithfully represent economic issues in words and numbers. They


have been prepared on the basis that they are complete, neutral and free from error.


Going Concern - the financial statements have been prepared on the assumption that the Authority will continue in


operational existence for the foreseeable future.


Where estimating techniques are required to enable the accounting practices adopted to be applied, then the techniques


which have been used are, in the Authority’s view, appropriate and consistently applied. Where the effect of a change to


an estimation technique is material, a description of the change and, if practicable, the effect on the results for the


current period is separately disclosed.


The accounting convention adopted in the Statement of Accounts is principally historical cost, modified by the revaluation


of certain categories of non-current assets and financial instruments. 


The Statement of Accounts summarises the Authority’s transactions for the 2018/19 financial year and its position at the


year-end of 31 March 2019. The Authority is required to prepare an annual Statement of Accounts by the Accounts and


Audit Regulations 2015, which those Regulations require to be prepared in accordance with proper accounting practices.


These practices primarily comprise the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2018/19,


supported by International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) and statutory guidance issued under section 12 of the


Local Government Act 2003.


The Statements reflect the requirements of general accounting principals and concepts of: 


Relevance - the financial statements provide information about the Authority’s performance and position that is useful to


the users of the accounts to assess the stewardship of public funds and for making economic decisions. 


Reliability - the financial information faithfully represents the substance of the transactions, the activities underlying


them and other events that have taken place are free from deliberate or systematic bias and material error and have


been prudently prepared. 


There are no transactions which require the Authority to split the Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure line in


the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement into two groups as per IAS 1 Presentation of Financial


Statements.


Activity is accounted for in the year that it takes place, not simply when cash payments are made or received.  In 


particular:


Comparability - the information has been prepared consistently and with adequate disclosures so that it can be


compared with prior years and other Fire Authorities.


The accounting policies are the principles, bases, conventions, rules and practices that specify how the effects of


transactions and other events are reflected in the financial statements of the Authority. Consistent accounting policies


have been applied both within the year and between years. Where accounting policies are changed, this has been


disclosed separately.


Fees, charges and rents due from customers are accounted for as income at the date the Authority provides the 


relevant goods or services.


Employees costs are charged to the accounts in the period within which the employees worked, which includes 12 


monthly payments.


Understandability – the statements have been prepared to ensure they are as easy to understand as possible.


Materiality - the statements disclose items of a certain size and nature such that they provide a fair presentation of the


financial position and transactions of the Authority.


Accruals - other than the cash flow statement, the financial statements report transactions that have been recorded in


the accounting period for which the goods and services were received or supplied rather than in which the cash was


received or paid.
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•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


3. Cash and Cash Equivalents


4. Capital Expenditure


5. Property, Plant and Equipment


Where payments are made or received in advance of a service being provided or received a payment or receipt in 


advance is recognised as a debtor or creditor in the Balance Sheet.


Income and expenditure are credited and debited to the relevant revenue account, unless they properly represent 


capital receipts or capital expenditure.


Expenses in relation to services received (including services provided by employees) are recorded as expenditure 


when the services are received rather than when payments are made. 


The Authority does not have a de-minimis level for capital expenditure.


Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE) is initially measured at cost. Only those costs that are directly attributable to


bringing the asset into working condition for its intended use are included in its measurement. 


Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the Authority transfers the significant risks and rewards of 


ownership to the purchaser and it is probable that economic benefits or service potential associated with the 


transaction will flow to the Authority. 


The definition of enhancement is works that are intended to lengthen substantially the useful life of the asset, or increase


substantially the market value of the asset, or increase substantially the extent to which the asset can or will be used for


the purposes of or in conjunction with the functions of the Authority. 


Revenue from the provision of services is recognised when the Authority can measure reliably the percentage of 


completion of the transaction and it is probable that economic benefits or service potential associated with the 


transaction will flow to the Authority. 


Works are charged as expenditure when they are completed, before which they are carried as Works in Progress on 


the Balance Sheet.


Where income and expenditure has been recognised but cash has not been received or paid, a debtor or creditor for 


the relevant amount is recorded in the Balance Sheet.  Where it is doubtful that debts will be settled the balance of 


debtors is written down and a charge made to revenue for the income that might not be collected.


Capital expenditure is defined as the acquisition, reclamation, enhancement or laying out of land; acquisition,


construction, preparation, enhancement or replacement of roads, buildings and other structures; and the acquisition,


installation or replacement of movable or immovable plant, machinery, apparatus, vehicles and vessels. 


Cash and cash equivalents are represented by cash in hand and deposits with financial institutions repayable without


penalty on notice of not more than 24 hours.    


Where a long term asset is acquired for other than a cash consideration or where payment is deferred, the asset has


been recognised and included in the Balance Sheet at fair value. 


Assets acquired on terms meeting the definition of a finance lease are capitalised and included together with a liability to


pay future rentals. 


Improvement works and structural repairs are capitalised, whereas expenditure to ensure that the long term asset


maintains its previously assessed standard of performance is recognised in the revenue account as it is incurred.


All expenditure on the acquisition, creation or enhancement of Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE) has been capitalised


on an accruals basis. Expenditure on the acquisition of PPE, or expenditure which adds to, and not merely maintains, the


value of an existing asset, is capitalised provided that it yields benefits to the Authority and the services it provides are


for a period of more than one year. 


In the Statement of Cash Flows, cash and cash equivalents are shown net of bank overdrafts that are repayable on


demand and form an integral part of the Authority’s cash management.  


Supplies and services are recorded as expenditure when they are consumed – where there is a gap between the 


date supplies are received and their consumption they are carried as Inventories on the Balance Sheet.


Interest on investments and payable on borrowings is accounted for respectively as income and expenditure on the 


basis of the effective interest rate for the relevant financial instrument rather than the cash flows fixed or 


determined by the contract. 
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· 


· 


· 


· 


· 


· 


· 


· 


· 


· 


· 


where there is a balance of revaluation gains for the asset in the Revaluation Reserve, the carrying amount of the 


asset is written down against that balance (up to the amount of the accumulated gains); and


No allowance has been made for any taxation, acquisition, realisation or disposal costs or other expenses.


It is assumed that the present use is lawful and that there are no adverse conditions attached.  It is further assumed 


that there are no adverse planning proposals in existence that may affect the property in the future.


Details of tenure, planning consents and other relevant information are assumed to be correct.


The Authority has good marketable title, free from any onerous or restrictive covenants. 


There are no hazardous substances or latent defects in the properties and there is no contamination present. 


That properties and their value are unaffected by any matters that would be revealed by a local search, replies to 


usual enquiries or by any statutory notice.


The asset valuations have been prepared using the following assumptions: 


Property is valued on a five-year basis, although material changes to asset values will be adjusted in the interim period as


they occur. The current asset valuations are carried out by Hartlepool Borough Council which provides valuation services


for the Authority based upon certificates issued by the Council’s Property Management Division. The valuations are


prepared in accordance with the Statements and UK Practice Statements contained in the RICS Appraisal and Valuation


Standards. From 1 April 2007, increases in asset valuations are credited to the Revaluation Reserve.


PPE is held or occupied, used or consumed by the Authority in the direct delivery of those services for which it has either


statutory or discretionary responsibility, or for the service or strategic objectives of the Authority. Non-specialised PPE


has been valued on the basis of Fair Value - Existing Use Value (EUV). Specialised PPE has been valued on a Depreciated


Replacement Cost (DRC) basis. This is because their specialised nature means they are rarely, if ever, sold or let on the


open market for their existing use. Assets that have been declared surplus to requirements have been valued at Market


Value. Assets under construction are valued at historic cost.


where there is no balance in the Revaluation Reserve or an insufficient balance, the carrying amount of the asset is 


written down against the relevant expenditure category(s) in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 


Statement. 


revaluation and impairment losses on assets used by the expenditure category where there are no accumulated 


gains in the Revaluation Reserve against which the losses can be written off.


No soil surveys have been carried out or services tested.


The Authority does not capitalise borrowing costs incurred whilst assets are under construction. 


Where an item of Property, Plant or Equipment is acquired under a finance lease, at the inception of the lease the amount


to be recorded both as an asset and as a liability would be the present value of the minimum lease payments derived by


discounting them at the interest rate implicit in the lease. 


Not all properties were specifically inspected for the purposes of asset valuations. This was neither practicable, nor


considered by the Valuer to be necessary, for the purpose of the valuation. However, regular inspections are made by


officers of Hartlepool Borough Council's Property Section of all the Authority’s property assets. As allowable under the


Code, depreciated historical cost is used as a proxy for some non-property assets that have short useful lives and/or low


values.


The Revaluation Reserve contains revaluation gains recognised since 1 April 2007 only, the date of its formal


implementation. Gains arising before that date have been consolidated into the Capital Adjustment Account.


The cost of assets acquired, other than by purchase, is deemed to be its fair value, unless the acquisition does not have


commercial substance (i.e. it will not lead to a variation in the cash flows of the Authority). In the latter case, where an


asset is acquired via an exchange, the cost of the acquisition is the carrying amount of the asset given up by the


Authority. 


depreciation attributable to the assets used by the expenditure category,


6. Charges to Revenue for Non-Current Assets 


PPE included in the Balance Sheet at fair value - EUV is revalued sufficiently regularly to ensure that the carrying amount


is not materially different from the fair value at the year-end, but as a minimum every five years. Increases in valuations


are matched by credits to the Revaluation Reserve to recognise unrealised gains. Exceptionally, gains might be credited to


the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement where they arise from the reversal of a loss previously charged to


an expenditure category. 


Expenditure categories are debited with the following amounts to record the cost of holding non-current assets during the


year:


Where decreases in value are identified, they are accounted for by:
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7. Impairments


· 


· 


8. Disposals


9. Depreciation


·  Fire Stations and HQ - 40 years,


·  Vehicles, Plant and Equipment 5 to 20 years,


·  Intangible Assets - 7 years


The Authority is not required to raise Council Tax precept to fund depreciation, revaluation and impairment losses or


amortisation. However, it is required to make an annual contribution from revenue towards the reduction in its overall


borrowing requirement equal to an amount calculated on a prudent basis determined by the Authority in accordance with


statutory guidance. Depreciation, revaluation and impairment losses and amortisation are therefore replaced by the


contribution in the General Fund Balance (Minimum Revenue Provision or MRP) by way of an adjusting transaction with


the Capital Adjustment Account in the Movement in Reserves Statement for the difference between the two.  


Where impairment losses are identified, they are accounted for by: 


where there is no balance in the Revaluation Reserve or an insufficient balance, the carrying amount of the asset is 


written down against the relevant expenditure category(s) in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 


Statement. 


Where an item of Property, Plant and Equipment asset has major components whose cost is significant in relation to the


total cost of the item, or has a significantly different useful life, the components are recognised separately and


depreciated based on the components useful economic life. 


where there is a balance of revaluation gains for the asset in the Revaluation Reserve, the carrying amount of the 


asset is written down against that balance (up to the amount of the accumulated gains); and


Where an impairment loss is reversed subsequently, the reversal is credited to the relevant expenditure category(s) in the


Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, up to the amount of the original loss, adjusted for depreciation that


would have been charged if the loss had not been recognised. 


When an asset is disposed of or decommissioned, the carrying amount of the asset in the Balance Sheet is written off to


the Other Operating Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement as part of the gain or loss


on disposal. Receipts from disposals (if any) are credited to the same line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure


Statement also as part of the gain or loss on disposal (i.e. netted off against the carrying value of the asset at the time of


disposal). Any revaluation gains accumulated for the asset in the Revaluation Reserve are transferred to the Capital


Adjustment Account. 


Revaluation gains are also depreciated, with an amount equal to the difference between current value depreciation


charged on assets and the depreciation that would have been chargeable based on their historical cost being transferred


each year from the Revaluation Reserve to the Capital Adjustment Account. 


Depreciation has been charged on straight-line basis and calculated as follows: 


Assets are assessed at each year-end as to whether there is any indication that an asset may be impaired. Where


indications exist and any possible differences are estimated to be material, the recoverable amount of the asset is


estimated and, where this is less than the carrying amount of the asset, an impairment loss is recognised for the shortfall. 


The useful lives of assets are estimated on a realistic basis and are reviewed regularly and, where necessary, revised.


Where the useful life of an item of Property, Plant or Equipment is revised, the carrying amount of the item is depreciated


over the revised remaining useful life. Depreciation is not charged in the year of acquisition or disposal but is charged in


the year of enhancement.


Depreciation is provided for on all Property, Plant and Equipment by the systematic allocation of their depreciable


amounts over their useful lives. An exception is made for assets without a determinable finite useful life (i.e. freehold


land) and assets that are not yet available for use (i.e. assets under construction). Depreciation has been charged using


the straight line method on the closing balances over the assets estimated useful life.


The written-off value of disposals is not a charge against Council Tax, as the cost of Property, Plant and Equipment is fully


provided for under separate arrangements for capital financing. Amounts are appropriated to the Capital Adjustment


Account from the General Fund Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement. 


Receipts are required to be credited to the Capital Receipts Reserve, and can then only be used for new capital


investment or set aside to reduce the Authority’s underlying need to borrow (the capital financing requirement). Receipts


are appropriated to the Reserve from the General Fund Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement. 
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10. Intangible Assets


11. Interests in Companies and Other Entities


12. Inventories


13. Reserves


14. Provisions and Contingent Liabilities


Provisions


Contingent Liabilities


Impairment of Bad and Doubtful Debts


Expenditure on assets that do not have physical substance and are identifiable and controlled by the Authority (e.g.


Software Licences) is capitalised when it will bring benefits to the Authority for more than one financial year. The cost is


charged to the relevant expenditure category over the economic life to reflect the pattern of consumption of benefits. 


Inventories are included in the Balance Sheet at the lower of average cost price or net realisable value.   Where 


inventories have been identified as being of no further use to the Authority and the appropriate procedures have been 


complied with, the obsolete stock has been written off, or an allowance has been made for obsolescence.


The Authority has material interests in companies that have the nature of subsidiaries and is required to prepare group 


accounts.  In the Authority's own single-entity accounts, the interests are recorded as financial assets at cost, less any 


provision for losses.


The Authority sets aside specific amounts as reserves for future policy purposes or to cover contingencies. Reserves are


created by appropriating amounts out of the General Fund Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement. When


expenditure to be financed from a reserve is incurred, it is charged to the appropriate expenditure category in that year to 


score against the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure


Statement. The reserve is then appropriated back into the General Fund Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement


so that there is no net charge against Council Tax for the expenditure. 


When payments are eventually made, they are charged to the provision carried in the Balance Sheet. Estimated


settlements are reviewed at the end of each financial year – where it becomes less than probable that a transfer of


economic benefits will now be required (or a lower settlement than anticipated is made), the provision is reversed and


credited back to the relevant service. 


Provisions are made where an event has taken place that gives the Authority a legal or constructive obligation that


probably requires settlement by a transfer of economic benefits or service potential, and a reliable estimate can be made


of the amount of the obligation.


Provisions are charged as an expense to the appropriate expenditure category in the Comprehensive Income and


Expenditure Statement in the year that the Authority becomes aware of the obligation, and are measured at the best


estimate at the balance sheet date of the expenditure required to settle the obligation, taking into account relevant risks


and uncertainties. 


The Authority recognises that debts are not always paid and makes provision for impairment of bad debts. Bad debt


impairment is calculated using a percentage based on known historic collection rates. This is applied to current


outstanding debt.


Where some or all of the payment required to settle a provision is expected to be recovered from another party (e.g. from


an insurance claim), this is only recognised as income for the relevant expenditure category if it is virtually certain that


reimbursement will be received if the Authority settles the obligation. 


Certain reserves are kept to manage the accounting processes for non-current assets and retirement and employee


benefits and do not represent usable resources for the Authority – these reserves are explained in the relevant policies. 


A contingent liability arises where an event has taken place that gives the Authority a possible obligation whose existence


will only be confirmed by the occurrence or otherwise of uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the


Authority. Contingent liabilities also arise in circumstances where a provision would otherwise be made but either it is not


probable that an outflow of resources will be required or the amount of the obligation cannot be measured reliably. 


Contingent liabilities are not recognised in the Balance Sheet but disclosed in a note to the accounts. 
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15. Employee Benefits


Benefits Payable During Employment


Termination Costs


Post Employment Benefits


The Authority participates in two pension schemes:


Fire Fighters


The Local Government Pension Scheme


· 


· 


· 


· 


Service cost comprising:-


The Authority is required to make defined contributions to the Pension Account, currently 21.7% for Fire Fighters who are


members of the 1992 Pension Scheme and 11.9% for those who are members of the 2006 Pension Scheme and 14.3%


for those who are members of the 2015 Pension Scheme. The Authority must also make defined contributions in respect


of Ill Health retirements.


The Local Government Scheme is accounted for as a defined benefits scheme.


Short-term employee benefits are those due to be settled within 12 months of the year-end. They include such benefits


as wages and salaries, paid annual leave and paid sick leave, bonuses and non-monetary benefits (e.g. operational


emergency response cars) for current employees and are recognised as an expense for services in the year in which


employees render service to the Authority. An accrual is made for the cost of holiday entitlements (or any form of leave,


e.g. time off in lieu) earned by employees but not taken before the year-end which employees can carry forward into the


next financial year. The accrual is made at the wage and salary rates applicable in the following accounting year, being


the period in which the employee takes the benefit. The accrual is charged to Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of


Services, but then reversed out through the Movement in Reserves Statement so that holiday benefits are charged to


revenue in the financial year in which the holiday absence occurs. 


Where termination costs involve the enhancement of pensions, statutory provisions require the General Fund balance to


be charged with the amount payable by the Authority to the pension fund or pensioner in the year, not the amount


calculated according to the relevant accounting standards. In the Movement in Reserves Statement, appropriations are


required to and from the Pensions Reserve to remove the notional debits and credits for pension enhancement


termination costs and replace them with debits for the cash paid to the pension fund and pensioners and any such


amounts payable but unpaid at the year-end. 


Termination costs are amounts payable as a result of a decision by the Authority to terminate an officer’s employment


before the normal retirement date or an officer’s decision to accept voluntary redundancy, and are charged on an accruals


basis to the Non Distributed Costs line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement at the earlier of when


the Authority can no longer withdraw the offer of those benefits or when the Authority recognises costs for a


restructuring. 


unitised securities – current bid price 


unquoted securities – professional estimate 


quoted securities – current bid price 


property – market value. 


● current service cost – the increase in liabilities as a result of years of service earned this year – allocated in the


Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement to the services for which the employees worked. 


The change in the net pensions liability is analysed into the following components: 


The assets of the Teesside Pension Fund attributable to the Authority are included in the Balance Sheet at their fair value:


As these contributions, plus employee contributions, are less than the payments made from the Authority’s Pensions


Account, the Government provide a specific grant to fund the resulting shortfall.


The Fire Fighters Pension scheme is an unfunded scheme. The Authority is required to maintain a separate Fire Fighters


Pension Fund Account, details of which are provided in the Pension Fund Statements (Fund Accounts and Net Assets


Statement).


The liabilities of the Teesside Pension Fund attributable to the Authority are included in the Balance Sheet on an actuarial


basis using the projected unit method – i.e. an assessment of the future payments that will be made in relation to


retirement benefits earned to date by employees, based on assumptions about mortality rates, employee turnover rates


etc, and projections of projected earnings for current employees.
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16. Leases


·  


·  


The Authority also has restricted powers to make discretionary awards of retirement benefits in the event of early


retirements. Any liabilities estimated to arise as a result of an award to any member of staff are accrued in the year of the


decision to make the award and accounted for using the same policies as are applied to the Local Government Pension


Scheme. 


The Authority as a Lessee


Where a lease covers both land and buildings, the land and buildings elements are considered separately for classification. 


In relation to retirement benefits, statutory provisions require the General Fund balance to be charged with the amount


payable by the Authority to the pension fund or directly to pensioners in the year, not the amount calculated according to


the relevant accounting standards. In the Movement in Reserves Statement, this means that there are appropriations to


and from the Pensions Reserve to remove the notional debits and credits for retirement benefits and replace them with


debits for the cash paid to the pension fund and pensioners and any such amounts payable but unpaid at the year-end.


The negative balance that arises on the Pensions Reserve thereby measures the beneficial impact to the General Fund of


being required to account for retirement benefits on the basis of cash flows rather than as benefit are earned by


employees.  


Leases are classified as finance leases where the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards


incidental to ownership of the property, plant or equipment from the lessor to the lessee. All other leases are classified as


operating leases. 


Discretionary Benefits


Arrangements that do not have the legal status of a lease but convey a right to use an asset in return for payment are


accounted for under this policy where fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of specific assets. 


Contributions paid to the Teesside Pension Fund – cash paid as employer’s contributions to the pension fund in


settlement of liabilities; not accounted for as an expense.    


● actuarial gains and losses – changes in the net pensions liability that arise because events have not coincided with


assumptions made at the last actuarial valuation or because the actuaries have updated their assumptions - charged to


the Pensions Reserve as Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure.  


Remeasurements comprising:-


● past service cost – the increase in liabilities as a result of a scheme amendment or curtailment whose effect relates to


years of service earned in earlier years – debited to the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services in the


Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement as part of Non Distributed Costs. 


● the return on plan assets – excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability (asset) -


charged to the Pensions Reserve as Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure.


● net interest on the defined benefit liability (asset) i.e. net interest expense for the Authority – the change


during the period in the net defined benefit liability (asset) that arises from the passage of time charged to the Financing


and Investment Income and Expenditure line of the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement - this is


calculated by applying the discount rate used to measure the defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the period to


the net defined benefit liability (asset) at the beginning of the period - taking into account any changes in the net defined


benefit liability (asset) during the period as a result of contribution and benefit payments. 


Finance Leases 


a charge for the acquisition of the interest in the property, plant or equipment – applied to write down the lease 


liability, and 


Lease payments are apportioned between: 


Property, Plant and Equipment held under finance leases is recognised on the Balance Sheet at the commencement of the


lease at its fair value measured at the lease’s inception (or the present value of the minimum lease payments, if lower).


The asset recognised is matched by a liability for the obligation to pay the lessor. Initial direct costs of the Authority are


added to the carrying amount of the asset. Premiums paid on entry into a lease are applied to writing down the lease


liability. Contingent rents are charged as expenses in the periods in which they are incurred. 


a finance charge (debited to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive 


Income and Expenditure Statement). 
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17. Value Added Tax


The Authority as Lessor 


Rentals paid under operating leases are charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement as an expense


of the services benefiting from use of the leased property, plant or equipment. Charges are made on a straight-line basis


over the life of the lease, even if this does not match the pattern of payments (e.g. there is a rent-free period at the


commencement of the lease). 


Property, Plant and Equipment recognised under finance leases is accounted for using the policies applied generally to


such assets, subject to depreciation being charged over the lease term if this is shorter than the asset’s estimated useful


life (where ownership of the asset does not transfer to the Authority at the end of the lease period). 


The Authority is not required to raise Council Tax to cover depreciation or revaluation and impairment losses arising on


leased assets. Instead, a prudent annual contribution is made from revenue funds towards the deemed capital investment


in accordance with statutory requirements. Depreciation and revaluation and impairment losses are therefore substituted


by a revenue contribution in the General Fund Balance, by way of an adjusting transaction with the Capital Adjustment


Account in the Movement in Reserves Statement for the difference between the two. 


Operating Leases 


Finance Leases 


Where the Authority grants a finance lease over a property or an item of plant or equipment, the relevant asset is written


out of the Balance Sheet as a disposal. At the commencement of the lease, the carrying amount of the asset in the


Balance Sheet (whether Property, Plant and Equipment or Assets Held for Sale) is written off to the Other Operating


Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement as part of the gain or loss on disposal. A gain,


representing the Authority’s net investment in the lease, is credited to the same line in the Comprehensive Income and


Expenditure Statement also as part of the gain or loss on disposal (i.e. netted off against the carrying value of the asset


at the time of disposal), matched by a lease (long-term debtor) asset in the Balance Sheet. 


The gain credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement on disposal is not permitted by statute to


increase the General Fund Balance and is required to be treated as a capital receipt. Where a premium has been received,


this is posted out of the General Fund Balance to the Capital Receipts Reserve in the Movement in Reserves Statement.


Where the amount due in relation to the lease asset is to be settled by the payment of rentals in future financial years,


this is posted out of the General Fund Balance to the Deferred Capital Receipts Reserve in the Movement in Reserves


Statement. When the future rentals are received, the element for the capital receipt for the disposal of the asset is used


to write down the lease debtor. At this point, the deferred capital receipts are transferred to the Capital Receipts Reserve. 


Lease rentals receivable are apportioned between: 


·  finance income (credited to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income 


and Expenditure Statement). 


·  a charge for the acquisition of the interest in the property – applied to write down the lease debtor (together with any 


premiums received); and 


18. Prior Period Adjustments, Changes in Accounting Policies and Estimates and Errors


VAT payable is included as an expense only to the extent that it is not recoverable from Her Majesty’s Revenue and


Customs. VAT receivable is excluded from income. 


The written-off value of disposals is not a charge against Council Tax, as the cost of non-current assets is fully provided


for under separate arrangements for capital financing. Amounts are therefore appropriated to the Capital Adjustment


Account from the General Fund Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement. 


Where the Authority grants an operating lease over a property or an item of plant or equipment, the asset is retained in


the Balance Sheet. Rental income is credited to the Other Operating Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and


Expenditure Statement. Credits are made on a straight-line basis over the life of the lease, even if this does not match


the pattern of payments (e.g. there is a premium paid at the commencement of the lease). Initial direct costs incurred in


negotiating and arranging the lease are added to the carrying amount of the relevant asset and charged as an expense


over the lease term on the same basis as rental income. 


Operating Leases 


Prior period adjustments may arise as a result of a change in accounting policies or to correct a material error. Changes in


accounting estimates are accounted for prospectively, i.e. in the current and future years affected by the change and do


not give rise to a prior period adjustment. 
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19. Events After the Balance Sheet Date


· 


· 


20. Financial Instruments


· 


· 


· 


Financial Assets Measured at Amortised Cost


Financial assets measured at amortised cost are recognised on the Balance Sheet when the Authority becomes a party to


the contractual provision of a financial instrument and are initially measured at fair value. They are subsequently


measured at their amortised cost. Annual credits to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the


Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement (CIES) for the interest receivable are based on the carrying amount


of the asset multiplied by the effective rate of the interest for the instrument. For most of the financial assets held by the


Authority, this means that the amount presented in the Balance Sheet in the outstanding principal receivable (plus


accrued interest) and interest credited to the CIES in the amount receivable for the year in the loan agreement.


Any gains and losses that arise on the derecognition of an asset are credited or debited to the Financing and Investment


Income and Expenditure line in the CIES.


Financial assets that are measured at FVPL are recognised on the Balance Sheet when the Authority becomes a party to


the contractual provisions of a financial instrument and are initially measured and carried at fair value. Fair value gains


and losses are recognised as they arrive in the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services.


Financial Assets Measured at Fair Value through Profit or Loss (FVPL)


The Authority's business model is to hold investments to collect contractual cash flows i.e. payments of interest and


principal. Most of the Authority's financial assets are therefore classified as amortised cost, except for those whose


contractual payments are not solely payment of principal and interest (i.e. where the cash flows do not take the form of a


basic debt instrument).


Amortised cost


Fair value through profit or loss (FVPL), and


Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI)


those that provide evidence of conditions that existed at the end of the reporting period – the Statement of Accounts 


is adjusted to reflect such events; and


those that are indicative of conditions that arose after the reporting period – the Statement of Accounts is not 


adjusted to reflect such events, but where a category of events would have a material effect, disclosure is made in 


the notes of the nature of the events and their estimated financial effect.


Financial liabilities are recognised on the Balance Sheet when the Authority becomes a party to the contractual provisions


of a financial instrument and are initially measured at fair value and are carried at their amortised cost. Annual charges to


the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement for


interest payable are based on the carrying amount of the liability, multiplied by the effective rate of interest for the


instrument. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments over the life of


the instrument to the amount at which it was originally recognised. For existing borrowings this means that the amount


presented in the Balance Sheet is the outstanding principal repayable (plus accrued interest) and interest charged to the


Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement is the amount payable for the year according to the loan agreement.


Financial Liabilities


Events taking place after the date of authorisation for issue are not reflected in the Statement of Accounts. 


Events after the Balance Sheet date are those events, both favourable and unfavourable, that occur between the end of


the reporting period and the date when the Statement of Accounts is authorised for issue. Two types of events can be


identified: 


Financial assets are classified based on a classification and measurement approach that reflects the business model for


holding the financial assets and their cash flow characteristics. There are three main classes of financial assets measured


at:


Changes in accounting policies are only made when required by proper accounting practices or the change provides more


reliable or relevant information about the effect of transactions, other events and conditions on the Authority’s financial


position or financial performance. Where a change is made, it is applied retrospectively (unless stated otherwise) by


adjusting opening balances and comparative amounts for the prior period as if the new policy had always been applied. 


For Public Works Loans Board (PWLB) loans, the fair value of each loan has been determined by information supplied by


the PWLB. For market loans, the redemption rules of the PWLB have been used to approximate the fair value of loans


held. The comparator market rates prevailing have been taken from indicative investment rates at each Balance Sheet


date.


Financial Assets


Material errors discovered in prior period figures are corrected retrospectively by amending opening balances and


comparative amounts for the prior period. 


27







SECTION 4: Statement of Accounts


21. Fair Value Measurement


a)
b)


· 


· 


· 


22. Council Tax Precept Income and Collection Fund


The Authority currently holds no financial assets at FVPL.


Equity instruments may be irrevocably designated at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income (FVOCI) on the


basis that they are held for non-contractual benefits. They are not held for trading but for strategic purposes. Such


assets were previously classified as Available-For-Sale Financial Asset.


Changes in fair value are posted to Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure and are balanced by an entry in the


Financial Instruments Revaluation Reserve.


When the asset is de-recognised, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in the Surplus or Deficit on the


Provision of Services.


The Authority currently holds no financial assets measured at FVOCI.


Expected Credit Loss Model


Impairment losses are calculated to reflect the expectation that the future cash flows might not take place because the


borrower could default on their obligations. Credit risk plays a crucial part in assessing losses. Where risk has increased


significantly since an instrument was initially recognised, losses are assessed on a lifetime basis. Where risk has not


increased significantly or remains low, losses are assessed on a basis of 12-month expected losses.


The Authority recognises expected credit losses on all of its financial assets held at amortised cost (or where relevant


FVOCI), either on a 12-month or lifetime basis. The expected credit loss model also applies to lease receivables and


contract assets. Only lifetime losses are recognised for trade receivables (debtors) held by the Authority.


Financial Assets measured at Fair Value through other Comprehensive Income (FVOCI)


Any gains and losses that arise on the derecognition of the asset are credited or debited to the Financing and Investment


Income and Expenditure line in the CIES.


IFRS 9 Financial Instruments sets out that investments in equity should be classified as fair value through profit and loss


unless there is an irrevocable election to recognise changes in the Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income. The


Authority will assess each investment on an individual basis and assign an IFRS 9 category. The assessment will be based


on the underlying purpose for holding the financial instrument.


Any changes in the fair value of instruments held at fair value through profit or loss will be recognised in the net cost of


service in the CIES and will have a General Fund impact.


Level 1 – quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the authority can access 


at the measurement date


Council Tax precept income included in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement for the year is the accrued


income. The difference between the income included in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement and the


amount required by regulation to be credited to the General Fund shall be taken to the Collection Fund Adjustment


Account and included as a reconciling item in the Movement in Reserves Statement.


The Authority uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data is


available, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.


Level 2 – inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either 


directly or indirectly


Level 3 – unobservable inputs for the asset or liability


The authority measures some of its non-financial assets such as surplus assets and some of its financial instruments such


as equity shareholdings at fair value at each reporting date. Fair value is the price that would be received from selling an


asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The


fair value measurement assumes that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:


In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.


The Authority measures the fair value of an asset or liability using the assumptions that market participants would use


when pricing an asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.


When measuring the fair value of a non-financial asset, the Authority takes into account a markets participant’s ability to


generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use by selling it to another market participant that


would use the asset in its highest and best use.


Inputs to the valuation techniques in respect of assets and liabilities for which the fair value is measured or disclosed in


the Authority’s financial statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, as follows:
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23. Government Grants and Contributions 


· 


· 


Monies advanced as grants and contributions for which conditions have not been satisfied are carried in the Balance Sheet


as Capital Grants Receipts in Advance. When conditions are satisfied, the grant or contribution is credited to the relevant


service line (attributable revenue grants and contributions) or Taxation and Non-Specific Grant Income (non-ring-fenced


revenue grants and all capital grants) in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. 


Whether paid on account, by instalments or in arrears, government grants, third party contributions and donations are


recognised as due to the Authority when there is reasonable assurance that: 


Where capital grants are credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, they are reversed out of the


General Fund Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement. Where the grant has yet to be used to finance capital


expenditure, it is posted to the Capital Grants Unapplied reserve. Where it has been applied, it is posted to the Capital


Adjustment Account. Amounts in the Capital Grants Unapplied reserve are transferred to the Capital Adjustment Account


once they have been applied to fund capital expenditure. 


Amounts recognised as due to the Authority are not credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement


until conditions attached to the grant or contribution have been satisfied. Conditions are stipulations that specify that the


future economic benefits or service potential embodied in the asset acquired using the grant or contribution are required


to be consumed by the recipient as specified, or future economic benefits or service potential must be returned to the


transferor. 


the grants or contributions will be received. 


the Authority will comply with the conditions attached to the payments; and 
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·  IAS 40 Investment Property has been amended to state that an entity shall transfer a property to, or from, 


investment property when, and only when, there is evidence of a change in use. The adoption of this standard is 


not expected to have a material impact on the Council's financial statements.


·  Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2014-2016 Cycle contains updates and amendments to three 


International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs).  IFRS 1 First-time Adoption of International Financial 


Reporting Standards, IFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities, and IAS 28 Investments in Associates and 


Joint Ventures.  The adoption of these updates standard is not expected to have a material impact on the 


Council's financial statements.


·  IFRIC 22 Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration recognises the date of the transaction, for 


the purpose of determining the exchange rate, as the date of initial recognition of the non-monetary prepayment 


asset or deferred income liability. The adoption of this standard is not expected to have a material impact on the 


Council's financial statements.


·  IFRIC 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments relates to income tax treatment on taxable profit and losses.   


Therefore this will have no impact on the Council's financial statements.


·  Amendments to IFRS 9 Financial Instruments: Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation amends the 


existing requirements in IFRS 9 regarding termination rights in order to allow measurement at amortised cost 


(or, depending on the business model, at FVOCI) even in the case of negative compensation payments.  The 


adoption of this standard is not expected to have a material impact on the Council's financial statements.


The critical judgements made in the Statement of Accounts are: 


·  There is a high degree of uncertainty about future levels of funding for Fire Authorities in 2020/21 and beyond.  


However, the Authority has determined that this uncertainty is not yet sufficient to provide an indication that the 


assets of the Authority might be impaired as a result of a need to close facilities and reduce levels of service 


provision. 


·  There is a high degree of uncertainty about the national Fire Fighters' pay award for April 2018.  If the actual pay 


award exceeds the interim pay award the Authority will meet any backdated costs from reserves. This would 


provide a longer lead time to develop a permanent funding strategy including potentially identifying additional 


savings.  A contingent liability has been disclosed at Note 35 as the Authority has determined that the level and 


likelihood of any further pay award for 2018/19 can’t be accurately estimated.


·  On 20 December 2018 the Government lost a case in the Court of Appeal (the McCloud judgement) which found 


that the transitional protections incorporated into the reforms of the firefighters and judges pension schemes 


were age discriminatory. The Government has applied for an appeal hearing at the Supreme Court. If the appeal 


is upheld this could lead to compensation being required to all those who were discriminated against, including 


implications for other public sector schemes which contained similar protections.  A contingent liability has been 


disclosed at Note 35 as the Authority has determined that the uncertainty surrounding the compensation can’t be 


accurately estimated. 


In applying the accounting policies set out, the Authority has had to make certain judgements about complex 


transactions or those involving uncertainty about future events. 


Note 2: Critical judgements in applying Accounting Policies


The Code requires implementation from 1 April 2019 and therefore there is no impact on the 2018/19 Statement of


Accounts.


Note 1: Accounting Standards that have been issued but have not yet been 


adopted 


The Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom requires the disclosure of information relating


to the expected impact of an accounting change that will be required by a new standard that has been issued but not


yet adopted. This applies to the adoption of the following new or amended standards within the 2019/20 Code.
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Item Uncertainties Effect if actual results differ from assumptions


Property, Plant and 


Equipment 


Assets are depreciated over useful lives that 


are dependent on assumptions about the 


level of repairs and maintenance that will be 


incurred in relation to individual assets. The 


current economic climate makes it uncertain 


that the Authority will be able to sustain its 


current spending on repairs and 


maintenance, bringing into doubt the useful 


lives assigned to assets.


If the useful life of assets is reduced, depreciation increases and 


the carrying amount of the assets falls. It is estimated that the 


annual depreciation charge for buildings would increase by 


£0.018m for every year that useful lives had to be reduced.


Pensions Liability Estimation of the net liability to pay pensions 


depends on a number of complex judgements 


relating to the discount rate used, the rate at 


which salaries are projected to increase, 


changes in retirement ages, mortality rates 


and expected returns on pension fund assets. 


A consulting Actuary is engaged to provide 


the Authority with expert advice about the 


assumptions to be applied.


For the Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) the effect on 


the net pensions liability of changes in individual assumptions 


can be measured.   For example, a 0.1% increase in the discount 


rate assumption would result in a decrease in the liability of 


£0.783m. However, the assumptions interact in complex ways. 


During 2018/19, the Authority's Actuary advised that the net 


pension liability for funded LGPS benefits had reduced by 


£2.282m as a result of estimates being corrected in light of 


financial experience, increased by £1.561m attributable to 


updating of the demographic assumptions and reduced by 


£0.052m as a result of liability experience.  Actual pension rates 


are determined on an actuarial basis every 3 years. The latest 


valuation has determined the employer’s contribution for 3 years 


from March 2016.  A 0.1% increase in this rate would increase 


the Authority's revenue budget requirement for pension costs by 


£0.004m.  Uncertainties do not apply to the Fire Fighters Pension 


Schemes as these are Unfunded Schemes where costs are fully 


met by government grant.


Note 3: Assumptions made about the future and other major sources of 


estimation uncertainty


The Statement of Accounts contains estimated figures that are based on assumptions made by the Authority about the 


future or that are otherwise uncertain. Estimates are made taking into account historical experience, current trends and 


other relevant factors. However, because balances cannot be determined with certainty, actual results could be 


materially different from the assumptions and estimates. 


The items in the Authority’s Balance Sheet at 31 March 2019 for which there is a significant risk of material adjustment 


in the forthcoming financial year are as follows: 
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2018/19
General 


Fund 


Balance


Earmarked 


Reserves


Capital 


Receipts 


Reserve


Movement 


in Unusable 


Reserves


£000s £000s £000s £000s


Adjustments involving the Capital Adjustment Account:


Reversal of items debited or credited to the Comprehensive 


Income & Expenditure Statement


Charges for depreciation and impairment of non-current assets 1,368 -  -  (1,368)


Charges for Revaluation losses on Property Plant & Equipment 2,019 -  -  (2,019)


Amortisation of intangible assets 17 -  -  (17)


Capital grants and contributions applied -  -  -  -  


Amounts of non-current assets written off on disposal or sale as 


part of the (gain)/loss on disposal to the Comprehensive Income 


& Expenditure Statement


387 -  -  (387)


Direct Revenue Funding -  (425) -  425 
-  


Insertion of items debited or credited to the Comprehensive 


Income & Expenditure Statement
-  


Statutory provision for the financing of capital investment (MRP) (458) -  -  458 


Adjustments involving the Capital Receipts Reserve:


Transfer of cash sale proceeds credited as part of the gain/(loss) 


on disposal to the Comprehensive Income & Expenditure 


Statement


(321) -  321 -  


Finance Lease payments transferred from Deferred Capital 


Receipts
-  -  48 (48)


Application of Capital Receipts to Capital Adjustment Account -  -  (48) 48 


Use of capital receipts to fund new capital expenditure -  -  (314) 314 


Adjustments involving the Pensions Reserve:


Reversal of items relating to retirement benefits debited or 


credited to the Comprehensive Income & Expenditure Statement
21,710 -  -  (21,710)


Employers Pensions Contributions (2,272) -  -  2,272 


Direct payments to pensioners payable in the year (222) -  -  222 


Adjustments involving the Collection Fund Adjustment 


Account:


Amount by which council tax income credited to the 


Comprehensive Income & Expenditure Statement is different 


from council tax income calculated for the year in accordance 


with statutory requirements


137 -  -  (137)


Adjustments involving the Accumulated Absences 


Adjustment Account:


Amount by which officer remuneration charged to the 


Comprehensive Income & Expenditure Statement on an accruals 


basis is different from remuneration chargeable in the year in 


accordance with statutory requirements


(12) -  -  12 


Total Adjustments 22,353 (425) 7 (21,935)


Note 4: Adjustments between Accounting Basis and Funding Basis under 


Regulations
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Note 4: Adjustments between Accounting Basis and Funding Basis under 


Regulations


2017/18
General 


Fund 


Balance


Earmarked 


Reserves


Capital 


Receipts 


Reserve


Movement 


in Unusable 


Reserves


£000s £000s £000s £000s


Adjustments involving the Capital Adjustment Account:


Reversal of items debited or credited to the Comprehensive 


Income & Expenditure Statement


Charges for depreciation and impairment of non-current assets 1,636 -  -  (1,636)


Charges for Revaluation losses on Property Plant & Equipment 3,043 -  -  (3,043)


Amortisation of intangible assets 17 -  -  (17)


Capital grants and contributions applied (158) -  -  158 


Amounts of non-current assets written off on disposal or sale as 


part of the (gain)/loss on disposal to the Comprehensive Income 


& Expenditure Statement


193 -  -  (193)


Direct Revenue Funding -  (3,619) -  3,619 


Insertion of items debited or credited to the Comprehensive 


Income & Expenditure Statement


Statutory provision for the financing of capital investment (MRP) (427) -  -  427 


Adjustments involving the Capital Receipts Reserve:


Transfer of cash sale proceeds credited as part of the gain/(loss) 


on disposal to the Comprehensive Income & Expenditure 


(264) -  264 -  


Finance Lease payments transferred from Deferred Capital 


Receipts


-  -  47 (47)


Application of Capital Receipts to Capital Adjustment Account -  -  (47) 47 


Adjustments involving the Pensions Reserve:


Reversal of items relating to retirement benefits debited or 


credited to the Comprehensive Income & Expenditure Statement
17,323 -  -  (17,323)


Employers Pensions Contributions (2,390) -  -  2,390 


Direct payments to pensioners payable in the year (225) -  -  225 


Adjustments involving the Collection Fund Adjustment 


Account:


Amount by which council tax income credited to the 


Comprehensive Income & Expenditure Statement is different 


from council tax income calculated for the year in accordance 


with statutory requirements


17 -  -  (17)


Adjustments involving the Accumulated Absences 


Adjustment Account:


Amount by which officer remuneration charged to the 


Comprehensive Income & Expenditure Statement on an accruals 


basis is different from remuneration chargeable in the year in 


accordance with statutory requirements


4 -  -  (4)


Total Adjustments 18,769 (3,619) 264 (15,414)
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Note 5: Transfers to/(from) Earmarked and General Fund Reserves


Balance at 


1 April 


2017


Transfer 


between 


reserves in 


2017/18


Transfers 


Out 


2017/18


Transfers 


In 


2017/18


Balance at 


31 March 


2018


Transfer 


between 


reserves 


in 


2018/19


Transfers 


Out 


2018/19


Transfers 


In 


2018/19


Balance 


at 31 


March 


2019


£000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s


General Fund Balance: 1,552 - - - 1,552 - - - 1,552 


Earmarked General Fund Reserves:


Budget Support Fund 2,513 - - 400 2,913 408 - 801 4,122 


CIRMP Implementation Reserve 1,022 - (172) - 850 (408) (442) - -


 3,535 - (172) 400 3,763 - (442) 801 4,122 


Earmarked Revenue Reserves:


Organisational Implementation / 


Transitional costs
750 (750) - - - - - - -  


Innovation Fund 566 - - - 566 - - - 566 


Capital Phasing Reserve 450 - - 148 598 - - 149 747 


Insurance Fund 200 - - - 200 - - 351 551 


Commissioned Services 200 - - - 200 - - - 200 


Pension Reserve 160 - (52) - 108 - (53) - 55 


Breathing Apparatus 125 - - - 125 - - - 125 


Staff Training and Development 50 - (50) - - - - - -  


Property Reserve - - - - - - - 334 334 


Levy Account Surplus - - - - - - - 141 141 


2,501 (750) (102) 148 1,797 - (53) 975 2,719 


Earmarked Capital Reserves:


Capital Investment Programme 5,176 750 (3,619) 200 2,507 - (424) 90 2,173 


Capital Receipts Reserve - - (47) 311 264 - (362) 369 271 


5,176 750 (3,666) 511 2,771 - (786) 459 2,444 


Total Usable Reserves:
12,764 - (3,940) 1,059 9,883 - (1,281) 2,235 10,837 


This note sets out the amounts set aside from the General Fund balances in earmarked reserves to provide financing for 


future expenditure plans and the amounts posted back from earmarked reserves to meet General Fund expenditure in 


2018/19.  Further details of all usable reserves are provided in Note 22.
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2017/18 2018/19


Net 


Expenditure 


Chargeable to 


the General 


Fund


Adjustments 


Between 


Funding and 


Accounting 


Basis


Net Expenditure 


in the 


Comprehensive 


Income and 


Expenditure 


Statement


Net 


Expenditure 


Chargeable to 


the General 


Fund


Adjustments 


Between 


Funding and 


Accounting 


Basis


Net Expenditure 


in the 


Comprehensive 


Income and 


Expenditure 


Statement


£000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s


21,799 3,356 25,155 Employee Costs 21,270 7,270 28,540 


1,776 4,088 5,864 Premises Costs 1,649 2,834 4,483 


2,324 (182) 2,142 Supplies & Services 2,550 (74) 2,476 


723 591 1,314 Transport Costs 720 553 1,273 


428 -  428 Support Services 412 -  412 


838 (838) -  Capital Finance Costs 838 (838) -  


(274) 274 -  
Transfer from 


Earmarked reserves
(495) 495 -  


-  -  -  
Transfer to Earmarked 


reserves
476 (476) -  


(1,817) -  (1,817) Income (1,978) (350) (2,328)


25,797 7,289 33,086 Net Cost of Services 25,442 9,414 34,856 


(26,197) 11,406 (14,791)
Other Income and 


Expenditure
(26,243) 12,368 (13,875)


(400) 18,695 18,295 (Surplus) or Deficit (801) 21,782 20,981 


1,552 
Opening General 


Fund Balance
1,552 


400 


Less/Plus Surplus or 


(Deficit) on General 


Fund Balance in Year


801 


(400)
Transfer from General 


Fund
(801)


1,552 
Closing General Fund 


Balance at 31 March
1,552 


Note 6: Expenditure and Funding Analysis


The Expenditure and Funding Analysis shows how annual expenditure is used and funded from resources (government 


grants, rents, council tax and business rates) by local authorities in comparison with those resources consumed or 


earned by authorities in accordance with generally accepted accounting practices. Income and expenditure accounted for 


under generally accepted accounting practices is presented more fully in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 


Statement.
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Adjustments from General Fund to 


Arrive at the Comprehensive Income 


and Expenditure Statement Amounts


Adjustments 


for Capital 


Purposes 


(Note 1)


Net Change for 


the Pensions 


Adjustments 


(Note 2)


Other 


Statutory 


Differences 


(Note 3)


Other Non-


Statutory 


Differences 


(Note 4)


Total 


Adjustments


£000s £000s £000s £000s


Employee Costs -  7,282 (12) -  7,270 


Premises Costs 2,834 -  -  -  2,834 


Supplies and Services 16 -  -  (90) (74)


Transport Costs 553 -  -  -  553 


Capital Finance Costs (458) -  -  (380) (838)


Income -  -  -  (350) (350)


Transfers From Earmarked Reserves 495 495 


Transfers To Earmarked Reserves -  -  -  (476) (476)


Net Cost of Services 2,945 7,282 (12) (801) 9,414 


Other Income and Expenditure from the 


Expenditure and Funding Analysis
66 11,934 137 231 12,368 


Difference between General Fund 


(Surplus) or Deficit and 


Comprehensive Income and 


Expenditure Statement (Surplus) or 


Deficit on the Provision of Services


3,011 19,216 125 (570) 21,782 


Adjustments from General Fund to 


Arrive at the Comprehensive Income 


and Expenditure Statement Amounts


Adjustments 


for Capital 


Purposes 


(Note 1)


Net Change for 


the Pensions 


Adjustments 


(Note 2)


Other 


Statutory 


Differences 


(Note 3)


Other Non-


Statutory 


Differences 


(Note 4)


Total 


Adjustments


£000s £000s £000s £000s


Employee Costs -  3,352 4 -  3,356 


Premises 4,088 -  -  -  4,088 


Supplies and Services 16 -  -  (198) (182)


Transport Costs 591 -  -  -  591 


Capital Finance Costs (427) -  -  (411) (838)


Income -  -  -  -  -  


Transfers To/From Earmarked Reserves -  -  -  274 274 


Net Cost of Services 4,268 3,352 4 (335) 7,289 


Other Income and Expenditure from the 


Expenditure and Funding Analysis
(229) 11,356 17 262 11,406 


Difference between General Fund 


(Surplus) or Deficit and 


Comprehensive Income and 


Expenditure Statement (Surplus) or 


Deficit on the Provision of Services


4,039 14,708 21 (73) 18,695 


Note 1


Note 2


Note 3


Note 4 This is the net change in relation to any non-statutory adjustments included in the management accounts but not in the 


Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.


This is the net change for the removal of employer pension contributions made by the Authority as allowed by statute and the 


replacement with current and past service costs. 


This is the net change in relation to statutory adjustments for accumulated absences and Precept Income.


Note 6A: Note to the Expenditure and Funding Analysis


This is the net change for the removal of depreciation and impairment and other capital costs from services and the addition of 


other operating costs and capital grants received.


2017/18


2018/19
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Note 6B: Expenditure And Income Analysed By Nature


2017/18 2018/19
£000s £000s


Expenditure / Income


Expenditure


25,155 Employee Benefits Expenses 28,540 


5,053 Other Service Expenses 5,331 


4,695 Depreciation, Amortisation, Impairment, Revalue 3,313 
12,380 Interest Payments 12,975 


(71) Gain/Loss on the disposal of assets 66 


47,212 Total Expenditure 50,225 


Income
(1,083) Revenues from External Customers (1,362)


(28) Other Revenue (16)
(762) Interest and Investment Income (810)


(19,735) Income from Council Tax and Non Domestic Rates (20,388)
(7,309) Government Grants and Contributions (6,668)


(28,917) Total Income (29,244)


18,295 Surplus or deficit on the provision of services 20,981 


The Authority’s expenditure and income is analysed as follows:
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Note 7: Other Operating Expenditure


2017/18 2018/19


£000s £000s


(71) (Gain) or loss on the disposal of Vehicles / Land 66 


Note 8: Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure


2017/18 2018/19


£000s £000s Note


296 Interest payable and similar charges 295 29


11,356 Pensions Interest Cost & Expected Return on Pension Assets 11,934 34


(34) Interest Receivable and Similar Income (64) 29


11,618 12,165 


Note 9: Grant Income & Taxation


2017/18 2018/19


£000s £000s


Credited to Taxation and Non Specific Grant Income


12,792 Council Tax Precept & Business Rates Income 13,237 


6,943 NNDR Distribution - Top Up Grant 7,151 


6,445 Revenue Support Grant 5,718 


158 Other Capital Grants -  


26,338 Total 26,106 


Credited to Services


96 New Dimension - Training 54 


174 Command and Control - FireLink Project 179 


-  DCLG Levy Account (Surplus) 141 


436 Other Grants 576 


706 Total 950 


The Authority credited the following grants, contributions and donations to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure


Statement in 2018/19:


This note provides a breakdown of the various components included within the Other Operating Expenditure line of the


Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.
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Note 9: Grant Income & Taxation (continued)


Current Liabilities


Grants Receipts in Advance (Revenue Grants)


2017/18 2018/19


£000s £000s


179 Fire Link Project 185 


54 New Dimension -  


673 New Risk Programme - Emergency Services Mobile Communication Programme 620 


62 Modern Apprentice Levy Grant 120 


46 European Community Target Grant -  


1,014 925 


The Authority has received grants that have yet to be recognised as income as they have conditions attached to them


that will require the monies or property to be returned if the conditions are not met. The balances at year end are as


follows:
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Note 10: Members' Allowances and Expenses


Member


Basic 


Allowance


Special 


Responsibility 


Allowance


General 


Travel


General 


Subsistence


Conference 


Travel


Conference 


Fees


Conference 


Subsistence


Total  


2018/19


£ £ £ £ £ £ £ £


Bendelow, N 2,193.96 -  -  -  -  -  -  2,193.96 


Brunton Dobson, J 2,193.96 8,775.96 636.50 -  228.12 436.66 348.34 12,619.54 


Cook, R 2,193.96 -  7.50 2,201.46 


Cooney, N 2,193.96 2,742.00 523.00 -  -  -  -  5,458.96 


Corr, G 2,193.96 -  103.90 -  -  -  -  2,297.86 


Goddard, R 2,193.96 -  35.00 -  -  -  -  2,228.96 


Higgins, T 2,193.96 -  319.00 -  -  -  -  2,512.96 


Hussain, N 2,193.96 -  -  -  -  -  -  2,193.96 


James, M 2,193.96 -  105.40 -  -  -  -  2,299.36 


Kirton, P 2,193.96 -  -  -  -  -  -  2,193.96 


Martin-Wells, R (01/04/18-31/05/18) 365.66 -  -  -  -  -  -  365.66 


Mawston, T 2,193.96 -  45.90 -  -  -  -  2,239.86 


O'Donnell, J 2,193.96 4,386.84 209.00 -  -  -  -  6,789.80 


Ovens, M 2,193.96 -  190.50 -  -  -  -  2,384.46 


Stoker, M 2,193.96 -  336.40 161.92 -  -  -  2,692.28 


Young, M (14/09/18-31/03/19) 1,200.58 -  -  -  -  -  1,200.58 


Woodhead, W 2,193.96 -  75.60 -  -  -  -  2,269.56 


Totals for 2018/19 34,475.64 15,904.80 2,587.70 161.92 228.12 436.66 348.34 54,143.18 


Totals for 2017/18 35,097.26 15,904.80 1,786.21 0.00 180.52 607.80 280.41 53,857.00


In accordance with the above regulations the Authority is required to publish details of fixed and attendance allowances paid to each


Member. The amounts paid for the year ending 31st March 2019, including payments to former Members who only served on the


Authority for part of the year are as shown below. It should be noted that the Authority does not pay attendance allowances and the


fixed allowances paid are taxed and subject to National Insurance. The total amount paid to Members in respect of basic, special


responsibility and travel and subsistence allowances was £54,143.18 (£53,857 in 2017/18). An analysis of the allowances is shown


in the table below:


There has been no increase in Members allowances since 2009/10.
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Note 11: Officers' Remuneration


i) 


ii) 


In accordance with the requirements of the Accounts and Audit Regulations (England) 2015, the Authority is required to


disclose details of remuneration for senior employees and those earning more than £50,000.


The statutory duty to make provision under Part 2 of the Fire and Rescue Services Act 2004 for fire safety, fire fighting,


action in respect of road accidents and other emergencies, together with other functions provided for in the Act is vested


with the Cleveland Fire Authority.


Details on the roles of the Authority’s senior managers are summarised below. The Chief Fire Officer is Head of Paid


Service with direct responsibility to the Authority for:-


Senior employees are defined as the Chief Fire Officer and the senior managers reporting directly to the Chief Fire


Officer.


Senior Employees


the efficient operation of all functions of the Brigade, both in respect of the statutory duties with regard to the Fire 


Services Act 2004 and any other activities approved by the Fire Authority, and


all administrative and managerial activities incidental to the running of the Brigade, its equipment and premises.


The Chief Fire Officer is appointed by the whole Authority on a full-time basis; selected on merit against objective


criteria. By law, the Chief Fire Officer is not allowed to participate in any party political activity and is expected to advise


and assist all elected Members irrespective of their political affiliation.


The Director of Business Development ensures business development through engagement with the business community


to create opportunities for sponsorship and partnership working. The cost of this post was fully funded by the Cleveland


Fire Authority Risk Management Services Community Interest Company (CIC) in 2017/18 and up to the date the post


was deleted in April 2018.


Details of the remuneration of the senior employees of the Authority are shown in the following tables. Table A discloses


the payments for 2018/19 and Table B provides the payments for 2017/18. The table shows that the Authority


implemented a Senior Management Restructure in 2018/19 which was part of the Community Integrated Risk


Management Plan. This restructure removed the Director of Business Development post, which was fully funded by the


Cleveland Fire Authority Risk Management Services Community Interest Company (CIC) in 2017/18 and up to the date


the post was deleted in April 2018. The restructure also removed the Director of Community Protection post in April


2018 and these responsibilities were transferred to the Chief Fire Officer. To support this change two Group Manager


posts were replaced with two Area Manager posts. These changes reduced the cost of the Senior Management Structure


from £873,330 in 2017/18 to £643,417 in 2018/19, a reduction of £229,913. Part of this reduction (£112,386) related


the removal of the Director of Business Development post paid for by the CIC. The remaining reduction (£117,527)


related to the other restructure proposals and this recurring saving was reflected in the 2018/19 budget set by the


Authority.   


The Director of Corporate Services provides corporate support to Elected Members, the Chief Fire Officer and the


Executive Leadership Team. This includes corporate governance, policy, human resources, procurement, strategic


planning, risk and performance management, finance, executive and administrative support.


The Director of Community Protection is responsible for providing services direct to the community. This includes


community safety, emergency response services, fire engineering and enforcement of the Regulatory Reform Order,


community health and well-being, children and young persons, and specialist advocacy services for a wide range of


diverse groups including fire-setter intervention. These responsibilities transferred to the Chief Fire Officer in April 2018.


The Director of Technical Services provides resilience and resource management services to support the achievement of


corporate priorities and ensures service continuity and operational preparedness. This includes logistics, estates,


information and communications technology, learning & development and resilience management.
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Note 11: Officers' Remuneration


2018/19 - TABLE A


Salary


Expenses 


Reimbursed     


(Note 1)


Car Allowance


Total 


Remuneration 


excluding 


Pension 


Contributions 


2018/19


Pension 


Contributions 


(Note 2)


Total 


Remuneration 


including 


Pension 


Contributions 


2018/19


£ £ £ £ £ £


Uniformed Posts


Chief Fire Officer (Note 3) 158,910 255 10,578 169,743 - 169,743


Director of Community Protection (Note 4) 1,437 1 65 1,503 312 1,815


Director of Technical Services (Note 5) 106,773 126 7,113 114,012 23,170 137,182


Director of Business Development (Note 6) 1,548 0 - 1,548 336 1,884


Area Manager


Area Manager 1 (1 Apr 2018 - 8 Sep 2018) 30,005 55 789 30,849 5,771 36,620


Area Manager 1 (8 Oct 2018 - 31 Mar 2019) 40,258 - 2,400 42,658 7,801 50,459


Total Area Manager 1 (Note 9) 70,263 55 3,189 73,507 13,572 87,079


Area Manager 2 (Note 9) 69,145 0 3,167 72,312 8,721 81,033


Non-Uniformed Posts


Director of Corporate Services (Note 7) 106,776 0 4,685 111,461 18,793 130,254


Legal Advisor and Monitoring Officer (Note 8) 29,275 0 0 29,275 5,152 34,427


544,127 437 28,797 573,361 70,056 643,417


2017/18 - TABLE B


Salary


Expenses 


Reimbursed     


(Note 1)


Car Allowance


Total 


Remuneration 


excluding 


Pension 


Contributions 


2017/18


Pension 


Contributions 


(Note 2)


Total 


Remuneration 


including 


Pension 


Contributions 


2017/18


£ £ £ £ £ £


Uniformed Posts


Chief Fire Officer (Note 3) 156,180 255 10,578 167,013 - 167,013


Director of Community Protection (Note 4) 104,941 126 7,113 112,180 22,772 134,952


Director of Technical Services (Note 5) 104,941 126 5,947 111,014 22,772 133,786


Director of Business Development (Note 6) 93,895 - 0 93,895 20,375 114,270


Non-Uniformed Posts


Director of Corporate Services (Note 7) 104,941 71 4,756 109,768 18,470 128,238


564,898 578 28,394 593,870 84,389 678,259


Additional Roles to Allow 2018/19 Comparison:


The following post holders are included in order to restate the equivalent senior officers information for 2017/18 to enable a like for like comparison.


Group Manager 1 64,553 0 2,689 67,242 13,006 80,248


Group Manager 2 64,236 0 2,693 66,929 13,006 79,935


Statutory Monitoring Officer Role (Note 8) 34,888 34,888 34,888


(procured via SLA with Hartlepool Borough Council)


Restated Table B 2017/18 728,575 578 33,776 762,929 110,401 873,330


Post Title


Post Title
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Note 11: Officers' Remuneration


(1)


(2)


(3)


(4)


(5)


(6)


(7)


(8)


(9)


Expenses relate to reimbursements of expenses incurred whilst undertaking Fire Brigade business.


Pension contributions only relate to the Authority’s contribution to the relevant pension scheme. For Uniformed posts 


these contributions are set nationally and for non-uniformed posts they are set by the Teesside Pension Fund. In 


addition, the employee contributes a share of their salary to the schemes. Uniformed staff in the 1992 Fire Fighters 


scheme earning between £62,436 and £104,060 contribute 16.0%, earning between £104,061 and £124,872 


contribute 16.5% and earning more than £124,872 contribute 17.0%.  Non-uniformed employees earning between 


£89,400 and £105,200 contribute 10.5% and earning between £105,201 and £157,800 contribute 11.4%.


The annualised salary of the Chief Fire Officer for 2018/19 was £158,520 (£155,794 in 2017/18), the actual includes 


pay arrears of £390 relating to 2017/18. There were no pension contributions made on behalf of the Chief Fire 


Officer, which saved the Authority £34,484 in 2018/19 (£33,891 in 2017/18).


The Director of Community Protection left the Authority on 4th April 2018 and the role was removed as part of the 


Senior Management Restructure. The Director of Community Protection was paid on a single point salary scale which 


for 2018/19 was £106,514 (£104,682 in 2017/18). Salary paid in 2018/19 includes pay arrears of £262 relating to 


2017/18.


The Director of Technical Services is paid on a single point salary scale which for 2018/19 was £106,514 (£104,682 


in 2017/18).  Salary paid in 2018/19 includes pay arrears of £262 relating to 2017/18.


The Director of Business Development left the Authority on 5th April 2018 and the role was removed as part of the 


Senior Management Restructure. The Director of Business Development was paid on a single point salary scale which 


for 2018/19 was £94,600 (£93,663 in 2017/18), the actual includes pay arrears of £234 relating to 2017/18. This 


salary level was approved by the Cleveland Fire Authority Risk Management Services Community Interest Company 


(the CIC) board and this cost was fully funded by the CIC up to 31 March 2018.  The amount included in Cleveland 


Fire Authority accounts in 2018/19 is part of the Principal Officer Cover provided.


The Director of Corporate Services is paid on a single point salary scale which for 2018/19 was £106,514 (£104,682 


for 2017/18).  Salary paid in 2018/19 includes pay arrears of £262 relating to 2017/18.


The Legal Advisor and Monitoring Officer is paid on a single point salary scale which for 2018/19 was £29,043. In 


2017/18, this role was provided under an SLA with Hartlepool Borough Council.


Area Managers are paid on a single point salary scale which for 2018/19 was £68,943 (£67,584 in 2017/18), plus 


appropriate allowances. Salary includes pay award arrears of £329 relating to 2018/19.


Notes
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Note 11: Officers' Remuneration


950,000 to 54,999


55,000 to 59,999


60,000 to 64,999


9


‘Remuneration’ is measured as gross pay (before deduction of employees’ pension contributions), plus compensation for


loss of office and any other payments receivable on the termination of employment in line with the Code guidance.


2017/18 2018/19


Restated


21


65,000 to 69,9993 3


22


In 2018/19 and 2017/18 no employees took either voluntary redundancy or early retirement. There were no costs in the


form of redundancy payments to the pension fund in respect of retirement benefits for these years.


4


Termination Costs


No. of Employees


4


11


No. of Employees


0


This table excludes details of senior officers set out in the table above. 2017/18 numbers by banding have been restated


to exclude employer pension contributions in line with the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015.


Other employees with a salary of £50,000 or more


Remuneration Band


(£)
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Note 12: Non Current Assets - Property, Plant & Equipment


Movements in 2018/19
Other Land & 


Buildings


Vehicles, Plant 


& Equipment


PP&E Under 


Construction


Surplus 


Assets


Assets Held 


for Sale
Total     


£000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s


Certified Valuation


At 1 April 2018 32,531 7,928 2,834 125 375 43,793 


Additions 145 163 430 -  -  738 


Revaluation increases / (Decreases) recognised in the 


Revaluation Reserve
304 -  -  -  -  304 


Revaluation increases / (Decreases) recognised in the 


Surplus/Deficit on the Provision of Services
(2,019) -  -  -  -  (2,019)


Assets reclassified 3,036 -  (3,036) -  -  -  


Derecognition-Disposals -  (87) -  -  (375) (462)


Impairment recognised in Revaluation Reserve -  -  -  -  -  -  


Impairment recognised in Surplus/Deficit on Provision of 


Services
(96) -  -  -  -  (96)


At 31 March 2019 33,901 8,004 228 125 -  42,258 


Accumulated Depreciation and Impairment


At 1 April 2018 (1,905) (4,094) -  -  -  (5,999)


Depreciation Charge (581) (553) -  -  -  (1,134)


Depreciation written out to the Revaluation Reserve on 


Historic Cost
(138) -  -  -  -  (138)


Depreciation written out to the Revaluation Reserve on 


Revalued Assets
875 -  -  -  -  875 


Derecognition - Disposals -  75 -  -  -  75 


At 31 March 2019 (1,749) (4,572) -  -  -  (6,321)


Net Book Value


At 31 March 2019 32,152 3,432 228 125 -  35,937 


Nature of Asset Holding


Owned 32,152 3,432 228 125 -  35,937 


Total 32,152 3,432 228 125 -  35,937 


Movements in 2017/18
Other Land & 


Buildings


Vehicles, Plant 


& Equipment


PP&E Under 


Construction


Surplus 


Assets


Assets Held 


for Sale
Total     


£000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s


Certified Valuation


At 1 April 2017 31,346 7,428 3,372 200 -  42,346 


Additions -  559 5,772 -  -  6,331 


Revaluation increases / (Decreases) recognised in the 


Revaluation Reserve
(637) -  -  -  -  (637)


Revaluation increases / (Decreases) recognised in the 


Surplus/Deficit on the Provision of Services
(1,823) -  -  -  (1,220) (3,043)


Assets reclassified 4,590 -  (6,310) 125 1,595 -  


Derecognition-Disposals -  (59) -  (200) -  (259)


Impairment recognised in Revaluation Reserve (599) -  -  -  -  (599)


Impairment recognised in Surplus/Deficit on Provision of 


Services
(346) -  -  -  -  (346)


At 31 March 2018 32,531 7,928 2,834 125 375 43,793 


Accumulated Depreciation and Impairment


At 1 April 2017 (1,747) (3,562) -  (6) -  (5,315)


Depreciation Charge (567) (591) -  -  -  (1,158)


Depreciation written out to the Revaluation Reserve on 


Historic Cost
(132) -  -  -  -  (132)


Depreciation written out to the Revaluation Reserve on 


Revalued Assets
541 -  -  -  -  541 


Derecognition - Disposals -  59 -  6 -  65 


At 31 March 2018 (1,905) (4,094) -  -  -  (5,999)


Net Book Value


At 31 March 2018 30,626 3,834 2,834 125 375 37,794 


Nature of Asset Holding


Owned 30,626 3,834 2,834 125 375 37,794 


Total 30,626 3,834 2,834 125 375 37,794 
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Note 12: Non Current Assets - Property, Plant & Equipment


Depreciation


- Other Land and Buildings - 40 years


- Vehicles, Plant, Furniture & Equipment - 5 to 20 years.


Revaluations


Other Land 


and Buildings


Vehicle, Plant 


and 


Equipment


PPE under 


Construction Surplus Assets


Assets Held for 


Sale Total


£000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s


Valued at Historical Cost -  3,432 228 -  -  3,660 


Valued at current value as at:


Current Year 9,133 -  -  125 -  9,258 


2017/2018 8,905 -  -  -  -  8,905 


2016/2017 11,568 -  -  -  -  11,568 


2015/2016 2,546 -  -  -  -  2,546 


2014/2015 -  -  -  -  -  -  


Total 32,152 3,432 228 125 -  35,937 


Alternative Valuation Model


- Other Land and Buildings:  £19.138m


- Surplus Assets:  £0.093m


Surplus Assets - Fair Value


There were no transfers between Levels 1, 2 and 3 during the year.


Capital Commitments


Non Current Assets - Property, Plant & Equipment - Revaluations


2017/18 2018/19


£000s £000s


8,146 9,187 


31 31 


8,177 9,218 


The Authority holds one surplus asset, Grangetown Training School and land.  The asset was valued at fair value using 


the fair value hierarchy, Level 2.


The following useful lives and depreciation rates have been used in the calculation of depreciation:


The Authority carries out a rolling programme that ensures that all Property, Plant and Equipment are required to be


revalued at least every five years. All valuations are carried out by Hartlepool Borough Council on behalf of the


Authority. Valuations of land and buildings are carried out in accordance with the methodologies and bases for


estimation set out in the professional standards of the Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors. Valuations of vehicles,


plant, furniture and equipment are based on current prices where there is an active second-hand market or latest list


prices adjusted for the condition of the asset.


Other Land and Buildings are measured at current value, Surplus Assets are measured at fair value. If the Authority had


chosen to measure the value of these assets under the cost model their carrying amount as at 31 March 2019 would


have been:


Revaluation Reserve Balance


The following is an analysis of the Revaluation Reserve by asset type.


     Other Land & Buildings


     Surplus Assets


At 31 March 2019, the Authority has rephased capital expenditure totalling £0.361m into 2019/20, of which £0.090m 


will be funded by the Capital Investment Reserve and £0.271m from the Capital Receipts Reserve.  The rephased 


capital work is at Queens Meadow Learning and Development Centre of £0.030m and specialist vehicles of £0.331m.  


The comparable capital commitment at 31 March 2018 was contractually committed building works at Queens Meadow 


for the Learning and Development Centre of £0.196m, and at Grangetown Fire Station for demolition costs of £0.142m.
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Note 13: Non Current Assets - Intangible Assets


2017/18 2018/19


£000s £000s
Balance at the start of the year


138 Gross carrying amounts 138 
(99) Accumulated amortisation (116)


39 Net carrying amount at start of year 22 


(17) Amortisation for the period (17)


22 Net carrying amount at end of year 5 


Comprising


138 Gross carrying amounts 138 
(116) Accumulated amortisation (133)


22 5 


Note 14: Long Term Debtors


This note sets out amounts owed to the Authority as at 31st March 2019.


2017/18 2018/19


£000s £000s


114 Finance Lease Receivable 64 


Note 15: Inventories


This note sets out the value of inventories held by the Authority at 31 March 2019.


2017/18 2018/19


£000s Stores £000s


395 Balance 1st April 493 
635 Purchases 682 


(534) Recognised as an expense in year (684)


(3) Written off Balances (2)


493 489 


All software is given a finite useful life of 7 years. This is based on the assessment of the period that the software is


expected to be of use to the Authority and is in line with the Authority's accounting policy.


The Authority accounts for its software as intangible assets and includes the purchase of software licences.  


The Finance Lease receivable relates to the lease of a vehicle from the Authority to Cleveland Fire Brigade Risk


Management Services CIC in 2013/14.  The closing balance is the outstanding amount owed to the Authority.


The amortisation of £0.017m charged to revenue in 2018/19 was charged to the Supplies and Services heading in the


Cost of Services. 


The movement on intangible asset balances during the year is as follows:


The carrying amount of intangible assets is amortised on a straight line basis.
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Note 16: Short Term Debtors


This note sets out amounts owed to the Authority as at 31st March 2019.


2017/18 2018/19


Net Net


Debtor Debtor


£000s £000s


Government Bodies:


3,928 Central Government Bodies 2,878
1,074 Other Local Authorities 1,666


22 NHS Bodies 4


Bodies external to general government:


919 General and Other Debtors 96
167 Trade Debtors 164


6,110 4,808


Note 17: Cash and Cash Equivalents


2017/18 2018/19


£000s £000s


Current Assets


3 Bank and Imprests 459 


5,206 Liquidity Accounts 3,414 


5,209 3,873 


Current Liabilities


(184) Bank Overdraft -  


(184) -  


5,025 3,873 


Note 18: Short Term Creditors


This note sets out amounts owed by the Authority as at 31st March 2019.


2017/18 2018/19


£000s £000s


Government Bodies:


447 Central Government Bodies 483


263 Collection Fund Agency Agreement 269


534 Other Local Authorities 812


Bodies external to general government:


334 Employees 298


678 General and Other Creditors 389


83 Trade Creditors 24


2,339 2,275 


This note sets out details of the Authority's cash in hand and instant access investment accounts in addition to the 


overdraft included in the Liabilities section of the balance sheet.


The Central Government Bodies debtor relates mainly to the Fire Fighters Pension Scheme top up grant also disclosed in 


the Pension Fund Account Statements.  The Other Local Authorities debtor mainly relates to year end accounting entries 


required in relation to the Business Rates Collection Fund.
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Note 19: Provisions


2017/18 Rating Appeals 2018/19


£000s £000s


210 Balance at 1st April 214 


57 Additional provisions made in year 111 


(53) Amounts used in year (38)


214 Balance at 31st March 287 


Note 20: Long Term Borrowing


2017/18 2018/19


£000s £000s


Loan repayments due after one year:


2,000  Money Market 2,000


7,394  Public Works Loan Board 7,255


9,394 9,255


Note 21: Other Long Term Liabilities


2017/18 2018/19


£000s £000s


467,363 Net Pensions Liability 479,895


Following the implementation of the Business Rates Retention Scheme, this provision is earmarked to fund backdated


rating appeals as a result of Rateable Value changes and represents 1% of the total appeals. These costs were previously


met by Central Government. It is expected that these appeals will be settled during 2019/20.


This note sets out details of the Authority's Long Term Borrowing.


The Other Long Term Liabilities relate to the Net Pensions Liability.
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Note 22: Usable Reserves


2017/18 2018/19


£000s £000s Note


1,552 Unearmarked General Fund Balance 1,552 a


Budget Support Fund Reserves


2,913 Budget Support Fund 4,122 b


850 CIRMP Implementation Reserve -  c


3,763 4,122


Earmarked Revenue Reserves


566 Innovation Fund 566 d


598 Capital Phasing Reserve 747 e


200 Insurance Fund 551 f


200 Commissioned Services 200 g


108 Pension Reserve 55 h


125 Breathing Apparatus 125 i


-  Property Reserve 334 j


-  Levy Account Surplus 141 k


1,797 2,719


Earmarked Capital Reserves


2,507 Capital Investment Programme 2,173 l


264 Capital Receipts Reserve 271 m


2,771 2,444


9,883 Total Reserves 10,837


a) 


b) 


c) 


d)


e) 


f)


g) 


h)


i)


j) 


k)


l)


m)


This reserve has been established to support the self-insured insurance fund which provides for payments that fall within


the Authority's insurance policy excesses.


Following the latest actuarial valuation, this reserve has been created to fund the lump sum contribution of the pension


cost relating to the LGPS.


This amount is the Authority's share of the one off Business Rates levy account funding distributed by the Government


and is allocated to support the 2019/20 budget.


Usable Reserves are the Authority's main financial reserves and are earmarked to meet future expenditure liabilities and


to manage financial risks as detailed below.  Movements in these reserves are detailed in Note 5.


This amount will be maintained to meet any unforeseen circumstances which might arise. The value of this reserve


reflects the Authority's assessment of a range of financial risks which may occur over the next four years. The availability


of this reserve will enable the Authority to manage these issues and avoid the need for additional in-year budget


reductions over and above those already planned. These risks include the impact of potential shortfalls in the Authority's


share of Business Rates income.


This reserve is earmarked to support the budget in 2019/20 and future years.


This reserve is earmarked to manage income volatility and to provide a longer lead time to manage temporary income


reductions.


This amount has been set aside to meet the costs of replacing the breathing apparatus telemetry in line with the


replacement programme included in the Asst Management Plan. 


This reserve will be used over a number of years to smooth the interest and loan repayment costs which are charged to


the annual budget. The reserve recognises that the annual charges, which arise from the use of Prudential Borrowing to


fund part of the approved Asset Management Plan, are uneven and therefore avoids temporary increases/decreases in the


annual charge to the revenue budget.


This reserve was created primarily to fund domestic sprinkler installations. This reserve will be used over a number of


years as detailed projects are identified and implemented.


This is earmarked to fund projects delayed from 2018/19 to 2019/20.


This reserve was fully utilised in 2018/19 to support the budget.


This reserve will be used to partly fund the Authority's Asset Management Plan which is designed to address operational


requirements covering the Authority's buildings, including Fire Stations and operational fire fighting and rescue vehicles. It


is planned to use this funding over the next two to three years. Expenditure on the Authority's buildings will ensure


facilities meet operational requirements detailed in the Integrated Risk Management Plan and help deliver ongoing


revenue savings in future years, including removing back log maintenance requirements. Expenditure on operational


vehicles will ensure the Authority maintains its operational effectiveness and is able to respond to the significant risks


within the Authority's area.


These reserves are set aside to fund future Capital projects.
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Note 23: Unusable Reserves


2017/18 2018/19


£000s £000s Table


8,178 Revaluation Reserve 9,219 1


20,674 Capital Adjustment Account 18,265 2


(467,363) Pensions Reserve (479,895) 3


162 Deferred Capital Receipts Reserve 114 4


115 Collection Fund Adjustment Account (22) 5


(247) Accumulated Absences Account (235) 6


(438,481) Balance at 31 March (452,554)


Table 1 - Revaluation Reserve


·   revalued downwards or impaired and the gains are lost;
·   used in the provision of services and the gains are consumed through depreciation; or 
·   disposed of and the gains are realised. 


2017/18 2018/19


£000s £000s


9,005 Balance at 1 April 8,178 


(1,989)


Downward revaluation of assets and impairment 


losses not charged to the Surplus / Deficit on the 


Provision of Services


(1,134)


1,294 Upward revaluation of assets 2,313 


(695)


Surplus/(Deficit) on revaluation of non-current 


assets not posted to the Surplus/Deficit on the 


Provision of Services


1,179 


(132)
Difference between fair value depreciation and 


historical cost depreciation
(138)


(132)
Amounts written off to the Capital Adjustment 


Account
(138)


8,178 Balance at 31 March 9,219 


The Revaluation Reserve contains the gains made by the Authority arising from increases in the value of its Property,


Plant and Equipment. The balance is reduced when assets with accumulated gains are:


The reserve contains only revaluation gains accumulated since 1 April 2007, the date that the Reserve was created.


Accumulated gains arising before that date are consolidated into the balance on the Capital Adjustment Account.
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Table 2 - Capital Adjustment Account


2017/18 2018/19
£000s £000s


21,180 Balance at 1 April 20,674 


(1,636) (1,368)


(3,043) (2,019)


(17) (17)


(193) (387)


132 138 


(4,757) (3,653)


Capital financing applied in the year:


158 -  


-  314 


47 48 


427 458 


3,619 424 


4,251 1,244 


20,674 Balance at 31 March 18,265


The Account also contains revaluation gains accumulated on Property, Plant and Equipment before 1 April 2007, the date


that the Revaluation Reserve was created to hold such gains. Note 5 provides details of the source of all the transactions


posted to the accounts apart from those involving the revaluation reserve.


Application of grants to capital financing from the 


Capital Grants Receipts in Advance Account


Direct revenue funding credited to the Comprehensive 


Income and Expenditure Statement that have been 


applied to capital financing


Application of Capital Receipts in relation to finance 


lease to reduce capital financing requirement


Reversal of items relating to capital expenditure


debited or credited to the Comprehensive Income and


Expenditure Statement:


Amortisation of intangible assets 


Revaluation losses on Property, Plant and Equipment


The Capital Adjustment Account absorbs the timing differences arising from the different arrangements for accounting for


the consumption of non-current assets and for financing the acquisition, construction or enhancement of those assets


under statutory provisions. The account is debited with the cost of acquisition, construction or enhancement as


depreciation, impairment losses and amortisation are charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement


(with reconciling postings from the revaluation reserve to convert fair value figures to a historical cost basis). The


account is credited with the amounts set aside by the Authority as finance for the costs of acquisition, construction and


enhancement.


Charges for depreciation and impairment of non-


current assets


The Account contains accumulated gains recognised on donated assets that have yet to be consumed by the Authority.


Statutory provision for the financing of capital 


investment charged against the General Fund 


balances


Amounts of non-current assets written off on disposal 


or sale as part of the gain/loss on disposal to the 


Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement


Adjusting amounts written out of the Revaluation


Reserve


Net written out amount of the cost of non-current


assets consumed in the year


Application of Capital Receipts Reserve to finance 


capital expenditure
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Table 3 - Pensions Reserve


2017/18 2018/19
£000s £000s


(461,050) Balance at 1 April (467,363)


8,395 6,684 


(17,323) (21,710)


2,390 2,269 


225 225 


(467,363) Balance at 31 March (479,895)


Table 4 - Deferred Capital Receipts Reserve


2017/18 2018/19
£000s £000s


209 Balance at 1 April 162 


(47) (48)


162 Balance at 31 March 114 


Employer’s pension contributions


Direct payments to pensioners payable in year


Transfer to the Capital Receipts Reserve upon receipt of cash


The Deferred Capital Receipts Reserve holds the gains recognised on the disposal of non current assets but for which


cash settlement has yet to take place. Under statutory arrangements, the Authority does not treat these gains as usable


for financing new capital expenditure until they are backed by cash receipts. When the deferred cash settlement


eventually takes place, amounts are transferred to the Capital Receipts Reserve.


Reversal of items relating to retirement benefits debited or credited


to the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services in the


Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement


Remeasurement of defined pension liability on


pensions assets and liabilities


The Pensions Reserve absorbs the timing differences arising from the different arrangements for accounting for post


employment benefits and for funding benefits in accordance with statutory provisions. The Authority accounts for post


employment benefits in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement as the benefits are earned by employees


accruing years of service, updating the liabilities recognised to reflect inflation, changing assumptions and investment


returns on any resources set aside to meet the costs. However, statutory arrangements require benefits earned to be


financed as the Authority makes employer's contributions to pension funds or eventually pays any pensions for which it


is directly responsible. The debit balance on the Pensions Reserve therefore shows a substantial shortfall in the benefits


earned by past and current employees and the resources the Authority has set aside to meet them. The statutory


arrangements will ensure that funding will have been set aside by the time the benefits come to be paid. 
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Table 5 - Collection Fund Adjustment Account


2017/18 2018/19


£000s £000s


132 Balance at 1 April 115 


(17) (137)


115 Balance at 31 March (22)


Table 6 - Accumulated Absences Account


2017/18 2018/19
£000s £000s


(243) Balance at 1 April (247)


(4) 12 


(247) Balance at 31 March (235)


Amount by which officer remuneration charged to the


Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement on an accruals


basis is different from remuneration chargeable in the year in


accordance with statutory requirements


The Accumulated Absences Account absorbs the differences that would otherwise arise on the General Fund Balance from


accruing for compensated absences earned but not taken in the year, e.g. annual leave entitlement carried forward at 31


March. Statutory arrangements require that the impact on the General Fund Balance is neutralised by transfers to or


from the Account.  


Amount by which Council Tax and Non-Domestic Rates income


credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement


is different from Council Tax and Non-Domestic Rates income


calculated for the year in accordance with statutory requirements


The Collection Fund Adjustment Account manages the differences arising from the recognition of council tax and non-


domestic rates precept income in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement as it falls due compared with


the statutory arrangements for paying across amounts set by the billing authorities.
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Note 24: Related Party Transactions


Central Government


Local Government


2017/18 2018/19


£000s £000s


Council Tax Precepts/Business Rates Retention


1,990    Hartlepool Borough Council 2,118 
2,818    Middlesbrough Borough Council 2,853 
3,161    Redcar & Cleveland Borough Council 3,345 
4,840    Stockton on Tees Borough Council 5,058 


12,809 13,374 


Authority Members


Chief Officers


Cleveland Fire Authority Risk Management Services Community Interest Company (CIC)


Land & Property


Other Relevant Information


The Authority is required to disclose material transactions with related parties – bodies or individuals that have the


potential to control or influence the Authority or to be controlled or influenced by the Authority.


Central Government have effective control over the general operations of the Authority. It is responsible for providing


the Statutory framework within which the Authority operates, and provides the majority of funding in the form of general


or specific grants.


The Authority obtains part of its income from Council Tax Precepts and Business Rates levied on the collection authorities


in its area.  During the year, transactions with related parties were as follows:


Disclosures in respect of Members’ interests are required to be reported. After consultation with Members there are no


disclosures to report.


The cost of services provided by the Authority to the four constituent authorities total £0.102m (£0.108m in 2017/18).


The cost of services received by the Authority from Hartlepool Borough Council total £0.192m (£0.217m in 2017/18).


From the 1st April 2014 the Authority no longer directly employs its own Treasurer. The role of the Treasurer is carried


out by Hartlepool Borough Council's Director of Finance and Policy via a Service Level Agreement. From 1st April 2018


the Authority no longer has a Service Level Agreement for Legal Services with Hartlepool Borough Council and employs


its own Legal Advisor/Monitoring Officer.


Disclosures in respect of Chief Fire Officer and Directors interests are also required to be reported. After consultation


with the Chief Fire Officer and Directors there are no disclosures to report.


The Cleveland Fire Brigade Risk Management CIC is a community interest company limited by guarantee and wholly


owned by the Cleveland Fire Authority. The company was set up and registered on 31st March 2011. The Company


registration number is 7583911. The Fire Authority has established the Community Interest Company as a trading


organisation as required by the Local Government Act 2003 (section 95) and under the powers conferred by SI


2009/2393. Board Directors are I Hayton (Chief Fire Officer) as Chairman; K Winter (Director of Corporate Services),


S.R. Khaliq, P.J. Lancaster (up to 4th April 2018) and P Devlin. The purpose of the company is to facilitate trading


commercially by the Brigade in function related activities and use profits/surpluses for the benefit of the community.


After consultation with the Directors there are no transactions to report.


The Authority has an operating lease with a peppercorn rent, relating to Land & Property with Police & Crime


Commissioner for use of part of Grangetown Fire Station
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Note 25: External Audit Costs


2017/18 2018/19


£000s £000s


29 Fees payable in respect of external audit services carried 


out by the appointed auditor for the year


22 


4 Additional fee owing to work required for audit of the 


Group Accounts


4 


33 26 


Note 26: Operating Leases


2017/18 Future minimum lease payments due 2018/19


£000s £000s


62 Not later than one year 39 


18 Later than one year & not later than five years 39 


80 78 


The minimum lease payments incurred were as follows:


2017/18 Minimum Lease Payments in Year 2018/19


£000s £000s


94 Vehicles 49 


The Authority has incurred the following costs in relation to the audit of the Statement of Accounts, statutory inspections


and to non-audit services provided by the Authority’s external auditors:


The Authority has one water tender and 17 contract hire cars on lease with outstanding obligations as follows:


The Authority has an operating lease with a peppercorn rent, relating to Land and Property with Police & Crime 


Commissioner for use of Grangetown Training Centre.
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Note 27: Finance Leases


Authority as Lessor


31 March 2018 31 March 2019
£000s £000s


48 50 


114 64 


10 5 


172 Gross investment in the lease 119 


Gross 


Investment in 


the Lease


Minimum Lease 


Payments


Gross 


Investment in 


the Lease


Minimum Lease 


Payments
31 March 2018 31 March 2018 31 March 2019 31 March 2019


£000s £000s £000s £000s


53 53 Not later than one year 53 53 


119 119 Later than one year & not later 


than five years


66 66 


172 172 119 119 


The Authority has leased out a specialist industrial fire appliance to Cleveland Fire Brigade Risk Management Services


Community Interest Company on a finance lease with a term of 8 years.  The lease commenced on 1st July 2013.


The Authority has a gross investment in the lease, made up of the minimum lease payments expected to be received


over the remaining term and the residual value anticipated for the appliance when the lease comes to an end. The


minimum lease payments comprise settlement of the long-term debtor for the interest in the appliance acquired by the


lessee and finance income that will be earned by the Authority in future years whilst the debtor remains outstanding.


The gross investment is made up of the following amounts:


The gross investment in the lease and the minimum lease payments will be received over the following periods:


Finance lease debtor (net present value of 


minimum lease payments):


Current


Non-current


Unearned finance income
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Note 28: Capital Expenditure and Financing


2017/18 2018/19
£000s £000s


6,888 Opening Capital Financing Requirement 8,968 


Capital investment


559 Property Plant and Equipment 308 


5,772 Assets Under Construction 430 


Sources of Finance


(158) Government grants and other contributions -  


Sums set aside from revenue:


(3,619) Direct revenue contributions (424)


-  Application of Capital Receipts (314)


(47)
Application of Capital Receipts in relation to finance lease to 


reduce capital financing requirement
(48)


(427) Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP) (458)


8,968 Closing Capital Financing Requirement 8,462 


Explanation of movements in year


2,554 Increase/(Decrease) in underlying need to borrow (unsupported 


by government financial assistance)


-  


(47) Application of Capital Receipts in relation to finance lease to 


reduce capital financing requirement


(48)


(427) Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP) (458)


2,080 Increase/(decrease) in Capital Financing Requirement (506)


The total amount of capital expenditure incurred in the year is shown in the table below, together with the resources that


have been used to finance it. Where capital expenditure is to be financed in future years by charges to revenue as assets


are used by the Authority, the expenditure results in an increase in the Capital Financing Requirement (CFR), a measure


of the capital expenditure incurred historically by the Authority that has yet to be financed. The CFR is analysed in the


second part of this note. 
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Note 29: Financial Instruments


Categories of Financial Instruments


The following categories of financial instrument are carried in the Balance Sheet:


Long Term Current Long Term Current


£000s £000s £000s £000s


Investments at Amortised Cost


-  5,206 Liquidity Accounts included in Cash Equivalents -  3,414 


100 2,256 Loans and receivables at Amortised Cost (Note 1) 30 5,905 


100 7,462 Total Investments at Amortised Cost 30 9,319 


Debtors


-  7,730 Non-financial Assets (Note 2) -  5,888 


114 197 
Financial Assets (including Trade Debtors and General 


and Other Debtors and Long Term Debtors) (Note 3)
64 259 


114 7,927 Total debtors  64 6,147 


Borrowings at Amortised Cost


9,394 188 Financial liabilities at amortised cost (Note 4) 9,255 191 


9,394 188 Total borrowings at Amortised Cost 9,255 191 


Creditors


-  761 Financial liabilities carried at contract amount -  413 


-  761 Total creditors  -  413 


2018/192017/18


There have been no reclassifications of financial instruments or gains and losses arising from recognition or


derecognition.


The 2018/19 Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting has adopted IFRS 9 Financial Instruments. IFRS 9 has


introduced a number of changes to the disclosure of financial instruments. The new classifications are shown below


with notes explaining the previous classifications.


Restated


Note 1 - These assets were previously classified as "loans and receivables" and have been reclassified under IFRS 9 as


"Loans and receivables at Amortised Cost." There was no adjustment to the carrying value in respect of this


reclassification.


Note 2 - In line with previous requirements these assets were not previously disclosed as financial instruments. There


was no adjustment to the carrying value in respect of this reclassification.


Note 3 - These assets were previously disclosed as "Financial Assets carried at contract amounts." In line with previous


requirements Long Term Debtors were not previously disclosed as financial instruments. There was no adjustment to


the carrying value in respect of this reclassification.


Note 4 - As required accrued interest relating to long term borrowing is disclosed within the short term borrowing figure


on the balance sheet. These assets were previously classified as financial liabilities at amortised cost therefore no


reclassification has been necessary in relation to the adoption of IFRS 9.
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Note 29: Financial Instruments


Income, Expense, Gains and Losses


Financial 


Liabilities 


measured 


at 


amortised 


cost


Financial 


Assets: Loans 


and 


receivables at 


amortised 


cost


Total Financial 


Liabilities 


measured 


at 


amortised 


cost


Financial 


Assets: Loans 


and 


receivables at 


amortised cost


Total


£000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s


296 -  296 Interest expense    295 295 


-  (34) (34) Interest income  (64) (64)


296 (34) 262 295 (64) 231 


·        


·        


·        


·        


·        


·        


·        


·        


·        


The fair values calculated are as follows:


Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
Amount Value Amount Value


£000s £000s £000s £000s


Financial Assets


100 104 Investments maturing after one year 30 32 


2,256 2,256 Investments maturing within one year 5,905 5,905 


5,206 5,206 Liquidity Accounts included in Cash 


Equivalents


3,414 3,414 


197 197 Short Term Debtors 259 259 


114 114 Long Term Finance Debtor with CIC 64 64 


7,873 7,877 9,672 9,674 


Financial liabilities 


2,000 4,084 Market Loans 2,000 3,944 


7,582 9,549 Public Works Loan Board 7,445 9,533 


761 761 Trade Creditors and General and Other 


Creditors


413 413 


10,343 14,394 9,858 13,890 


31 March 2018


2017/18 2018/19


Net (gain)/loss for the year


For non-PWLB loans payable, premature market rates have been applied to provide the fair value under PWLB debt


redemption procedures;


31 March 2019


No early repayment or impairment is recognised;


Where an instrument has a maturity of less than 12 months or is a trade or other receivable the fair value is taken to be the


carrying amount or the billed amount;


The fair value of trade and other receivables is taken to be the invoiced or billed amount.


The Fair Values of Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities that are not measured at Fair Value (but for which 


Fair Value disclosures are required)


Except for financial assets carried at fair value, all other financial liabilities and financial assets represented by loans and


receivables and long-term debtors and creditors are carried in the Balance Sheet at amortised cost. However disclosure of


their value is required and is set out below.


Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between


market participants at the measurement date. Input to the valuation techniques in respect of assets and liabilities for which


fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the "fair value hierarchy," as follows:


For loans from the PWLB payable, premature repayment rates from the PWLB have been applied to provide the fair value


under the PWLB debt redemption procedures;


Restated


The fair value of the assets and liabilities below have been assessed by calculating the present value of the cash flows that


will take place over the remaining life of the instruments (Level 2 in the fair value hierarchy), using the following


assumptions:


Level 1 - Unadjusted quoted market prices for identical assets or liabilities;


Level 2 - Inputs other than quoted market prices that are either directly or indirectly observable;


Level 3 - Unobservable inputs.


For loans receivable prevailing benchmark market rates have been used to provide the fair value;
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Note 29: Financial Instruments


Short term trade debtors and trade creditors are carried at cost as this is a fair approximation of their value.


The fair value of the liabilities is higher than the carrying amount because the Authority’s portfolio of loans includes a number


of fixed rate loans where the interest rate payable is higher than the prevailing rates at the Balance Sheet date. This shows a


notional loss (based on economic conditions at 31 March, 2019) arising from a commitment to pay interest to lenders above


current market rates.


However, the Authority has a continuing ability to borrow at concessionary rates from the PWLB rather than from the markets.


A supplementary measure of the additional interest that the Authority will pay as a result of its PWLB commitments for fixed


rate loans is to compare the terms of these loans with the new borrowing rates available from the PWLB. If a value is


calculated on this basis, the carrying amount of £7.445m would be valued at £8.157m. However, if the Authority were to seek


to avoid the projected loss by repaying the loans to the PWLB, the PWLB would raise a penalty charge for early redemption in


addition to charging a premium for the additional interest that will not now be paid. The exit price for the PWLB loans would


be the outstanding loan debt and accrued interest of £7.445m plus a penalty charge of £2.088m totalling £9.533m.


The fair value of Public Works Loan Board (PWLB) loans of £9.533m measures the economic effect of the terms agreed with


the PWLB compared with estimates of the terms that would be offered for market transactions undertaken at the Balance


Sheet date. The difference between the carrying amount and the fair value is calculated by applying the PWLB redemption


interest rates, which are lower than the borrowing interest rates. The fair value therefore measures the additional interest


that the authority will pay over the remaining terms of the loans under the agreements with the PWLB, against what would be


paid if the loans were at prevailing market rates, taken to be these lower redemption interest rates. However, it should be


noted that the borrowing interest rates on the debt drawn equated to the prevailing borrowing, as opposed to redemption


rates at the balance sheet date.
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The Authority’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:


·        


·        


·        


·


·


·


·        


·        


·        


·        


·        


Credit Risk


Note 30: Nature and Extent of Risks Arising from Financial Instruments


the Authorised Limit for 2018/19 was set at £16.0m (£16.0m in 2017/18). This is the maximum limit of external


borrowings or other long term liabilities;


Customers for goods and services are assessed, taking into account their financial position, past experience and other


factors, with individual credit limits being set in accordance with internal ratings in accordance with parameters set by the


Authority.


credit risk – the possibility that other parties might fail to pay amounts due to the Authority;


liquidity risk – the possibility that the Authority might not have funds available to meet its commitments to make 


payments; and


market risk – the possibility that financial loss might arise for the Authority as a result of changes in such measures as 


interest rates and stock market movements.


The Authority’s overall risk management procedures focus on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to


minimise potential adverse effects on the resources available to fund services. Risk management is carried out by


Hartlepool Borough Council's Treasury Management team as part of the Service Level Agreement under policies approved


by the Authority in the annual Treasury Management Strategy. These are in accordance with the Local Government Act


2003 and associated regulations and require the Authority to comply with the CIPFA Prudential Code, the CIPFA Code of


Practice on Treasury Management in the Public Services and Investment Guidance issued through the Act. Overall, these


procedures require the Authority to manage risk in the following ways:


by formally adopting the requirements of the CIPFA Treasury Management Code of Practice;


by the adoption of a Treasury Policy Statement and treasury management clauses within its financial


regulations/standing orders/constitution;


- the Authority’s overall borrowing;


The Authority’s maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to its investments in banks and building societies cannot be


assessed generally as the risk of any institution failing to make interest payments or repay the principal sum will be


specific to each individual institution. Recent experience has shown that it is rare for such entities to be unable to meet


their commitments. A risk of irrecoverability applies to all of the Authority’s deposits, but there was no evidence at the 31


March 2019 that this was likely to crystallise. 


by approving annually in advance prudential and treasury indicators for the following three years limiting:


the maximum amount of gross variable interest rate exposure for borrowing and investments was set at 75% and 100%


respectively.


These items are reported within the annual Treasury Management Strategy which outlines the detailed approach to


managing risk in relation to the Authority’s financial instrument exposure. Actual performance is also reported annually to


Members.  The role of the Audit & Governance Committee includes the scrutiny of treasury activities.


- its maximum and minimum exposures to the maturity structure of its debt;


- its maximum and minimum exposures to fixed and variable rates;


The Operational Boundary was set at £13.0m (£13.0m in 2017/18). This is the expected level of debt and other long


term liabilities during the year.


the maximum amounts of gross fixed interest rate exposure for borrowing and investments was set at 100% and 100%


respectively.


The Investment Strategy for 2018/19 is included within the Authority's Treasury Management Strategy.


The annual Treasury Management Strategy which incorporates the prudential indicators was approved by the Fire


Authority on 23 March 2018 and is available on the Fire Authority website.  The key issues within the strategy were:


Credit risk arises from deposits with banks and financial institutions, as well as credit exposures to the Authority’s


customers. This risk is minimised through the Annual Investment Strategy, which requires that deposits are not made with


financial institutions unless they meet identified minimum credit criteria, as laid down by Fitch, Moody’s and Standard &


Poors Ratings Services. The Annual Investment Strategy also imposes a maximum sum to be invested with a financial


institution located within each category. Deposits are not made with banks and financial institutions unless they meet the


minimum requirements of the investment criteria outlined above. The Authority now operates a very restricted


counterparty list which is actively managed to reflect continuing developments in the banking and financial sector.


- its maximum annual exposures to investments maturing beyond a year.


by approving an investment strategy for the forthcoming year setting out its criteria for both investing and selecting


investment counterparties in compliance with the Government Guidance.
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Note 30: Nature and Extent of Risks Arising from Financial Instruments


Asset Class: 


Debtors 


(Non-


Financial 


Assets)


£000s


(1,542)


202 


(1,340)


31 March 2018 31 March 2019
£000s £000s


Less than three months 35 3 


35 3 


Liquidity Risk


31 March 2018 31 March 2019
£000s £000s


Less than one year 135 139 
Between one and five years 498 458 
Between five and ten years 526 541 
Between ten and fifteen years 608 626 
Between fifteen and twenty years 702 723 
Between twenty and twenty-five years 812 836 
Between twenty-five years and thirty years 939 967 
Between thirty and thirty-five years 1,086 1,118 
Between thirty-five and forty years 2,223 1,986 
Between forty and forty-five years -  -  
More than forty-five years 2,000 2,000 


9,529 9,394 


All trade and other payables are due to be paid in less than one year.


                    Opening Balance


                    Changes in Impairment of Financial Assets


The Authority does not generally allow credit for customers, such that £0.003m of the £0.259m Debtors (Financial Assets)


balance is past its due date for payment. The past due but not impaired amount can be analysed by age as follows:


No credit limits were exceeded during the reporting period and the Authority does not expect any losses from non-


performance by any of its counterparties in relation to deposits.


The Authority has a comprehensive cash flow management system that seeks to ensure that cash is available as needed.


If unexpected movements happen, the Authority has ready access to borrowings from the money markets and the Public


Works Loans Board. There is no significant risk that it will be unable to raise finance to meet its commitments under


financial instruments. Instead, the risk is that the Authority will be bound to replenish a significant proportion of its


borrowings at a time of unfavourable interest rates. The Authority sets limits on the maturity structure of its fixed rate


borrowing during specified periods. The limits have been set to enable maximum flexibility as experience has shown it is


possible to move from 100% long term borrowing to 100% short term borrowing and then back to 100% long term


borrowing over a period of two years. Therefore the lower limit was set to nil and upper limit to £13m, equal to the


operational boundary


The maturity structure of borrowing at the year end was as follows:


The following analysis summarises the Authority's changes in loss allowances i.e. bad debt provision for Debtors (Non-


Financial Assets). The changes in loss allowance reflect the Authority's share of its constituent billing authorities' Council


Tax and Business Rates provisions. The Authority has made no loss allowance for other financial assets as the Council has


assessed that any risk of default in relation to borrowers or trade, general and other debtors are not material.


Amounts Arising from Expected Credit Losses


                    Closing Balance
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Note 30: Nature and Extent of Risks Arising from Financial Instruments


Market Risk


Interest Rate Risk


·        


·        


·        


·        


£000s


Increase in interest payable on borrowings 93 


Increase in interest receivable on variable rate investments (93)


Impact on Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services -  


(2,499)


Price Risk


Foreign Exchange Risk


Collateral Risk


The Authority does not invest in equity shares and is consequently not exposed to losses arising from movements in the


prices of the shares.


Borrowings are not carried at fair value, so nominal gains and losses on fixed rate borrowings would not impact on the


Surplus of Deficit on the Provision of Services or Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure. However, changes in


interest payable and receivable on variable rate borrowings and investments will be posted to the Surplus or Deficit on the


Provision of Services and affect the General Fund Balance. Movements in the fair value of fixed rate investments that have


a quoted market price will be reflected in Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure.  


investments at fixed rates – the fair value of the assets will fall.


The Authority holds £2m of long term borrowing in the form of a LOBO (Lender Option Borrower Option) loan from the


money markets, which is subject to periodic "calls" from the lender. Where the lender decides to "call" a loan, they


increase the interest rate of the loan and the Authority then has the opportunity to accept the increased rate or to repay


the loan. In accordance with the Code of Practice, the Authority's LOBO is included in the maturity analysis according to


the end date of the loan rather than when the next call date falls. 


borrowings at fixed rates – the fair value of the liabilities borrowings will fall;


investments at variable rates – the interest income credited to the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services will


rise; and


During the reporting period the Authority held no collateral as security and is therefore not exposed to losses arising from


this risk.


According to this assessment strategy, at 31 March 2019, if interest rates had been 1% higher with all other variables held


constant, the financial effect would be:


The Authority is exposed to risk in terms of its exposure to interest rate movements on its borrowings and investments.


Movements in interest rates have a complex impact on the Authority. For instance, a rise in interest rates would have the


following effects:


borrowings at variable rates – the interest expense charged to the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services will


rise;


Decrease in fair value of fixed rate borrowings liabilities (no impact on the Comprehensive 


Income and Expenditure Statement)


The impact of a 1% fall in interest rates would be as above but with the movements being reversed.


The Treasury Management team has an active strategy for assessing interest rate exposure that feeds into the setting of


the annual budget and which is used to update the budget quarterly during the year. This allows any adverse changes to


be accommodated. The analysis will also advise whether new borrowing taken out is fixed or variable.


The Authority has no financial assets or liabilities denominated in foreign currencies and thus has no exposure to loss


arising from movements in exchange rates.
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The cash flows for operating activities include the following items:


2017/18 2018/19


£000s £000s


12 Interest received 51 


(268) Interest paid (296)


2017/18 2018/19
£000s £000s


1,653 Depreciation and Amortisation 1,289 


3,043 Impairment and downward valuations 2,115 


414 Increase / (decrease) in creditors (402)


(722) (Increase) / decrease in debtors 1,685 


(98) (Increase) / decrease in inventories 4 


14,708 Pension Liability 19,216 


5 Other non-cash items 74 


193 Carrying amount of non-current assets sold 387 


19,196 24,368 


2017/18 2018/19
£000s £000s


8,010 Proceeds from short-term and long-term investments -  


-  
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment, investment property and 


intangible assets
(321)


(158) Capital Grants credited to surplus or deficit on the provision of services -  


7,852 (321)


Note 31: Cash Flow Statement - Operating Activities


The surplus or deficit on the provision of services has been adjusted for the following non-cash movements:


The surplus or deficit on the provision of services has been adjusted for the following items that are investing and 


financing activities:
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2017/18 2018/19
£000s £000s


(7,286) Purchase of property, plant and equipment and investment property (885)


(100) Purchase of short-term and long term investments (3,566)


47 
Proceeds from the sale of property, plant and equipment, investment property and 


intangible assets
369 


158 Other receipts from investing activities -  


(7,181) Net cash flows from investing activities (4,082)


2017/18 2018/19
£000s £000s


2,395 Cash receipts of short and long-term borrowing -  


-  Repayments of short and long-term borrowing (136)


2,395 Net cash flows from financing activities (136)


Note 33: Cash Flow Statement - Financing Activities


Note 32: Cash Flow Statement - Investing Activities
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Note 34: Defined Benefit Pension Schemes


Participation in Pension Schemes


·


 ·


 


 


Transactions Relating to Post-employment Benefits


2018/19


LGPS 


(funded 


benefits)


LGPS 


(unfunded 


benefits)


FFPS 1992 


(Old 


Scheme)


FFPS 


(Comp'n 


Scheme)


FFPS 


2006 


(New 


Scheme)


FFPS 


2015 


(New 


Scheme)


Total


£000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s


Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement


Cost of Services:


Current Service cost 1,100 -  1,709 120 3 2,656 5,588 


Past Service cost (including curtailments) -  -  4,188 -  -  -  4,188 


Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure:


Net Interest Expense 240 1 10,846 181 420 246 11,934 


1,340 1 16,743 301 423 2,902 21,710 


(1,617) -  -  -  -  -  (1,617)


Actuarial (gains) and losses - financial assumptions 2,282 1 20,169 353 1,792 1,358 25,955 


(1,561) (2) (14,934) (259) (808) (615) (18,179)


52 -  739 13 9 -  813 


-  -  (15,607) -  (45) 1,996 (13,656)


496 -  7,110 408 1,371 5,641 15,026 


Movement in Reserves Statement


(1,340) (1) (16,743) (301) (423) (2,902) (21,710)


-  -  -  -  -  -  -  


Employers' contributions payable to the scheme 624 591 -  1 1,053 2,269 


Retirement benefits payable to pensioners -  3 -  222 -  -  225 


Transfer from Pension Reserve (716) 2 (16,152) (79) (422) (1,849) (19,216)


Reversal of net charges made to the Surplus or Deficit 


for the Provision of Services for post employment 


benefits in accordance with the Code


Actuarial (gains) and losses - liability experience


Total Post Employment Benefit Charged to the 


Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 


Statement 


Actual amount charged against the General Fund 


Balance for pensions in the year:


As part of the terms and conditions of employment of its officers, the Authority makes contributions towards the cost of


post employment benefits. Although these benefits will not actually be payable until employees retire, the Authority has


a commitment to make the payments and to disclose them at the time that employees earn their future entitlement.


The Authority participates in two pension schemes: 


The Local Government Pension Scheme.  See Statement of Accounting Policies for further details.


The Fire Fighters' Pension Scheme.  New arrangements were introduced from 1 April 2006.  See Narrative Report for 


details.


Total Post Employment Benefit Charged to the 


Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services


Other Post Employment Benefit Charged to the 


Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement


The principal risks to the Authority of the scheme are the longevity assumptions, statutory changes to the scheme,


structural changes to the scheme (i.e. large-scale withdrawals from the scheme), changes to inflation, bond yields and


the performance of the equity investments held by the scheme. These are mitigated to a certain extent by the


statutory requirements to charge to the General Fund the amounts required by statute as described in the accounting


policies note.


Discretionary post-retirement benefits on early retirement are an unfunded defined benefit arrangement, under which


liabilities are recognised when awards are made.  There are no plan assets built up to meet these pension liabilities.


The Authority recognises the cost of retirement benefits in the reported cost of services when they are earned by


employees, rather than when the benefits are eventually paid as pensions. However, the charge required to be made


against Council Tax is based on the cash payable in the year, so the real cost of post employment/retirement benefits is


reversed out of the General Fund via the Movement in Reserves Statement. The following transactions have been made


in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement and the General Fund Balance via the Movement in Reserves


Statement during the year:


Other


Return on plan assets (excl amount in net interest 


expense) 


Actuarial (gains) and losses - demographic 


assumptions


Remeasurement of the net defined benefit liability:
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Note 34: Defined Benefit Pension Schemes


2017/18


LGPS 


(funded 


benefits)


LGPS 


(unfunded 


benefits)


FFPS 1992 


(Old 


Scheme)


FFPS 


(Comp'n 


Scheme)


FFPS 


2006 


(New 


Scheme)


FFPS 


2015 


(New 


Scheme)


Total


£000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s


Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement


Cost of Services:


Current Service cost 1,065 -  2,380 123 18 2,381 5,967 


Past Service cost (including curtailments) -  -  -  -  -  -  -  


Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure:


Net Interest Expense 208 1 10,431 171 394 151 11,356 


1,273 1 12,811 294 412 2,532 17,323 


-  -  -  -  -  -  -  


Remeasurement of the net defined benefit liability: -  -  -  -  -  -  -  


(282) -  -  -  -  -  (282)


Actuarial (gains) and losses - financial assumptions 690 -  (413) -  (2) 1 276 


-  -  -  -  -  -  -  


168 1 2,456 44 28 -  2,697 


-  -  (12,831) -  (25) 1,769 (11,087)


1,849 2 2,023 338 413 4,302 8,927 


Movement in Reserves Statement


(1,273) (1) (12,811) (294) (412) (2,532) (17,323)


Employers' contributions payable to the scheme 619 -  826 -  5 940 2,390 


Retirement benefits payable to pensioners -  3 -  222 -  -  225 


Transfer from Pension Reserve (654) 2 (11,985) (72) (407) (1,592) (14,708)


Pension Assets and Liabilities Recognised in the Balance Sheet


The amount included in the Balance Sheet arising from the authority's obligation in respect of its defined benefit plans is as follows:


LGPS 


(funded 


benefits)


LGPS 


(unfunded 


benefits)


FFPS 1992 


(Old 


Scheme)


FFPS 


(Comp'n 


Scheme)


FFPS 


2006 


(New 


Scheme)


FFPS 


2015 


(New 


Scheme)


Total


2018/19 £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s


Fair Value of Assets 31,144 -  -  -  -  -  31,144 


Present Value of the defined benefit obligation (40,543) (50) (432,052) (7,267) (17,544) (13,583) (511,039)


(9,399) (50) (432,052) (7,267) (17,544) (13,583) (479,895)


2017/18


Fair Value of Assets 28,617 -  -  -  -  -  28,617 


Present Value of the defined benefit obligation (38,144) (53) (425,533) (7,081) (16,174) (8,995) (495,980)


(9,527) (53) (425,533) (7,081) (16,174) (8,995) (467,363)


Other


Other Post Employment Benefit Charged to the 


Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement


Actuarial (gains) and losses - liability experience


Total Post Employment Benefit Charged to the 


Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services


Return on plan assets (excl amount in net interest 


expense) 


Actuarial (gains) and losses - demographic 


assumptions


Net liability arising from defined benefit 


obligation


Total Post Employment Benefit Charged to the 


Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 


Actual amount charged against the General Fund 


Balance for pensions in the year:


Net liability arising from defined benefit 


obligation


Reversal of net charges made to the Surplus or Deficit 


for the Provision of Services for post employment 


benefits in accordance with the Code
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Note 34: Defined Benefit Pension Schemes


LGPS 


(funded 


benefits)


LGPS 


(unfunded 


benefits)


FFPS 1992 


(Old 


Scheme)


FFPS 


(Comp'n 


Scheme)


FFPS 


2006 


(New 


Scheme)


FFPS 


2015 


(New 


Scheme)


Total


2018/19 £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s


Opening balance at 1 April (38,144) (53) (425,533) (7,081) (16,174) (8,995) (495,980)


(1,100) -  (1,709) (120) (3) (2,656) (5,588)


(986) (1) (10,846) (181) (420) (246) (12,680)


Contributions by scheme participants (232) -  (396) -  (15) (943) (1,586)


(2,282) (1) (20,169) (353) (1,792) (1,358) (25,955)


1,561 2 14,934 259 808 615 
18,179 


Actuarial gains and (losses) on liabilities - experience (52) -  (739) (13) (9) -  (813)


Benefits paid 692 3 16,594 222 61 -  17,572 


Past Service cost (incl curtailments) -  -  (4,188) -  -  -  (4,188)


Settlements -  -  -  -  -  -  0 


Closing balance at 31 March (40,543) (50) (432,052) (7,267) (17,544) (13,583) (511,039)


2017/18 £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s


Opening balance at 1 April (36,662) (54) (424,335) (6,965) (15,766) (5,632) (489,414)


(1,065) -  (2,380) (123) (18) (2,381) (5,967)


(936) (1) (10,431) (171) (394) (151) (12,084)


Contributions by scheme participants (229) -  (557) -  (18) (829) (1,633)


(690) -  413 -  2 (2) (277)


-  -  -  -  -  -  0 


Actuarial gains and (losses) on liabilities - experience (168) (1) (2,456) (44) (28) -  (2,697)


Benefits paid 1,606 3 14,213 222 48 -  16,092 


Past Service cost (incl curtailments) -  -  -  -  -  -  0 


Closing balance at 31 March (38,144) (53) (425,533) (7,081) (16,174) (8,995) (495,980)


 


LGPS 


(funded 


benefits)


LGPS 


(unfunded 


benefits)


FFPS 1992 


(Old 


Scheme)


FFPS 


(Comp'n 


Scheme)


FFPS 


2006 


(New 


Scheme)


FFPS 


2015 


(New 


Scheme)


Total


2018/19 £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s


Opening balance at 1 April 28,617 -  -  -  -  -  28,617 


746 -  -  -  -  -  746 


Remeasurement gains/(losses) - return on plan assets 1,617 -  -  -  -  -  1,617 


Remeasurement gains/(losses) - other -  -  15,607 -  45 (1,996) 13,656 


Employer contributions 624 3 591 222 1 1,053 2,494 


Contributions by scheme participants 232 -  396 -  15 943 1,586 


Benefits paid (692) (3) (16,594) (222) (61) -  (17,572)


Closing balance at 31 March 31,144 -  -  -  -  -  31,144 


2017/18


Opening balance at 1 April 28,365 -  -  -  -  -  28,365 


728 -  -  -  -  -  728 


Remeasurement gains/(losses) - return on plan assets 282 -  -  -  -  -  282 


Remeasurement gains/(losses) - other -  -  12,831 -  25 (1,769) 11,087 


Employer contributions 619 3 826 222 5 940 2,615 


Contributions by scheme participants 229 -  557 -  18 829 1,633 


Benefits paid (1,606) (3) (14,214) (222) (48) -  (16,093)


Closing balance at 31 March 28,617 -  -  -  -  -  28,617 


Reconciliation of present value of the scheme 


liabilities (defined benefit obligation):


Current Service Cost


Interest income on assets


Interest Cost


Reconciliation of fair value of the scheme (plan) 


assets:


Current Service Cost


Interest Cost


Interest income on assets


Actuarial gains and (losses) on liabilities - financial 


assumptions


Actuarial gains and (losses) on liabilities - demographic 


assumptions


Actuarial gains and (losses) on liabilities - financial 


assumptions


Actuarial gains and (losses) on liabilities - demographic 


assumptions
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The Local Government Pension Scheme Assets


The Local Government Pension Scheme assets comprised:


2017/18 2018/19


£000s £000s


Equity investments 22,865 22,393 
Property 2,089 2,865 
Cash 3,176 5,232 
Other 487 654 


28,617 31,144 


Basis for Estimating Assets and Liabilities


The principal assumptions used by the actuary have been:


2018/19


LGPS 


(funded 


benefits)


LGPS 


(unfunded 


benefits)


FFPS 1992 


(Old 


Scheme)


FFPS 


(Comp'n 


Scheme)


FFPS 2006 


(New 


Scheme)


FFPS 2015 


(New 


Scheme)


Long-term expected rate of return on assets in the scheme:


Equity investments 2.4% n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a
Government Bonds 2.4% n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a
Bonds 2.4% n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a
Property 2.4% n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a
Cash 2.4% n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a


Other 2.4% n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a


Mortality assumptions:
Longevity at 65 for current pensioners:
Men 22.2 22.2 21.4 21.4 21.4 21.4
Women 24.1 24.1 23.7 23.7 23.7 23.7


Longevity at 65 for future pensioners:
Men 23.9 n/a 23.1 23.1 23.1 23.1


Women 25.9 n/a 25.6 25.6 25.6 25.6


Other assumptions:
Rate of inflation (RPI) 3.3% 3.3% 3.3% 3.3% 3.3% 3.3%
Rate of inflation (CPI) 2.2% 2.2% 2.2% 2.2% 2.2% 2.2%
Rate of increase in salaries 3.2% n/a 3.2% 3.2% 3.2% 3.2%
Rate of increase in pensions 2.2% 2.2% 2.2% 2.2% 2.2% 2.2%
Rate for discounting scheme liabilities 2.4% 2.4% 2.4% 2.4% 2.4% 2.4%


80.0% n/a 90.0% n/a 75.0% 75.0%


Note 34: Defined Benefit Pension Schemes


Liabilities have been assessed on an actuarial basis using the projected unit credit method, an estimate of the pensions


that will be payable in future years dependent on assumptions about mortality rates, salary levels, etc. The Authority's


liabilities have been assessed by AON Hewitt, an independent firm of actuaries. Estimates for the Authority are based on


the latest full valuation of the schemes being 31 March 2016 and 31 March 2017 for LGPS funded and unfunded schemes


respectively.  All four Firefighters' Pension Schemes were valued on 31 March 2015.


Take-up of option to convert annual pension 


into retirement lump sum
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Note 34: Defined Benefit Pension Schemes


2017/18


LGPS 


(funded 


benefits)


LGPS 


(unfunded 


benefits)


FFPS 1992 


(Old 


Scheme)


FFPS 


(Comp'n 


Scheme)


FFPS 2006 


(New 


Scheme)


FFPS 2015 


(New 


Scheme)


    
Long-term expected rate of return on assets in the scheme:


Equity investments 2.6% n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a
Government Bonds 2.6% n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a
Bonds 2.6% n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a
Property 2.6% n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a
Cash 2.6% n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a


Other 2.6% n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a


Mortality assumptions:
Longevity at 65 for current pensioners:
Men 22.9 22.9 22.2 22.2 22.2 22.2
Women 25.0 25.0 24.7 24.7 24.7 24.7


Longevity at 65 for future pensioners:
Men 25.1 n/a 24.3 24.3 24.3 24.3


Women 27.3 n/a 27.0 27.0 27.0 27.0


Other assumptions:
Rate of inflation (RPI) 3.2% 3.2% 3.2% 3.2% 3.2% 3.2%
Rate of inflation (CPI) 2.1% 2.1% 2.1% 2.1% 2.1% 2.1%
Rate of increase in salaries 3.1% n/a 3.1% 3.1% 3.1% 3.1%
Rate of increase in pensions 2.1% 2.1% 2.1% 2.1% 2.1% 2.1%
Rate for discounting scheme liabilities 2.6% 2.6% 2.6% 2.6% 2.6% 2.6%


80.0% n/a 90.0% n/a 75.0% 75.0%


Take-up of option to convert annual pension 


into retirement lump sum
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Sensitivity Analysis


LGPS 


(funded 


benefits)


FFPS 1992 


(Old 


Scheme)


FFPS 


(Comp'n 


Scheme)


FFPS 


2006 


(New 


Scheme)


FFPS 


2015 


(New 


Scheme)


£000s £000s £000s £000s £000s


783 7,062 109 622 502


189 861 22 322 304


607 6,309 89 318 213


1,311 13,959 235 567 439


 


798 7,179 111 645 522


187 856 21 315 297


597 6,214 88 311 210


1,297 13,810 232 561 434


Impact on the Authority's Cash Flows


Note 34: Defined Benefit Pension Schemes


Adjustment to Longevity (increase 1 year)


The estimation of the defined benefit obligations is sensitive to the actuarial assumptions set out in the table above.


The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based on reasonably possible changes of the assumptions


occurring at the end of the reporting period and assumes for each change that the assumption analysed changes while


all other assumptions remain constant.


Increase In Assumptions


The assumptions for longevity, for example, assume that life expectancy increases or decreases for men and women. In


practice, this is unlikely to occur, and changes in some of the assumptions may be interrelated. The estimations in the


sensitivity analysis have followed the accounting policies for the scheme, i.e. on an actuarial basis using the projected


unit credit method. The methods and types of assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis below did not


change from those used in the previous period.


Impact on Defined Benefit Obligation in the Scheme


The total contributions expected to be made to the Local Government Pension Scheme by the Authority in the year to 31


March 2020 is £0.647m and the total contributions expected to be made to the Fire Fighters' Pension Scheme by the


Authority in the same year is £15.851m including the Government Pensions Top Up Grant


The weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation for scheme members is 17 years in 2018/19 (17 years


in 2017/18).


The objectives of the Local Government Pension Scheme are to keep employers' contributions at as constant a rate as


possible. The current funding level of the scheme is 100%. Funding levels are monitored on an annual basis. The next


triennial valuation is due to be completed as at 31 March 2019.


The scheme will need to take account of the national changes to the scheme under the Public Pensions Services Act


2013. Under the Act, Local Government Pension Scheme in England and Wales and the other main existing public


service schemes may not provide benefits in relation to service after 31 March 2014. The Act provides for scheme


regulations to be made within a common framework, to establish new career average revalued earnings schemes to pay


pensions and other benefits to certain public servants.


Adjustment to Discount rate (+ 0.1%)


Adjustment to Salary increase rate (+ 0.1%)


Adjustment to Pension increase rate (+ 0.1%)


Adjustment to Longevity (decrease 1 year)


Decrease in Assumptions


Adjustment to Discount rate (- 0.1%)


Adjustment to Salary increase rate (- 0.1%)


Adjustment to Pension increase rate (- 0.1%)
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Note 36: Events after the Balance Sheet Date


The Statement of Accounts was authorised for issue by the Treasurer on 31 May 2019. Events taking place after this date 


are not reflected in the financial statements or notes. Where events taking place before this date provided information 


about conditions existing at 31 March 2019, the figures in the financial statements and notes have been adjusted in all 


material respects to reflect the impact of this information.


Note 35: Contingent Liabilities


These refer to either a possible obligation arising from past events whose existence will be confirmed only by the 


occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the Authority's control, or a present obligation 


arising from past events where it is not probable that a transfer of economic benefits will be required or the amount of 


the obligation cannot be measured with sufficient reliability.


The current Fire Brigades Union pay claim is for 17% and national negotiations are continuing, including in relation to 


‘broadening the role’ and this may impact on firefighters pay levels. As it is unclear when these negotiations will be 


completed, what the outcome will be and the implementation date it is not possible to estimate the potential financial 


impact on the Authority. If these negotiations result in an increase and the Government does not provide additional 


recurring funding the Authority will have to identify additional permanent budget reductions.   As this is a national issue 


the current planning assumption is that additional Government funding will be provided for any increased costs which 


may arise from ‘broadening the role'.


On 20 December 2018 the Government lost a case in the Court of Appeal (the McCloud judgement) which found that the 


transitional protections incorporated into the reforms of the firefighters and judges pension schemes were age 


discriminatory. The Government has applied for an appeal hearing at the Supreme Court. If the appeal is upheld this 


could lead to compensation being required to all those who were discriminated against, including implications for other 


public sector schemes which contained similar protections. In light of the legal proceedings, HM Treasury has paused its 


review of the Schemes under the statutory ‘cost cap process’, which was expected to result in benefit improvements. 


Therefore no allowance will be made for any potential changes arising following that review due to the uncertainty 


involved.
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Fund Account


2017/18 2018/19
Expenditure / Expenditure / 


(Income) (Income)
£000s Contributions receivable £000s


From employer


(1,766) Normal (1,638)


(1,401) From members (1,351)


(3,167) (2,989)


FPS 1992 - Contributions Refund Grant


Transfers in 


(64) Individual transfers in from other schemes (22)


(64) (22)


Benefits payable


11,838 Pensions 12,551 


2,968 Commutation and lump sum retirement benefits 3,623 


14,806 16,174 


Payment to and account of leavers


136 Individual transfers out to other schemes -  


136 -  


11,711 Net amount payable for the year 13,163 


(11,711) Top-up grant payable by the Government (13,163)


-  -


Net Assets Statement


2017/18 2018/19


£000s Current assets and liabilities £000s


(3,695) (2,587)


3,695 Amount owing to the General Fund 2,587 


-  Net assets -  


The above statement does not include liabilities to pay pensions and other benefits after the Balance Sheet date.


Further information about IAS 19 liability is contained in Note 34. In accordance with the requirements of IAS 19 the


actual cost of pensions required for Council Tax precepting purposes is replaced by the current service cost of pensions


in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Account and reversed out.


Pension Fund Account Statements


The Pension Fund is an unfunded scheme established under the Fire Fighters' Pension Scheme (Amendment) (England)


Order 2006, administered by the Authority. The scheme has no investment assets and does not account for benefits


payable in the future. The difference between contributions from employers and employees and the benefits payable is


funded by top up grant from the Government.  Any surplus on the fund is repaid to the Government.


The accounts are prepared in accordance with the same code of practice and accounting policies as outlined in the


Statement of Accounting Policies.


Any Government funding payable is paid in two instalments, 80% of the estimated annual amount at the start of the


year and the actual balance paid following completion of the accounts for the year.


Debtor: Pension top-up grant receivable from the Government
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GROUP ACCOUNTS


INTRODUCTION


The following pages include:


         Group Movement in Reserves Statement


         Group Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement


         Group Balance Sheet


         Group Cash Flow Statement


Subsidiaries/Associates


The group financial statements are presented in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS). The


financial statements of Cleveland Fire Brigade Risk Management Services CIC are presented under FRS102; their


accounts have been restated to comply with IFRS.


Cleveland Fire Brigade Risk Management Services CIC is a subsidiary of Cleveland Fire Authority. The Authority does not


have any associates.


Cleveland Fire Authority established a Community Interest Company, Cleveland Fire Brigade Risk Management Services


CIC, which was incorporated in March 2011 and commenced trading in July 2011. The Group Financial Statements


consolidate the performance and balances that relate to the Community Interest Company into the statements of


Cleveland Fire Authority, which allows the full picture of the Group activities to be presented.
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Group Movement in Reserves Statement for the year ended 31 March 2019


General 


Fund 


Balance


Earmarked 


General 


Fund 


Reserves


Earmarked  


Reserves


Capital 


Receipts 


Reserve


Total 


Usable 


Reserves


Unusable 


Reserves


Total 


Authority 


Reserves


Authority's 


Share of 


Subsidiary 


Reserves


Total  Group 


Reserves


£000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s


Balance at 31 March 2017 carried 


forward
1,552 3,535 7,677 -  12,764 (430,767) (418,004) 134 (417,870)


Movement in reserves during 


2017/18


Surplus or (deficit) on provision of 


services 


(18,295) - - - (18,295) - (18,295) 65 (18,230)


Other Comprehensive Income and 


Expenditure


- - - - - 7,700 7,700 - 7,700 


Total Comprehensive Income and 


Expenditure


(18,295) -  -  -  (18,295) 7,700 (10,595) 65 (10,530)


Adjustments between accounting 


basis & funding basis under 


regulations (note 5)


18,769 - (3,619) 264 15,414 (15,414)


-  


- -


Net Increase/(Decrease) before 


Transfers to Earmarked Reserves


474 -  (3,619) 264 (2,881) (7,714) (10,595) 65 (10,530)


Transfers to/(from) Earmarked 


Reserves
(474) 228 246 


-  -  -  -  
- -


Increase/(Decrease) in Year -  228 (3,373) 264 (2,881) (7,714) (10,595) 65 (10,530)


Balance at 31 March 2018 carried 


forward
1,552 3,763 4,304 264 9,883 (438,481) (428,598) 199 (428,399)


Movement in reserves during 


2018/19


Surplus or (deficit) on provision of 


services 


(13,118) - - - (13,118) - (13,118) (2) (13,120)


Other Comprehensive Income and 


Expenditure


(7,863) - - - (7,863) 7,863 - - -


Total Comprehensive Income and 


Expenditure
(20,981)


- - -
(20,981) 7,863 (13,118) (2) (13,120)


Adjustments between accounting 


basis & funding basis under 


regulations (note 5)


22,353 - (425) 7 21,935 (21,935) - - -


Net Increase/(Decrease) before 


Transfers to Earmarked Reserves
1,372 - (425) 7 954 (14,072) (13,118) (2) (13,120)


Transfers to/(from) Earmarked 


Reserves
(1,372) 359 1,013 - - - - - -


Increase/(Decrease) in Year - 359 588 7 954 (14,072) (13,118) (2) (13,120)


Balance at 31 March 2018 carried 


forward
1,552 4,122 4,892 271 10,837 (452,553) (441,716) 197 (441,519)


This Statement shows the movement in the year on the Authority's single entity usable and unusable reserves, and the 


Authority's share of the Group Reserves.
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2017/18 2018/19


Gross Gross Gross Gross


Expenditure Income Net Expenditure Income Net


£000s £000s £000s Continuing operations: £000s £000s £000s


27,152 -  27,152 Employee Costs 31,800 -  31,800 


5,864 -  5,864 Premises Costs 4,483 -  4,483 


3,187 -  3,187 Supplies & Services 3,779 -  3,779 


1,304 -  1,304 Transport Costs 1,262 -  1,262 


428 -  428 Support Services 412 -  412 


-  (4,938) (4,938) Income -  (6,891) (6,891)


37,935 (4,938) 32,997 
Cost of Services - continuing 


operations
41,736 (6,891) 34,845 


(71) -  (71) Other Operating Expenditure 66 -  66 


12,390 (762) 11,628 
Financing and Investment Income and 


Expenditure
12,988 (810) 12,178 


-  (26,343) (26,343) Taxation and Non-Specific Grant Income -  (26,106) (26,106)


50,254 (32,043) 18,211 (Surplus) or Deficit on Provision of 


Services
54,790 (33,807) 20,983 


19 Tax Expenses (Subsidiaries) -  


18,230 
Group (Surplus) or Deficit on 


Provision of Services
20,983 


695 
(Surplus)/Deficit on revaluation of non-


current assets
(1,179)


(8,395)
Remeasurement of net defined benefit 


liability /(asset)
(6,684)


(7,700)
Other Comprehensive Income and 


Expenditure
(7,863)


10,530 
Total Comprehensive Income and 


Expenditure
13,120 


Group Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement


for the year ended 31 March 2019


This Statement summarises the resources that have been generated and consumed in providing services and managing


the Group during the last year.  It includes all day to day expenses and related income on an accruals basis.
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31 March 2018 31 March 2019


£000s £000s


 


37,961 Property, Plant and Equipment 36,052 


150 Investments 150 


22 Intangible Assets 6 


23 Long Term Debtors -  


38,156 Long Term Assets 36,208 


 


2,001 Short term investments 5,515 


493 Inventories 489 


7,168 Short Term Debtors 5,683 


5,209 Cash and Cash Equivalents 3,929 


14,871 Current Assets 15,616 


 


(209) Bank Overdraft -  


(3,022) Short Term Creditors (2,776)


(236) Provisions (301)


(188) Short Term Borrowing (191)


(1,014) Revenue Grants Receipts in Advance (925)


(4,669) Current Liabilities (4,193)


 


(9,394) Long Term Borrowing (9,255)


(467,363) Other Long Term Liabilities (479,895)


(476,757) Long Term Liabilities (489,150)


(428,399) Net Assets: (441,519)


 


1,552 Unearmarked General Fund Balance Reserve 1,552 


3,763 Budget Support Fund Reserves 4,122 


1,797 Earmarked Revenue Reserves 2,719 


2,771 Earmarked Capital Reserves 2,444 


(438,481) Unusable Reserves (452,553)


199 Subsidiary Reserve 197 


(428,399) Total Reserves: (441,519)


Group Balance Sheet for the year ended 31 March 2019


The Balance Sheet shows the value as at the Balance Sheet date of the asset and liabilities recognised by the Group.


The net assets of the Group (assets less liabilities) are matched by the reserves held by the Group.
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Group Statement Of Cash Flows for the year ended 31 March 2019


2017/18 2018/19


£000s £000s


(18,230) Net surplus or (deficit) on the provision of services (20,983)


18,891 Adjustments to net surplus or (deficit) on the provision of services for non-cash movements 24,386 


7,852 
Adjustments for items included in the net surplus or (deficit) on the provision of services that 


are investing and financing activities
(321)


8,513 Net cash (outflow)/inflow from operating activities 3,082 


(7,318) Investing activities (4,082)


2,486 Financing activities (71)


3,681 Net increase or (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (1,071)


1,319 Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the reporting period 5,000 


5,000 Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the reporting period 3,929 


The Cash Flow Statement shows the changes in cash and cash equivalents of the Group during the reporting period. The


statement shows how the Group generates and uses cash and cash equivalents by classifying cash flows as operating,


investing and financing activities.
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Notes to the Group Accounts


Group Accounting Policies


The Group Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with the Code of Practice for Local Authority


Accounting in the United Kingdom 2018/19 issued by the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA).


The accounting policies used in preparing the Group Accounts are largely those used by Cleveland Fire Authority. In


order to align group entities accounting policies to those used by the Authority and ensure consistency of accounting


treatment across the group, the following policies have been adopted.


Deferred Taxation


Full provision is made for deferred tax assets and liabilities arising from all timing differences between the recognition of


gains and losses in the financial statements and recognition in the tax computation.


A net deferred tax asset is recognised only if it can be regarded as more likely than not that there will be suitable taxable


profits from which the future reversal of the underlying timing differences can be deducted.


Deferred tax assets and liabilities are calculated at the tax rates expected to be effective at the time the timing


differences are expected to reverse.


Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not discounted.


Consolidation of Subsidiaries


Subsidiaries have been consolidated using the acquisition accounting basis. This is a full, line by line consolidation of the


financial transactions and balances of the Authority and its subsidiary. To avoid overstating the figures in the group


financial statements, all transactions and balances between the members of the group (Cleveland Fire Authority and


Cleveland Fire Brigade Risk Management Services CIC) have been eliminated.


International Financial Reporting Standards


The Authority produces its financial statements in accordance with IFRS. Cleveland Fire Brigade Risk Management


Services CIC produces its financial statements in accordance with UK GAAP; their financial statements have been


adjusted to reflect IFRS where any changes have a material effect on the presentation of the Group Financial Statements.


Officers' Remuneration


There is no remuneration for Directors of Cleveland Fire Brigade Risk Management Services CIC.


Audit Fees


Audit fees owing to additional work required for the audit of the group accounts are disclosed in Note 25.


Group Adjustments


The following transactions have been eliminated from the Group Financial Statements:-


During 2018/19 goods and services with a value of £0.208m were supplied by Cleveland Fire Authority to Cleveland Fire


Brigade Risk Management Services Community Interest Company (CIC). The CIC provided £0.018m of services to the


Authority. These transactions have been eliminated from the Consolidated Income and Expenditure Statement in the


Group Accounts. In addition, intra-company debtors and creditors have been adjusted for in the Balance sheet. 


The Authority has leased out a specialist industrial fire appliance to Cleveland Fire Brigade Risk Management Services


Community Interest Company on a finance lease with a term of 8 years. The lease commenced on 1 July 2013. The


transactions relating to this purchase have been eliminated from the Group Accounts.


The Fire Authority has provided a working capital loan to the CIC. Interest is charged at a commercial level and loan 


repayments are linked to the length of contracts secured by the CIC.  This loan has also been eliminated from the 


statements.
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ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT


SCOPE OF RESPONSIBILITY


Cleveland Fire Authority is responsible for ensuring that:


·  


·  


THE PURPOSE OF THE GOVERNANCE FRAMEWORK


THE INTERNAL CONTROL GOVERNANCE FRAMEWORK


Its business is conducted in accordance with the law and proper standards, 


Public money is safeguarded and properly accounted for, and used economically, efficiently and effectively.


This year the Fire Authority has continued to work to strengthen its participation in the consultation process, by widening


its stakeholder list and the methods which feedback can be gained by using social media in addition to the more


traditional methods. Feedback received from these forums has been taken account of when formulating the proposals for


our Community Integrated Risk Management Plan 2018/22 and associated proposals detailed within this plan.


Cleveland Fire Authority also has a duty under the Local Government Act 1999 to make arrangements to secure


continuous improvement in the way in which its functions are exercised, having regard to a combination of economy,


efficiency and effectiveness.


The governance framework comprises of systems, processes, culture and values, by which the Authority is directed and


controls its activities through which it is accountable for and engages with the community. It enables the Authority to


monitor the achievement of its strategic priorities and to consider whether those priorities have resulted in the delivery


of appropriate and cost-effective services.


The governance framework has been in place at Cleveland Fire Authority for the year ended 31 March 2019.


The key elements of the Fire Authority’s policy, decision making and internal control governance framework are outlined


in the Constitution which details the Authority’s Corporate and Ethical Governance arrangements and the Member


Development Framework. 


The staff handbook sets out internal control and managerial procedures and details standards of conduct and probity


issues.


The Fire Authority has approved and adopted a ‘Local Code of Corporate Governance’ which encompasses the guidance


and best practice as outlined in the ‘Delivering Good Governance in Local Government Framework (2016) that is


published by CIPFA and SOLACE. The code draws strongly on the good practices already established and outlines the way


in which the Authority will meet that commitment.  


In discharging these overall responsibilities, Cleveland Fire Authority is also responsible for ensuring that there are


proper arrangements for governance of its affairs, a sound system of internal control which facilitates Cleveland Fire


Authority exercising its functions and responsibilities effectively and which includes arrangements for the management


of risk.


The system of internal control is a significant part of that framework and is designed to manage risk to a reasonable


level. It cannot eliminate all risk of failing to achieve its priorities and can therefore only provide reasonable and not


absolute assurance of its effectiveness. The system of internal control is based on an ongoing process designed to


identify, evaluate and prioritise the risks to the achievement of Cleveland Fire Authority’s priorities, to evaluate the


likelihood of those risks occurring, the impact should they be realised, and to manage them efficiently, effectively and


economically.


The Authority operates an Integrated Personal Development System and an associated Learning and Development


strategy to ensure services are delivered by trained and experienced personnel. All posts have job descriptions and


person specifications and induction training is provided to all staff. All training is tailored to job needs/requirements


based on an annual needs assessment and analysis.


Financial services are provided to the Fire Authority through a Service Level Agreement with Hartlepool Borough Council,


which includes the provision of the Treasurer. The Treasurer is responsible for ensuring the proper administration of the


Authority’s financial affairs and has a duty to report formally any adverse issues. The Treasurer reports annually to the


Audit and Governance Committee on how the Authority’s financial arrangements conform to the governance


requirements of the CIPFA Statement on the Role of the Chief Financial Officer in Local Government (2010). 


The Authority has appointed a Legal Adviser and Monitoring Officer who is responsible for ensuring that the Authority


acts within its legal powers at all times and has a duty to report formally any adverse issues.
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The Fire Authority publishes the following key documents:


·  


·  


·  


·  


REVIEW OF EFFECTIVENESS


·  


·  


·  


A Community Integrated Risk Management Plan 2018/22 (CIRMP), which identifies the strategic issues to be


addressed and how we will address them over the medium term. 


The Authority strives for continuous improvement and as part of the Finance and Business planning cycle, outcomes from 


the Risk Management and Performance Management Frameworks assists the Authority to identify, prioritise and inform 


resource allocation decisions to drive continuous improvement in services.  


An Internal audit plan is formulated on a risk assessed basis on an annual basis.


Through this dynamic Risk Management Framework, risk assessment and management of risks is embedded into the 


Integrated Strategic, Risk and Financial Planning Framework which helps inform business and resource decisions. The 


Community Integrated Risk Management Plan 2018/22 is the key output from this framework which links resources to 


our risks, strategic goals, aims and outcomes. To ensure services achieve the Authority’s goals, aims and outcomes and 


represent value for money, they are robustly measured and evaluated. 


A robust Performance Management Framework is in place which uses a traffic light system to indicate areas of


compliance and non-compliance. Improvement plans are produced on a risk basis to address areas of partial or full non-


compliance and any issues identified by Internal Audit and other external inspections. Performance management is


embedded and operates throughout the organisation. Performance outcomes are reported regularly to the Executive


Leadership Team, managers, staff and the public. On a quarterly basis detailed reports are reported to the Audit and


Governance Committee and then made publically available. This framework has been externally assessed and validated


by the Authority’s external auditors, Mazars to ensure it provides a realistic, reliable and transparent view of the


Authority’s performance.


An annual Service Plan, which encompasses the requirements of the Fire and Rescue Services Act 2004 and


National Framework for Fire and Rescue Services in England 2012.


A Performance and Efficiency Report which provides information on the Authority’s performance, risk, finance and


efficiency over the previous 12 months.


Operates to CIPFA’s Code of Internal Audit Practice and the Institute of Internal Auditors’ Guidance


and Code of Ethics.


Procedures are in place that enables Internal Audit to report on a regular basis to the Audit and Governance Committee


on the effectiveness of the organisation’s system of internal control and provide recommendations for improvement.


Internal Audit performance is measured against standards agreed by management and Elected Members. These


indicators were met for 2018/19.


Other review bodies external to the Authority also make regular reports on compliance with our statutory requirements, 


operational arrangements and the efficiency and effectiveness of the Authority. In 2018 the Government introduced an 


inspection framework for all Fire Services led by Her Majesty’s Inspectorate of Constabulary and Fire and Rescue 


Services. The Brigade will be inspected by the Inspectorate between May to July 2019. 


Internal Audit – the Treasurer of the Fire Authority has the responsibility for maintaining and reviewing the system 


of financial internal control.  In practice, the Fire Authority, and its External Auditor, actively use the assurance 


from the work of Internal Audit. In fulfilling this responsibility Internal Audit; 


On an annual basis, as prescribed in the National Framework for Fire and Rescue Services in England 2018 the Authority 


publishes its Annual Statement of Assurance which provides a summary and assurance on the operational, financial and 


governance arrangements within the Authority.


The arrangements that are in place for maintaining and reviewing the effectiveness of the system of internal control


include:


The Treasurer of the Fire Authority has the responsibility for conducting, at least annually, a review of the internal control


governance framework. The review of the effectiveness of internal control is informed by the work of Internal Audit and


Senior Managers who have responsibility for the development and maintenance of the internal control environment.


Additional information by external audit and other review agencies and inspectorates can also contribute to this review.


An annual Statement of Assurance that provides the government and the public with assurance on our operational,


financial and governance arrangements.


The Fire Authority has robust systems for identifying, evaluating and managing all significant risks. A risk management


framework consisting of a risk management strategy, policy and systems are in place and embedded across the


organisation and communicated to all staff. A Community Risk Profile for the Authority’s area is produced and publically


available to the staff and public detailing the foreseeable risks facing the Authority.
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·  


·  


·  


Significant Governance Issues


Appendix 1


No. Issue Action


AGS1 · Implement Control Room proposal (UOR3)


· Incident Command Unit Operational Arrangements (UOR4)


· Revenue Budget 2019/20 (UOR19)


· Continue to develop our trading company to generate commercial 


revenues (UOR21)


AGS2 ·
Establish a programme of reviews of Local Agreements (UOR36.7)


· Review Key Document Framework policy, strategy and guide 


(UOR36.17)


· Review transparency, accountability and assurance policy and strategy 


(UOR36.23)
· Review and Update the Evaluation Procedure (RP19/20 32)


· Compile a detailed Data Quality Procedure (RP19/20 33)


AGS3 · Incident Command Unit Operational Arrangements (UOR4)


· Multi-Agency Incident Command Support (UOR7)


· Review the outcomes of the national and local emergency medical 


responder project evaluations and determine the future of the scheme 


in Teesside (UOR8)


· Emergency Services Mobile Communications Programme – 


Collaboration with North East Fire and Rescue Services (UOR9)


· Explore Collaborative Opportunities for Enabling Services with 


Cleveland Police (UOR14)


AGS4 · Review and Update the Evaluation Procedure (RP19/20 32)


· Review style and content of Year end Performance and efficiency 


Report and grading framework (RP19/20 38/39)


· Develop new style Assurance Reports to support Assurance Framework 


(RP19/20 40)


· Develop an Annual Assurance Plan (RP19/20 41)


· Fulfil Home Office Inspection Data Collection Requirements 2019/20: 


Compile and produce data returns to support HMICFRS Inspection 


Program : Return 1 & 2 (RP19/20 29/30)
· Identify and develop Performance Measures for Staff Fitness Levels 


(RP19/20 59)


No significant governance issues have been identified, however, in the interests of improving and developing governance


arrangements an action plan for further improvement has been developed (see Appendix 1). 


ANNUAL REVIEW OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE ARRANGEMENTS : ACTION PLAN FOR 2019/20


The following actions have been identified to further improve our governance arrangements:


Internal Audit reports from this plan are provided to the Director of Corporate Services and the Audit


and Governance Committee.


Annually the Head of Internal Audit at Hartlepool Borough Council provides an independent opinion on 


the adequacy and effectiveness of the system of internal financial control.


External Audit - as part of the Audit Completion Report produced by External Audit, comments on the corporate


governance and performance management arrangements are provided. External audit also expresses an opinion on


the adequacy of Internal Audit work during the year.


We have been advised about the implications to emerge from reviewing the effectiveness of the governance framework


by the Audit and Governance Committee, and that the arrangements continue to be regarded as fit for purpose in


accordance with the governance framework.


Promote greater partnership 


and collaborative working.


Reduce the overall cost base 


of the revenue budget in 


line with the Medium Term 


Financial Strategy.


Further Develop the 


Authority’s Performance 


Framework.


Develop Corporate 


Governance Arrangements.
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AGS5 ·
Review and Update Risk Management Toolkit to incorporate the risk 


assessments included in the Community Risk Profile (RP19/20 31)


· Participate in and support the work of the NFCC in the development of 


a national risk management toolkit. (RP19/20 44)


· Community Safety Strategy : Safer Homes 2020/22 & Imp Community 


Health 2020/22 - Further develop our risk based targeting 


methodology for vulnerabilities across all age ranges (RP19/20 47)


· Community Safety Strategy : Safer Roads 2020/22 - Determine the 


value of providing None Special Service Emergency data (on road 


debris clean up/spillages) to enhance the local area risk profiling 


(RP19/20 49)


· Produce range of scenario planning risk models to support review of 


CIRMP Options (RP19/20 56)


AGS6 · Review equality impact assessment policy (UOR36.20)


·
Compile an Annual Equality and Diversity Workforce Analysis (RP19/20 


07)


AGS7 Improvement/Value for 


Money 
· Review Operational Whole-time Duty System (UOR1)


· Review Flexi-Duty System (UOR2)


· Implement control room proposal (UOR3)


· Incident Command Unit Operational Arrangements (UOR4)


· Multi-Agency Incident Command Support (UOR7)


·


Review the outcomes of the national and local emergency medical 


responder project evaluations and determine the future of the scheme 


in Teesside (UOR8)


· Undertake an Interim Review of CIRMP (UOR10)


· Conduct a review of the recruitment, pay and contracts; and 


availability of retained duty system fire-fighters (UOR11)


·
Explore Collaborative Opportunities for Enabling Services with 


Cleveland Police (UOR14)


·
Investigate the benefits and implications of 24 hour working within the 


Brigade (UOR20)


· Review of Pension, Payroll and Administration Services (UOR24)


· Review of Occupational Health Services (UOR26)


· Review of Financial Services (UOR27)


CHAIR OF CLEVELAND FIRE AUTHORITY:


DATE: 26 July 2019


CHIEF FIRE OFFICER:


DATE: 26 July 2019


MONITORING OFFICER:


DATE: 26 July 2019


TREASURER TO THE CLEVELAND FIRE AUTHORITY:


DATE: 26 July 2019


Delivering against the 


Equality and Diversity 


statutory framework.


We propose over the coming year to take steps to address the above matters to further enhance our governance


arrangements. We are satisfied that these steps will address the need for improvements that were identified in our


review of effectiveness and will monitor their implementation and operation as part of our next annual review.


Further develop the 


Authority’s Risk Framework.
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Opinion on the Authority and Group financial statements


•


•


Basis for opinion


Conclusions relating to going concern


•


•


Other information 


DRAFT INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF CLEVELAND FIRE 


AUTHORITY


We have audited the financial statements of Cleveland Fire Authority (‘the Authority’) for the year ended 31 March 2019


under the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014. The financial statements comprise the Movement in Reserves


Statement, the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, the Balance Sheet, the Cash Flow Statement, the


Group Movement in Reserves Statement, the Group Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Account, the Group


Balance Sheet, Group Cash Flow Statement and the related notes, including the summary of significant accounting


policies. The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and the


CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2018/19.


In our opinion the financial statements:


give a true and fair view of the financial position of Cleveland Fire Authority and its group as at 31 March 


2019 and of its expenditure and income for the year then ended; and


have been prepared properly in accordance with the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority 


Accounting in the United Kingdom 2018/19.


We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and applicable law.


Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities section of our report. We 


are independent of the Authority in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the


financial statements in the UK, including the FRC’s Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethical


responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient


and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.


We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the ISAs (UK) require us to report to


you where:


the Treasurer’s use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is 


not appropriate; or


the Treasurer has not disclosed in the financial statements any identified material uncertainties that may 


cast significant doubt about the Authority’s ability to continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting 


for a period of at least twelve months from the date when the financial statements are authorised for issue.


The Treasurer is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the Annual Governance


Statement and information included in the statements of accounts other than the financial statements and our auditor’s


report thereon. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and, except to the extent


otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 


In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing


so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge


obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies or


apparent material misstatements, we are required to determine whether there is a material misstatement in the


financial statements or a material misstatement of the other information. If, based on the work we have performed, we


conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact.


We have nothing to report in this regard.


85







SECTION 7: Draft Independent Auditor's Report


Responsibilities of the Treasurer for the financial statements


Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements


Conclusion


Basis for conclusion


Responsibilities of the Authority


As explained more fully in the Statement of the Treasurer’s Responsibilities, the Treasurer is responsible for the


preparation of the Statement of Accounts, which includes the financial statements, in accordance with proper practices


as set out in the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2018/19, and for


being satisfied that they give a true and fair view. The Treasurer is also responsible for such internal control as the


Treasurer determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material


misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.


Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from


material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion.


Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with


ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are


considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic


decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.


On the basis of our work, having regard to the guidance on the specified criterion issued by the Comptroller and Auditor


General in November 2018, we are satisfied that, in all significant respects, Cleveland Fire Authority has put in place


proper arrangements to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources for the year ended 31


March 2019.


The Authority is responsible for putting in place proper arrangements to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in


its use of resources, to ensure proper stewardship and governance, and to review regularly the adequacy and


effectiveness of these arrangements. 


The Treasurer is required to comply with the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United


Kingdom 2018/19 and prepare the financial statements on a going concern basis, unless the Authority is informed of the


intention for dissolution without transfer of services or function to another entity. The Treasurer is responsible for


assessing each year whether or not it is appropriate for the Authority to prepare its accounts on the going concern basis


and disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern. 


A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the Financial Reporting


Authority’s website at www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our auditor’s report.


We have undertaken our review in accordance with the Code of Audit Practice issued by the Comptroller and Auditor


General, having regard to the guidance on the specified criterion issued in November 2018, as to whether the Authority


had proper arrangements to ensure it took properly informed decisions and deployed resources to achieve planned and


sustainable outcomes for taxpayers and local people. The Comptroller and Auditor General determined this criterion as


that necessary for us to consider in satisfying ourselves whether the Authority put in place proper arrangements for


securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources for the year ended 31 March 2019.


We planned our work in accordance with the Code of Audit Practice. Based on our risk assessment, we undertook such


work as we considered necessary to form a view on whether, in all significant respects, the Authority had put in place


proper arrangements to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources.


Conclusion on Cleveland Fire Authority’s arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in


the use of resources
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Matters on which we are required to report by exception under the Code of Audit Practice


•


•


•


Use of the audit report


Certificate


 


Gavin Barker, Partner,


For and on behalf of Mazars LLP, Appointed Auditors


Salvus House


Aykley Heads


Durham, DH1 5TS


Date: 


we issue a report in the public interest under section 24 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014;


We are required by the Code of Audit Practice to report to you if:


we make a recommendation under section 24 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014; or


We have nothing to report in these respects.


We certify that we have completed the audit of Cleveland Fire Authority in accordance with the requirements of the Local


Audit and Accountability Act 2014 and the Code of Audit Practice.


we exercise any other special powers of the auditor under sections 28, 29 or 31 of the Local Audit and


Accountability Act 2014.


This report is made solely to the members of Cleveland Fire Authority, as a body, in accordance with part 5 of the Local


Audit and Accountability Act 2014 and as set out in paragraph 43 of the Statement of Responsibilities of Auditors and


Audited Bodies published by Public Sector Audit Appointments Limited. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we


might state to the members of the Authority those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor’s report and


for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other


than the members of the Authority, as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.


We are required under section 20(1)(c) of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 to satisfy ourselves that the


Authority has made proper arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources. The


Code of Audit Practice issued by the Comptroller and Auditor General requires us to report to you our conclusion relating


to proper arrangements. We are not required to consider, nor have we considered, whether all aspects of the Authority’s


arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources are operating effectively.


Auditor’s responsibilities in relation to review of arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and 


effectiveness in the use of resources
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GLOSSARY OF TERMS


ACCOUNTING POLICIES


Those principles, bases, conventions, rules and practices applied by an entity that specify how the effects of transactions


and other events are to be reflected in its financial statements through:


·         recognising;


·         selecting measurement bases for; and


·         presenting assets, liabilities, gains, losses and changes to reserves.


Accounting policies do not include estimation techniques.


Accounting policies define the process whereby transactions and other events are reflected in financial statements. For


example, an accounting policy for a particular type of expenditure may specify whether an asset or a loss is to be


recognised; the basis on which it is to be measured; and where in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement


or Balance Sheet it is to be presented.


CAPITAL EXPENDITURE


Expenditure on the acquisition of an asset or expenditure that adds to and not merely maintains the value of an existing


asset.


COMMUNITY INTERGRATED RISK MANAGEMENT PLAN (CIRMP)


The plan identifies the strategic issues to be addressed and how the Authority will address them over the medium term.


CODE OF PRACTICE ON LOCAL AUTHORITY ACCOUNTING
The Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accounting (CIPFA) Code sets out the accounting concepts and accounting


principles which underpin the statement of accounts.


CONSISTENCY


The principle that the accounting treatment of like items within an accounting period and from one period to the next is


the same.


CONSTRUCTIVE OBLIGATION
An obligation that derives from an Authority’s actions where:


a) by an established pattern of past practice, published policies or a sufficiently specific current statement, the Authority


has indicated to other parties that it will accept certain responsibilities; and


b) as a result, the Authority has created a valid expectation on the part of those other parties that it will discharge those


responsibilities.


CONTINGENT LIABILITY


A contingent liability is either:


a) a possible obligation arising from past events whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence of one or more


uncertain future events not wholly within the authority’s control or;


b) a present obligation arising from past events where it is not probable that a transfer of economic benefits will be


required or the amount of the obligation cannot be measured with sufficient reliability.


CREDITORS


Amounts owed by the Authority for work done, goods received or services rendered within the accounting period but for


which payment was not made at the balance sheet date.


CURRENT ASSETS
Assets which can be expected to be consumed or realised during the next accounting period, e.g. debtors and stocks.


CURRENT LIABILITIES
Amounts which will become payable or could be called in within the next accounting period e.g. creditors, cash overdrawn.


CURRENT SERVICE COST (PENSIONS)


The increase in the present value of a defined benefit scheme’s liabilities expected to rise from employee service in the


current period.
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CURTAILMENT


For a defined benefit scheme, an event that reduces the expected years of future service of present employees or reduces


for a number of employees the accrual of defined benefits for some or all of their future service.  Curtailments include:


a) termination of employee’s services earlier than expected, for example as a result of closing a factory or discontinuing a


segment of a business; and 


b) termination of, or amendment to the terms of, a defined benefit scheme so that some or all future service by current


employees will no longer qualify for benefits or will qualify for only reduced benefits.


DEBTORS
Amounts due to the Authority for works done, goods received or services rendered before the end of the accounting


period, but for which payments have not been received by the end of that accounting period.


DEFINED BENEFIT SCHEME


A pension or other retirement benefit scheme other than a defined contribution scheme. Usually, the scheme rules define


the benefits independently of the contributions payable and the benefits are not directly related to the investments of the


scheme.  The scheme may be funded or unfunded (including notionally funded).


DEFINED CONTRIBUTION SCHEME


A pension or other retirement benefit scheme into which an employer pays regular contributions fixed as an amount or as


a percentage of pay and will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay further contributions if the scheme does not


have sufficient assets to pay all employee benefits relating to employee service in the current and prior periods.


DEPRECIATION


The measure of the cost or revalued amount of the benefits of the asset that have been consumed during the period.


Consumption includes the wearing out, using up or other reduction in the useful life of asset whether arising from use,


effluxion of time or obsolescence through either changes in technology or demand for the goods and services produced by


the asset.


DISCRETIONARY BENEFITS


Retirement benefits which the employer has no legal, contractual or constructive obligation to award and which are


awarded under the Authority’s discretionary powers, such as The Local Government (Discretionary Payments) Regulations


1996.


ESTIMATION TECHNIQUES


The methods adopted by an entity to arrive at estimated monetary amounts, corresponding to the measurement bases


selected, for assets, liabilities, gains losses and changes to reserves.


Estimation techniques implement the measurement aspects of accounting policies. An accounting policy will specify the


basis on which an item is to be measured; where there is uncertainty over the monetary amount corresponding to that


basis, the amount  will be arrived at by using an estimation technique.  Estimation techniques include, for example:


a) Methods of depreciation, such as straight-line and reducing balance, applied in the context of a particular


measurement basis, used to estimate the proportion of the economic benefits of an asset consumed in a period.


b) Difference methods used to estimate the proportion of debts that will not be recovered, particularly where such


methods consider a population as a whole rather than individual balances.


EVENTS AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET DATE


Events after the Balance Sheet date are events, favourable and unfavourable, that occur between the Balance Sheet date


and the date when the Statement of Accounts are authorised for issue.


EXCEPTIONAL ITEMS


Material items that derive from events or transactions that fall within the ordinary activities of the Authority and which


need to be disclosed separately by virtue of their size or incidence to give fair presentation of the accounts.


EXPECTED RATE OF RETURN ON PENSION ASSETS


For a funded defined benefit scheme, the average rate of return, including both income and changes in fair value but net


of scheme expenses, expected over the remaining life of the related obligation on the actual assets held by the scheme.


FAIR VALUE


The fair value of an asset is the price at which it could be exchanged in an arm’s length transaction less, where applicable,


any grants receivable towards the purchase or use of the asset.
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FINANCE LEASE


Leases are classified as finance leases where the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards


incidental to ownership of the property, plant or equipment from the lessor to the lessee. All other leases are classified as


operating leases. 


FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT


A legally enforceable agreement between two or more parties, expressing a contractual right or a right to the payment of


money. Typical examples include investments, loans, trade creditors and trade debtors.


GOING CONCERN


The concept that the Authority will remain in operational existence for the foreseeable future, in particular that the


revenue accounts and Balance Sheet assume no intention to curtail significantly the scale of operations.


GOVERNMENT GRANTS


Assistance by Government and inter-government agencies and similar bodies, whether local, national or international, in


the form of cash or transfers of assets to an Authority in return for past or future compliance with certain conditions


relating to the activities of the Authority.


IMPAIRMENT


A reduction in the value of Property, Plant and Equipment below its carrying amount on the Balance Sheet.


INTANGIBLE ASSETS


Expenditure which may properly be capitalised, but which does not result in an asset with substance. Examples of this


type of expenditure are software and other licences, patents and trademarks and artistic originals.


INTEREST COST (PENSIONS)


For a defined benefit scheme, the expected increase during the period is the present value of the scheme liabilities


because the benefits are one period closer to settlement.


INTERNATIONAL ACCOUNTING STANDARDS (IAS)
These standards are developed by the International Accounting Standards Board and regulate the preparation and


presentation of financial statements.


INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (IFRS)
A set of international accounting standards stating how particular types of transactions and other events should be


reported in financial statements.  IFRS are issued by the International Accounting Standards Board.


INVENTORIES


The amount of unused or unconsumed stocks held in expectation of future use. When use will not arise until a later


period, it is appropriate to carry forward the amount to be matched to the use or consumption when it arises.  


Inventories comprise the following categories:


·         goods or other assets purchased for resale;


·         consumable stores;


·         raw materials and components purchased for incorporation into products for sale;


·         products and services in intermediate stages of completion;


·         long term contract balances; and


·         finished goods.


INVESTMENTS (PENSIONS FUND)
The investments of the Pensions Fund will be accounted for in the statements of that fund. However, authorities are also


required to disclose, as part of the disclosures relating to retirement benefits, the attributable share of Pension Scheme


assets associated with their underlying obligations.


LIQUID RESOURCES


Current asset investments that are readily disposable by the Authority without disrupting its business and are either


readily convertible to known amounts of cash at or close to the carrying amount, or traded in an active market.


MINIMUM REVENUE PROVISION (MRP)
The statutory minimum amount that authorities must set aside each year as provision for debt repayment based on the


Capital Financing Requirement.
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NET BOOK VALUE


The amount at which assets are included in the Balance Sheet, that is their historical cost of current value less the


cumulative amounts provided for depreciation.


NET CURRENT REPLACEMENT COST


The cost of replacing or recreating the particular asset in its existing condition and in its existing use, that is the cost of its


replacement or of the nearest equivalent asset adjusted to reflect the current condition of the existing asset.


NET REALISABLE VALUE


The open market value of the asset in its existing use (or open market value in the case of non-operational assets), less


the expenses to be incurred in realising the asset.


NON-CURRENT ASSET
Assets that yield benefits to the Authority, and the services it provides, for a period of more than one year.


OPERATING LEASES


A lease other than a finance lease.


OPERATIONAL ASSETS


Assets held and occupied, used or consumed by the Authority in the direct delivery of those services for which it has either


a statutory or discretionary responsibility or for the service or strategic objectives of the Authority.


PAST SERVICE COST


For a defined benefit scheme, the increase in the present value of the scheme liabilities related to employee service in


prior periods arising in the current period as a result of the introduction of, or improvement to, retirement benefits.


PROJECTED UNIT METHOD


An accrued benefits valuation method in which the scheme liabilities make allowance for projected earnings. An accrued


benefits valuation method is a valuation method in which the scheme liabilities at the valuation date relate to:


a) the benefits for pensioners and deferred pensioners (i.e. individuals who have ceased to be active members but are


entitled to benefits payable at a later date) and their dependants, allowing where appropriate for future increases; and


b)  the accrued benefits for members in service of the valuation date.


The accrued benefits are the benefits for service up to a given point in time, whether vested rights or not.


PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT


This covers all assets with physical substance that are for use in the production or supply of goods and services, for rental


to others, or for administrative purposes, and expected to be used during more than one period.


PROVISION
Funds set aside to cover potential liabilities or losses which are likely or certain to be incurred at a future date but where


the exact amount and timing of the liability or loss is currently not known.


RELATED PARTIES


Two or more parties are related parties when at any time during the financial period:


·         one party has direct or indirect control of the other party; or


·         the parties are subject to common control from the same source; or 


·         one party has influence over the financial and operational policies of the other party to an extent


          that the other party might be inhibited from pursuing at all times its own separate interests; or


·         the parties, in entering a transaction, are subject to influence from the same source to such an 


          extent that one of the parties to the transaction has subordinated its own separate interests.


Examples of related parties of an Authority include:


·         Central Government;


·         Local Authorities and other bodies precepting or levying demands on the Council Tax;


·         its subsidiary and associated companies;


·         its joint ventures and joint venture partners;


·         its Councillors;


·         its Chief Fire Officer and Directors; and 


·         its Pension Fund.
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Examples of related parties of a pension fund include its:


·         administering Authority and its related parties;


·         scheduled bodies and their related parties; and 


·         Trustees and Advisors.


These lists are not intended to be comprehensive.


For individuals identified as related parties, the following are also presumed to be related parties:


·         members of the close family, or the same household; and


·         partnerships, companies, trusts or other entities in which the individual, or a member of their close 


          family or the same household, has a controlling interest.


RELATED PARTY TRANSACTION


A related party transaction is the transfer of assets or liabilities or the performance of services by, to or for a related party


irrespective of whether a charge is made.  Examples of related party transactions include:


·        the purchase, sale, lease, rental or hire of assets between related parties;


·          the provision by a pension fund to a related party of assets of loans, irrespective of any direct 


         economic benefit to the Pension Fund;


·          the provision of a guarantee to a third party in relation to a liability or obligation of a related party;


·          the provision of services to a related party, including the provision of pension fund administration services;


·           transactions with individuals who are related parties of an authority or a pension fund, except


         those applicable to other members of the community or the pension fund, such as Council Tax,


         Rents and payment of benefits.


This list is not intended to be comprehensive.


The materiality of related party transactions should be judged not only in terms of their significance to the Authority, but


also in relation to its related party.


REMEASUREMENT OF DEFINED LIABILITY


For a defined benefit pension scheme, the changes in actuarial deficits or surpluses that arise because:


·         events have not coincided with the actuarial assumptions made for the last valuation (experience gains 


          or losses); or


·         the actuarial assumptions have changed.


REMUNERATION


All sums paid to or receivable by an employee and sums due by way of expenses allowances (as far as those sums are


chargeable to UK income tax) and the money value of any other benefits received other than in cash. Pension


contributions payable by the employer are excluded.


RESERVES
The accumulation of surpluses, deficits and appropriations over past years. Reserves of a revenue nature are available


and can be spent or earmarked at the discretion of the Authority. Some capital reserves such as the Revaluation Reserve


cannot be used to meet current expenditure.


RESIDUAL VALUE


The net realisable value of an asset at the end of its useful life. Residual values are based on prices prevailing at the date


of the acquisition (or revaluation) of the asset and do not take account of expected future price changes.


RETIREMENT BENEFITS


All forms of consideration given by an employer in exchange for services rendered by employees that are payable after


completion of employment.  Retirement benefits do not include termination costs payable as a result of either:


·          an employer’s decision to terminate an employee’s employment before the normal retirement date; or 


·          an employee’s decision to accept voluntary redundancy in exchange for those benefits, 


            because these are not given in exchange for services rendered by employees.


SCHEME LIABILITIES


The liabilities of a defined benefit scheme for outgoings due after the valuation date. Scheme liabilities measured using


the projected unit method reflect the benefits that the employer is committed to provide for service up to the valuation


date.
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SERVICE REPORTING CODE OF PRACTICE
A Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) guide to accounting for local government services which


provides a consistent and comparable calculation of the total costs of services.


SETTLEMENT


An irrecoverable action that relieves the employer (or the defined benefit scheme) of the primary responsibility for a


pension obligation and eliminates significant risks relating to the obligation and the assets used to effect the settlement.


Settlements include:


·          a lump-sum cash payment to scheme members in exchange for their rights to receive specified


         pension benefits;


·         the purchase of an irrecoverable annuity contract sufficient to cover vested benefits; and


·          the transfer of scheme assets and liabilities relating to a group of employees leaving the scheme.


USEFUL LIFE


The period over which the Authority will derive benefits from the use of an asset.


FURTHER INFORMATION 


Copies of this document can also be provided on audiotape or in large print, Braille and ethnic minority languages on


request. We can also be contacted via Typetalk and enquiries in any language can be dealt with in person or on the


telephone using Language Line instant translation service.
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Internal Audit is an independent appraisal function that reviews the Council's 
activities, both financial and non-financial.  Internal Audit provides a service to 
the whole Council in order to provide assurance on the arrangements for risk 
management, internal control and corporate governance, and to provide 
advice to support achievement of best practice. 
 
All audit work has been carried out in accordance with the CIPFA Code of 
Practice for Internal Audit in Local Government in the UK, as reflected in the 
Internal Audit Manual.  
 
The auditors involved in the work have no links to the subject matter of this 
audit or relationships with the clients that could compromise the impartiality or 
objectivity of the work undertaken. 
 


Audit Team: 
 
Noel Adamson  Head of Audit and Governance  
Tel:   01429 523173 
Email:   Noel.Adamson@Hartlepool.Gov.UK 
 
 


Distribution: 
 
Chris Little  Treasurer to the CFA   
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Scope, Objectives and Risks of the Audit  
 
Scope 
The scope of the audit was to review the process for producing the Annual 
Governance Statement and ensuring items identified in the 17/18 Annual 
Governance Statement action plan are regularly monitored and reviewed. 


 


Objectives 
The audit objectives were to ensure that the systems and procedures in place 
at the Fire Authority provide adequate arrangements for ensuring that: 
 


 An Annual Governance Statement would be produced and 
presented with the accounting statements for 18/19 for the CFA. 


 


Risks 
The following risks were identified: 
 


 The Annual Governance Statement is not produce in compliance 
with statute or good practice requirements. 


 Actions identified in previous Annual Governance Statements are 
not monitored and reviewed.  


 
Summary & Conclusion 
In order to ensure that that the items identified in the 17/18 Annual 
Governance Statement action plan are regularly monitored, Performance 
outcomes are reported monthly to the Executive Leadership Team and 
monitoring reports are sent to the Audit and Governance Committee. 
Performance reports inform resource decisions after areas of poor 
performance are identified. An Improvement Action Plans – Annual Summary 
is produced on the outcomes of the implementation of action plans. 
There were no matters arising.           
 
The timetable for the production of the 18/19 Annual Governance Statement 
fits in with the requirement to produce the 18/19 Statement of Accounts and 
the requirement of Internal Audit to give an opinion on the internal control 
environment at the CFA.  
There were no matters arising.   
 
Overall, the existing processes and procedures in place continue to provide a 
high level of assurance that controls are operating as intended.  
 
Noel Adamson 
Head of Audit and Governance 
Date: 05.06.19 
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OFFICIAL  


 
2018/2019 OUTTURN AND FINANCIAL REPORT  
 
REPORT OF THE CHIEF FIRE OFFICER AND TREASURER   
 


 
 
 
 
 


   


 
1. PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 
1.1 To report the final outturn position against the approved 2018/19 budgets.  


 
1.2 To inform Members of the arrangements for approving the Authority’s 2018/19 


Financial Report and to provide a copy of the draft 2018/19 Financial Report. 
 


2. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
2.1 That Members:- 


 
i. Note the position as at 31st March 2019; 


 
ii. Approve the 2018/19 Annual Governance Statement as detailed on pages 81 


to 84 of Appendix D. 
 


iii. Note that the Financial Report detailed in Appendix D will be subject to the 
completion of the independent audit by Mazars and details of any audit 
amendments will be reported to the Full Authority in July. 


 
iv. Note that there is the opportunity to raise questions and/or seek clarification 


of information included in the pre-audit Financial Report in the period up to 
26th July 2019, when the audited Financial Report will be presented to the 
Authority for final approval. 


 
3. FINANCIAL OVERVIEW AND REVENUE POSITION AT 31st MARCH 2019 
 
3.1  The Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) report approved on 15th February 


2019 enabled the Authority to set the budget for the current financial year (i.e. 
2019/20).  The MTFS included recommendations in relation to the 2018/19 financial 
year which are reflected in the statutory Financial Report and also provided useful 
background information in relation to the significant financial risks and uncertainties 
facing the Authority, as detailed in the following paragraphs.  


 
3.2 Financial Risk and Uncertainties 


 
3.3 Financial year 2019/20 is the final year of the current four year Government 


financial settlement.  Whilst, the four year settlement has provided financial 
certainty, it has resulted in further recurring cuts in Government funding received by 
the Authority.   


For Approval 
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3.4 By 2019/20 the Authority will have faced nine consecutive years of cuts in 
Government funding – which is unprecedented and has resulted in a significant 
reduction in the Authority’s budget as summarised below:  


 
Cash reduction in budget between 2010/11 and 2019/20 


 
 


 
 
 
 
 
 


3.5 Whilst, the cuts in Government funding since 2010/11 have affected all Fire and 
Rescue Authorities, the impact on Cleveland Fire Authority is greater as we raise 
less income from Council Tax and were more reliant on Government funding when 
the cuts commenced in 2010/11.    


 
3.6 As a result of the cuts in Government funding between 2013/14 and 2019/20, 


decisions the Authority has taken to increase Council Tax and the impact of housing 
growth, the proportion of overall spending funded from Council Tax has increased 
between 2013/14 (the first year of the current Local Council Tax Support scheme 
arrangements) and 2019/20 as summarised below: 


 
Increase in recurring Council Tax income between 2013/14 and 2019/20,  


compared to Grant Cut for same period 
 
 


 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


3.7 If the increased Council Tax income had not been achieved the Authority would 
have had to make additional recurring cuts of £2.4m.  This increase has effectively 
enabled the Authority to maintain 58 firefighter posts, which is approximately 17% of 
current firefighter establishment. 


 
3.8 The approved MTFS and Community Integrated Risk Management Plan (CIRMP) 


covered four financial years (2016/17 to 2019/20) to align with the period of the 
Government financial settlement. These plans were designed to deliver recurring 
savings of £3.695m by 2019/20.  


 
 
 


Recurring reduction in 2019/20 - £7.3m 
 


- A reduction of 22% 


2019/20 proportion of budget 
funded from Council Tax – 


48%, compared to 32% 


in 2013/14.   
 


Recurring increase in Council 


Tax income - £2.4m 
(includes housing growth of 
£950k) 


Grant Cut 2013/14 
to 2019/20 


£6.0m  


– a cut of 32% 
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3.9 As a result of the funding cuts implemented over the nine years up to 2019/20 the 
Authority has made significant operational changes to ensure safe and effective 
services continue to be provided to the community.  As approximately 80% of the 
budget is spent on staff costs (pay, pensions and national insurance) these changes 
have been underpinned by modernising the way services are provided, including 
reducing whole time firefighter posts and increasing retained duty system firefighter 
posts.  These changes have been achieved by natural wastage and there have 
been no firefighter redundancies. 


 
3.10 By 2019/20 these measures will have resulted in the following changes: 


 36% reduction in the number of whole time firefighter posts from 518 in 
2010/11 to 330 in 2019/20.  
 


 33% increase in the number of retained duty system firefighter posts from 
72 in 2010/11 to 96 in 2019/20.   
 


 38% reduction in the number of fire control posts from 26 in 2010/11 to 16 in 
2019/20. 
 


 19% reduction in the number of non-uniformed support posts from 129.21 in 
2010/11 to 105.15 in 2019/20.  
 


 30% reduction in number of Elected Members from 23 to 16 – effective from 
June 2016.  


 
 3.11 Looking ahead, the financial position for 2020/21 is the most uncertain ever faced 


by the Authority.  This position reflects the significant uncertainty regarding factors 
impacting on both expenditure and resources, including whether these issues may 
be delayed to 2021/22, which would increase uncertainty, as follows:  


 


 The outcome of the 2019 Spending Review – this will determine the 
Government’s spending priorities for all Departments, with the exception of NHS 
England.  These spending priorities will need to reflect financial pressures that 
have been built into the system as a result of austerity, such as demographic 
pressures in relation to Adult Social Care and demand pressures for Looked 
after Children.  Additionally, the Government will face continuing demands for 
more expenditure for a range of services, including education, police and 
prisons.  
 
The key issue for this Authority is how the Fire and Rescue will service fair 
In comparison to these other areas in the Government’s Spending 
Review?  
 


 Business Rates Retention and Fair Funding Review - these changes impact 
on the resources the Authority will receive from the Government, which in 
2019/20 account for 55% of all recurring resources available. Nationally these 
resources account for approximately 40% of recurring funding for Fire and 
Rescue Services.  Therefore, the decisions the Government make will be 
fundamental to the financial sustainability of Fire and Rescue Authorities.   
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As this Authority is more reliant on this funding, owing to the relatively low 
Council Tax base and higher levels of deprivation, the decisions made in relation 
to these resources are even more critical.   
   
It is not anticipated that the detailed impact will be known until late 2019, which 
makes financial planning extremely challenging.     
 


 Council Tax referendum limits - Council Tax accounts for the remaining 45% 
of recurring resources available to this Authority.  This is significantly less than 
the national figure of 60% for Fire and Rescue Services.  This position reflects 
two key factors.  Firstly, the Authority has a low Council Tax base.  Secondly, 
the Authority has historically had a Band D Council Tax at broadly the national 
average level.  
 
The future Council Tax limits set by the Government will also have a significant 
impact on the financial sustainability of the Authority.  These limits will become 
even more important if the Business Rates and Fair Funding Review result in 
further funding reductions.  
   


 Pay Awards – as pay costs account for approximately 80% of the budget the 
continued national pay negotiations in relation to ‘broadening the role” makes 
financial planning challenging.  As this is a national issue the current planning 
assumption is that additional Government funding will be provided for any 
increased costs which may arise from ‘broadening the role’. 
 


 Fire Fighters Pension contributions - recent Government announcements 
have increased uncertainty regarding future employers’ pension contributions.  .  
This issue affects other public sector pension schemes for the police, NHS and 
teachers.  The latest information from the Government confirms there will be a 
significant increase in employers’ pension contributions for these schemes.  
 
For 2019/20 the Government has provided additional funding towards the 
increased cost for the Fire and Rescue service of £107m (provisional allocation 
£97m).  The increased cost for this Authority is £1.674m, compared to a 
Government grant allocation of £1.408m, which means the Authority faces a 
shortfall in funding in 2019/20 of £266,000.  The budget included provision of 
£130,000 and the remaining £136,000 will either be funded by achieving a 
managed budget underspend in 2019/20, or by using the Budget Support Fund.  
 
It is not yet clear if the Government will provide recurring funding, as statements 
so far indicate this issue will be considered as part of the Spending Review 
which will determine funding for 2020/21 onwards.    


 
3.12 To address the financial uncertainties facing the Authority over the period 2020/21 


to 2022/23 the Authority instructed the Chief Fire Officer to develop a contingency 
savings plan based on two planning scenarios i.e. forecast deficits of £2.297m and 
£3.841m respectively, which equate to reductions of 9% and 15% to the current 
budget.  Further details will be reported to a future meeting as part of the process 
for setting the 2020/21 budget.  This will include the use of the Budget Support 
Fund to help phase the achievement of further budgets reduction over the three 
year commencing 2020/21. 
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3.13 Revenue Budget Outturn 2018/19 
  
3.14 The MTFS report informed Members that the Chief Fire Officer had continued to 


manage the 2018/19 budget extremely carefully and taken action to hold posts 
vacant to achieve the planned 2019/20 CIRMP savings and therefore help secure 
the 2019/20 financial position.   It was anticipated that these measures would result 
in a 2018/19 managed under spend of £0.749m and in February the Authority 
approved that this amount be earmarked to supplement the Budget Support Fund, 
which is earmarked to manage the significant financial risks and financial 
uncertainties facing the Authority in 2020/21 and future years.   


 
3.15 The actual managed under spend was £0.801m, which is £52,000 more than 


forecast, and this amount has been transferred to the Budget Support Fund.  
 
3.16 As reported to the Executive Committee on 26th April 2019 the additional 


underspend of £52,000 may need to be used to partly fund increased Fire Fighters 
pension costs in 2019/20 of £136,000 which are not funded from additional 
Government Grant provided for this national increase.  This will only be necessary if 
the additional unfunded Pension costs cannot be funded by achieving a managed 
budget under spend in 2019/20.      


 
3.17 Details of the revenue outturn is shown in Appendix A including detailed 


explanations for the year end variance and changes from the outturn forecast. 
 
4. CAPITAL BUDGET 
 
4.1 Attached at Appendix B is a monitoring statement which includes physical as well 


as financial information on each Capital scheme. 
 


4.2 Work on the building programme in relation to the following schemes accounted for 
the majority of the spend in 2018/19: 
 


 Queens Meadow 
 


 Grangetown 
 


 Water Tenders 
 


4.3 The final phase for the petro chemical rig at Queens Meadow is in progress and will 
be completed next financial year.  The demolition works following the construction 
of a new fire station at Grangetown were completed this year.  The fit out works 
following refurbishment were completed at Stranton fire station during the year. 
 


4.4 Planning, legal fees, and design work are in progress with tenders to be awarded 
next financial year for the work to be carried out to at Guisborough, Loftus, and 
Stockton fire stations. 
 


4.5 During the year total capital spend was £0.738m.  These costs were funded from a 
combination of Capital Receipts £0.314m, Reserve contribution of £0.075m and use 
of £0.349m of the Capital Investment Programme Reserve. 
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5. BASIS FOR PREPARING THE STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 
 


5.1 In accordance with the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015, all Local Authorities 
are required to produce an annual Statement of Accounts by 31st May.   
 


5.2 The Financial Report presents the Authority’s financial position for 2018/19 in a 
specified format and reflects the Outturn Strategy previously approved by the 
Authority as outlined in Section 3. 


 
5.3 In previous years Members were required to approve the draft Statement of 


Accounts prior to audit by the External Auditors.  This requirement was removed in 
2011/12.  However, Members are still required to approve the audited Financial 
Report.  A report will be submitted to the Full Authority on 26th July 2019 to 
discharge this responsibility and meet the revised deadlines for Local Authorities to 
publish audited accounts by 31st July. 
 


5.4 The next section of the report is being presented to enable Members to familiarise 
themselves with the Statement of Accounts and to provide time for Members to ask 
questions.   
 


6. THE 2018/19 PRE-AUDIT FINANCIAL REPORT 
 
6.1 The Financial Report is attached at Appendix D.  If there are any audit amendments 


these will be reported to the Full Authority in July. In summary the Financial Report 
provides the following information: - 


 
i) Authority Membership 
 
ii) Narrative Report 
 
iii) Statement of Responsibilities for the Statement of Accounts 
 
iv) Statement of Accounts  
 
v) Group Statement of Accounts 
 
vi) Annual Governance Statement 
 
vii) Draft Independent Auditor’s Report 
 
viii) Glossary of Terms 


 
6.2 The narrative report provides an explanation of the Authority's overall financial 


performance for 2018/19, details the year-end financial position for 2018/19 and 
outlines the impact of the current economic climate on the Authority's ongoing 
financial position.  The report also provides a guide to the most significant matters 
reported in the Statement of Accounts including an explanation of the purpose of 
each of the core statements. 
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6.3 One of the key statements is the Balance Sheet which comprises two main 
balancing parts, Net Assets and Total Reserves, which represents the Authority’s 
financial position as at the 31st March 2019. 


 
6.4 The Net Assets section of the Balance Sheet shows the Authority’s assets including 


Property, Plant and Equipment, Investments and Debtors and liabilities including 
Short and Long-term Borrowing and Creditors.  The Authority’s Balance Sheet 
reports negative Net Assets (i.e. net liabilities) and this is because of an accounting 
requirement in relation to pensions.  This requires authorities to report the total 
pension liability if this was to be paid out in full as at 31st March 2019 i.e. if all 
employees and former employees drew down their current full pension entitlement 
as at 31st March 2019.  In practice this situation would never arise and contributions 
to the pension schemes are adjusted over a period of time to mitigate the liability 
and are included as part of the budget setting process.  For the Fire Fighters 
Pension Scheme the contributions include “Pension Top-up Grant” paid by the 
Government. 


 
6.5 The Total Reserves section of the Balance Sheet is made up of Usable and 


Unusable Reserves.  Unusable Reserves cannot be used to support services and 
include notional accounting gains and losses. These accounting gains and losses 
are referred to as unrealised.  Included within Unusable Reserves is a negative 
Pension Reserve offsetting the pension liability outlined above.  


 
6.6 Usable reserves are those which the authority can utilise to support future service 


provision.  The Usable Reserve as at 31st March, 2019 reflect the review of risks 
and reserves undertaken as part of the 2019/20 budget process and consist of the 
following key areas: 


 


 Unearmarked General Fund Balance £1.552m – this reserve is 
maintained to meet unforeseen circumstances which might arise the 
value of this reserve reflects the Authority’s assessment of a range of 
financial risks which may occur over the next four years. 
 


 Budget Support Fund £4.122m – part of this reserve (£154,000) is 
earmarked to support the revenue budget in 2019/20. The remaining 
balance (£3.968m) is earmarked to manage financial risks and financial 
uncertainties from 2020/21 onwards.   


 


 Earmarked Revenue Reserves £2.719m – these resources are 
earmarked to fund a range of one-off commitments and 
initiatives.  Further details are provided in note 22 (page 50) of the 
Financial Report 


 


 Earmarked Capital Reserves £2.444m – these resources are allocated 
to fund the approved Asset Management Plan. 


 
 


Analysis of Usable Reserves as at 31 Match 2019 – Total £10.837m 
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7. ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT  


 
7.1 The CFA has a statutory responsibility to ensure that its financial management is 


adequate and that there is a sound system of internal controls to facilitate the 
effective delivery of its functions, including arrangements for the management of 
risk.   The Annual Governance Statement (AGS) is published as part of the 
Authority’s Financial Statements and is detailed on pages 81 to 84 of Appendix E 
and summarises the results of the annual review of internal controls.   The AGS’s 
primary function is to assess the adequacy of the Authority’s governance 
arrangements, identify where those arrangements need to be improved and 
communicate to users and stakeholders how those improvements can be made and 
that better governance leads to better quality public services. 
 


7.2 As Treasurer to the Fire Authority, I am responsible for conducting, annually, 
a review of the effectiveness of the Annual Governance Statement (AGS). 
The Annual Governance Statement has been reviewed and all significant internal 
control issues identified and updated.  
 


7.3 The 2018/19 AGS assessment takes account of all recent internal and external 
assessments, inspections and audits. 


 
7.4 No significant governance issues have been identified for 2018/19.  However, in the 


interests of improving and developing governance arrangements a Governance 
Improvement Action Plan has been produced and included in the 2018/19 AGS.  
Progress will be monitored though the Authority’s Performance Monitoring and 
Management System, with progress reports, circulated during 2019/20, to Officers 
and Members, enabling scrutiny through the Audit and Governance Committee. 
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7.5 An Internal Audit Review of the Fire Authority’s Annual Governance Statement has 
been undertaken and a copy of the resulting report is attached at Appendix E. The 
report states: 


 


 The existing processes and procedures in place continue to provide a high level 
of assurance that controls are operating as intended.  


 
8.       EXTERNAL AUDITORS UPDATE  
 
8.1      A representative from Mazars, the Authority’s External Auditors will attend the 


meeting to provide a verbal update on the audit work completed in June and the 
work to be completed to finalise the Audit. 


 
9. CONCLUSION 
 
9.1 The 2018/19 Financial Report has been prepared in accordance with the relevant 


accounting standards and the outturn strategy previously approved by the Fire 
Authority.  The report enables the Audit and Governance Committee to review the 
draft Financial Report prior to the final document being referred to the Full Authority 
on 26th July 2019 for approval.   
 


9.2 The Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy has issued a checklist 
of questions Members may wish to ask to assist in the understanding of an 
Authority’s financial statements.  This has been included at Appendix C and 
Members are advised that the Authority’s Financial Report complies with these 
requirements. 


 
 
 


 IAN HAYTON                                  CHRIS LITTLE        
          CHIEF FIRE OFFICER                                    TREASURER 
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REVENUE MONITORING STATEMENT 
 


 
  


Status Count


Corrective action 


may be required


Adverse Variance 


Greater Than  


+2%


2


Possible 


virement/service 


enhancement


Favourable 


Variance Greater 


Than  -2%


5


On target
Variance Between 


+/-2%
5


Item 


Numbe


r


Description


Revised 


Budget 


£'000


Expected to 


31st Mar 2019          


£'000


Actuals to 31st 


Mar      2019 


£'000


Variance 


£'000


1 Employees Costs 22,371 22,371 21,270 (1,101)


2 Premises Costs 1,853 1,853 1,649 (204)


3 Supplies & Services 2,211 2,211 2,550 +339


4 Transport Costs 735 735 720 (15)


5 Support Services 369 369 412 +43


6 Income (1,496) (1,496) (1,615) (119)


Sub Total Operational 


Budgets
26,043 26,043 24,986 (1,057)


Occupancy levels below budgeted levels as a result of retirements not being replaced in order to facilitate a 


managed under spend to enable the implementation of the CIRMP.  


Under spend from re-phasing of refurbishment of Loftus, Guisborough, and Stockton fire stations into next year, 


partly offset by the cost of an unexpected water leak underground at Redcar Fire Station and the business rates 


revaluation


Firelink recharges from HO greater than expected, offset by grant, and additional cost of essential BA cylinder 


testing have resulted in an over spend. Includes Revenue Contribution to Capital Spend for Granetown rebuild and 


new Gym equipment


Savings in vehicle spares, oil, and consummables has resulted in an under spend


Comparison of Expected and Actual Expenditure and Income to 31st Mar 2019


Chief Fire Officer/Treasurer


Firelink grant greater than expected to offset increased charges from the Home Office, recharges to Lancashire 


FRS for assisting with the moorland fires, and increased income from rent received for the use of community 


facilities.


Progress Against Revenue Budget 2018/19


Actual Position as at  31st Mar 2019


Description


Cost of the GMP (Guaranteed Minimum Pension) Reconciliation work, and additional Legal Costs requiring external 


advice


APPENDIX A 
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Item 


Numbe


r


Description


Revised 


Budget 


£'000


Expected to 


31st Mar 2019          


£'000


Actuals to 31st 


Mar      2019 


£'000


Variance 


£'000


7 Capital Finance Costs 838 838 838 0


8 S 31 Grant (143) (143) (363) (220)


9 Contribution to Levy a/c reserve 0 0 141 +141


10 Rephased Projects reserve 0 0 335 +335


11 Reserves contribution (442) (442) (442) 0


12 LGPS (53) (53) (53) 0


NET TOTALS AFTER 


CONTRIBUTIONS FROM 


RESERVES


26,243 26,243 25,442 (801)


12
Contribution to Budget Support 


Fund 2019/20
0 0 801 +801


NET BUDGET TOTALS 26,243 26,243 26,243 0


Includes provision for servicing revenue costs of borrowing for Capital Programme and approved contribution to 


Capital Phasing reserve


Description


Planned release of earmarked reserves to support budget


Release of reserve to fund fixed payment to LGPS to address shortfall following actuarial valuation as detailed in the 


MTFS


Refurbishment of Loftus, Guisborough and Stockton Fire Stations re-phased into 2019/20 in line with revised Asset 


Management Plan, and provision for major service of CARP vehicle.


Earmarked to address risks associated with the reform of Local Government funding as detailed in the MTFS


Governmnet Funding adjustment


Governmnet Funding adjustment for share of Business Rates Levy Account funds distributed to support 2019/20 


budget
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CAPITAL MONITORING STATEMENT 


 
 


Status Count


Corrective action 


may be required


Adverse 


Variance 


Greater Than 


+2%


0


Possible virement/ 


service 


enhancement 


opportunities


Favourable 


Variance 


Greater Than  -


2%


9


On target


       Variance 


Between            


+/-2%


5


Item 


Numbe


r


Description


Full cost of 


schemes 


£'000


Revised 


Budget 


2018/2019  


£'000


Actual as at            


31st Mar  2019        


£'000


   Committed/      


Outstanding       


Orders        


£'000


Total 


£'000


Variance 


£'000
Project Design/Specification Progress to Date Anticipated Outcome


1 Queens Meadow Complex 12,376 513 174.7 0 174.7 (338.3)
Approved by CFA in Capital Strategy 


and Asset Management Plan


Final phase in progress for petro 


chemical rig, fire behaviour training unit, 


line rescue mast and fire house fit out


Project to be completed next financial 


year in acordance with revised Asset 


Management Plan


2 Grangetown Fire Station 2,990 103 102.9 0 102.9 (0.1)
Approved by CFA in Capital Strategy 


and Asset Management Plan


Includes demolition works following 


building of new fire station
Completed November 2018


3 Stranton Fire Station 861 42 41.5 0 41.5 (0.5)
Approved by CFA in Capital Strategy 


and Asset Management Plan


completion of fit out works following 


refurbishment
Completed November 2018


4 Guisborough Fire Station 306 200 9.5 0 9.5 (190.5)
Approved by CFA in Capital Strategy 


and Asset Management Plan


Planning, legal fees and drawing costs, 


and design work in progress. Tender 


awarded and work to commence in 


2019/20


Project to be completed next financial 


year in acordance with revised Asset 


Management Plan


5 Loftus Fire Station 232 100 9.4 0 9.4 (90.6)
Approved by CFA in Capital Strategy 


and Asset Management Plan


Planning, legal fees and drawing costs, 


and design work in progress. Tender 


awarded and work to commence in 


2019/20


Project to be completed next financial 


year in acordance with revised Asset 


Management Plan


6 Stockton Fire Station 1,094 391 8.4 0 8.4 (382.6)
Approved by CFA in Capital Strategy 


and Asset Management Plan


Planning, legal fees and drawing costs, 


and design work in progress.


Project to be completed next financial 


year in acordance with revised Asset 


Management Plan


7 Water Tenders 571 571 228.4 0 228.4 (342.6)
Approved by CFA in Capital Strategy 


and Asset Management Plan


Orders placed, acquired via framework 


agreement. Chassis complete, body build 


in progress. 


Chassis complete, body build in 


progress to de delivered next financial 


year


8 Departmental Vehicles 78 20 19.8 0 19.8 0
Approved by CFA in Capital Strategy 


and Asset Management Plan


To be acquired via framework agreement. 


One vehicle delivered
Completed May 2018


9 Fireground Radios 66 66 65.7 0 65.7 (0.3)
Approved by CFA in Capital Strategy 


and Asset Management Plan


Acqired via framework
Completed January 2019


Comparison of Expected and Actual Expenditure and Income to 31st March 2019


Chief Fire Officer/Treasurer


Progress Against Capital Budget 2018/2019


Actual Position as at 31st March 2019


APPENDIX B 
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Item 


Numbe


r


Description


Full cost of 


schemes 


£'000


Revised 


Budget 


2018/2019  


£'000


Actual as at            


31st Mar  2019        


£'000


   Committed/      


Outstanding       


Orders        


£'000


Total 


£'000


Variance 


£'000
Project Design/Specification Progress to Date Anticipated Outcome


10 Gym Equipmnet 75 75 75.0 0 75.0 0
Approved by CFA in Capital Strategy 


and Asset Management Plan


Following an asset survey a num,ber of 


items were identified as needing replacing, 


and were funded from revenue
Completed March 2019


11 Outboard Engine 2.5 2.5 2.3 0 2.3 (0.2)
Approved by CFA in Capital Strategy 


and Asset Management Plan


Acqired via framework
Completed January 2019


12 Mobile Data Terminals 148 148 0 0 0 (148.0)
Approved by CFA in Capital Strategy 


and Asset Management Plan


To be acquired via framework agreement. Scheme to slip into next year as 


detailed in revised Asset Management 


Plan


13
Breathing Apparatus 


Telemetry
125 125 0 0 0 (125.0)


Approved by CFA in Capital Strategy 


and Asset Management Plan


To be acquired via framework agreement. Scheme to slip into next year as 


detailed in revised Asset Management 


Plan


14
ICT Investment to Support 


Operational Requirements
200 200 0 0 0 (200.0)


Approved by CFA in Capital Strategy Tender specifications being prepared Scheme to slip into next year as 


detailed in revised Asset Management 


Plan


TOTAL ALL SCHEMES 19,124 2,556 737.60 0.00 737.60 (1,818.7)
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 APPENDIX C 
 
Checklist of questions to assist with the understanding of the Authority’s Financial 
Report (Appendix D) 
 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement (page 16) and Note 6 Expenditure 
and Funding Analysis (page 35). 


 


1 Is the purpose of the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement clear (i.e. does 
it show actual financial performance under accounting standards before fiscal 
adjustments)?  


2 Do the service net expenditure figures clearly demonstrate the financial performance of 
the services on the face of the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement 
during the year?  


3  Are the material items of income and expenditure in the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement presented separately on the face of the Statement or explained in 
the notes?  


4  Do the notes to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement provide easily 
understandable information relating to the Statement (or lines within the Statement)?  


5  Are there any unexplained significant variances between current and previous year 
information?  


 


6  Have any significant differences between budget reports and net expenditure chargeable 
to General Fund balances been explained? 


7  Are the major statutory adjustments clearly explained and easily understood?  
 


Movement in Reserves Statement (page 15) 


 


8  Can the major movements in net worth that occur within the Movement in Reserves 
Statement be easily identified? Are these explained within the financial statements or 
Narrative Report?  


9  Do the opening balances in the Movement in Reserves Statement match with the closing 
balances of the preceding year? Are any adjustments to opening balances explained on 
the face of the Statement and/or in the notes?  


10  Is there a clear explanation of the statutory adjustments in the adjustments from income 
and expenditure charged under the accounting basis to the funding basis line in the 
Movement in Reserves Statement? (Note this may be linked with the Expenditure and 
Funding Analysis.)  


11  Do the entries on the statutory adjustment line net to nil?  


12  Do the related notes on reserves clearly explain the purpose for holding reserves? 


13 Does the Total Comprehensive Income and Expenditure line in the Movement in 
Reserves Statement agree with the information in the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement?  


14  How have the balances of usable reserves moved during the year? Are these balances 
sufficient to support an authority’s financial plans in the immediate future and over the 
medium term?  
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Balance Sheet (page 17) 


 


15  Does the property, plant and equipment information tell the story of the authority’s 
property portfolio during the year (including the major movements in that portfolio i.e. 
major disposals and acquisitions)? Do these balances reflect the authority’s asset 
management strategy?  


16 Has there been any substantial movement in the pension asset or liability? If yes, has the 
reason for such a movement been explained and the subsequent consequences 
described in the financial statements or the Narrative Report?  


17  Have there been any new provisions or significant movements in provisions in the year? 
If yes, have the reasons for making these provisions been set out in the financial 
statements or any material movements been explained?  


18  Have there been any significant movements in the authority’s borrowings during the 
year? Are these movements reflected in the authority’s borrowing strategy and what 
impact will this have on the prudential indicators or future investment plans?  


19  Are there any significant movements in the authority’s investment portfolio? Do these 
agree with the plans in the authority’s treasury management strategies and statutory 
investment plans?  


20  Are there any other significant movements in balances in the balance sheet that are not 
clearly explained?  


21  Do the balance sheet reserves agree with the totals in the Movement in Reserves 
Statement?  


 
Cash Flow Statement (page 18) 


 


22 Do the cash balances in the cash flow statement agree with the relevant balances in the 
balance sheet?  


23 Are the authority’s balances reflected adequately in the council’s treasury management 
strategies? 
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INTERNAL AUDIT OUTTURN REPORT  2018/19 


 
 


REPORT OF THE HEAD OF AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE 
 
 
 
 


 
 
 
 
 
 


 


 
 
 


1. PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 
1.1 To inform Members of the outcomes of audit work covering the period April 2018 to 


March 2019. 
 
1.2 This report provides accountability for Internal Audit Services and allows Members 


to monitor the application of the delegated authority for ensuring an effective and 
satisfactory audit provision. 


 
 
2. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
2.1 That Members note the contents of the report. 
 
 
3. OUTTURN ON 2018/19 INTERNAL AUDIT WORK PROGRAM 
 
3.1 The Head of Audit and Governance’s overall assessment of the adequacy of 


controls operating within those financial systems arrangements reviewed as part of 
the 2018/19 internal audit plan are summarised below:  


 


System / Establishment 
 


Overall assessment 
of controls 


Attendance Management Satisfactory 


Budgetary Control Satisfactory 


Cash/Bank Reconciliations Satisfactory 


Creditors  Satisfactory 


Debtors Satisfactory 


Fleet Management Satisfactory 


Information Data Management Satisfactory 


Insurances Satisfactory 


Payroll Satisfactory 


Pensions Satisfactory 


Procurement  Satisfactory 


Retained Firefighter Claims Satisfactory 


Stores Satisfactory 


VAT Satisfactory 


For Information 
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At the time this report was completed end of year work was being finalised on 
Cash/Bank Reconciliations and Procurement, however, sufficient reliance could be 
placed on testing completed for the purposes of the 2018/19 audit opinion. All 
necessary improvements to systems or operating arrangements have been agreed 
at the conclusion of each piece of work, and are detailed in Appendix A.  


 
3.2 Attached as Appendix B is a copy of the Head of Audit and Governance’s report to 


the Treasurer on the controls operating within Cleveland Fire Authority. In the 
opinion of the Head of Audit and Governance, key systems are operating soundly 
with corrective action taken where recommendations have been made, there is no 
fundamental breakdown in controls resulting in material discrepancy. 


 
4. CONCLUSION 
 
4.1 Overall, the systems reviewed annually by Internal Audit have provided consistently 


high assurance that they are fundamentally operating as intended. Where 
weaknesses have been identified corrective action has been taken without delay.    


 
 


 
 
 
              
NOEL ADAMSON 
HEAD OF AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE  
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APPENDIX A 


 


1 IMPROVEMENTS TO SYSTEMS OR OPERATING ARRANGEMENTS AS 
AGREED ACTION PLAN. 


 


System Reviewed Synopsis of Agreed Action 


Attendance Management - Access to the personnel system should be 
reviewed regularly to confirm access is 
reasonable. 
- Relevant documentation is completed and 
obtained to support all elements of employee 
absence. 


Budgetary Control No recommendations made. 


Creditors No recommendations made. 


Debtors No recommendations made. 


Fleet Management No recommendations made. 


Information Data 
Management 


- It is advisable for additional guidance to be 
sought from the ICO to ensure the DPO roles and 
responsibilities comply with GDPR and Data 
Protection legislation. 
- Procedures for monitoring compliance with 
information and data protection policies are 
adopted in line with GDPR and Data Protection 
legislation and ICO guidance. 
- An information risk management process linked 
to DPIAs for new developments and an action 
plan where appropriate is to be documented and 
implemented. 
- The Data Quality Policy review will take account 
of GDPR and Data Protection requirements to 
ensure that all areas are covered across CFA 
Policies including regular quality checks and 
learning from any issues identified. 
- Contracts are all reviewed and actions taken to 
ensure compliance with GDPR and Data 
Protection legislation and ICO Guidance. 


Insurances - Arrangements should be established which 
ensure that formal authorisation is provided by 
the appropriate Authority Officer to make relevant 
payments from the Self Insurance Fund. 
- Sufficient information should be required to 
enable meaningful monitoring of claims by the 
Authority. This should include: 


 An annual report on the performance of the 
self-insurance fund; 


 Written notification of the completion of all 
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liability claims, including the costs involved, 
within one month of settlement.  


Payroll  No recommendations made. 


Pensions No recommendations made. 


Retained Firefighter Claims No recommendations made.  


Stores - Refresher training in areas such as manual 
handling and forklift training are undertaken on a 
regular basis. 
- Regular stock reconciliations are undertaken 
and accurate stock records maintained. 
- As a minimum, the following controls would be 
expected to be in place to help mitigate any 
associated risks with annual stock taking 
procedures: 


 An independent stocktake (i.e. undertaken 
by a non-stores employee) should be 
undertaken of all stores including sub-
stores, imprests held on vans and any 
items delivered direct and held on site.  A 
record should be maintained by the 
employee concerned showing when items 
were checked. 


 A stocktake of all items should be 
undertaken at least annually either at the 
year-end or on a perpetual (i.e. 
continuous) basis.  A record should be 
maintained by the employee concerned 
showing when items were checked.  


 A stocktake of high turnover and 
valuable/desirable items should be 
undertaken on a more frequent basis. 


 Stock levels should be compared with 
those of previous years/periods; any 
significant variations should be 
independently investigated. 


 Records of discrepancies in stock levels 
should be maintained and monitored over 
time to identify any patterns.  Any major 
errors should be promptly investigated by 
an employee independent of the stores 
procedure.   


VAT No recommendations made.  


 
2. PROBITY 
 


In addition to systems control testing, audit activity also included a range of probity 
tests. The areas reviewed are detailed in the following paragraphs.  


 
2.1 Payroll Probity 
 
 To ensure the integrity of payroll payments made to Fire Brigade employees, a 


series of tests were undertaken to ensure that:- 
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- Starters were correctly added to payroll records and leavers deleted, 
- Changes to standing payroll data were properly authorised, 
- Payments were made in accordance with terms of contract and correct salary 


scales, 
- Time sheets and claim driven payments were properly authorised and paid, 
- Deductions from salaries are supported by appropriately authorised 


documentation, 
- Output reports are produced, regularly examined and evidenced as such, 
- There is adequate budgetary control over payroll payments, 
- Control or suspense accounts relating to payroll operations are regularly 


reconciled and cleared. 
 


2.2 Testing identified that the arrangements in place to administer payroll within 
Cleveland Fire Brigade have remained consistently well controlled through the 
period that Hartlepool Borough Council Internal Audit have been responsible for the 
audits. 


 
2.3 Creditors Probity 
 
 To ensure the integrity of creditor payments made by the Fire Brigade, a series of 


tests were undertaken to ensure that: 
 


- An up to date approved list of authorised signatories is held, 
- Written procedures for the processing of creditor payments exist, 
- Adequate procedures are in place for raising and authorising requisitions/ 


demand notes, 
- The system in place for raising and approving orders is satisfactory, 
- The delivery of goods/ services is recorded and verified, 
- Adequate procedures are in place for processing invoices/ payment documents, 


ensuring that arrangements are in place to minimise duplicate payments, 
- The procedures in place for raising and payment of cheque requisitions are 


satisfactory, 
- There is an adequate system in place for the payment of petty cash, 
- Adequate procedures are in place for the payment and recording of periodic 


payments, 
- There are procedures in place to control and record cheques returned to the Fire 


Brigade for distribution, 
- There is adequate budgetary control. 
 


2.4 Testing identified that the arrangements in place to administer creditor payments 
within Cleveland Fire Brigade have remained consistently well controlled through 
the period that Hartlepool Borough Council Internal Audit have been responsible for 
the audits. 


2.5 Pensions Probity 


  
To evaluate the integrity of payments made for voluntary, compulsory or ill health 
retirements to ensure that: 


 
- Retirement calculations are accurate and in accordance with relevant legislation, 
- New pensioner lump sum and pension payments are valid. 
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APPENDIX B 


 
 
 
Noel Adamson     Tel:   01429 523173 
Head of Audit and Governance   www.hartlepool.gov.uk 
Civic Centre       Contact Officer/Email: Noel.Adamson@Hartlepool.gov.uk 
Victoria Road     Our Ref:   NA/CFA/18/19 


Hartlepool      Your Ref: 


TS28 8AY 
 


 
 
Date: 21/06/19 
 
 
The Treasurer. 
Cleveland Fire Authority, 
Fire Brigade Headquarters, 
Endeavour House, 
Stockton Road,  
Hartlepool. 
 
Dear Sir, 
 
Internal Audit Outcomes for 2018/19 
 
From the work undertaken during the year 2018/19, Internal Audit has reached the opinion 
that key systems are operating soundly and that there is no fundamental breakdown in 
controls resulting in material discrepancy. Satisfactory arrangements were implemented to 
ensure the effective, efficient and economic operation of Cleveland Fire Authority’s 
financial affairs. 
 
No system of control can provide absolute assurance against material misstatement or 
loss, nor can Internal Audit give that assurance; this statement is intended to provide 
reasonable assurance. 
 
These risks are reflected in the audit plan and are the subject of separate reports issued 
during the course of 2018/19.   
 
 
Yours Faithfully, 
 
 
N Adamson CPFA 
Head of Audit and Governance 
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AUDIT 2018/19 – REQUEST FOR DECLARATIONS 
 


REPORT OF THE TREASURER  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


 
 
 
  


 
 
 


 
 
1. PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 
1.1 To inform Members, and seek approval to, a proposed response to the letter 


received from the Director and Engagement Lead of the Authority’s External 
Auditor, Mazars, regarding processes, arrangements, and compliance with laws and 
regulations and the prevention and detection of fraud. 
  


2. RECOMMENDATION 


2.1      That Members agree the letter at Appendix 1 outlining how the activities of 
the Committee comply with the International Auditing Standards and authorise the 
Chair to respond accordingly to the external Auditor. 
 


3. BACKGROUND 
 


3.1 In carrying out the annual accounts audit, Mazars have to demonstrate compliance 
with International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland). The standard requires 
the external Auditor to gain an understanding, each year, of how the Audit and 
Governance Committee exercise oversight of management’s processes for 
identifying and responding to the risk of fraud and error and the controls established 
to mitigate those risks. 
 


3.2 The External Auditor must also gain a general understanding of the legal and 
regulatory framework applicable to the Authority and how the Authority is complying 
with that framework. The auditor is required to undertake audit procedures to help 
identify instances of non-compliance where it may impact on the preparation of the 
financial statements. These procedures include : 
 


 Enquiring of management whether they have complied with all 
relevant laws and regulations; 


 Obtaining written representation from management that they have 
disclosed to the auditor all known actual or possible areas of non-
compliance; and 


 Enquiring of “those charged with governance” whether they are aware 
of any possible instances of non-compliance. 


 


 
 
 
 


For Approval 
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4. AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE RESPONSE 


 
4.1 Attached as Appendix 1 is a letter to Mazars from the Chair of the Committee 


setting out how the committee has complied with the requirements of International 
Standards of Auditing and fulfilled its Governance role. 


   
CHRIS LITTLE 
TREASURER TO THE AUTHORITY  
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                 APPENDIX 1 
Gavin Barker, 
Director, 
Mazars 
Rivergreen Centre, 
Aykley Heads, 
Durham, 
DH1 5TS. 


 
Dear Gavin, 


 
Further to your request for declarations from those charged with governance we can 
confirm that the following arrangements are in place to enable the Audit and Governance 
Committee to exercise oversight of the processes in place to prevent and detect fraud and 
gain assurance that all relevant laws and regulations are complied with.   
 
1) Questions about arrangements for preventing and detecting fraud 
 
How does the Audit and Governance Committee assess the risk that the financial 
statements may be materially misstated due to fraud? 
As the Audit and Governance Committee we review the Authority’s Financial Statements 
and take advice from both officers’ internally and externally regarding the accounting 
statements and processes in place to ensure they are a true and fair view of the 
Authority’s financial position. A rigorous targeted quality assurance review of the final 
accounts and financial statements is undertaken by Hartlepool Borough Council’s 
accounting staff who prepare the statements, supported by the Treasurer and the 
Authority’s Finance Team, to ensure that they are not subject to material misstatement.  
Financial reports are subject to a quarterly review which is scrutinised by the Executive 
Leadership Team. 
 
Is the Audit and Governance Committee aware of management’s process for 
identifying and responding to the risks of fraud generally and specific risks of 
misstatement in the financial statements and if so what are these processes? 
We are regularly updated in relation to issues regarding potential fraud and review and 
approve the Authority’s Anti-Fraud and Corruption Strategy.  As an independent committee 
of the Authority, the Audit and Governance Committee can at any time seek explanation 
from any officer of the Authority regarding issues it considers. A rigorous targeted quality 
assurance review of the final accounts and financial statements is undertaken by 
Hartlepool Borough Council’s accounting staff who prepare the statements, supported by 
the Authority’s Finance Team, to ensure that they are not subject to material misstatement.  
Financial reports are subject to a quarterly review which is scrutinised by the Executive 
Leadership Team. 
 
Is the Audit and Governance Committee aware of the arrangements in place for 
management to report about fraud to the Audit and Governance Committee and if so 
what are those arrangements? 
We considered the Internal Audit Plan for 2018/19 and received regular updates. This 
allowed members to be kept up to date with the ongoing progress of the Internal Audit 
section in completing its annual audit plan. These reports allowed the committee to review 
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the outcomes of all completed internal audit reports and comment upon any areas of 
concern. 
 
Is the Audit and Governance committee aware of the arrangements management 
have in place, if any, for communicating with employees, lay members, partners, 
and stakeholders regarding ethical governance and standards of conduct and 
behaviour and if so what are these arrangements? 
The Authority has strong corporate governance arrangements in place in relation to the 
risk of fraud.  Internal audit has reviewed these arrangements in line with CIPFA and 
National Fraud Authority guidance to identify and respond to fraud risk areas. This is 
communicated to staff through an annual training seminar which is jointly run by the 
Treasurer and Monitoring Officer, with a guidance document available on the intranet and 
in the staff handbook. 
 
Does the Audit and Governance Committee have knowledge of actual or suspected 
fraud, and if so is it aware of what actions management is taking to address it? 
The Committee does not have knowledge of actual fraud or suspect fraud may be 
occurring within the Authority and is satisfied that adequate arrangements are in place to 
tackle suspected fraud. 
 
Are there any classes of transaction, account balances or disclosures for which a 
risk of fraud is likely to exist? 
The Committee considers those posts dealing with all aspects of procurement and cash 
handling to be high risk in relation to potential fraud. The Committee takes assurance from 
the fact that risk assessment of posts is undertaken and training is provided to staff and 
that the Authority has sufficiently skilled and experienced staff to deliver the Authority’s 
objectives. 
 
What arrangements are in place for the Audit and Governance Committee to 
oversee management arrangements for identifying and responding to the risks of 
fraud and the establishment of internal control? 
The Committee is satisfied that the Authority has adequate governance arrangements in 
place in relation to its internal control environment and gains assurance from the work of 
its internal and external auditors.  
 
How does the Audit and Governance committee mitigate the risk of fraud associated 
with related party relationships and transactions? 
The Committee is assured that adequate arrangements are in place for the recording and 
declaration of any relationships or interests that may raise cause for concern which makes 
all staff and Members aware of their responsibilities. A periodic check is undertaken.  
 
Are there any related party relationships or transactions which could create a 
conflict of interests? 
The Committee is not aware of any related party relationships or transactions that could 
create a conflict of interest or give rise to instances of fraud.  
 
How does the Audit and Governance Committee encourage staff to report any 
concerns about fraud or misconduct? 
The Authority has a well-established and publicised Whistleblowing Policy in place as well 
as an up to date Anti-Fraud and Corruption policy detailing our stance and response in 
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relation to fraud, and expectations regarding behaviour of officers.  Staff are expected to 
report all instance of suspected fraud and corruption and are encouraged to do so. 
 
Is the Audit and Governance Committee aware of any entries made in the 
accounting records that you believe or suspect are false or intentionally 
misleading? 
The Committee is not aware of any entries made in the accounting records of the Authority 
that we believe or suspect are false or intentionally misleading. We do not believe any 
assets, liabilities or transactions have been improperly included or omitted from the 
accounts of the Authority. The Committee takes assurance from both its internal and 
external audit coverage of the Authority’s accounting records and is satisfied that sufficient 
checks and balances are in place. 
 
2) Questions about arrangements for complying with law and regulations 
responsibilities 
 
Has management provided a clear statement which confirms its consideration of 
relevant laws and regulations and its compliance with them? 
The Authority’s Legal Adviser and Monitoring Officer monitors all current and new 
legislation, ensuring adequate arrangements are in place to enable compliance.  The 
Authority has in place a robust management performance and reporting regime which 
helps monitor the achievement of objectives including compliance with laws and 
regulations.  There is also a comprehensive internal audit regime which provides 
independent assurance.   
 
How does the Audit and Governance Committee satisfy itself that all relevant laws 
and regulations are being complied with? 
The Audit and Governance Committee considered the Internal Audit Plan 2018/19 
updates. Four of these reports were reviewed by the committee during the year which 
allowed members to be kept up to date with the ongoing progress of the Internal Audit 
section in completing its annual audit plan. These reports allowed the committee to review 
the outcomes of all completed internal audit reports and comment upon any areas of 
concern. The Committee also receives assurance via the work of the Authority’s Legal 
Adviser and Monitoring Officer through regular update reports. These reports, along with 
other updates from senior officers at the Authority, provide satisfactory assurance that all 
relevant laws and regulations are being complied with.  
 
Is the Audit and Governance Committee aware of any instances of non-compliance 
with laws or regulations? 
Members of the Audit and Governance Committee are active in other areas of Authority 
activity and bring that knowledge and experience to the Audit and Governance Committee 
in relation to the Authority’s operation. The Audit and Governance Committee reviews 
performance and risk management arrangements in place through the work of Internal 
Audit and other reports received and is not aware of any non-compliance with relevant 
laws or regulations during 2018/19. 
 
 
Has management provided a list of litigation and claims? 
The Committee is not aware of any significant litigation or claims that would affect the 
financial statements. 
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Has an assessment been made of the outcome of the litigation or claim and its 
estimate of the financial implications, including costs involved?  Has the 
reasonableness of management’s assessments been considered and additional 
information provided to the auditor where necessary? 
The Committee is not aware of any significant litigation or claims that would affect the 
financial statements. 
 
Has a report been received from management forming a view on going concern? 
Reports and information have been provided to the Committee over the course of the year, 
including reviewing the Authority’s Financial Statements and Annual Governance 
Statement.  
 
Are the assumptions in that report (e.g. future levels of income and expenditure) 
consistent with the strategic business plan and the financial information provided to 
the Audit and Governance Committee throughout the year?   If not does the report 
contain a clear explanation, with supporting evidence, for the assumptions used, 
and are those assumptions appropriate? This should include written evidence of 
agreed income and expenditure for major funding streams. 
The Committee has no significant doubt as to the Authority’s ability to continue as a going 
concern. In 2018/19 we maintained spending within budget and have sufficient reserves to 
cover known risks to the budgeted position for the year ahead. The Treasury Management 
Strategy 2019/20 was reported to the Audit and Governance Committee to consider the 
proposals prior to the strategy being referred to the full Authority for approval in February 
2019, and is consistent with the Service Plan and Community Integrated Risk 
Management Plan. 
 
Are the implications of statutory or policy changes appropriately reflected in the 
business plan, financial forecasts and report on going concern? 
The Authority’s Legal Adviser and Monitoring Officer monitors all current and new 
legislation, ensuring adequate arrangements are in place to enable compliance.  The 
Authority has in place a robust management performance and reporting regime which 
helps monitor the achievement of objectives including compliance with laws and 
regulations.  There is also a comprehensive internal audit regime which provides 
independent assurance.  
 
Have there been any significant issues raised with the Audit and Governance 
Committee during the year (e.g. adverse comments raised by internal or external 
audit regarding financial performance or significant weaknesses in systems of 
financial control, or significant variances to activity levels compared to those 
planned), which could cast doubts on the assumptions made? 
There have been no significant issues raised with the Audit and Governance Committee 
during the year that cast doubt on financial assumptions made when forming a view on the 
going concern assumption. There is also a comprehensive internal and external audit 
regime which provides independent assurance.   
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Has an analysis been undertaken of the Authority’s projected or actual performance 
against its financial plan? If so, is it robust and does it identify any areas of 
potential concern?  Where there are potential concerns what action is being taken 
to address those areas of potential weakness? 
The Treasury Management Strategy 2019/20 was reported to the Audit and Governance 
Committee to consider the proposals prior to the strategy being referred to the full 
Authority for approval in February 2019. Financial reports are subject to a quarterly review 
comparing actual performance against financial plans which are also scrutinised by the 
Executive Leadership Team.  These reports are designed to  highlight any potential areas 
of concern and planned remedial action. 
 
Does the organisation have sufficient staff in post, with the appropriate skills and 
experience, particularly at senior management level, to ensure the delivery of the 
organisation’s objectives? If not, what action is being taken to obtain those skills? 
The organisation has sufficiently skilled and experienced staff to deliver the Authority’s 
objectives, supported by Hartlepool Borough Councils accounting staff. A risk assessment 
of posts is undertaken, a robust recruitment process is in place, and appropriate training is 
provided.  
 
 
 
Yours Faithfully, 
 
 


      Chris Little 
Chair, Audit and Governance Committee  Treasurer to the Authority 
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ROLE OF THE CHIEF FINANCE OFFICER (CFO) IN PUBLIC 
SERVICE ORGANISATIONS 
 
REPORT OF THE TREASURER 
 


 
 


 
 
 
 


 


 
 


1. PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 
1.1 To inform Members of the CIPFA statement – ‘The Role of the CFO in Public 


Service Organisations’, and how the Authority complies with this guidance. 
 


2. RECOMMENDATION 
 
2.1 That Members note that I have reviewed the CIPFA statement – ‘The Role of the 


CFO in Public Service Organisations’ and can advise Members that the CFA 
complies with these requirements as detailed in Appendix A. 


 
3. BACKGROUND 
 
3.1 The role of the CFO (designated as the Treasurer at this Authority) is a fundamental 


building block of good corporate governance and the Local Government Act 1972 
(section 151) requires ‘every local authority shall make arrangements for the proper 
administration of their financial affairs and shall secure that one of their officers has 
responsibility for the administration of those affairs’.  This statutory requirement is 
reinforced by the Local Government and Housing Act 1989 (section 6) which 
requires that the Section 151 officer is a qualified accountant and a member of an 
accountancy body approved by the Secretary of State.   


 
3.2 The two critical aspects of the CFO’s role are stewardship and probity in the use of 


resources; and performance, extracting the most value from the use of those 
resources. The CFO, as the organisation’s most senior executive role charged with 
leading and directing financial strategy and operations, occupies a pivotal role, both 
for external stakeholders and within the Leadership Team. CFOs everywhere have 
a responsibility to ensure that their organisations control and manage money well, 
and that strategic planning and decision making are supported by sound analysis.  


 
3.3 In the public service context, CFOs must also meet the demands of openness and 


accountability in decision making, balance competition for limited resources across 
a range of worthwhile objectives, deliver value for money and safeguard taxpayers’ 
money. Delivering these requires a range of personal qualities, as well as support 
from both the finance function and the organisation as a whole. It is these 
expectations, combined with the personal qualities and leadership skills needed for 
them to be met, that have shaped the CIPFA Statement on the Role of the CFO in 
Public Service Organisations (the statement). 


 
 


For Information 
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3.4 The Statement sets out the five principles that define the core activities and 
behaviours that belong to the role of the CFO in public service organisations and 
the organisational arrangements needed to support them. Successful 
implementation of each of the principles requires the right ingredients in terms of: 


 


 The Organisation; 


 The Role: and 


 The Individual. 
 


3.5 For each principle the Statement sets out the governance arrangements required 
within an organisation to ensure that CFOs are able to operate effectively and 
perform their core duties. The Statement also sets out the core responsibilities of 
the CFO role within the organisation. Many of the day-to-day responsibilities may in 
practice be delegated or in some authorities may even outsource, but the CFO 
should maintain oversight and control. Summaries of personal skills and 
professional standards then detail the leadership skills and technical expertise 
organisations can expect from their CFO. These include the key requirements of 
CIPFA and the other professional accountancy bodies’ codes of ethics and 
professional standards to which the CFO as a qualified professional is bound. The 
personal skills described have been aligned with the most appropriate principle, but 
in many cases can support other principles as well. 


 
4. CIPFA STATEMENT ON THE ROLE OF THE CFO IN PUBLIC SERVICE 


ORGANISATIONS 


 
4.1 The CFO in a public service organisation: 


 
1 is a key member of the Leadership Team, helping it to develop and 


implement strategy and to resource and deliver the organisation’s strategic 
objectives sustainably and in the public interest; 


2 must be actively involved in, and able to bring influence to bear on, all 
material business decisions to ensure immediate and longer term 
implications, opportunities and risks are fully considered, and alignment with 
the organisation’s financial strategy; and  


3 must lead the promotion and delivery by the whole organisation of good 
financial management so that public money is safeguarded at all times and 
used appropriately, economically, efficiently and effectively.  


 
To deliver these responsibilities the CFO: 
 
4 must lead and direct a finance function that is resourced to be fit for purpose; 


and  
5 must be professionally qualified and suitably experienced.    


 


4.2 Appendix A of the report details how the CFA ensures that the requirements of the 
statement are met. 


 


CHRIS LITTLE 
TREASURER TO THE AUTHORITY  
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                   APPENDIX A 
How the Five Principles Are Met                 
           


Principle 1 – The CFO is a key member of the Leadership Team, helping it to develop and implement strategy and to resource and 
deliver the organisation’s strategic objectives sustainably and in the public interest. 
 


Governance 
requirements 


CFA Arrangements Core CFO 
responsibilities 


CFA Arrangements Personal skills and 
professional 
standards 


CFA Arrangements 


Set out a clear 
statement of the 
respective roles and 
responsibilities of the 
Leadership Team 
and its members 
individually. 


Constitution, Delegated 
Powers, Job Descriptions 
in place and clearly define 
roles and responsibilities. 


Contributing to the 
effective leadership of 
the organisation, 
maintaining focus on its 
purpose and vision 
through rigorous 
analysis and challenge. 


CFO leads on all financial 
matters and ensures the 
Authority, the Executive 
Leadership Team and 
Directors own and 
respond to the Medium 
Term Financial Strategy 
and supporting strategies, 
such as Community 
Integrated Risk 
Management Plan.  


Role model, energetic, 
determined, positive, 
robust and resilient 
leadership, able to inspire 
confidence and respect, 
and exemplify high 
standards of conduct. 


Actively engaged in the 
Management 
Development 
Programme. Provides 
training regarding 
financial issues to 
members and staff. 
Mentors senior finance 
staff and has regular 
Finance Management 
Team meetings and 1 to 
1 meeting with senior 
finance staff.  


Ensure that the CFO 
reports directly to the 
Chief Executive and 
is a member of the 
Leadership Team 
with a status at least 
equivalent to other 
members. 
 


CFO reports directly to 
Chief Fire Officer as 
necessary. Has regular 1 
to 1 meetings with 
Director of Corporate 
Resources.  


Contributing to the 
effective corporate 
management of the 
organisation, including 
strategy implementation, 
cross organisational 
issues, integrated 
business and resource 
planning, risk 
management and 
performance 
management. 


See Above Adopt a flexible 
leadership style, able to 
move through visioning to 
implementation and 
collaboration/consultation 
to challenge as 
appropriate. 
 


See Above. 


If different 
organisational 
arrangements are 


Not applicable - see 
Above 


Supporting the effective 
governance of the 
organisation through 


Responsible for the 
provision an adequate 
and effective Internal 


Build robust relationships 
both internally and 
externally. 


See Above. Regular 
meetings with Directors 
and other senior 
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adopted, explain the 
reasons publicly, 
together with how 
these deliver the 
same impact.  
 


development of 
– corporate governance 
arrangements, risk 
management and 
reporting framework; 
and 
– corporate decision 
making arrangements.  


Audit service. Key role in 
formulating the Annual 
Governance Statement 
and Code of Corporate 
Governance.  


 managers facilitate 
establishment of robust 
relationships. Active 
member of Fire Finance 
Network. Regular liaison 
with other Fire 
Authorities as 
appropriate. Regular 
meetings with external 
auditors. 


Determine a scheme 
of delegation and 
reserve powers, 
including a formal 
schedule of those 
matters specifically 
reserved for 
collective decisions 
by the Board, and 
ensure that it is 
monitored and 
updated. 


Constitution and Scheme 
of Delegation in place. 


Leading or promoting 
change programmes 
within the organisation. 


Key role in Community 
Integrated Risk 
Management Plan and 
Service Delivery Options. 


Work effectively with other 
Leadership Team 
members with political 
awareness and sensitivity.  
 


Regular contact with all 
members including 
Chair, Vice Chair and 
Chair of Audit and 
Governance, regular 
meetings with Chief Fire 
Officer and Directors.   


Ensure that 
organisation’s 
governance 
arrangements allow 
the CFO:  
– to bring influence 
to bear on all 
material business 
decisions; and 
– direct access to 
the Chief Executive, 
other Leadership 
Team members, the 
Audit Committee and 
external audit. 


Constitution and Scheme 
of Delegation in place as 
well as defined reporting 
arrangements. 


Leading development of 
a medium term financial 
strategy and the annual 
budgeting process to 
ensure financial balance 
and a monitoring 
process to ensure its 
delivery.  
 


Responsibility for Medium 
Term Financial Strategy 
(MTFS) and budgetary 
control processes/matters 
and ensuring Members, 
Directors and all staff 
input to Medium Term 
Financial Strategy and 
supporting strategies, 
such as Community 
Integrated Risk 
Management Plan. 


Support collective 
ownership of strategy, 
risks and delivery. 
 


Represented on all 
relevant working groups. 
Key role in relation to 
Annual Governance 
Statement. 


Review the scope of 
the CFO’s other 


Reviewed role of 
Treasurer and extended 


Ensuring the medium 
term financial strategy 


Wide consultation 
undertaken with all 


Address and deal 
effectively with difficult 


Ongoing review of skills 
and management 
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management 
responsibilities to 
ensure financial 
matters are not 
compromised. 


service level agreement 
with Hartlepool Borough 
Council to provide this 
role from 1.4.14.  


reflects joint planning 
with partners and other 
stakeholders. 


relevant stakeholders.  situations. 
 


development where 
necessary. 


Assess the financial 
skills required by 
members of the 
Leadership Team 
and commit to 
develop those skills 
to enable their roles 
to be carried out 
effectively. 


Overarching Leadership 
and Management 
Development role in 
relation to financial 
matters. 


  Implement best practice in 
change management and 
leadership. 
 


Ongoing development 
through mentoring.  


    Balance conflicting 
pressures and needs, 
including short and longer 
term trade-offs. 


Responsibility for 
Medium Term Financial 
Strategy (MTFS) and 
budgetary control 
processes. 


    Demonstrate strong 
commitment to innovation 
and performance 
improvement. 


Supporting role in 
Community Integrated 
Risk Management Plan 
and Service Delivery 
Options. 


    Manage a broad portfolio 
of services to meet the 
needs of diverse 
communities. 


Responsible for full 
range of financial 
services aligned with 
corporate priorities and 
needs through MTFS. 


    Maintain an appropriate 
balance between the 
deeper financial aspects 
of the CFO role and the 
need to develop and 
retain a broader focus on 
the environment and 
stakeholder expectations 
and needs. 


See Above. 


    Comply with the IFAC Professional standards 
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Code of Ethics for 
Professional Accountants, 
as implemented by local 
regulations and 
accountancy bodies, as 
well as other ethical 
standards that are 
applicable to them by 
reason of their 
professional status. The 
fundamental principles set 
out in the Code are 
integrity, objectivity, 
professional competence 
and due care, 
confidentiality, and 
professional behaviour. 
Impartiality is a further 
fundamental requirement 
of those operating in the 
public services. 


integral to role. 
Commitment to 
Professional CPD and 
Management 
development. 


Principle 2 – The CFO must be actively involved in, and able to bring influence to bear on, all material business decisions to ensure 
immediate and longer term implications, opportunities and risks are fully considered, and alignment with the organisation’s overall 
financial strategy.  
 
Governance 
requirements 


CFA Arrangements Core CFO 
responsibilities 


CFA Arrangements Personal skills and 
professional 
standards 


CFA Arrangements 


Establish a medium 
term business and 
financial planning 
process to deliver 
the organisation’s 
strategic objectives, 
including: 
– a medium term 
financial strategy to 
ensure sustainable 


MTFS in place, monitoring 
arrangements and role of 
Authority and Audit and 
Governance Committee 
enshrined in the 
Constitution.  


Responsibility for 
financial strategy: 
Agreeing the financial 
framework with 
sponsoring 
organisations and 
planning delivery 
against the defined 
strategic and operational 
criteria. 


Responsibility for the 
production, 
implementation and 
monitoring of the MTFS.  


Implement appropriate 
management, business 
and strategic planning 
techniques. 
 


Responsibility for MTFS 
and budgetary control 
processes. 
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finances; 
– a robust annual 
budget process that 
ensures financial 
balance; and 
– a monitoring 
process that enables 
this to be delivered. 


 


Ensure that 
professional advice 
on matters that have 
financial implications 
is available and 
recorded well in 
advance of decision 
making and used 
appropriately. 


The reporting of key 
decisions is enshrined 
within the Constitution. 


Maintaining a long term 
financial strategy to 
underpin the 
organisation’s financial 
viability within the 
agreed performance 
framework. 
 


See Above. Link financial strategy and 
overall strategy. 
 


MTFS linked to overall 
strategy as set out in 
IRMP and Annual 
Business plans. 


Ensure that those 
making decisions 
are provided with 
information that is fit 
for the purpose – 
relevant, timely and 
giving clear 
explanations of 
financial issues and 
their implications. 


See Above Implementing financial 
management policies to 
underpin sustainable 
long-term financial 
health and reviewing 
performance against 
them. 
 


Responsibility for the 
production, 
implementation and 
monitoring of Financial 
Procedure Rules (FPRs) 
and Standing Orders. 


Demonstrate a willingness 
to take and stick to 
difficult decisions – even 
under pressure. 
 


Key role in Community 
Integrated Risk 
Management Plan and 
Service Delivery 
Options. 


  Appraising and advising 
on commercial 
opportunities and 
financial targets.  


Budget monitoring 
process and Budget 
Strategy, key decision 
advice.  


Take ownership of 
relevant financial and 
business risks. 
 


Key role in Annual 
Governance Statement. 


  Developing and 
maintaining an effective 
resource allocation 
model to deliver 
business priorities. 


See Above Network effectively within 
the organisation to ensure 
awareness of all material 
business decisions to 
which CFO input may be 
necessary. 


Regular contact with 
Chief Fire Officer, 
Directors, other senior 
officers and members.  


  Co-ordinating the 
planning and budgeting 


See Above.  Annual 
budget timetable well 


Role model persuasive 
and concise 


See Above. Externally 
represent Authority on 
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processes. established and enshrined 
in constitution.  


communication with a 
wide range of audiences 
internally and externally. 


financial issues as 
appropriate. 


  Influencing decision 
making: 
Ensuring that 
opportunities and risks 
are fully considered and 
decisions are aligned 
with the overall financial 
strategy. 


Budget Strategy and 
monitoring process, key 
decision advice in relation 
to financial and 
governance matters. 


Provide clear, 
authoritative and impartial 
professional advice and 
objective financial 
analysis and interpretation 
of complex situations.  
 


Addressed in MTFS and 
associated presentation 
to Members, Directors 
etc. 


  Providing professional 
advice and objective 
financial analysis 
enabling decision 
makers to take timely 
and informed business 
decisions. 


Key decision advice in 
relation to financial and 
governance matters. 


Apply relevant statutory, 
regulatory and 
professional standards 
both personal and 
organisational. 
 


See Above. 


  Ensuring that the 
organisation’s capital 
projects are chosen 
after appropriate value 
for money analysis and 
evaluation using 
relevant professional 
guidance. 


Close working relationship 
with Executive Leadership 
Team on development of 
capital programme.  


Demonstrate a strong 
desire to innovate and 
add value. 
 


Keep abreast of current 
best practice to underpin 
development of cost 
effective solutions. 


  Checking, at an early 
stage, that innovative 
financial approaches 
comply with regulatory 
requirements. 


Close working relationship 
with Members and 
Executive Leadership 
Team to ensure early 
involvement with 
innovative approaches to 
services and financial 
arrangements to ensure 
compliance with 
regulatory requirement 
and proposals are based 
on robust business cases. 


Challenge effectively, and 
give and receive 
constructive feedback. 
 


Ongoing development 
through review 
/mentoring. 1 to 1 
meetings with Director 
of Corporate Resources 
and key financial staff. 


  Financial information Budget Strategy and Operate with sensitivity in Ongoing development 
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for decision makers: 
Monitoring and reporting 
on financial performance 
that is linked to related 
performance information 
and strategic objectives 
that identifies any 
necessary corrective 
decisions. 


monitoring process, key 
decision advice in relation 
to financial and 
governance matters. 
Corporate Plan aligned 
with financial PI’s. 


a political environment. through management 
development and peer 
review/mentoring. 
Regular contact with 
members.   


  Preparing timely 
management accounts. 


Final Accounts timetable.   


  Ensuring the reporting 
envelope reflects 
partnerships and other 
arrangements to give an 
overall picture. 


Effective and wide 
ranging consultation 
process in place. 


  


Principle 3 – The CFO must lead the promotion and delivery by the whole organisation of good financial management so that public 
money is safeguarded at all times and used appropriately, economically, efficiently, and effectively. 
 


Governance 
requirements 


CFA Arrangements Core CFO 
responsibilities 


CFA Arrangements Personal skills and 
professional 
standards 


CFA Arrangements 


Make the CFO 
responsible for 
ensuring that 
appropriate advice is 
given on all financial 
matters, for keeping 
financial records and 
accounts, and for 
maintaining an 
effective system of 
financial control. 


Delegated Powers, FPRs 
and Standing Orders 
enshrined within 
Constitution. 


Promotion of financial 
management:  
Assessing the 
organisation’s financial 
management style and 
the improvements 
needed to ensure it 
aligns with the 
organisation’s strategic 
direction. 
 


Strategic direction 
reflected in MTFS. 


Generate ‘buy-in’ to, and 
support delivery of, good 
financial management 
across the organisation. 
 


Achieved through 
detailed involvement of 
Members and Executive 
Leadership Team in 
development of financial 
management strategy 
and procedures for 
ensuring good financial 
management 
arrangements are in 
place. 


Ensure that systems 
and processes for 
financial 
administration, 
financial control and 


Delegated Powers, FPRs 
and Standing Orders 
enshrined within 
Constitution. Scrutiny and 
Audit and Governance 


Actively promoting 
financial literacy 
throughout the 
organisation. 
 


Allocation of financial 
support to budget holders 
promotes close working 
relationship and ensures 
financial management 


Develop and sustain 
partnerships, and engage 
effectively in 
collaboration. 
 


Partnership strategy and 
control and monitoring 
procedures in place to 
ensure effective 
collaboration. 
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protection of the 
organisation’s 
resources and 
assets are designed 
in conformity with 
appropriate ethical 
standards and 
monitor their 
continuing 
effectiveness in 
practice. 


Committees in line with 
legislative arrangements. 


arrangements are 
effective. 


Address the 
organisation’s 
arrangements for 
financial and internal 
control and for 
managing risk in 
Annual Governance 
Reports. 


Delegated Powers, FPRs 
and Standing Orders 
enshrined within 
Constitution. Scrutiny and 
Audit Committees in line 
with legislative 
arrangements. Internal 
Audit Section adequately 
resourced. 


Value for money: 
Challenging and 
supporting decision 
makers, especially on 
affordability and value 
for money, by ensuring 
policy and operational 
proposals with financial 
implications are signed 
off by the finance 
function. 


Advisory role in terms of 
all key committee 
decisions in respect of 
financial matters.  
 
 


Deploy effective 
facilitation and meeting 
skills. 
 


Member working groups 
where appropriate.  


Publish annual 
accounts on a timely 
basis to 
communicate the 
organisation’s 
activities and 
achievements, its 
financial position and 
performance. 


Delegated Powers and 
Final Accounts process.   


Developing and 
maintaining appropriate 
asset management and 
procurement strategies. 
 


Close working relationship 
with Executive Leadership 
Team on development of 
capital programme. 


Build and demonstrate 
commitment to continuous 
improvement and 
innovative, but risk-aware, 
solutions. 
 


Key involvement in 
future service delivery 
changes, resource 
allocation and trading 
opportunities. 


Maintain and 
resource an effective 
internal audit 
function. 


Audit and Governance 
Committee remit and 
effective internal audit 
assessment carried out 
annually.  


Managing long term 
commercial contract 
value. 
 


Control arrangements in 
place for obtaining value 
for money from long term 
contract arrangements, 
involvement in contract 
terms and conditions and 
monitoring. 


Place stewardship and 
probity as the bedrock for 
management of the 
organisation’s finances. 


Budget Strategy and 
monitoring process, key 
decision advice in 
relation to financial and 
governance matters. 
Corporate Plan aligned 
with financial PI’s. 
Review of System of 
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Internal Audit. 


Develop and 
maintain an effective 
Audit Committee.  


Audit and Governance 
Committee role and 
responsibility enshrined in 
Constitution.  Regular 
training of Audit and 
Governance Committee. 


Safeguarding public 
money: 
Applying strong internal 
controls in all areas of 
financial management, 
risk management and 
asset control. 


Direct line management 
responsibility for all audit 
matters. 


  


Ensure that the 
organisation makes 
best use of 
resources and that 
taxpayers and/or 
service users 
receive value for 
money.  


Delegated Powers 
relating to Budget 
Strategy and Budget 
Monitoring Process. 


Establishing budgets, 
financial targets and 
performance indicators 
to help assess delivery. 
 


Budget Strategy and 
Budget Management 
process aligned to 
corporate plan. 


  


Embed financial 
competencies in 
person specifications 
and appraisals. 


Corporate competencies 
framework, job 
descriptions and person 
specifications.  


Implementing effective 
systems of internal 
control that include 
standing financial 
instructions, operating 
manuals, and 
compliance with codes 
of practice to secure 
probity. 


Direct line management 
responsibility for all audit 
matters, FPR’s and 
Standing Orders.  


  


Assess the financial 
skills required by 
managers and 
commit to develop 
those skills to enable 
their roles to be 
carried out 
effectively. 


See Above Ensuring that delegated 
financial authorities are 
respected. 
 


Performance review 
mechanisms PI’s, Direct 
line management 
responsibility for all audit 
matters. 


  


  Promoting 
arrangements to identify 
and manage key 
business risks, including 
safeguarding assets, 
risk mitigation and 


Working relationship with 
Director of Corporate 
Resources. 
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insurance. 


  Overseeing of capital 
projects and post 
completion reviews. 


Direct line management 
responsibility for capital 
accounting. 


  


  Applying discipline in 
financial management, 
including managing 
cash and banking, 
treasury management, 
debt and cash flow, with 
appropriate segregation 
of duties. 


Direct line management 
responsibility for all audit 
matters, FPR’s and 
Standing Orders.  CFO 
personally involved in 
development and 
implementation of 
Treasury Management 
strategy. 


  


  Implementing 
appropriate measures to 
prevent and detect fraud 
and corruption. 


Direct line management 
responsibility for all audit 
matters, FPR’s and 
Standing Orders. Money 
Laundering Reporting 
Officer (MLRO) 
responsibilities. 


  


  Establishing 
proportionate business 
continuity arrangements 
for financial processes 
and information.  


Involved in planning 
arrangements for 
Business Continuity. 


  


  Ensuring that any 
partnership 
arrangements are 
underpinned by clear 
and well documented 
internal controls. 


Direct line management 
responsibility for all audit 
matters, FPR’s and 
Standing Orders. 


  


  Assurance and 
scrutiny: 
Reporting performance 
of both the organisation 
and its partnerships to 
the board and other 
parties as required. 


Performance review 
mechanisms PI’s, Direct 
line management 
responsibility for all audit 
matters. 


  


  Supporting and advising Regular attendance   
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the Audit Committee 
and relevant scrutiny 
groups. 


enshrined in job 
specification. 


  Preparing published 
budgets, annual 
accounts and 
consolidation data for 
government-level 
consolidated accounts. 


Responsibility for the 
production, 
implementation and 
monitoring of the MTFS 
and for preparing 
accounts and 
consolidated government 
returns. 


  


  Liaising with the external 
auditor. 


Direct line management 
responsibility for all audit 
matters. Regular meeting 
with external auditor. 


  


Principle 4 – The CFO must lead and direct a finance function that is resourced to be fit for purpose. 
 


Governance 
requirements 


CFA Arrangements Core CFO 
responsibilities 


CFA Arrangements Personal skills and 
professional 
standards 


CFA Arrangements 


Provide the finance 
function with the 
resources, expertise 
and systems 
necessary to 
perform its role 
effectively.  


Delegated Powers, FPRs 
and Standing Orders 
enshrined within 
Constitution. 


Leading and directing 
the finance function so 
that it makes a full 
contribution to and 
meets the needs of the 
business.  


Direct line management 
responsibility for all 
corporate financial 
matters. 


Create, communicate and 
implement a vision for the 
finance function.  


Responsibility for the 
production, 
implementation and 
monitoring of the MTFS. 
Regular 1 to 1 with 
senior finance officers. 


Ensure there is a 
line of professional 
accountability to the 
CFO for finance staff 
throughout the 
organisation. 


Structural makeup 
enshrined in Delegated 
Powers. FPRs and 
Standing Orders 
enshrined within 
Constitution. 


Determining the 
resources, expertise and 
systems for the finance 
function that are 
sufficient to meet 
business needs and 
negotiating these within 
the overall financial 
framework. 


Delegated powers 
regarding all financial and 
governance matters. 


Role model a customer 
focussed culture within 
the finance function. 


Leads by example in 
approach with Directors 
and other senior 
managers that finance 
function role is to help 
achieve organisations 
objectives, whilst 
ensuring compliance 
with best practice and 
legislative requirements. 


  Implementing robust See Above.  Recruitment Establish an open culture, Regular 1 to 1 meetings 
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processes for 
recruitment of finance 
staff and/or outsourcing 
of functions. 


follows corporate 
proceeds and based on 
job descriptions and 
person specification. 


built on effective coaching 
and a “no blame” 
approach. 


with senior finance staff.  
Open door policy for all 
staff. CFO accepts 
responsibility for actions 
of all team members 
and encourages staff to 
use learn from 
experiences in a ‘no 
blame’ environment.  


  Reviewing the 
performance of the 
finance function and 
ensuring that the 
services provided are in 
line with the 
expectations and needs 
of its stakeholders. 


Corporate Plan reviewed 
and monitored. 1 to 1 
meetings with senior 
finance manager and 
regular performance 
appraisals. 


Promote effective 
communication within the 
finance department, 
across the broader 
organisation and with 
external stakeholders.  


Finance Management 
Team meetings for 
internal communication.  
All finance staff briefing 
as and when 
appropriate.  
Presentations to 
external groups as 
appropriate.   


  Seeking continuous 
improvement in the 
finance function. 


Departmental plans 
constantly monitored.  


Apply strong project 
planning and process 
management skills. 


Set times scales, clear 
guidelines, review 
gateways and monitor 
performance for future 
improvement. 


  Identifying and 
equipping finance staff, 
managers and the 
Leadership Team with 
the financial 
competencies and 
expertise needed to 
manage the business 
both currently and in the 
future. 


1 to 1 meetings with 
finance managers.  Full 
engagement of ELT as 
appropriate in 
development of financial 
strategies. 


Set and monitor 
meaningful performance 
objectives for the finance 
team. 


Corporate appraisal 
system in place. Regular 
1-2-1’s  


  Ensuring that the Head 
of Profession role for all 
finance staff in the 
organisation is properly 
discharged. 


Delegated Section 151 
responsibilities enshrined 
in Constitution.  All 
finance staff report 
directly to CFO. 


Role model effective staff 
performance 
management. 


Mentor key finance staff 
across the 
Division/regular 1-2-1’s. 
Encourage CPD 
involvement.  


  Acting as the final See Above Coach and support staff in As above. 
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arbiter on application of 
professional standards. 


both technical and 
personal development. 


    Promote high standards 
of ethical behaviour, 
probity, integrity and 
honesty. 


As above.  


    Ensure, when necessary, 
that outside expertise is 
called upon for specialist 
advice not available within 
the finance function. 


Actively seek 
professional expertise 
where needed i.e. 
Treasury management, 
complex taxation issues 
etc.   


    Promote discussion on 
current financial and 
professional issues and 
their implications. 


Mentor key finance staff 
across the 
Division/regular 1-2-1’s. 
Encourage CPD 
involvement.  


Principle 5 – The CFO in a public service organisation must be professionally qualified and suitably experienced. 
 


Governance 
requirements 


CFA Arrangements Core CFO 
responsibilities 


CFA Arrangements Personal skills and 
professional 
standards 


CFA Arrangements 


Appoint a 
professionally 
qualified CFO whose 
core responsibilities 
include those set out 
under the other 
principles in this 
Statement and 
ensure that these 
are properly 
understood 
throughout the 
organisation.  


Constitution and 
delegated powers in 
operation.  Job 
description and person 
specification for CFO. 


  Be a member of an 
accountancy body 
recognised by the 
International Federation of 
Accountants (IFAC), 
qualified through 
examination, and subject 
to oversight by a 
professional body that 
upholds professional 
standards and exercises 
disciplinary powers. 


CFO is member of 
CIPFA and meets CPD 
requirements.   


Ensure that the CFO 
has the skills, 
knowledge, 


See Above.   Adhere to international 
standards set by IFAC on: 
– ethics 


As above. 
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experience and 
resources to perform 
effectively in both 
the financial and 
non-financial areas 
of their role. 


– Continuing Professional 
Development. 


    Demonstrate IT literacy. CFO has required IT 
skills for role and is able 
to manage and 
challenge the 
departmental IT experts 
to ensure they are able 
to effectively discharge 
their responsibilities.  


    Have relevant prior 
experience of financial 
management in the public 
services or private sector. 


CFO qualified with 
CIPFA in 1993 and has 
held a variety of position 
with Hartlepool BC, 
before appointment as 
CFO to Hartlepool 
Borough Council in 2010 
and Cleveland Fire 
Authority Treasurer in 
April 2014.   


    Understand public service 
finance and its regulatory 
environment. 


CFO has 26 years’ post 
qualification experience 
and sound 
understanding of public 
service finance and its 
regulatory environment. 


    Apply the principles of 
corporate finance, 
economics, risk 
management and 
accounting. 


See above 


    Understand personal and 
professional strengths.  


CFO has a clear 
understanding of these 
issues and is committed 
to continuous 
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improvements.  These 
issues addressed 
through performance 
appraisal. 


    Undertake appropriate 
development or obtain 
relevant experience in 
order to meet the 
requirements of the non-
financial areas of the role. 


CFO role has been 
refocused on core 
financial responsibilities 
to ensure financial 
challenges faces the 
CFA can be managed.  
CFO has clear 
understanding of no-
financial areas affecting 
his role. 
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ROLE OF THE HEAD OF INTERNAL AUDIT IN LOCAL 
GOVERNMENT 
 
REPORT OF THE TREASURER 


 


 
 
 
 
 
 


 


 
 
 


1. PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 
1.1 To inform Members of the CIPFA statement – “The Role of the Head of Internal 


Audit in Local Government”, and to demonstrate how the CFA complies with this 
guidance. Although the guidance specifically mentions Local Government the 
principles detailed apply to the CFA and therefore it is considered best practice to 
outline our compliance. 


 
2. RECOMMENDATION 
 
2.1 That Members note that I have reviewed the CIPFA statement – “The Role of the 


Head of Internal Audit in Local Government” and can advise Members that the CFA 
complies with these requirements as detailed in Appendix A. 


 
3. BACKGROUND 
 
3.1 The Statement describes the role of the Head of Internal Audit (HIA) in local 


government. CIPFA believes the HIA occupies a critical position in a local authority, 
helping it to achieve its objectives by giving assurance on its internal control 
arrangements and playing a key role in promoting good corporate governance. 
Local authorities need to know that they have strong arrangements for controlling 
their resources and for delivering their objectives. CIPFA believes that HIA’s have a 
unique role to play here. They are senior managers whose business is objectively 
assessing these arrangements and the risks that authorities face and giving 
appropriate assurances. HIA's must also provide leadership, promoting good 
governance and helping authorities to address future challenges.  
 


3.2 HIA’s need to review the whole system of control, both financial and non-financial, 
and focus on the areas where assurance is most needed. The HIA also has to give 
an annual opinion on the adequacy and effectiveness of the control environment; 
this is used by Chief Fire Officer as a primary source of evidence for the Annual 
Governance Statement.  
 


3.3 HIA’s must also be able to show that they can meet the needs of stakeholders such 
as Chief Fire Officers and Audit Committees, adding value by helping to improve 
services whilst retaining their objectivity. They also need to work well with partners 
and other auditors. Authorities should see the Statement as best practice and use it 
to assess their HIA arrangements to drive up audit quality and governance 
arrangements.  


 
 


For Information 
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4 THE KEY ROLE PLAYED BY THE HIA  
 
4.1 Internal audit is one of the cornerstones of effective governance. The HIA is 


responsible for reviewing and reporting on the adequacy of the authority’s control 
environment, including the arrangements for achieving value for money. Through 
the annual internal audit opinion and other reports the HIA gives assurance to the 
Leadership Team and others, and makes recommendations for improvement.  


 
4.2 The HIA’s role is a unique one, providing objective challenge and support and 


acting as a catalyst for positive change and continual improvement in governance in 
all its aspects. The role is particularly important when authorities are facing 
uncertain or challenging times. Fulfilling the role requires a range of personal 
qualities. The HIA has to win the support and trust of others, so that he/she is 
listened to, and the HIA’s role as a critical friend means that sometimes difficult 
messages must be given and acted on. It is these expectations, combined with the 
professional, personal and leadership skills required, that have shaped the CIPFA 
Statement on the role of the HIA in Local Government.  


 
4.3 Primary audience  


The primary audience for this Statement is those who rely on the HIA’s assurances 
– the Leadership Team and the Audit Committee. CIPFA recommends that they 
should examine their own authority against this Statement to satisfy themselves that 
they have effective HIA arrangements in place.  


 
4.4 Local government context  


CIPFA has drawn up a separate Statement for local government because of the 
statutory responsibility of specific post holders regarding internal audit and 
governance. In local government the ‘Section 151’ officer (the Chief Financial 
Officer or Treasurer) is a statutory post as is the Monitoring Officer (often the Head 
of Legal Services) and the Head of Paid Service (often the Chief Executive). The 
HIA needs to work well with these post holders and lines of responsibility need to be 
clear.  


 
4.5 The Statement sets out the five principles that define the core activities and 


behaviours that belong to the role of the HIA in local government and the 
organisational arrangements needed to support them. Successful implementation of 
each of the principles requires the right ingredients in terms of:  


 


 the organisation;  


 the role; and  


 the individual.  
 


For each principle the Statement sets out the governance arrangements required 
within an authority to ensure that HIAs are able to operate effectively and perform 
their core duties. The Statement also sets out the core responsibilities of the HIA. 
Summaries of personal skills and professional standards then detail the leadership 
skills and technical expertise authorities can expect from their HIA. These include 
the requirements of CIPFA and the other professional bodies’ codes of ethics and 
professional standards to which the HIA as a qualified professional is bound. The 
personal skills described have been aligned with the most appropriate principle, but 
in many cases support other principles as well.  
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4.6 Demonstrating compliance  
The Statement supports CIPFA’s work to strengthen governance, risk management 
and internal audit across public services. It is intended to allow the Leadership 
Team of a local authority to benchmark its existing arrangements against a defined 
framework.  


 
4.7 CIPFA recommends that authorities use the Statement as the framework to assess 


their existing arrangements and that they should report publically on compliance to 
demonstrate their commitment to good practice. CIPFA also proposes that 
authorities should report publicly where their arrangements do not conform to the 
compliance framework in this Statement, explaining the reasons for this, and how 
they achieve the same impact. CIPFA will consider how to take this forward in the 
context of the CIPFA/Society of Local Authority Chief Executives (SOLACE) 
guidance on good governance. 


 
5. CIPFA STATEMENT ON THE ROLE OF THE HIA IN LOCAL GOVERNMENT 
 


The Head of Internal Audit in a local authority plays a critical role in delivering 
the authority’s strategic objectives by: 


 
1 – championing best practice in governance, objectively assessing the adequacy 
of governance and management of existing risks, commenting on responses to 
emerging risks and proposed developments; and  


 
2 – giving an objective and evidence based opinion on all aspects of governance, 
risk management and internal control.  


 
To perform this role the Head of Internal Audit:  


 
3 – must be a senior manager with regular and open engagement across the 
authority, particularly with the Leadership Team and with the Audit Committee;  


 
4 – must lead and direct an internal audit service that is resourced to be fit for 
purpose; and  


 
5 – must be professionally qualified and suitably experienced.  


 
6. PROCESS FOLLOWED 
 
6.1 The review is undertaken annually in line with best practice requirements. Appendix 


A of the report details how the Authority ensures that the requirements of the 
statement are met. Details of the requirements of the statement are outlined along 
with how the arrangements in place at the council satisfy those requirements. 


 


CHRIS LITTLE  
 TREASURER TO THE AUTHORITY  
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                  APPENDIX A 
How the Five Principles Are Met                 
           


Principle 1 – The HIA in a local authority plays a critical role in delivering the authority’s strategic objectives by championing 
best practice in governance, objectively assessing the adequacy of governance and management of existing risks, 
commenting on responses to emerging risks and proposed developments.  


 


Governance 
requirements 


CFA 
Arrangements 


Core HIA 
responsibilities 


CFA Arrangements Personal skills and 
professional 
standards 


CFA 
Arrangements 


Set out the HIA’s role 
in good governance 
and how this fits with 
the role of others, in 
particular the CFO, the 
Monitoring Officer and 
the Head of Paid 
Service. 


Role of HIA enshrined 
in the Constitution and 
reflected in the Audit 
Manual.  


Working with others 
(including the CFO, the 
Monitoring Officer and the 
Head of Paid Service) to 
promote the benefits of 
good governance 
throughout the 
organisation. 


Relationships with key 
officers detailed in agreed 
protocols i.e. Relationship 
between CFO and IA.  


Provide leadership by 
giving practical examples 
of good governance that 
will inspire others. 


HIA undertakes 
proactive role on 
various regional groups 
and relevant working 
parties and officer 
groups.   
 


Ensure that the 
importance of good 
governance is stressed 
to all in the authority, 
through policies, 
procedures and 
training.  


Job descriptions and 
Management 
Development training 
programme cover 
governance 
requirements  


Giving advice to the 
Leadership Team and 
others on the control 
arrangements and risks 
relating to proposed 
policies, programmes and 
projects.  


Regularly report to Audit 
and Governance 
Committee and Senior 
Management through 
CFO on all aspects of 
governance 
arrangements. 


Deploy effective 
facilitating and 
negotiating skills.  
 
 


HIA undergoes 
Continuous 
Professional 
Development (CPD) 
tailored to requirements 
of the role i.e. CIPFA 
Certificate in 
Investigatory Practices, 
Management Academy.  


Ensure that the HIA is 
consulted on all 
proposed major 
projects, programmes 
and policy initiatives.  


Protocols in place to 
ensure regular liaison 
with key officers.  


Promoting the highest 
standards of ethics and 
standards across the 
authority based on the 
principles of integrity, 
objectivity, competence 
and confidentiality. 


HIA role as per Public 
Sector Audit Standards 
as enshrined in the Audit 
Manual. 


Build and demonstrate 
commitment to 
continuous improvement.  
 


As above 


Require staff to report Corporate Anti-Fraud Demonstrating the HIA undertakes proactive Demonstrate consultancy As above 







AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE 28 JUNE 2019 


 


ROLE OF THE HEAD OF INTERNAL AUDIT IN LOCAL GOVERNMENT      5 


Governance 
requirements 


CFA 
Arrangements 


Core HIA 
responsibilities 


CFA Arrangements Personal skills and 
professional 
standards 


CFA 
Arrangements 


suspected or detected 
fraud, corruption or 
impropriety to the HIA. 


and Corruption 
Strategy agreed by 
Audit  and Governance 
Committee  


benefits of good 
governance for effective 
public service delivery 
and how the HIA can 
help. 


role on relevant working 
parties and officer 
groups.  


skills as appropriate – 
analytical, problem 
solving, influencing and 
communicating. 


  Offering consultancy 
advice where the HIA 
considers that it is 
appropriate, drawing up 
clear terms of reference 
for such assignments. 


Resource built into Audit 
Plan for advice and 
guidance to be provided, 
within strictly agreed 
scope, terms of reference 
and outcomes. 


 


Principle 2 – The HIA in a local authority plays a critical role in delivering the authority’s strategic objectives by giving an 
objective and evidence based opinion on all aspects of governance, risk management and internal control.  
 


Governance 
requirements 


CFA Arrangements Core HIA 
responsibilities 


CFA Arrangements Personal skills and 
professional 
standards 


CFA Arrangements 


Set out the 
responsibilities of the 
HIA, which should 
not include the 
management of 
operational areas 


Job Description in place. Giving assurance on the 
control environment. 
This includes risk and 
information 
management and 
internal controls across 
all systems. 


Annual opinion provided 
to Audit and Governance 
Committee in line with 
Code of Practice for 
Internal Audit in Local 
Government, covering all 
aspects of governance 
arrangements.  


Give clear, professional 
and objective advice. 


Reporting arrangements 
agreed with 
management based on 
a shared understanding 
of requirements.  


Ensure that internal 
audit is independent 
of external audit.  


Internal and External 
Audit protocol in place. 


Reviewing the adequacy 
of key corporate 
arrangements including 
e.g. risk strategy, risk 
register, anti fraud and 
corruption strategy, 
corporate plan. 


All aspects of governance 
arrangements covered in 
the annual Internal Audit 
Plan as agreed by 
management and the 
Audit and Governance 
Committee. 


Report on what is found, 
without fear or favour.  
 


Reporting arrangements 
enshrined within the 
Audit Manual in line with 
best practice. 


Where the HIA does 
have operational 
responsibilities the 


Not Applicable. Producing evidence 
based annual internal 
audit opinion on the 


Annual opinion report HIA 
is produced and 
presented to the Audit 


Demonstrate integrity to 
staff and others in the 
authority.  


HIA undergoes CPD 
tailored to requirements 
of the role i.e. CIPFA 
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Governance 
requirements 


CFA Arrangements Core HIA 
responsibilities 


CFA Arrangements Personal skills and 
professional 
standards 


CFA Arrangements 


HIA’s line manager 
and the Audit 
Committee should 
specifically approve 
the IA strategy for 
these and 
associated plans 
and reports and 
ensure the work is 
independently 
managed. 


authority’s control 
environment. 


and Governance 
Committee by the HIA.  


 Certificate in 
Investigatory Practices, 
Management Academy. 


Establish clear lines 
of responsibility for 
those with an 
interest in 
governance (e.g. 
Head of Paid 
Service, Monitoring 
Officer, Head of Paid 
Service, Audit 
Committee, 
Members). This 
covers 
responsibilities for 
drawing up and 
reviewing key 
corporate strategies, 
statements and 
policies.  


Role of HIA enshrined in 
the Constitution and 
reflected in the Audit 
Manual.  


Working closely with 
others to ensure that 
sufficient and relevant 
evidence is used. Where 
relying on others, 
clarifying the degree and 
basis for the reliance.  
 


Reporting arrangements 
compliant with Code of 
Practice for Internal Audit 
in Local Government.   


Exercise sound judgement 
in identifying weaknesses 
in the authority’s control 
environment and a 
balanced view on how 
significant these are. 


Experience gained over 
26 year Internal Audit 
career. Professional 
guidance followed in 
relation to risk 
measurement. 


Establish clear lines 
of reporting to the 
Leadership Team 
and to the Audit 
Committee where 
the HIA has 
significant concerns.  


Role of HIA enshrined in 
the Constitution and 
reflected in the Audit 
Manual. Rights of access 
to key members and 
officers detailed. 


Reviewing significant 
partnership 
arrangements and major 
services provided by 
third parties and the 
controls in place to 
promote and protect the 
authority’s interests. 


Internal Audit plan 
encompasses partnership 
arrangements and 
highlighted as key area of 
concern of Audit and 
Governance Committee.  


Work well with others with 
specific responsibilities for 
internal control, risk 
management and 
governance including the 
Head of Paid Service, the 
Monitoring Officer, the 
CFO, Audit Committee and 


Relationships with key 
officers built up over a 
number of years. 
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Governance 
requirements 


CFA Arrangements Core HIA 
responsibilities 


CFA Arrangements Personal skills and 
professional 
standards 


CFA Arrangements 


Assessing whether lines 
of responsibility and 
assurance are clear. 


Members.  
 


Agree the terms of 
reference for internal 
audit with the HIA, 
the Audit Committee 
and the CFO, as well 
as with the 
Leadership Team. 


Role of HIA enshrined in 
the Constitution and 
reflected in the Audit 
Manual. 


Liaising closely with the 
external auditor to share 
knowledge and to use 
audit resources most 
effectively. 


Protocol in place for joint 
working with External 
Audit.  


Be concerned for action - 
influencing the Leadership 
Team, Audit Committee 
and others to ensure that 
the HIA’s 
recommendations are 
implemented. 


As above  


Set out the basis on 
which the HIA can 
give assurances to 
other organisations 
and the basis on 
which the HIA can 
place reliance on 
assurances from 
others.  


Audit Manual sets out 
roles and levels of 
assurances. 


Producing an internal 
audit strategy that fits 
with and supports the 
authority’s objectives.  


Strategy produced 
supporting CFA 
objectives. 


Be a role model, dynamic, 
determined, positive, 
robust and with resilient 
leadership, able to inspire 
confidence and respect 
and exemplify high 
standards of conduct. 


Experience gained over 
26 year Internal Audit 
career. HIA CPD 
tailored to requirements 
of the role.  


Ensure that 
comprehensive 
governance 
arrangements are in 
place, with 
supporting 
documents covering 
e.g. risk 
management, 
corporate planning, 
anti fraud and 
corruption and 
whistle blowing. 


Production of Annual 
Governance Statement in 
line with best practice 
covering all aspects of the 
governance framework 
and supporting 
documentation in place. 


Reviewing the 
authority’s risk maturity 
(including the authority’s 
own assessment) and 
reflecting this in the 
strategy. 


Covered as part of annual 
planning process and 
consider in the context of 
corporate risk. 


  


Ensure that the 
annual internal audit 
opinion and report 
are issued in the 
name of the HIA. 


Report by the HIA to the 
Audit and Governance 
Committee. 


Consulting stakeholders, 
including senior 
managers and Members 
on the internal audit 
strategy. 


Internal Audit Strategy 
agreed by senior 
management. 
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Governance 
requirements 


CFA Arrangements Core HIA 
responsibilities 


CFA Arrangements Personal skills and 
professional 
standards 


CFA Arrangements 


Include awareness 
of governance in the 
competencies 
required by 
members of the 
Leadership Team.  


Job descriptions and 
Management 
Development training 
programme cover 
governance requirements 


Setting out how the HIA 
plans to rely on others 
for assurance on the 
authority’s controls and 
risks and taking account 
of any limitations in 
assurance given by 
others. 


Code of Practice for 
Internal Audit in Local 
Government detailing day 
to day arrangements.  


  


Set out the 
framework of 
assurance that 
supports the annual 
governance 
statement and 
identify internal 
audit’s role within it. 
The HIA should not 
be responsible for 
preparing the report.  


Included in the Annual 
Governance Statement 
which is produced by 
senior management.   


Liaising with external 
inspectors and review 
agencies where 
appropriate when 
drawing up the internal 
audit strategy.  
 


The process followed is 
recorded in the Audit 
Manual.  


  


Ensure that the 
internal audit 
strategy is approved 
by the Audit 
Committee and 
endorsed by the 
Leadership Team. 


Internal Audit Strategy 
agreed by senior 
management.   


Liaising with the external 
audit on the internal 
audit strategy, but not 
being driven by external 
audit’s own priorities. 


Protocol in place for joint 
working with External 
Audit. 


  


 


Principle 3 – The HIA in a local authority must be a senior manager with regular and open engagement across the authority, 
particularly with the Leadership Team and with the Audit Committee.  


 


Governance 
requirements 


CFA Arrangements Core HIA 
responsibilities 


CFA Arrangements Personal skills and 
professional 
standards 


CFA Arrangements 


Designate a named 
individual as HIA in 
line with the 


HIA designated individual 
employed By Hartlepool 
Borough Council. 


Escalating any concerns 
through the line 
manager, CFO, 


Protocols in place and 
enshrined in Internal Audit 
Strategy for escalation of 


Network effectively to 
raise the profile and 
status of internal audit.  


Relationships built up 
over a number of years 
backed up by regular 
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Governance 
requirements 


CFA Arrangements Core HIA 
responsibilities 


CFA Arrangements Personal skills and 
professional 
standards 


CFA Arrangements 


principles in this 
Statement. The 
individual could be 
someone from 
another organisation 
where internal audit 
is contracted out or 
shared. Where this 
is the case then the 
roles of the HIA and 
the client manager 
must be clearly set 
out in the contract or 
agreement. 


Monitoring Officer, Head 
of Paid Service, Audit 
Committee, Leadership 
Team and external 
auditor as appropriate. 


concerns.  meetings, 1-2-1s with 
key officers. 


Ensure that where 
the HIA is an 
employee that they 
are sufficiently 
senior and 
independent within 
the authority’s 
structure to allow 
them to carry out 
their role effectively 
and be able to 
provide credibly 
constructive 
challenge to the 
Management Team. 


HIA senior manager at 
HBC liaising directly with 
the CFO with access to 
key officers as detailed in 
the Internal Audit 
Strategy. 


Supporting the Audit 
Committee in reviewing 
its own effectiveness 
and advising the Chair 
and line manager of any 
suggested 
improvements. 


Audit and Governance 
Committee provided with 
advice and guidance to 
enable it to fulfil its 
function. 


Adopt a flexible style, 
being able to collaborate 
and advise but also able 
to challenge as 
appropriate. 


Experience gained over 
26 year Internal Audit 
career. HIA undergoes 
CPD tailored to 
requirements of the role. 
Regular 1-2-1s with 
CFO in order to support 
development in all 
areas. 


Ensure that where 
the HIA is an 
employee the HIA is 
line managed by a 
member of the 
Management Team. 
Where the HIA is not 
an employee then 


HIA senior manager 
within the Finance 
function reporting directly 
to the CFO. 


Consulting stakeholders, 
including senior 
managers and Members 
on the internal audit 
strategy.  
 


Internal Audit Strategy 
agreed by senior 
management. 


Deploy effective 
facilitation and meeting 
skills. 
 


As above 
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Governance 
requirements 


CFA Arrangements Core HIA 
responsibilities 


CFA Arrangements Personal skills and 
professional 
standards 


CFA Arrangements 


the reporting line 
must be clearly set 
out in the contract or 
agreement with the 
internal audit 
supplier. 


Establish an Audit 
Committee in line 
with guidance and 
good practice. 


Audit and Governance 
Committee established in 
line with CIPFA 
guidelines.      


 
 


 Build and demonstrate 
commitment to continuous 
improvement and 
innovative, but risk-aware, 
solutions. 


As above 


Set out the 
HIA’s 
relationship 
with the Audit 
Committee and 
its Chair. 


Role of HIA enshrined in 
the Constitution as 
agreed by members and 
reflected in the Audit 
Manual. 


 
 


 Place stewardship and 
probity as the bedrock for 
management of the 
organisation’s finances. 


Leads by example in 
approach with Directors 
and other senior 
managers that Internal 
Audit function role is to 
help achieve 
organisations objectives, 
whilst ensuring 
compliance with best 
practice and legislative 
requirements. 


Ensure that the 
authority’s 
governance 
arrangements allow 
the HIA:  


to bear on material 
decisions reflecting 
governance  


the Chief Executive, 
other Leadership 
Team members, the 
Audit Committee and 
external audit  


Role of HIA enshrined in 
the Constitution as 
agreed by members and 
reflected in the Audit 
Manual. Rights of access 
to key members and 
officers detailed. 


 
 


 Build productive 
relationships both 
internally and externally.  
 


Relationships built up 
over a number of years 
backed up by regular 
meetings, 1-2-1s with 
key officers. 
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Governance 
requirements 


CFA Arrangements Core HIA 
responsibilities 


CFA Arrangements Personal skills and 
professional 
standards 


CFA Arrangements 


of the Leadership 
Team and 
Management Team 
where the HIA 
considers this to be 
appropriate. 


Set out unfettered 
rights of access for 
internal audit to all 
papers and all 
people in the 
organisation, as well 
as appropriate 
access in 
(significant) partner 
organisations. 


CFA Constitution details 
access arrangements for 
Internal Audit, reflected in 
the Audit Manual.  


 
 


 Work effectively with the 
Leadership Team and 
Audit Committee with 
political awareness and 
sensitivity.  
 


Experience gained over 
26 year Internal Audit 
career. HIA undergoes 
CPD tailored to 
requirements of the role. 
Regular 1-2-1s with 
CFO in order to support 
development in all 
areas. 


Set out the HIA’s 
responsibilities 
relating to partners 
including joint 
ventures and 
outsourced and 
shared services. 


Major ventures 
undertaken detail rights of 
access to Internal Audit 
for governance opinion 
purposes. 


 
 


 Be seen to be objective 
and independent but also 
pragmatic where 
appropriate.  
 


As above 
 
 
 
 
 
 


 


Principle 4 – The HIA in a local authority must lead and direct an internal audit service that is resourced to be fit for purpose.  
 
 


Governance 
requirements 


CFA Arrangements Core HIA 
Responsibilities 


CFA Arrangements Personal skills and 
professional 
standards 


CFA Arrangements 


Provide the HIA with 
the resources, 
expertise and 
systems necessary 
to perform their role 


Internal Audit Strategy 
details the resource 
implications and 
responsibilities for 
ensuring they are met. 


Leading and directing 
the internal audit service 
so that it makes a full 
contribution to and 
meets the needs of the 


Approval and consultation 
process for the Internal 
Audit plan ensures that it 
adds value to the 
organisation. HIA 


Demonstrate leadership 
and be an ambassador for 
internal audit. 


HIA undergoes CPD 
tailored to requirements 
of the role i.e. CIPFA 
Certificate in 
Investigatory Practices, 
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Governance 
requirements 


CFA Arrangements Core HIA 
Responsibilities 


CFA Arrangements Personal skills and 
professional 
standards 


CFA Arrangements 


effectively. authority and external 
stakeholders. 


responsible for facilitating 
this process. 


Management Academy. 


Ensure that the Audit 
Committee sets out 
a performance 
framework for the 
HIA and their team 
and assesses 
performance and 
takes action as 
appropriate.  
 


Internal Audit report 
annually to the Audit and 
Governance Committee 
on a wide range of 
performance measures. 


Determining the 
resources, expertise, 
qualifications and 
systems for the internal 
audit service that are 
required to meet 
internal audit’s 
objectives; using a full 
range of resourcing 
options including 
consultancy, working 
with others and buying 
in where appropriate. 


Internal Audit Strategy 
details the resource 
implications and 
responsibilities for 
ensuring they are met. 


Create, communicate and 
implement a vision for the 
internal audit service. 
 


HIA has a clear 
understanding of these 
issues and is committed 
to continuous 
improvements.  These 
issues addressed 
through performance 
appraisal. 


Ensure that there is 
a regular external 
review of internal 
audit quality.  


Five yearly independent 
review carried out. 
Constant review by CFO 
via performance 
monitoring and appraisal 
system. 


Informing the CFO, the 
Leadership Team and 
Audit Committee if there 
are insufficient 
resources to carry out a 
satisfactory level of 
internal audit, and the 
consequence for the 
level of assurance that 
may be given. 


Internal Audit Strategy 
details the resource 
implications and 
responsibilities for 
ensuring they are met and 
reporting arrangements if 
shortfalls are anticipated. 


Create a customer 
focused internal audit 
service 


HIA has a clear 
understanding of these 
issues and is committed 
to continuous 
improvements.   


Ensure that where 
the HIA is from 
another organisation 
that they do not also 
provide the external 
audit service. 


Not Applicable. Implementing robust 
processes for 
recruitment of internal 
audit staff and/or the 
procurement of internal 
audit services from 
external suppliers. 


Corporate recruitment 
process followed for any 
appointments made. 
 


Establish an open culture, 
built on effective coaching 
and a constructive 
approach.  
 


HIA undergoes CPD 
tailored to requirements 
of the role.  


 
 


 Ensuring that the 
professional and 
personal training needs 
for staff are assessed 
and seeing that these 


Professional guidance 
implemented in respect of 
training needs and 
development issues are 
addressed. 


Promote effective 
communication within 
internal audit, across the 
broader organisation and 
with external 


HIA has a clear 
understanding of these 
issues and is committed 
to continuous 
improvements.   
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Governance 
requirements 


CFA Arrangements Core HIA 
Responsibilities 


CFA Arrangements Personal skills and 
professional 
standards 


CFA Arrangements 


needs are met. stakeholders. 


  Developing succession 
plans and helping staff 
with their career 
progression. 


As above Set and monitor 
meaningful performance 
objectives for staff.  
 


CIPFA “Excellent 
Auditor Framework” 
implemented within 
section for all training 
and development needs. 


  Establishing a quality 
assurance and 
improvement 
programme that 
includes:  
ensuring that 
professional internal 
audit standards are 
complied with; reviewing 
the performance of 
internal audit and 
ensuring that the service 
provided is in line with 
the expectations and 
needs of its 
stakeholders; providing 
an efficient and effective 
internal audit service – 
demonstrating this by 
agreeing key 
performance indicators 
and targets with the line 
manager and Audit 
Committee; annually 
reporting achievements 
against targets; putting 
in place adequate 
ongoing monitoring and 
periodic review of 
internal audit work and 
supervision and review 


Public Sector Internal 
Audit Standards in 
relation to continuous 
improvement followed.  


Manage and coach staff 
effectively 


As above. 







AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE 28 JUNE 2019 


 


ROLE OF THE HEAD OF INTERNAL AUDIT IN LOCAL GOVERNMENT      14 


Governance 
requirements 


CFA Arrangements Core HIA 
Responsibilities 


CFA Arrangements Personal skills and 
professional 
standards 


CFA Arrangements 


of files, to ensure that 
audit plans, work and 
reports are evidence 
based and of good 
quality; ensuring that 
any internal auditors 
declare any interests 
that they have; seeking 
continuous improvement 
in the internal audit 
service. 


  Keeping up to date with 
developments in 
governance, risk 
management, control 
and internal auditing, 
including networking 
with other HIA’s and 
learning from them, 
implementing 
improvements where 
appropriate. 


Member of Better 
Governance Forum, 
Technical Information 
Service, CIPFA NE IA 
Group, North East Fraud 
Forum in order to ensure 
up to date with current 
best practice and ideas.  


Comply with professional 
standards and ethics 


Professional standards 
and ethics outlined 
within Audit Manual and 
also bound by Public 
Sector Internal Audit 
Standards. 


  Demonstrating how 
internal audit adds value 
to the authority.  
 


Annual report to the Audit 
and Governance 
Committee.  


Require the highest 
standards of ethics and 
standards within internal 
audit based on the 
principles of integrity, 
objectivity, competence 
and confidentiality. In 
particular, ensuring that 
internal auditors identify 
and report any conflicts of 
interest and act 
appropriately 


As above as well as 
procedures for the 
identification and 
recording of conflicts of 
interest are detailed in 
the Audit Manual. 


    Ensure, when necessary, 
that outside expertise is 
called upon for specialist 


Arrangements in place 
to ensure specialist 
services can be 
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Governance 
requirements 


CFA Arrangements Core HIA 
Responsibilities 


CFA Arrangements Personal skills and 
professional 
standards 


CFA Arrangements 


advice not available within 
the internal audit service. 


procured as and when 
necessary.  


    Promote discussion on 
current governance and 
professional issues and 
their implications. 


HIA mentors audit staff, 
undertaking regular 
team meetings to 
facilitate discussion. 
Role on various working 
groups ensures topics 
are discussed and 
disseminated.   


 


Principle 5 – The HIA in a local authority must be professionally qualified and suitably experienced  
 


Governance 
requirements 


CFA Arrangements Core HIA 
responsibilities 


CFA Arrangements Personal skills and 
professional 
standards 


CFA Arrangements 


Appoint a 
professionally 
qualified HIA whose 
core responsibilities 
include those set out 
under the other 
principles in this 
Statement and 
ensure that these 
are properly 
understood 
throughout the 
organisation. 


Job description and 
recruitment process 
ensure only appropriately 
qualified and experienced 
individuals considered. 


  Be a full member of an 
appropriate professional 
body and have an active 
programme for personal 
professional development. 


HIA qualified with CIPFA 
in 1997 and actively 
participates in 
mandatory CPD scheme  


Ensure that the HIA 
has the skills, 
knowledge, 
experience and 
resources to perform 
effectively in his or 
her role. 


As above, monitoring and 
mentoring role undertaken 
by CFO in his role as 
Section 151 officer 
ensures compliance. 


  Adhere to professional 
internal auditing (and 
where appropriate 
accounting and auditing) 
standards. 


HIA member of CIPFA 
for 22 years and is 
bound by all relevant 
professional and 
personal requirements. 
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Governance 
requirements 


CFA Arrangements Core HIA 
responsibilities 


CFA Arrangements Personal skills and 
professional 
standards 


CFA Arrangements 


    Demonstrate a range of 
skills including 
communicating, managing 
and influencing, as well as 
an understanding of IT 
and consultancy. 


HIA undergoes CPD 
tailored to requirements 
of the role as well as 
mentoring by CFO.  


    Have prior experience of 
working in internal audit. 


HIA has held a variety of 
position within Local 
Government, before 
appointment as HIA in 
2008, including Group 
Auditor at HBC and 
Head of Audit at a 
district council.   


    Understand and have 
experience of strategic 
objective setting and 
management. 


HIA undergoes CPD 
tailored to requirements 
of the role as well as 
mentoring by CFO. 


    Understand the internal 
audit and regulatory 
environment applicable to 
public service 
organisations. 


HIA has 22 years’ post 
qualification experience 
and sound 
understanding of public 
service governance 
arrangements and its 
regulatory environment. 


    Demonstrate a 
comprehensive 
understanding of 
governance, risk 
management and internal 
control. 


Regularly advises 
management on these 
issues and is a key 
member of the 
Performance and risk 
Management Group.  


    Undertake appropriate 
development or obtain 
relevant experience as 
appropriate in order to 
demonstrate an 
understanding of the full 


HIA undergoes CPD 
tailored to requirements 
of the role as well as 
mentoring by CFO. 
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Governance 
requirements 


CFA Arrangements Core HIA 
responsibilities 


CFA Arrangements Personal skills and 
professional 
standards 


CFA Arrangements 


range of the authority’s 
activities and processes. 


 





